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Faststiillelseintyg
Undertecknad styrelseledamot 1 Arcam Aktiebolag intygar att resultatrikningen och balansrikningen i
arsredovisningen har faststillts pd drsstimma 2024-06 -Z7 . Arsstimman beslutade att godkéinna

styrelsens forslag till resultatdisposition.

Jag intygar-ocksi att innehillet i Arsredovisningen och revisionsberittelsen stimmer Gverens med
originalen:

Malnlycke 2024-0%-Q1
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Styrelsen och verkstillande direkttiven for Arcam Aktiebolag avger foljande draredovisning for
vikenskapsfret 2023, :

Arsredovisningen dr upprittad i euro, BEUR. Om inte annat sarskilt anges, redovisas alla belopp 1 tusentals
euro (KEUR). Uppgifter inom parentes avser foregiende r.

Forvaltningsberiittelse
Information omverksantheten

Arcam AB med organisationsmumner 556539-5356 utveeklar maskiner f0r verldygsfiitillverkning av
komplexa metallkompenenter. Bolaget 4r registrerat 1 Sverige med site { Mblnlycke, adress &r
Designvigen 2, 435 33 Molnlycke. Bolaget fir heldgt av-General Electric Company (GE) och en del av
Gs affdrsenhet; GE Aviation:

Arcam AR bildades 1997 1 syfte att utveckla och kommersialisera en teknik for friformsframstélining i
metall. Arcam tllverkar produkter for industrisil 3D-printing i metall, frdmst titan, Arcams teknologi,
Electron Beam Melting (EBM®), méjligedr kostnadseffektiv tillverkning av produkter med avancerad
design och funktion. Arcam dren innovativ partner f6r tillverkning inom frimst flyg- och
implantatindustrin, '

Flerarsoversikt (KEUR) 2023 2022 2021 2020
Nettoomsitining 20972 16599 22 000 16229
Rorelseresultat -15 467 -21 654 =25 657 -31 447
Resultat efter finansiella poster -16204 -21 468 -25909 =62 485
Balansomslutning 35860 45430 51 698 87 265
Antal anstillda 94 101 171 170
Soliditet (%) 29,4 36,9 75,0 73,7

Viisentliga hdndelser under rikenskapsaret

Vi arbetade hirt under fret for ait vidareutveckla och forbiitiva vira produkter. For implantatindustrin
vidareutvecklade vi vér starka produkt Q10+ for att kunna ge bittre kundvirde och tillforlitlighet, dér ett
antal av véra stérre kunder visar ett fortsatt stort intresse och lanserar nya produkter kvalificerade pé

O 10+-plattformen: Vi arbetade nfira flera stora kunder i implantatindustrin med goda resultat: Vart
samarbete med ndgra av dem har Skat ytterligare och vi har mycket bitire insikt i deras kvav samt
affirspotentialen for oss.

For flygindustrin har vi viddareutvecklat Specira H for kirder sorm vill anviinda sig av metaller och
legeringar som r svira aft smilta och kifver hiyg smiltternperatur. Vi arbetade &ven ined utvecklingen av
Specira L, som tidigare kommunicerats ut till marknaden och dir f§rsiljningen startade 2021, Spectia L
var initialt riktad mot flygindastrin dédr kunder vill ha stbire byggvolym och anvinder metaller och
legeringar som smilter vid en ldgre temperatur, men vi har ocksé sett behov inom det medicinska
segmentet for strre maskiner och den forbitirade produkiiviteten som Spectra-plattformen erbjuder.
Under 2023 levererade vi Spectra L till tv av vara stérre kunder inom det medicinska segmentet, en
USA ochen i Kina.

Orderingdngen var relativt svag, med APAC-regionen som den statkare regionen foross. Majoriteten av
bestdliningarna kom frin nya kunder, vilket ldgger en god grund for framtida tillvixtmailigheter.

P& Formpext i Frankfurt, den stora missan f6r additiv tillverkning, lanserade vi funktionen Point Melt,
Point Melt firett riytt sitt att styra hur maskinerna utfor byggandet, vilket leder till bittre yifinish (néra
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laserprintad additiv tillverkning), hdvgre produktivitet och lHgre OPEX-kostnad for anvindaren.
Demodelamna vi visade genererade mycket buzz och ledde il ett flertal konkreta mojligheter, Vi fick en
bestillning pa den forsta Spectra L till Indien direkt efter visningen, bara p& grund av det merviirde Point
Melt adderade till deras applikation och affirscase.

Forvintad framtida utveckling samt viisentliga risker och osiikerhetsfalktorer

Vi sergod potential for EBM, bide f8r tekniken som sadan inomyadditiv tllverkning, men ven for
marknaden {or additiv tillverkning pa lang sikt. Vi &r ména om att Gka tilldmpningen av vir
EBM-teknologl, bland anpat genom att rida pd den elektrifieringsvig som just pu pdgér inom
bilindustrin. Aven inom verktygsstil och speciallegeringar ser vi flertalet nya méjligheter, fiven om
uppgingen har varit nagot lAngsammare du vintat,

De riskervi seri ndrtid dr den allmanna avmattingen i efterfrgan pd additiv tillverkning p& marknaden,
vilket skapar fordréjningari orderinging. Intresset for EBM-tekniken fortsatier vara stort och vi kan se
négra kunder och projekt flytta sitt intresse frén andra additiva telnologier Hll BBM. Intrlide avaya
konkurrenter med EBM-baserade erbjudanden dr inte ett storre belkymmer, med tanke pd vir
marknadsposition. Vi ser det mer som positivt att det fings fler akitrer som frimjar EBM-teknologin, di
marknaden behtver uthildas om EBM, 4n som ett kortsiktigt hot da vi har ett stort tekniskt forspring.

Osgkerheter tillfoljd av den alliména geopolitska och makroekonomiska situationen &r en risk och
péaverkar ndgra av vira affirambjligheter, men inte 1 stbrre uistriickning som det serut nu.

Forskning och utveckling

Bolagets forsknings- och utvecklingsverksambhet dr-inriktad pa att dels utveckla befintlig produktportfslj
genom att utveckla maskiner som klarar stéire byggen ochi bygger snabbare, och dels utveckla nya system
somi mbjligetireu sé antomiatiserad tillverkningsprocess som majligt.

Vidare satsas dven resurser pa atf ta fram processer f8r olika material, exempelvis verkiygsstil och
koppar, sdvill som att vidareutveckla titanapplikationer. Vi har definierat en ny version av
Spectra-plattformen, som kommer riktas mot den medicinska/implantatmarinaden, som syftar till att
mbta marknadsbehovet tHr EBM inom den medicinska sektorn. Fler och fler anviindare gér mot hdgre
produktionsvolymer dér firdelarna med Spectra-plattformen passar mycket bra. Utfrandet av
utvecklingsprojekien kommer att ske under 2024.

Anvindande av finansiella instrament
Bolaget tillimpar inte sikringsredovisning, men viss valutasikeing sker genom moderbolaget General
Electric Company pd uppdrag av Arcam AB.

Hallbarhetsrapport

Enligt 7 kap. 31 a § frsredovisningslagen uppriitar bolaget ingen lagstadgad héllbarhetsredovisning,
Moderbolaget, General Eleciric Company, med site 1 Boston, Massachusetts; USA, upprittar
hallbarhetsredovisningen med tillimpning av rsredovisningslagen, som inkluderar mederkoncernen GE
Aviation Global Holdings B.V., Breda, Nederlidnderna, och alla dess dotterbolag, inklusive Arcam AB.
Rapporten finns tillgAnglig T6r nedladdning pd General Electrics webbplats (www. ge.com/sustainability).
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Fordndringar i eget kapital

Fond for Fri
Altig- Resery- utveedd  Gverkurs  Ovrigt fritt
kapital fond utgifter fond eget kapital
Belopp vid 4rets ingéng 2426 6081 62 170851 141 044
Disposition enligt beslut
av Arsstinuman:
Balanseras i ny rikning -21 612
Fond for
utvecklingsutgifter -62 62
Erhalina aktiefigartillskott 10000
Arets resultat
Belopp vid drets utging 2426 6081 0 170851 -15259%4
Alktickapitalet besthrav 24 655871 st A-aktier-och 200000 st C-aktier.
Forslag till vinstdisposition
Styrelsen foresldr att till forfogande stiende vinstmede! (euro):
ansamlad forlust ' ~152'593 679
gverkursfond 170850010
drets forlust <16 203 954
2052 377
digsponeras sd att
iy rdkning Sverfires 2052377
2052377

Arets

resultat
-21 612

21 612

~16 204
~16 204

Foretagets resulfat och stillning 1 Gvrigt framgir av efterfoljande resultat- och balansrikning samt

leassaflédesanalys med noter.

4(20)

Totalt

16764

10-000
-16:204
10 568
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Resultatrikning
KEUR

Rirelsens intikier
Nettoomsitining

Ovriga rérelseintikter
Summa rirelseintikter

Rirelsens kostnader

Révaror och fornédenheter

Ovriga externa kostnader

Personalkostader

Avskrivningar och nedskrivningar av materiella och
immateriella anliggninpstillgangar

Ovriga rorelsekostnader

Summa rérelsekostnader

Rérelseresultat

Resultat frén finansiella poster

Regultat frdn andelar 1 koncemfbretag

Ovtiga rinteintikter och liknande resultatposter
Rantekostnader och liknande resultatposter
Summa finansiella poster

Resultat efter finansiella poster

Resultat fore skatt

Ovriga skatter
Arets resultat

\AW"}

Nat

11

2023-01-01
-2023-12-31

20972
1123
22095

12871
-13 631
8214
<2546
~295
=37 562

-15-467

44

-781
=737
~16 204

-16:204

=16 204

5 (20)

2022-01-01
~2022-12-31

16599
650
17249

-14 291
-11-828
<9006

=2 175
-1.602
-38 903
-21.654
244

24

-82

186
<21 468
~21 468

~144
<21:612
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Balansrikning
KEUR

TILLGANGAR
AnliggningstillgAngar

Tminiaresiella anliggningstllgdngar
Balanserade utgifter for utvecklingsarbeten
Summa immateriella-anliggningstillgingar

Muateriella anliggningstillgdngar
Maskiner

Inventarier, verktyg och installationer
Forbittringsutgifter pd annang fastighet
Samma materiella anliggningstillgingar

Finansiella anliggningstillgingar
Andelar I koncernfbretag
Summa finansiella anliggningstillgingar

Summa anliggningstillgdngar
Omsittningstillgdngar

Virulager w m

Révaror och fornodenheter
Varorunder tillverkning
Firdiga varor och handelsvaror
Summa varulager

Kortfristigu fordringar

Kundfordringar

Kundfordringar hos koncernforetag

Aktuelia skattefordringar

Ovriga fordringar

Farotbetalda kostader och upplupna intikter
Summa kortfristiga fordringar

Kassa och hank
Kassa och bank
Summa kassa och bank

Summa omsittningstillgdngar

SUMMA TILLGANGAR

s

12

13
14
15

16

17

18

2023-12-31

1116

2835
4-036
5447

17152
17.152

22599

7281
680
2584
10,556

866
603
196
310
554
2 530

175

175

13 260

35860

6 (20)

2022-12-31

62
62

2187

804
5135
8126

16 880
16 880

25068

2 690
1156
7942
11789

5581
2151
326

514
8573

20362

45430



2024071719472

Arcam Aktiebolag

Org.nr 556539-5356

Balansriikning Not 2023:12-31
KEUR

EGET KAPITAL OQCH SKULDER

Eget kapital 19,20

Bundet eget kapital

Aktiekapital 2426
Reserviond 6.081
Fond for utvecklingsutgifter 0
Summa bundet eget kapital 8508
Fritt eget kapital

Fri tverkursfond 170850
Balanserad vinst eller forlust ~152:594
Arets resultat -16.204
Summa fritt eget Kapital 2052
Summa eget kapital 10560
Avsiiftningar

Ovriga avsitiningar 21 220
Summa avsittningar 220
Kortfristiga skulder

Forskott fran kunder 1256
Leveranttrsskulder 1354
Skulder till koncernféretag 18 19853
Ovriga skulder 393
Fakturerad men ef upparbetad intikt 428
Upplupna kostnader och forutbetalda intikter 22 1796
Summa korifristiga skulder 25 080
SUMMA EGET KAPITAL OCH SKULDER 35860

b

7(20)

2022-12-31

2426
6081

62
8570

170 850

~141 Q44
-21 612

8194

16764

354
354

4124
1416
19549
206
669
2348
28312

45 430
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Kassaflodesanalys
KEUR

Den lopande verksamheten

Resultat efter finansiella poster

Justeringar for poster som inte ingér 1 kassaflidet
Betald inkomstskait

Kassaflode frian den pande verksamheten fore
fordndring av rirelsekapital

Kassaflode frin fordndring av rrelsekapitalet
Férandring av varulager

Forindring av kortfristiga fordringar

Férndring av 8vriga kortfristiga rdrelseskulder
Kassaflide frin den lipande verksambeten

Investeringsverksamheten

Investeringar i materiella anligeningstillgingar
Forgalining av materiella anldgeningstillglngar
Placering i dveriga finansiells anlégpningstillgAngar
Farvirvade andelar 1 dotterbolag

Kassaflade fran investeringsverksamheten

Finansieringsverksamheten

Erhillna aktiefigartillskott

Kassaflode fran finansieringsverksamheten
Arets kassaflode

Likvida medel vid drets borjan
Likvida medel vid 4rels bbrjan
Likvida medel vid &rety slut

xxwg &W/ g

Not 2023-01-01
~2023-12-31

-16-204
23 2411
=186

~13 989

1233
6239
4835
-11 352

196

272
<76

10 060
10.000
-1.428

=12 125
18 -13'853

8 (20)

2022-01-01
-2022-12-31

=21 468
3274
168

-18 026
3996
<3 031
3264
-13 797
284
211

=73

-13.870

17745
-12 125
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Noter
KEUR

Not 1 Redovisnings- och virderingsprinciper

Allm#nna upplysningar
Arsredovisningen dr uppréttad i enlighet med &rsredovisningslagen och BENAR 2012:1 Arsredovisning
och koncernredovigning (K3).

Redovisningsprinciperna dr oférindrade jamfort med foregdende &r,

Koncernuppgifter

Bolaget-dgs ill 100%av Geveral Electric Company, med site 1 Boston, Massachusetts, USA. Foretaget
sony utgdr moderféretag i nirmsta koncern, upprittar ef koncermredovisning med-hinvisning till reglerna
17 kap. 2 § Arsredovisningslagen. Moderféretag i den stirsta koncern diir bolaget dr dotterféretag och
koncernredovisning upprittas dr-GE Aviation Global Holdings B.V. med siite i Breda, Nederlinderna.
Den yitersta drsredovisningen med koncemredovisning finms att tillgh p wew.ge.com.

Foretaget dr et moderf8retap, men med h#nvisning till undantagsreglerna i 7 kap. 3 §
Arsredovisningslagen upprittas ingen koncernredovisning:

Utldndska valutor
Funktionell valuta och rapportvatuta
Bolagets funktionella-valuta och rapportvaluta dr EUR.

Transaktioner ock balansposter

Transaktioneri utlindsk valuta omyiiknas till rapportvalutan enligt de valutakurser som giller p&
transaktionsdagen och vilka distribueras av mbderbolaget General Blectric Company. Valutakursvinster
och -forluster som uppkommer vid betalning av shdana transaktioner och vid omrikning av monetéra
tillgAngar och skulder i utlindsk valuta till balansdagens kurs, redovisas i resultatrékningen.
Icke-monetéra poster riknas inte om:

Intilter

Intéikter har tagits upp till verkligt viirde av vad som erhéllits eller kommer att erhéllas och redovisas i
den omfatining det 8r sannolikt att de ekonomiska fordelarna kommer att tillgodogiiras bolaget och
intékterna kan beriiknas pd ett tillforlitligh satt,

Omséttningen avser intdkter fifin forsiljning av EBM-maskiner och service, metatipulver och annat
forbrukningsmateriel, Férsiljning redovisas som intikt vid leverans av produkten till kunden i enlighet
med forsiljningsvillkoren, Tntékter hinforliga till serviceavtal redovisas 1 den takt som de tjiinas in.
Férsdljningen redovisas netto efter moms och rabatter.

Offentliga bidrag
Bidragen avser projektbaserade bidrag och intdktsfirs nir de har betalats ut, sller dA bolaget har réitt att
tillgodorikna sig bidraget,

Finansiella intdkter oeh kostnader

Finangiclla intdkter bestér frimst av tinteintikter pd likvida medel och omuiikning av koncemninterna 1an,
Finansiella kostnader bestir av rintekostnader, omrikning av koncerninterna lan, nedgkrivning av aktier i
dotterbolag samt resultat vid f8rsiljning av dotterbolag.

oo
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Inkomstskatter

Redovisade inkomstskatter innefattarskatt soin skall betalas eller erhéllas avseende aktuellt dr,
justeringar avseende tdigare Ars aktuella skaft samt forindringar 1 uppskijuten skatt, Virdering av
samtliga skatteskulder/fordringar sker till nominella belopp och gors enligt de skatteregler-och
skattesatser som &t beslutade eller som &r aviserade och med stor sikerhet kommer faststillas,
Uppskjuten skaft redovisas, enligt balansrikningsmetoden, pé alla temporira skillnader som uppkommer
mellan det skatteméssiga virdet pa tillgAngar och skulder och de redovisade virdena i drsredovisningen.
Unpskjuten inkomstslatt bertknas med tillimpning av skattesatser (och lagar) som har beslutats eller
aviserats per balansdagen och som f8rvintas gilla nfir den berbrda uppskjutng skattefordran realigseras
eller'den uppskjutna skatteskulden tepleras.

Uppskjutei skattefordran avseende underskottsavdiag eller ardra framtidd skattemassiga avdrag
redovisas i den utstrickning det r sannolikt att avdraget kan aviiknas mot dverskott vid framtida
beskatining.

Immateriella tillgAngar

Utgifter for forskning kostnadsfors omedelbart och bestiruteslutande av direkta kostnader. Utgifter
avseende utvecklingsprojekt (hanforliga tll konstruktion och 'test av nya eller forbittrade produkter)
balanseras som immateriella tillgAngar { den omfattning som dessa utgifter forvintas generera framtida
ckonomiska fordelar. Eftersom den grundliggande teknikutvecklingen fir klar beddmer bolaget att
framtida utvecklingsutgifter huvadsakligen komimer att kostuads{oras och att dirmed bara en mindre del
kommier att aktiveras. Utvecklingskostnader som tidigare kostnadsforts balanseras inte som tillgdng i
senare perioder. Utvecklingskostnader som balanserats skrivs av linjért ver den period som de
forviintade fordelama bertiknas komma foretaget tillgodo och frfn den tidpunkt da kommersiell
proditktion pébbrias:

I bolagets balansrikning ar aktiverade ntvecklingsutgifter upptagna till anskaffnfngsvarde minus
ackumulerade avskrivningar och nedskrivningar,

Avskrivaingstiden 4r bagerad pd bedémd nyttjandeperiod vilken &r 5 dr f5r utveckling.

Materiella anliggningstillgdngar

Materiella anliggningstillpdngar redovisas I anskaffuingsviirde minskat med avskrivningar, Utgifter for
reparation och underhll redovisas som kostnader, Tillkommande utgifier, som innebdr att de framtida
ekonomiska: fordelar som dr forknippade med tillgAngen tkar, balanseras som tillglng samtidigt som
eventuellt kvarstiende oavskuivet restviivde av utbytt utrustning kostnadsfors,

Materiella anliggningstillghngar skrivs av gystematiskt dver tillgngens bedomda nyttjandeperiod. Nar
tillgAngarnas avskrivningsbara belopp faststills, beaktas ' forekonmmande fall tillghngens restviirde.
Komponentavskrivaing tilldmpes i de fall visentlige komponenter identifierats. Statligt bidrag som
erhills for den materiella tillgingen reducerar anskaffningsviirdet pa tillgdngen.

Linjér avskrivningsmetod anviods for samtliga typer av materiella tillghngar. De avskrivoingstider som
tilldmpas dr 10-4r f8r-installationer pé annans fastighet, 5-10-&r for waskiner och 3-5-4r for inventarier
och verktyg.

Finansiella anliipgningstillgdngar

Andelari koncernforetag redovisas till anskaffningsvirde efter avdrag for eventuella nedskriviingar.
Erhélina utdelningar redovisas som intdkter,

Niir det finns en indikation pa attaktier och andelar i dotterforetag minskat i viirde giirg en berikning av
Stervinningsvirdet. Ar detta ldgre 4n det redovisade virdet gors en nedskrivning. Nedskrivningar
redovisas i posterna Resultat frAn andelar | koncemnforetag.

Fordringar i kencernforetag redovisas till verkligt viirde efter nedskrivoingar,

Nedskriveingar
Tillgingar som skrivs av beddms med avseende pa virdemingkning nir hiindelser eller Oeindringar i

MW;/
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forhéllanden indikerar att det redovisade virdet kaniske inte 4r Atervinningsbart, I de fall en tillgdngs
redovisade virde dverstiger dess berfiknade Atervinningsvirde skrivs tillgdngen omedelbart ner till sitt
atervinningsvirde. Atervinningsvirdet 4r det hivgre av en tillgdngs verkliga viirde minskat med
forsiliningskostnader och nyttjandevirdet: Vid bedmning av nedskeivningsbehov grupperas tillgingar
pé de ldgsta nivier déir det finns separata Identifierbara kassafloden (kassagenererande enheter).

Leasingavtal

Leasingavtal klagsificeras { Arsredovisningen antingen som finansiell ellér operationell leasing. Finansiell
leasing forelipger da de ekonomiiskd riskerna och formnerma som dr forknippade med Sgandet { allt
viisentligt dr dverforda till leasetagaren, om sé inte r fallet fr det frfiga om operationell leasing. Samtliga
técknade leagingavial inom Arcam AB dr av karaktiiren operationel] leasing,

Kostnader avseende operationella leasingavial redovisas 1 resultatrikningen linjirt ver leasingperioden.
Forméner erhiiling { samband med tecknandet av eit avtal redovisas 1 resultatrikningen som en minskaing
av leasingavgifterna linjart Gver leasingavialets 1optid.

Finansiella tillgdngar-och skulder
Finansiella tillgdngar och skulder redovisas i enlighet med kapitel 12 (Finansiella instrument virderade
enligt 4 kap. 14 a-14 ¢ §§ &rsredovisningslagen) 1 BENAR 2012:1,

Finangiella ingtrument

Kop och f8rsiljningar av finansiella instrament redovisas pd affdrsdagen, det datum di bolaget frbinder
sig attkopa eller silia tillgdnpen. Finansiella instrament virderas inledningsvis till verkligt vérde plus
transaktionskostnader, vilket giller alla finansiclla tillgdngar som inte virderas fill verkligt virde via
resultatrikningen, Finansiella instrument tas bort frlin balansrikningen nir rdttent att erhilla kassafloden
frfin instrumentet har 16ptut eller dverftirts och bolaget har Gverfért 1 stort sett alla risker och fordelar
som: #r frknippade med dganderdtten

Bolagets derivatinstrument utgbrs av valutaterminer och har anskaffats for aft sikra de valutarisker som
bolaget dr utsatt for. Derivat redovisas initialt till verkligt viirde innsbirande att transakiionskostnader
belastar drets resultat. Bfter initial redovisning virderas derivatinstrument till sina verkliga viirden och
virdeforandringsr redovisas p& sitt som beskrivs nedan. I'balansrikningen redovisas de som kortfristiga
fordringar respektive skulder,

Kund; ingar och Gvriga fordi

Fordringar redovisas som omsittningstillgngar med undantag f8r poster med forfallodag mer in 12
ménader efter balansdagen, vilka klassificeras som anligeningstillgingar. Fordringar tas upp till det
belopp som forvintas bli inbetalt efter avdrag firindividuellt beddmda osikra fordringar. Dessa
tillgdngar redovisas 1l upplupet anskaffhingsvirde,

LeverantOrsskulder och Ovriga sknider

Léaneskulder och leverantbrsskulder redovisag initialt till anskaffningsvirde efter avdrag for
transaktionskostnader. Skiljer sig det redovisade beloppet firén det belopp som ska dterbetalas vid
forfallotidpunkten periodiseras mellanskilluaden som rdntekosttiad Sver lanets loptid med hjilp av
instrumentets effektivridnta. Hirigenom dyverensstimmer vid forfallotidpunkien det redovisade beloppet
och det belopp som ska dterbetalas. Dessa skulder redovisas till upplupet anskaffoingsvirde.

erivatinstrument

Derivatinstrument utgtrs av valutaterminer, Derivatinstrument och avsiitining for tilliggsktipeskilling
redovisas till verkligt virde med virdeforindringar i resultatet, Sdkringsredovisning tillfmpas-ej.
Resultatet av derivatinstrumentens viirdefordndring redovisas i resultatrikningen. Resultatet av
virdefSrandringen avseende kund och leverantor redovisas som fvriga rorelseintikter/rirelsekostnader.

N\
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Varulager

Varulagret redovisas till det Higsts av anskaffningsvirdet och nettoforsiliningsvirdet. Dirvid har
inlawansrisk beaktats, Anskaffningsvirdet faststills med anviindning av forst in, forst ut-metoden (FIFLD,
Anskaffningsviirdet for fHirdiga varor och pdgdende arbete bestdr av rAmaterial, hemtagningskostnader
samt Gyriga direkta produktionsomkostnader. Linekostiader ingdr inte. NettofSrsiliningsvirdet dr det
uppskatiade f8rsdliningspriset 1 den 6pande verksambeten, med avdrag f8r tilldmpliga rorliga
forsdlningskostnader.

Avsitiningar

En avsitiming skiljer sig friin andra skulder genom att dettdder ovisshet om betalningstidpunkt eller
beloppets storlek for att reglera avsitiningen, En avsittning redovisas i balansrikningen niir det finns en
befintlig legal ellerinformell forpliktelse som en flid av en intriffad hindelse; och det fr troligt att elt
utfliide av ekonomiska resurser kommer-att-kefivas fr att reglera forpliktelsen samt-en tillforlitlig
uppskatining av beloppet kan giiras. :
Avsitining {61 paranti g8rs forvarje sild maskin och redovisas som 8vrig kort skuld. Garantin avser att
ticka de utgifter som kan uppkomma inom ett &r frén det att maskinen levererats,

Eget kapital
Stamaltier klassificeras som eget kapital. Transakiionskostnader som direkt Kan hinforas till emission av
nya aktier eller optioner redovisasg, netto efter skatt, [ eget Kapital som ett avdrag frin emissionslikviden.

Ersétiningar till anstiillda

Léner, sociala avgifter, bonus och-andra kortfristiga erstiningar till anstilida redovisas niir-den anstillde
har utfart tiansten, Koncernen har endast avgifisbestémda pensionsplaner, Fir dessa betalar koncernen
avgifter till privat-administrerade pensionsforsdkringsplaner pd obligatorisk, avialsenlig eller frivillig
bagis. Konecernen har inga viterligare betalningsttrpliktelser ndr avgifterna vil 4r betalda. Avgifterna
redoyisas som personalkostnader ndr de forfaller tll betalning,

Kassaflodesanalys

Kassaflddesanalysen upprittas enligt indirekt metod: Det redovisade kassaflddet omfattar endast
transaktioner som medftr in- eller utbetalningar.

Som likvida medel klassificeras kassa- och banktillgodohavanden. Tillgodohavanden i cash peol
lassificeras som skulder Hll koncernbolag i balansrikningen och.som likvida medel 1
kassaflodesanalysen,

Eventualforpliktelser

Bn eventualforpliktelse redovisas nir det finng:

- Enméilig forpliktelse som hiredr till foljd av intriffade hiindelser och vars forekomst endast
kommer att bekxfiflas av en eller flera ostikra framtida hiindelser, som inte helt ligger inom foretagets
kontroll, intrdffar eller uteblir; eller

- Bn befintlig forpliktelse till f8ljd av intréffide hindelser, men som inte redovisas som skuld eller
avsitining eftersom det inte dr sannolikt att ett utfldde av resurser kommer att krdvas for att reglera
forpliktelsen eller forpliltelsens storlek inte kan berfiknas med tillricklig tillforlitlighet,

Nyckeltalsdefinitioner

Soliditer:

BEget kapital dividerat med totala tillgingar

Avkastning pa totalt kapitol:

Rirelseresultat plus finansiella intdkter divideratmed totalt kapital
Avkasining pa eget kapital:

Resultat {6re skatt dividerat med eget kapital

o
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Not 2 Uppskatiningar och bedémningar

Att uppritia de finangiella rapporterna kriiver att foretapsledningen por beddmningar och uppskattningar
samt gor antaganden som paverkar tilldmpningen av redovisningsprinciperna och de redovisade beloppen
ay tillgdngar, skulder, intdkier och kostnader. Verkliga utfallet kan avvika frin desga uppskatiningar och
beddmningar.

Bedommningar och uppskattningar utvirderas 16pande och baseras pé historisk erfarenbet och andra
faktorer, inklusive férvintningar pd framtida hdndelser som anges rimliga under rdande forhdltanden.
Andringar av uppskattningar redovisas i den period dndringen gérs om #ndringen endast pdverkat denna
period, eller i den period #ndringen gbis veh framtida perioder om dndringen péverkar bade aktuell
period och framtida perioder.

De uppskattningar och antaganden som skulle kunna innebdra en risk £6r justeringar i redovisade viirden
for tillgdngar och skulder under néstkommande rikenskapsar 4r;

« Nyttiandeperiod avseende immateriella och materiella anldggningstillgdngar; Det dr svért att { forvig
forutse hur lAng ekonomiskt livslingd en tillgdng har.

« Kreditrigker | kundfordringar; Vid virdering av kreditrisker 1 kundfordringar gors individuella
beddmuningar som baserar sig pa historisk betalningsforméiga och information 1 vrigt.

* Aktier ¥ dotterbolag:; Nedskrivoingsprovningen gv aktier i dotterbolag inneb#r att framtida kassafltden

ska prognestiseras och diskenteringsfakioruppskattas, viltket dr en beddmningsfrdga och innebdr en visg
risk £6r justering av redovisade virden.

g
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Not 3 Intiikternas fordeining

Nettoomsittning
EBM system och gervice
Pulver och andra forbrukoingsmaterial

Ovriga rorelseintikter
Vahtakursforandringar
Ovriga intdkter

Netfoomsitining per geoprafisk marknad
USA

Kina

Tralien

Sverige

Japan

Irland

Tyskland

Ovriga Buropa

Owvriga linder utanfér Buropa

Not 4 Transaktioner med nirstiende

2023

14737
6235
20972

479
644
1123

6756
4977
3368
617
1213
1135
999
529
1378
20972

14 (20)

2022

6823
9716
16 599

315
335
650

5506
495
2:349
1852
1308
1270
1174
1403
1142
16 599

Bolaget 4gs till 100% av General Electric Company, med site 1 Boston, Massachusetts, USA. Foretaget
som utgdr moderf8retag 1 niirmsta koncern, uppriittar e koncerpredovisning med hinvisning till reglerna
17 kap. 2 § drsredovisningsiagen. Moderforétag 1 den storsta konceth diir bolaget tr dotterfretag och
koncemredovisning upprittas #ir GE Aviation Glebal Holdings B.V ., Breda, Nederlinderna. Den vitersta

drsredovisningen med koncermnredovisning finns aft tillgd pd www.ge.com.

Ink6p och forsdlining mellan koncernfiretag

Inktiprinternt 16% (0%%)

Inkbp totalt

Forséljning internt 52% (35%)
Forsiljning totalt

Deponeérade likvida medel
Cash pool

¥

2623

2034
12365
10 991
20972

~13728

2022

0
14.291
3776
16 599

~12 123
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Not 5 Arvode till vevisorer

Med revisionsuppdrag avses granskning av-drsredovisningen och bokforingen samt styrelsens och
verkstillande direktérens forvalining, Svriga arbetsuppgifier som det ankommer pd bolagets revisor att
utfra samt ridgivning eller annat bitriide som fSranleds av iakttagelser vid sidan granskning eller
genomftrandet av sadana Gvriga arbetsuppgifter. Allt annat dr andrauppdrag.

2023 2022

Delaoitte
Revisionsuppdraget 32 33
32 33

Not 6 Leasingavgifter avseende operationell leasing

Framtida minimileaseavgifter for ef annulerbara leasingkontrakt forfaller till betalning enligt foljande;

2023 2022
Inom et dr 1795 1.987
Senare én ett &r men inom fem ar 7180 8935
Senare dn fem &r 0 2234
8975 13 156
Arets hyreskostnad for lokaler 2041 1 876
Utgfiende ackumulerade anskaffningsviirden 2041 1876
Utgaende redovisat viirde 2041 1876
Not 7 Loner, andra ersittningar och sociala kostnader
2023 2022
Medelantalet anstillda
Kyinnor 19 19
Min 75 82
94 161
Liiper; ersiittuingar; sociala avgifter och
pensionskostnader
Léner och ersittningar Hll styrelsen och verkstillande
direktéren 229 223
Lsnerochersittningar-till dvriga-anstdlida 5419 4 875
5 648 5098
Socialz avgifter enligt lag och avtal 1 869 3095
Pensionskostnader for styrelsen och verkstiliande direktoren 47 53
Pensionskostnader for dvriga anstillda 509 591
2 425 3739
Totalt 8073 8 837

\J&“ﬁ"/
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Styrelseledamiiter och ledande befattningshavare
Andel kvinnor i styrelsen

Andel mén i styrelsen

Andel kvinnor bland dvriga ledands befattningshavare
Andel min bland dvriga ledande befattningshavare

Not 8 Resultat frin andelar i koncernforetag

ErhAllng utdelninigar

Not 9 Ovriga rénteintikter och liknande resultatposter

Rintor tvriga

Not 10 Rintekostnader och liknande resultatposter

Réntor dvriga

Not 11 Skatter

0%
100 %
0%
100 %

2023

2023

44
44

2023

781
781

16 (20)

0%
100 %
0%
100 %

2022

244
244

2022

24
24

2022

82
82

Altuell skattefordran avser prelimintra inbetalningar av foretagsskatt for dret. Det ackumulerade

skattemdssiga underskottet uppgér till 120,9 MEUR (116,9).

Den gillande skattesatsen f6r inkomstskatt i bolaget ir 20,6% (20,6%).

Alduell skattekostnad
Uppskjuten skattekostnad
Skatt pa arets resultat

Redovisat resultat { skattepliktip verksamhet fore skatt

Skatt berdknad enligt géllande skattesats
Skatteeffekt av e avdragsgilla kostnader
Skatteeffekt av j skattepliktiga intikter
Skatteeffekt av skattepliktiga ¢f bokforda intikter
Skatteeffekt av avdragsgilla ¢j bokfirda kostnader
Skatteeffekt av ¢j aktiverade underskott
Redovisad skatteliosinad

m&( =

2023

fonc}

-16.204

3338
-456
56

-25
183
-3.096

2022

o

<21 468
4938

-170
265

-3.033
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Not 12 Balanserade utgifter for utvecklingsarbeten

Inglende anskaffningsviirden
Internt utvecklade tilighngar
Utgaende ackumulerade anskaffningsvirden

Inghende avskrivningar
Arets avskrivningar
Utgdende ackumulerade avskrivningar

Uighende redovisat virde
Not:13 Maskiner

Ingiende anskaffningsvirden
Forsdljningar/utrangeringar

Ombklagsificeringar

Utghende ackumulerade anskaffningsvirden

Ingiende avskrivningar
Forsaljningar/ulrangeringar
Omklassificeringar

Arets avskrivningar

Utpdende ackumulerade avskrivoingar

Utgaende redovisat viirde

Not 14 Inventarier, verktyg och installationer

Inglende anskaffningsvirden
Forstliningar/atrangeringar

Transfer frin CIP

Utgdende ackumulerade anskaffningsviirden

Ingéende avskrivaingar
Forsiljningar/utrangeringar
Omldassificeringar

Arets avskrivningar

Utgdende ackamulerade avskrivaingar

Utgaende redovisat viirde

e

2023-12-31

12709
0
1219

=12 647
=62
-12709

2023-12-31

6515
-381
0
6134

~4.328
239

0

-529
-5 018

1116

2023-12-31

2661
-176
0

2 485

-1857
122

0

435
<2 190

295

17 (20)

2022-12-31

12 425
284
12709

-12.213
-434
~12 647

62

2022-12-31

4703

-838
2650
6515

-2.536

725
-1.452
-1.065
«4 328

2187

2022-12-31

5402

-01
-2.650
2 661

-2 847
56
1452
~318
-1 857

804
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Not 15 Forbittringsutgifter pa annans fastighet

Ingaende anskaffningsvirden
Forsdljningar/utrangeringar
Utghende ackumulerade anskaffuingsviirden

Ingiende avskrivningar
Forsiliningar/utrangeringar

Arets avskrivningar

Utgdende ackumulerade avskrivaingar

Ingiende nedskrivningar
Utgiende ackumulerade nedskrivaingar

Utgdende redovisat virde

Not16 Andelar i koncernféretag

Inghende anskaffningsviirden

Aktictigartillskelt

Utgfiende ackumulerade anskaffningsviirden
Utgdende redovisat viirde

Detterbolag
Siite

GE Additive Hong Kong limited

GE Additive Ttaly Sw.l Turin, IT
Québeck, CA

AP&C Advances Powders and Coatings Inc

Summa

2023-12-31

11 847
0
11 847

-3 629

0
-1.059
-4728

-3.083
-3.083

4036

2023-12-31
16 880

272

17152

17152

18 (20)

2022-12-31

12 101
=254
11 847

-2 869

254
-1.014
~3.629

=3 083
-3.083

5138

2022-12-31
16.:880

0

16880

16 880

Kapital- Rostritts-Antal Bokfort Bokfort
andel % andel %o aktier viirde virde

HongKong, CN. 1000 100 10000

100 100

221231 231231

685 957

g

100 100 15000100 16186 16186

Not 17 Férutbetalda kostnader och upplapna intikter

Forutbetalds hyror

W

/

2023-12-31

554
554

16880 17152

2022-12-31

514
514
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Not 18 Likvida medel
2023-12-31 2022-12-31
Kassa och bank 175 0
Likvida medel pa koticernkonto -13 728 -12-125
-13:553 -12°125

Bolagets behdllning 1 banken inghr som en del av en gemensam koneernkoutobehdllning (cash pool). 1
balansrikningen redovisas denna behillning som en skuld till koncernftretag 1 enlighet med pod
redovisningssed. I kassaflddesanalysen redovisas behéllningen i banken som likvida mede] di dessa dr
tillghinliga for bolaget,

Ovanstfende poster har klassificerats som likvida medel med utgdngspunkten att:
- De har en obetydlig risk for virdefluktuationer,

- De kan Iitt omvandlas till kassamedel.

--De haren 1optid om hogst 3 ménader frin anskaffningstidpunkten.

Not 19 Aktiekapital
Aktiekapitalet bestdr av 24 855 871 st aktier med kvotvirde 1 kr.
Alktiekapitalet 4r fordelat pa 24 655 871 st A-aktier och 200000 st C-akiier, bida med kvotvirde 1 kr,

Not 20 Forslag ill disposition av resultatet

2023-12-31
Forslag till vinstdisposition
Styrelsen foreslar att tll forfogande sthende vinstmedel:
ansamiad forlust =152 594
dverkursfond 170 850
frets farlust -16 204
2052
disponeras s att
iny rikning Sverfires : 2052
2052
Not 21 Ovriga avsittningar
2023-12-31 2022-12-31
Avsiittning garantier 220 354
220 354
Not 22 Upplupna kostnader och férutbetalda intikter
2023-12-31 2022-12-31
Upplupna personalkostnader 1602 1423
Upplupna kostnader Svrigt 194 925
1.796 2348

TN
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Not 23 Justeringar f6r poster som inte ingar i kassaflodet

2023-12-31 2022-12-31

Avskifvningar 2 545 2175
Nedskrivaingar och utrangeringar av materiella

anldggningstillgdngar 0 1004

Forandring avsittningar ~134 95

2411 3274

Not 24 Koncernuppgifter

Moderforefag i den minsta koncern dér fBretaget ingfr och som uppréttar koncernredovisning 4r General
Electric Company med Tax Identification Number (TIN) 14-068930 med séte i Boston, Massachusetts,
USA.

Noat 25 Stillda siikerheter

2023-12-31 2022-12-31
Bankgaranti (Tullverket) 48 48
48 48

Not 26 Viisentliga hiindclser efter rikenskapsarets slut
Inga viisentliga hiindelser har dgt rum efier rikenskapsfrets slut.

Malnlycks

UIf Johannesson [sak Elfstrom
Verkstillande divekidr ) Ordftrande

U A

Homyar Madan
Styrelseledamot

Virrevisionsberittelse har Timpals

Deloitte AB

Linn Palmgren
Auktoriserad revisor
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Not 23 Justeringar for poster som inte ingdr i kassaflodet

2023-12-31 2022-12-31

Avskrivaingar 2545 2175
Nedskrivaingar ochutrangeringar av materiella

anldggningstillgdngar 0 1.004

Férandring avsittningar -134 95

2411 3274

Not 24 Koncernuppgifter

Moderforetag 1 den minsta koncern dir foretaget ingér och som uppriittar koncernredovisning dr General
Blectric Company med Tax Identification Number {TIN) 14-068930 med site i Boston, Massachusetts,
USA.

Not 25 stallda sdkerheter

2023-12-31 2022-12-31
Bankgaranti {Tullverket) . 48 48
48 48

Not 26 Visentliga hiindelser efter rikenskapsarets slut
Inga vésentliga hindelser bar 4gt rum efter vikenskapsdrets shat.

Mélnlycke 2.4/ & *1°2Y
e U ,,
A A %\

UIf Johannesson ak Elfstrém
Verkstillande direkior Ordforande
Homyar Madan

Styrelseledamot

Auktoriserad revisor
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REVISIONSBERATTELSE

Till bolagsstdmman i Arcam Aktiebolag
organisationsnummer 556539-5356

Rapport om arsredovisningen

Uttalanden

Yichar utfért en revision av drsredovisningen fr Arcam Aktiebolag
forrakenskapsaret 2023-01-01 - 2023-12-31,

Enligt var uppfattning har drsredovisningen uppréttats fenlighet
med drsredovisningslagen och ger en i alla visentliga avseenden
rattvisande bild av Arcarn Aktiebalags finansiella stallning perden
31-december 2023 och av'dess finansiella resultat och kassafidde
fiir dretenligt arsredovisningslagen. Forvaltrningsberittelsen dr
firentigmed arsredovisningens dvriga delar.

Vi tillstyrker darforatt bolagsstmman faststdller resultatrdkningen

och balansrakningen.

Grund fér uttalanden

Wi har utférirevisionen enligt International Standards on Auditing
{I5A} och gad revisionssed i Sverige, Vart ansvarenligt dessa
standarder beskrivs nirmare | avsnittet Revisarns ansvar. Vi dr
oberoende | forhdllande till Arcarn Aktieholag enlipt god
revisorssed | Sverige och har | durigt fullglort vart yrkesetiska
ansvarenligh dessa krav.

Vi anser att de revisionsbevisvi har inhdmtat dr Ullrackliga och
dndamalsentiga som grund for vara uttalanden.

Styrelsens och verkstillande direkt&rens ansvar

Det drstyrelsen och verkstillande direkidren som haransvaret for

att drsredovisningen upprittas.och aft den ger en rittvisande bild

enligt arsredovisningsiagen. Styrelsen och verkstiliande direktGren

ansvarar Sven f8r dert interna kontroll som debeddmer &p
nédvindig for att uppratta en drsredovisning som inte innehaller
nagra visentliga felaktighetar, vare sig dessa beror pd
vegentligheter eller misstag.

Vid upprattandet av drsredovisningen ansvarar styrelsen och

verkstillande direktéiren for bedémningenav bolagsts frmaga att

fortsatta verksamhaten. De upplyser, nir sa dr tillEmpligt, om
farhalianden som kan paverka formagan att fortsitta
verksamheten och attenvands antagandet om fortsatt drift.
Antagandet om fortsatt drift tillampas dock inte om styrelsen ach
verkstillande direktdren avserattiikvidera bolaget, upphora med
verksamhelen ellerinte har ndgot realistiskt alternativ till att gora
nagotav detia.

Revisorns ansvar

Vara mal &r att uppna en rimlig grad av sdkerhet om huruvids
Arsredovistingen som helbet Inte innehaller ndgra vasentliza
felaktigheter, vare sig dessa beror pd oegentligheter eller misstag,
och att Jémna en revisionsherittelse som innehéllérvira
uttalanden. Rifrlig sskerhet dr en hog grad av s8kerhet, men &r
ingen-garanti fdr att enrevision som utfirs enligt 154 och god
revisianssed i Sverige alltid kommer att Upptécka en vBsentlig
felaktighet orm en sddan finns. Felaktigheter kan uppstd pd grund
av vegentligheter eller misstag dchranses vara vidsentliga om de

enskiit elier tillsarmmans rimligen kan férvintas paverke de
ekonomiska beslut som anvdndare fattar med grund i
arsredgvisningen.

Sorndel av en revision enligt ISA anvander ¥l grofessionelit
omdéme och har en professionelit skeptisk instélining-under hela
revisionen: Dessutom

# jdertifierdr-och bedBrmervi riskerna £ vasentliga
felaktigheter |- drsredovisningen, vare sig dessa beror pd
oegentligheter eller misstag, utformar och utfor
granskningsatgdrder bland annat utifrdn dessa risker och
inh@mtar revisionsbevis som &r tllrdckliga ochr8ndaméisenliga
foratt Uitgdra en grund for vars Utialanden. Risken for stfinte
uppticks en visentlig folaktighet till filjd av oegentligheter r
hitgre dn fiir en vasentlig felaktighet som beror pd misstag,
eftersom oegentligheter kan Tnnefatta agerande | maskopi,
forfalskning, svsiktliga uteldmnanden, felaktig Information
eller asidosdttande av internkontrail.

s skaffarvioss en farstdelse av den del av bolagetsinterna
kontroll som har betydelse fér vir revision forattutforma
granskningsdtgirder som &rldmpliga med hinsyn till
omstandigheterna, men inte for att uttala oss om
effektiviteten i'den interna kontrollen.

s utvirderarvi [@mpligheten | de redovisningsprineiper som
anvands och rimligheten i styrelsens och verkstailande
direktérens uppskattningar i redovisningen och tilthrande
upplysningar.

& drar vienslutsats om l3mpligheten i att stirelsernoch
verkstillandedirektéren anvinder antagandet om fortsatt
driftvid upprattandet av arsredovisningen. Vi drarocksé en
slutsats, med grundideinhamtaderevisionsbievisen, om
huruvida det finns ndgon vasentlig osdkerhietsfakior som avser
sidana hardelser eller forhdllanden som kan ledatill
hetydande tvivel om bolagets férmaga att fortsatta
verksamheten. Om vi drarslutsatsen att det finns envisantlig
osakerhetsfaktor, mdste vi| revisionsberattelsen fasta
uppmirksamheten pd Upplysaingarna i-drsredovisningen orm
den visentliga oskerhetsfaktorn gller, om sidana
upplysningar &r otilirdckliga, modifiera uttalandet om
Sreredovisningen. Vara slutsatser baseras pd derevisionsbevis
som inhdmtas fram il daturet fir revislonsberdtielsen. Dotk
kan framtida hindelser eller frhéllanden gira attett bolag
inte langre kan fortsdtta verksamheten.

* utvarderarvi den dvergripande presentationen, strukiuren
och innehdllet i drsredovisningen, daribland Upplysningarma,
oth ormearsredovisningen Sterger de underligaande
transaktionerna ochr-héndelserna pd ettsitt som geren
rattvisande bild,

¥ maste informera styrelsen om Bland annat revisionens
planerade omfattning och inriktning samt tidpunkten for den, Vi
méste ocksf informera om betydelsefulla iakttagelser under
revisionen, dérfbland de eventuella betydande bristeri den interna
kontroflen samviidentifierat.
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Deloitte.

Rapport om andra krav enligt lagar och
andra forfattningar

Uttatanden

Utdvervar revision av-drsredovisningen har vidven utfrt en
revision av styrelsens ach verkstillande direktérens fryaltning for
Arcarn Aktiebolap for rakenskapsaret 2023-01-01 - 2023-12-31
samt av férslaget till dispositioner betriffande bolagets vinst elier
forlust,

Wi tillstyrker att bolagsstdmeman disponerar vinstenenligt forslaget
| frvaltningsberittelsen och baviljar styrelsens ledaméter och
verkstillande direktdren ansvarsfrinet far rékenskapsaret.

Grund for uttalanden

i har utfért revisionen enligt god revisionssed | Sverige, Vart
ansvar enligt denna beskrive ngrmare | avenittet Revisorns ansvar.
Vi drobergende i forhéllande tll Arcam Aktisholag enligt god
revisorssed i Sverige och-har -Gyrigt fullgjort vart yrkesetiska
ansvar enligt dessa krav.

Vi anser att derevisionsbevis vi-har inhamtat 8r tilirickliga och
dndamalsentiga som grund Tor vara uttalanden.

Styrelsens och verkstifiaride direktdrens ansvar

Det &r styrelsen som har ansvaret f6r forslaget till dispositioner
betraffande bolagets vinsteller forlust, Vid frslag till utdelning
Irinefatiar detta bland annat en beddmning avom utdelningen 8r
farsvarlig med hdnsyn till de krav som bolagets verksamhetsart,
omfattning och risker staller pa storleken av bolagets egna kanital,
konsolideringshehow, likviditet och stélining I évrigt.

Styrelsen ansvarar fér bolagets organisation och férvaltningen av
bolegets angeligenheter. Detia innefattar bland annat att
fortlBpande beddms bolagets ekonomiska situation och att tillse
att bolagets organisation &r utformad 53 att bokfdringen,
medelsforvaltningen och bolagets ekonomiska angeldgenheter
Gvrigt kontrolleras pa ett betryggande s8tL Verkstillande
direktbren ska skéta den ldpande forvaltringen enligt styrelsens
riktlinjer och-anvisningar och bland annat vidta de tgdrder sormar
nddvandiga for att bolapets bokforing ska fullgbras i
dverensstérmimelse med lag och for att medelsforvaliningen ska
skiitas pa ett betryggande s3tt.

Revisorns.ansvar

Virt.malbetréffande revisionen av forvaltningen, och dirmed virt
wttalande om ansvarsfrihet, &r attinh@mta revisiansbevis foratt
med en rimlig grad av sdkerhet kunna bedémaom nagon
styrelseledamot eller verkstéltande direktdren | nagot visentligt
avseende:

=« foretagit ndgon Steird eller gjort sig skyldig till ndgon
firsummelse som kan fSrardeda ersdttningsskyldighet mot
buolaget, eller

s padndgot annat sitt handlati striid med aktiebolagslagen,
drsredovisningslagen eller bolsgsordningen.

Wart mal betriffande revisionen av forslaget till dispositioner av
bolagets vinst eller f8rlust; och ddrmed vart uttalande om.detta, &r
att med rimlig grad av sikerhet bedtma om forslagat &r forenligt
roed aktiebolagslagen.

Rimlig sékerhet 8ren hig grad av sdkerhet, men.ingen garanti for
att en revislon som utfrs enligt god revisionssed | Sverige alitid
kommerattuppticka tgarder eller forsummelser som kan
franleda srsittningsskyldighet mot bolaget, eller attett forslag il
dispositioner av bolagets vinst eller forlust inte &r forenligt med
aktiebolagslagen:

Arcarii Aktisbolag
organisationsnummer-55653%-5356

2(2)

Somen del av en revision enligt god revisionssed | Sverige
anvander vi professionellt omdéme och har en professionellt
skeptisk Instillning under hela revisionen. Granskningen av
férvaltningen och forslaget till dispositioner av bolagets vinst eller
forlust prundar sig frimst pé revisionen-av rikenskaperna. Vilka
tillkommande granskningsatghirder som-utférs baseras pa var
professionglla beddmning nied utgdngspunkt i risk och
visentlighet: Det innebiir att vi fokuserar granskringen pi sddana
dtgarder, omraden och férhdllanden som drvisentliga for
verksambetenoch déravsteg och dvertridelser skulle ha sarskild
betydelse fér bolagets situation: Vi gar igenom och privar fattade
beslut, beslutsunderlag, vidiagng dtgirder och anira frhallanden
somdr relevanta for vart uttalande om ansvarsfrifiet. Som
underlag fér vart uttalande om styrelsens forslag il dispositioner
hietraffande bolagets vinst eller farfust har v granskat omi farslaget
grforentigt med aktiebolagslagen.

Kalmar den 26juni 2024

oitte

Linn Palmgren
Auktoriserad revisor
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Sﬁme of the mformahon we pmwde it this decument is forward:
loakmg and therefore could change over time to reflect changes

In ‘the environment in which GE competes. For details on the
uncertainties that may dause our actual results to be materially
different than those sxpressed in our forward-looking statements,
see hitps:iwww.ge. comfinvestor-ralat uns!importam-forward-
lookmg~statement~|nfurmahan We do not undertake o update our
forward- oniﬁﬁg statamants

NON-G&AP FINANCIAL MEASU RES

We somat mes use information derived from consolidated financial
data butnat presented in our financial statements praparad in
accordance with U.S. generally amepted accounting principlas
(GAAP}. Certaint of these data aré considered ncn—GAAE financial
measures” under the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
rules. These non-GAAP financial measures supplement our GAAP
disclosures and should not be congidered an alternative fo the
GAAP measure. The reasons we use these non-GAAP financial
measuras and the ramnwhaiiuns to 1hexf most directly cumparable
GAAP financial measures can be found on pages 17 and 23-25 of
the Management's Discussion and Analysis within our Form 10-K
and in GE's fourth-quarier 2023 earnings materials posted to ge.com/
investor as applieable,

FRONT COVER

1) Driginal Monogram

The original GE "seript” monogram dafes fo the company’s foundmg i Schensclady,
Wew York: In 1892 When Edison General Electric Company and the Thomson-
Howston Elevirde Companies merged, the companies’ logo took H87G" from the
“Gengral”in the first company's name and ts “E* !mm “Electdc in the latter
compan}es naine.

2 GE Flying Testbed

GE gequired 8 747400 festbed In 2010, ’H?Fs testbed Is In service today and F i
currentiy testing the largest jet engine ever bullt, the GEQX

B Basquistx Warhol

“Sweef Pungent, 1984” is a painting by Atnerican arlists Jean-Wichel Basguistand
Andly Warhot who cal!abaraﬁed in the 19805 to creals e serfes featuring the GE
Monogram. )

4) GE Monagqam in ‘Sc‘jheaectady, NY Building 37 . :

A 168-foot-long and 36-foar diameler GE monogram $its atop Building 37 it
Schensctady, MY, First it in May of‘fszé‘ the now beloved landmark i camprised of
1399 25-walt incandescent bulbs.

& GE Fan

The GE Monogram ava vinfage GE osciliating fen.

8} GE Lightbulb

The GE Monogram as seénan GE lightbulb. GE was co-founded by Thomas Edison,
the nventor of the modern fight bulb,

7) Mommm Blugprint

The more defined GE Mamgrarﬁ. seer on this blueprint, made ifs first appearance
atiached taa FE celling fan. Compared to the original “script” Monogram, this one had
fmore cleany rendersd lettering and the framing circle with four “purlicues.”

8] GE “Ageless Me&ﬁaﬁfm “ Advertisenient

The GE Monogram featured in Genem( Electric's Ageless Mechanism” advertisement
promuoting GEs Mandnr Top Refngemtom The first models wers made avaliable lo the
public for residential use fn 1927,

9).GE A erospace Loga

The GE Monogram appears at the GE Aerospace cﬁaf&f during the 2023 Paris Alr
Bhow on the grounds of Le Baurgemlmm In Franice,

10} GE Vernova Lago

The BE Monoqram appesrs at GE Yermova's NewEra of Energy svent in Calgsry,
Alberts, Canada. GE Vernova I3 acoelerating the path to more relisble, affordabie, and
sustainable energy.

11} GE HealihCare Logn

The GE Morograrm apoearsin Waukasﬁa, Wisconsin, during GE Health Care's
Founders Day. GE HeslthCare succssshully completed its Sspin-off from GE.on
Jonuary 4 2023,
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Dear Fel ow Shareholder e

We are excited and ready for the future, insp red by GE s
proud history. .

That history is as singular as it is speclal. chr more than 130
years, GE put ifs stamp on invention and innovation. We have
done so quite literally with GE's Monogram appearing on
technologies as small as lightbulbs and X-Ray tubes and as large
as the world’s most powerful jet engines and gas turbines. Our
products and services have helped people cook dinner in their
kitchen and power entire cities.

GE S lmprsnt is synonymous with progress |tse|f

Foras long as we have been dedlcatad to that mportant
work, we have detailed our efforts in this lettar Since itwas
first published in 1893, GE’s leaders have usad thts Space to
chronicle our performance and share with you what‘s ahead.

This document always has been about more than our financial
performance, though, It's told the continuous story of GE's culture
and how our values are embedded in the purpose of building a
better world. We remain acutely aware of and humbled by our
responsibility to shareholders, customers, and society. And we
recognize that our teamn still, and always, sirives for results.

In GE's very first letter, Charles Coffin, the CEO whom Thomas
Edison called the best businessman he ever knew, wrote that the
creation of the General Electric Campany was “largely because
of the zeal and hearty co-operatzon csf our empioyees

This year's letter is our last for GE in 115 current fcrm having spun
off GE HealthCare last year and now preparing 1o launch GE
Vernova and-GE Aerospacs as independent companies in early
April. The credit again is due to the remarkable grit and resilience
of the GE team.

But we-are not marking the.end, This is the beginning.

Belief in a better way has propelled this company forward since
our earliest days. Today, in an ever-challenging environment,

GE employees are embracing a lean philosophy rooted in kaizen,
“change to make it better.” They are delivering for our customers
by listening, learning, and executing. Step-by-step, one process
at atime, they are advancing safety, quality, deiwery, and
cost, in that order, serving our custorners and each othvar with
deep respect.

There is not a better symbol of that dedication than the instantly
recognizable GE Monogram. The scripted and merged letters
are familiar-but also forward-looking, even and especially as GE’s
three parts transform to become their own independent wholes

The merging of great people with great purpose. The connecting
of plans and performance, The encompassing of how, as Edison
would say, we find out what the world needs and try to invent

it. Our'new companies each will carry the Monogram forward
because this is what they sach will do. '

Let's take a closer look at our businesses.
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Momentum building

2023 was an excellent year for the GE team. With strong demand
inour-end markets and with better execution, we more than tripled
sarnings and generated almost 70 percent more free cash flow*
than i 2022,

We monetized about $9 billion in proceeds from our equity stakes
i Baker Hughes, AerCap, and GE HealthCare, While GE has
now fully exited our stakes in Baker Hughes and AerCap, our
commercial relationships remain strong,

These actions helped us simplify and strengthen our balance
sheet while making capital aliocation decisions on our front foot,
returning about §7 billion to shareholdars through dividends,
buybacks, and refiring our preferred equity.

Ourteams have worked hard to prépars fo launch as indepsndent
companies and now are cperationally ready to do so, You'll see
GE Vernova trade as GEV on the Néw York Stock Exchange
(NYSE) following its spin-off, and GE Aerospace will conlinue to
use the GE stock ticker, remaining on the NYSE. Our leadership
teams are both ready, and we announced both boards of
directors, recruiting current and new directors to joinus,

To assemble teams like these s part of why we wanted to form
independent, industry-leading companies in the first place—to be
in the best position fo bring fogether talented people with specific
depth and passion to'help GE Vernova lead the snergy fransition
and GE Aerospace invent the fulure of flight. And both companies
had exceptional years.

GE Aerospace’

GE Aerospace drove double-digit revenue, profit; and cash
growth In the yaar, with continued strength in Commercial
Engines and Services. Services represented about 70 percent
of GE Aerospace’s revenue~gensrally a recurring, resilient,
and higher-margin source of revenue that keeps us closetoour
customers’ needs,

¥ Non-GAAP Firandlsl Measurs

1 - Foliowing the plarined spinwolf; in.which GE wilt distribute the stock of
GE Vernova an & pro rata basis to holders of GE common stock, General Electrin
Cormpary will be knawn as GE Arospace, In current financiyl reporting and
guidance, GE Adrospace refars toour existing reporling segmeant.
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The post-pandemic commercial aerospace recovery remains
robust. It's no surprige, then, that demand for fiew builds and
aftermarkel services is soaring, powered both by the world
returning to flight and airlines looking to expand and modernize
their fleets. The International Air Transport Association expects
4.7 billion passengers to fly this year—breaking pre-pandemic
levels.® Global airline CEOs tell me they are largely bullish about
2024, they want more engines and more alrplanes from our
airframer customers, and they need more of our support in the
field 1o keep their fleets flying.

Today, our44,000* commercial engines power three out of

every four flights. Our Commiercial Engines and Services team

is serving customers like Emiirates, who ordered 202 additional
GESX engines this year for its new 777X flest. Along with our
partners, we announced more than 280 engine orders at the Paris
Airshow and more than 450 engine orders at the Dubal Airshow,
including Air Arabia’s order for 240 CFM LEAP-1A engines.

While commercial engine deliveries were up 25 percent and
internal shop visits were up 10 percent in 2023, we're navigaling
a still-challenging supply chain. We know our alrline, alrframer,
and lessor customers want mors front us, We will deliver, driving
sequential improvements both in our own operations and hand in
hand with our suppliers.

Our Defense and Systems businesses powsr two-thirds of combat
and rotary airoraft worldwide, including crucial programs like the
F<18, F-18, Apaches, and Blackhawks, GE's unmalched engine
technology helps to strengthen deferise cooperation across the
globe, such as through our agresment with Hindustan Aeronautics
Limited to jointly produce F414 engines for the Indian Alr Force:

Meanwhile, we're investing in future-facing platforms iike Future
Vertical Lift and Fulure Altack Reconnaissance Alroraft (FARA),
Last fall; the U.S; Army accepted two T901 flight test engines for
its FARA prototypes. Dur defense customers’ ask of industrial
pariners like us is clear: support their readiness while delivering
more, and more predictably.

QOn both sides of GE Aerospace’s house, then, you can see
blockbuster demand for what we offer. The onus s onus forisefo

2 International Air Transport fation's Qutlool p
¥ Indloding GE and our Jolnt venturs partaers
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meet that demand maintaining the highest standards of safety and
quality and with greater prediciability and speed.

Enter lean. The GE T408 engine, for example; powers the fast-
growing CH-53K King Stallion, and volume on the engine is
growing 300 percent year-over-year, With such an intense ramp,
any delay or bottleneck matters a lot. That's why last November,
business leadar Alex Stone, lean leader Camille Latour, and
advanced engine mechanics Frank Stewart and Vinnie Falls

led a cross-functional team through a kaizen event at our Lynn,
Massachusetts, plant,

Coming into the event, our build time on the T408 was around
75 hours with two mechanics working simultaneously.on two
separate engines fo meet demand. Our goal: Take that 75 hours
down to-under 32, with one mechanic working at a'tims.

By the end of the week, enginsers and operators working together
on the floor identified opportunities both big and small; saving
hours of prep time by using a heat gun instead of an oven to treat
a compressor rotor, for example. The result was reducing build
time to just 11 hours with one operator, all the whils enhancing
safety and quality.

75 to 11 is the kind of change that takes your breath away. Butto
me, the best part was the fact that on Thursday of thai week, the
team was already talking about how they were going to do better
than-11; what they could do.next,

That is the spirit. of lean and kalzen. Always getling better. Your
mindset shifts to look for opportunities at the most granular levals,
day In and day out, to enhance performance and eliminate waste.

These steps, scaled and compounded across our teams, help
customers and support our own businesses, This "powerof the
‘and’™, as Jim Collins would say, is the magic that frankly becomes
addicting as the Improvements build on themselves and grow:

GE Vernova*

GE Vernova delivered meaningfully better resulis in 2023 as
Renewable Energy and Power together generated positive profit
and free cash flow*. The team has made significant progress with
roomnt for more.

* Mon-GAAP Financial Measwre

4 (GE Vemovarefers to the sunt of our Rerewable Energy-& Power segments, without

giving effect to eliminations & Corporate adjusiments. On a stand-alone basis, GE
Vernova will Include GE's portfalio of energy businesses,

Solithwest S,

And around the globe; customers are investing heavily to electify
and decarboriize their infrastructure and increase energy security,
which policy catalysts in the U.5. and Europe are accelerating,
This is creating slgnificant demand for what we offer. We secured
our largest-ever wind order to support what is expected to be the
largest'wind project in U8, history, supplying 2.4 gigawatls to
Patterry Energy’s SunZia projectin New Mexico, In Europe, GE-led
consortia were awarded five 2-gigawatt framework-agreements with
TermeT to execute HVDC projects in the Netherlands and Germany.

The proof points we nesded to see at Renewable Energy fo
confidently spin off GE Vernova came to fruition in 2023, Grid and
Onshore Wind, our two biggest businesses there, turned the corner
to profitability, with Grid profitable for the year and Onshore Wind
in‘the back half. We expect-both-will grow profitably from here, with
margins in-backlog demansirating their pricing discipline: Grid's
expanded by five points and Onshore Wind's by maore than 10
in‘equipment.

There's a good bit of self-help at play here, too. At Onshore Wind,
we've significantly reduced fixed cost while focusing on what

we call "workhorse” products—ones we can produce and scale
efficiently, safely, and cost effectively, rather than bringing a new
turhine to market every six to nine months.

Offshore Wind had a difficult year as we work through a tough
backlog; which we expect to largely complete over the next two
years, The broader industry is ready for the reset that is now
underway. Meanwhile, the team.is applying what we've leamed in
our other businesses-—focusing where we can play, win, and do so
profitably. We think Renewable Energy can be a high-single-digit
operating margin business in time.

Power has transformed into a solid cash generator with an
enviable services business, delivering about $2 billion of free cash
flow™ in 2023 with services growing to nearly 70 percent of revenus.
We delivered 58 heavy-duty gas turbines in'the yaar, up 9 percent
since 2022, including 14 HAs—more equipment inthe ground to
help electrify the world. Power's HA fleet now has more than 47
gigawatts of installed capacily and continues to extend its services
billings to $1 billiory by mid-2020s;

Power has been the proving ground for the operating rigorwe're
now scaling across GE Vernova: Several years ago, the team'in
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Greenville, South Carolina, fraced the distance a steel blade would
travel through the plant during the manufacturing process and cut
it from3 miles to just 165 feet, We still cite that example across
ourteams because it demonstrates so plainly what is possible
throogh lean. Today, we look to Power and 1o sites like Greenville
to model sustainment.

With Power's continued strength, Grid and Onshore Wind
delivering profitably, and our plan for Offshore Wind, GE Vemova is
ready fogo.

Onward, to the future

Fit for purpose for the next century-plus, GE Aerospace and GE
Vernova each are global leaders in vital industries that will anly
become more important overtime. And as independent companies,
each will be wholly focused on their customers and industry
stakeholders:

GE Aerospace will be a global asrospace propulsion, services,
and systems leader defining the future of flight. Our commercial
propulsion flest is the industry's largest and youngsst, carrying

nearly 3 blllion people with our technology under wing annually
thanks fo our world-class enginéering and services teams.

Our customers want step changes in efficiency and fusl
consumption; and through programs like CEFM International's RISE,
we're investing in ploneering technologies to achieve just that—
including in open fan engine architecture, compact core, hybrid
elactric systoms compatible with- 100-percent Sustalnable Aviation
Fuel-(SAF); and direct hydrogen dombustion. We completed more
than 100 tests as part-of this. program so far.

And in defense; we'ré proud to be the ratoreraft and combat engine
provider of choicewhile innovating capabilities for future combat.
Our adaplive-cycle XA100 engine; for example—estimated to
provide pilots up to 25 percent greater fuel efficiency and 30
percent grealer range—recently completed its third round of
rigorous profolype testing.

Our frajectory at GE Aerospace suggests sustained mid- to high-
single-digit growth long ferm, polentially surpassing $40 billlon of
revenue in a few years. Wa're faying i ‘olir lean operating model
for GE Aerospace, which.we'll call FLIGHT DECK, so that we can
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parform at much higher levels in-ways that | think- will serve us-wall
going forward.

GE Vernovaisn't just a great turnaround story. It's a great value
creation story, too, The 'world is looking for someone to lead

the energy transition at scale—someone credible, innovative,
and capable, With roughly 30 percent of the world's electricity
generated with the help of its vast installed base, and demand for
slactricity projected to grow rapidly, GE Vernova is a glove fit for
this vital mission; one that carries with it multi-decade tallwinds
and impact,

Growing elechrification arotnd the world while decarbonizing the
power sector is a challenge we are proud to help our customers
solve. Our state-of-the-art gas technology can reduce emissions
by two-thirds compared fo the average for installed coal, which

still generates. 75 percent of the electricity seclor’s emissions.

Gas represents a cruclal alternative and complemaents our
renewable power offerings and efforts to strengthen the grid,
We're also advancing carbon-reducing and carbon-free generation
technologies, such as carbon capture and removal, hydrogen
combustion, and nuclear, including small modular reactors,

As astandalone company, GE Vermova expects substantial profit
and free cash flow" growth in 2024 Importantly, the team will

strive to-operate according to a set of shared principles that define
how we create-value for our peaple; customers, shareholders,

and planet. We call this the GE Vernova Way-—core cultural
principles that will carry forward the inimitable GE DNA centered on
innovation, customer focus, and humility,

£ Each company will make an
indelible mark, putting their
stamp on our lives and society.”

Inthat 1893 Jetfer, Charles Coffin begins by mentioning how
three companies merged to form one GE. As we near completing
our splitting into three, it's hard notto reflect at such a full circle
maoment, including about how far we have come,

¥ MNon-GAAP Financlal Measure
S Including GE s our joint veniure partners




Irstalled base of
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gas turbines and

~35K

wind turbines

services asa
share of 2023
backlog

of tha world's electricity
is generated with the
heln of our technology

Recently, | was out with my family watching the Bruins play when
lran inte Matt Gregg, 3 GE Aerospace engineer. Matt works
alongside his brother, Josh, and father, Scolt, at our Rutland,
Verment, facllity. Matt excitedly told me how proud he Is-ofhis
group’s progress,

Not long ago, the tencr among the many who care deeply for GE
was 'very different, Some worried and others had lost hope that
our company would survive, At my first GE Annual Bhareholders
Meeting, in Pittsburgh; Pennsylvania, in 2018, [ was awed by

the participation of current and former employees. Some had
traveled quite far; others shared how they were the second or third
generation in their family to work for GE. Many were frustrated ...
orworse; All were passionate, though, for GE to-serve the world as
it was meant fo.

We embraced reallty head on; taking disciplined and deliberate
steps to tackle our challenges while investing fo protect what made
GE special. We set two clear goals: One, improve our financial
position to deal with our debt load. Two, improve our operations

to strengthen our businesses. Lean, with its relentless focus on
the customer and pursuit of continuous improvement, makes our
efforts sustainable and is leading to lasting culture change.

With more than $100 billion of debt reduction behind us and
hard-won progress deep within our businesses, managed amid
apandemic, supply constraints, and other external shocks, we're
operating in end markets full of near- and lfong-term opportunities.
We're entering our future as independent companles froma
position of strength.

As we stand on the cusp of this future, like Matt, L can't help but
feel immense pride and gratitude. | feel it when | look atthe GE
sign that sits on my family’s farm or think about my mentors who
grew up.in this company. GE's stamp is onmy life, too, and that
affinity is shared by millions around the world since that very
first letter.

All'we have done, and all we will do, Is a function of the GE team.
Maost of ali; Pmioproud of this.

With unmatched passion and talent, the people of GE remain at

the-heart of cur efforts; including reinventing ourselves, Challenges

can become opportunities when humility joins with optimism,

leading us 1o believe that a better way Is possible. Our goal has
neverbeen good enough, or a company that's just better off. If
isto build a world that works better. Period. I'm grateful for the
opportunity of & lifetime to work each day alongside this team,

Gene Krangz, the legendary Flight Director at NASA sald, "there’s
an awful lot of future out there, and what you get to do, is ... grab
it." Whethier it's innovating precision health care, leading the
transition to.more sustainable, affordable, and reliable energy; or
defining the future of flight, GE will continue to grab the future. For
morethan a century, GE often set the standard. Moving forward
and because of our people, GE Vernova and GE Asrospace will
join GE HealthCare in doing the same.

Each company will make an indelible mark; putting their stamp on
our lives and socisety. | can't imagine anything more worth doing.

H. LAWRENCE CULP, JR.
Chairman-and CEQ, GE

CEQ, GE Aerospace

February 2, 2024
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Performance in 2023

Dollars in millions

RENEWABLE ENERGY

GE VERNOVA

vy
FY22 REPORTED

Xy
ORGANIC*®

F¥23

MISSION Lead the enérgy transitor while building onadvanced technologies Reverues $15.050 §12.977 16 % 1%
that gmw renewa“ﬂ!e energy generation; lower the cost of electricity. and Profitlose s.4an) 822401 EET P
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POWER | |
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=Ty align with our 101 reporting . GE has replaced our anrval backlog supplemental reporting with RPO, GE now.uses theterms "backlog” and RPQ interchangeably,
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. Our public communications and SEC filings may contain statements related to future,

not past, events. These forward-locking statements often address our expected future business and financial perfonnance and financial

condition, and often contain words such as "expect,” "anticipate,” "intend,” "plan,” "believe,” "seek," "see," "will," "would," "estimate,”

"forecast,” "target,” "preliminary,” or "range.” Forward-looking statements by their nature address matters that are, to different degrees,

uncertain, such as statements about planned and potential transactions, including our plan to pursue a spin-off of our portfolio of energy

businesses that are planned t6 be combined as GE Vernova; the impacts of macrogconomic and market conditions and volatility on our
rbusiness operations, financial resuits and financial position and on the global supply chain and world economy; our expected financial

cperformance, including cash flows, revenues, organic growth, margins, earnings and earnings per share; our credit ratings and

<putiooks; our funding and liquidity; our businesses’ cost structures and plans fo reduce costs; restructuring, goodwill impairment or other
wﬁnanmai charges: or {ax rates.

rTFor us, particular areas where risks or uncertainties could cause ouractual results to be materially different than those expressed in our
rward-looking statements include:

« oursuccess in executing planned and potential transactions, including our plan to pursue a spin-off of GE Vernova and sales or
other dispositions of our remaining equity interest in GE HealthCare, the timing for such fransactions, the ability to satisfy any
applicable pre-conditions, and the expected proceeds, consideration and benefits to GE;

« changes in macrosconomic and market conditions and market volatility, including risk of recession, inflation, supply chain
constraints or disruptions, interestrates, the value of securities and other financial assets (including our equity interest.in GE
HealthCare), oil, natural gas and other commodity prices and exchange rates, and the impact of such changes and volatility on our
business operations, financial resuits and financial position;

+ global economic trends, competition and geopolitical risks, including impacts from the ongoing conflict between Russia and Ukraine
and the related sanctions and other measures and risks related to conflict in the Middle East, demand or supply shocks from
events such as a major terrorist attack, natural disasters or actual or threatened public health pandemics or other emergencies, or
an escalation of sanctions, tariffs or other trade tensions between the U.S. and China or other countries, and related impacts on our
businesses' global supply chains and strategies;

»  market developments or customer actions that may affect demand and the financial perfermance of major industries and customers
we serve, such as demand for air travel and other commercial aviation sector dynamics; pricing, cost, volume and the timing of
investmernt by customers orindustry participants and other factors in renewablé energy markets; conditions in key geographic
markets; technology developments; and other shifts in the compelitive landscape for our products and services;

+  our capital allocation plans, including the timing and amount of dividends, share repurchases, acquisitions, organic investments,
and other priorities;

« downgrades of our current short= and long-term credit ratings or ratings outlocks, or changes in-rating application or methodology,
and the related impact on our funding profile, costs, liquidity and competitive position;

+ the amount and timing of our cash flows and earnings, which may be impacted by macroeconomic, customer, supplier, competitive,
contractual and other-dynamics and conditions;

» capital or liguidity needs associated with our run-off insurance operations and morigage portfolio.in. Poland (Bank:BPH); the
amount and timing of any required future capital contributions and any strategic options that we may consider;

»  operational execution and improvements by our businesses, including the success at our Renewable Energy business in improving
product quality and fleet availability, executing on our product and project cost estimates and delivery schedule projections and
other aspects of operational performance, as well as-the performance of GE Aerospace amidst market growth and ramping newer
product platforms;

+ changes inlaw, regulation or policy that may affect our businesses, such as trade policy and tariffs, regulation-and incentives
related to climate change (including the impact of the Inflation Reduction Act and other policies), and the effects of tax law changes;

» ourdecisions about investments in research and development, and new products, services and platforms, and our ability to launch
new products in a cost-effective manner;

« the impact of reguiation and regulatory, investigative and legal proceedings and legal compliance risks, including the impact of
shareholder and related lawsuits, Alstom, Bank BPH and other investigative and legal proceedings;

+ - the impact of actual or potential qualily issues orfailures: of our products or third-party products with which our preducts are
integrated, and related costs and reputational effects;

« -the impact related to information technology; cybersecurity or data security breaches at GE or third pariies; and

+ the other factors that are described in the "Risk Factors" section in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2023, as such descriptions may be updated or amended in any fulure reports we file with the SEC.

These or other uncertainties may cause our actual future resuits to be materially different than those expressed in our forward-looking

statements. We do not undertake to update our forward-locking statements. This document includes certain forward-locking projected
financial information that is based on current estimates and forecasts. Actual results could differ materially,
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ABOUT GENERAL ELECTRIC. General Electric Company (General Electric; GE or the Company) is a high-tech industrial
company that today operates worldwide through three segments: Aerospace, Renewable Energy, and Power, Qur products include
commercial and military aircraft engines and systems; wind and other renewable energy generation equipment and grid solutions; and
gas, steam, nuclear and other power generation equipment. We have significant global installed bases of equipment across these
sectors, and services to support these products are also an important part of our business alongside new equipment sales.

We previously announced a strategic plan fo form three industry-leading, global, investment-grade public companies from-(i} our
Aerospace business, which we plan to refer to as GE Aerospace, (ii) our portfolio of energy businesses, including our Renewable
Energy and Power businesses, which we plan to combine and refer to as GE Vernova, and (i) our former HealthCare business. For
purposes of this: report, we refer {6 our reporting segments as Aérospace, Renewable Energy and Power. The composition of these
reporting segments is unchanged. On January 3, 2023, we completed the separation of the HealthCare business from GE through the
spin-off of GE HealthCare Technologies Inc. (GE HealthCare). See Notes 2 and 3 for further information. The historical results of GE
HealthCare and certain agsets and liabilities included in‘the spin-off are now reported in GE's consolidated financial statements'as
discontinued operations, Additionally, on January 1, 2023, we adopted Accounting Standards Update No, 2018-12, Financial Services —
Insurance (Topic 944): Targeted Improvements to the Accounting for Long-Duration Contracts. See Note 12 for further information,

Over our more than 130-year history, GE's innovation and technology have improved quality of life around the world by adapting and
innovating solutions to pressing global challenges, including our businesses' focuses today on the future of flight and the energy
transition, At GE Aerospace, with a differentiated product and technology portfolio across the commercial and military sectors, we are
well positioned to serve customers in expanding and upgrading their fleets amidst the demand ramp for engines and services with
recovery from the COVID-18 pandemic. Al the same time; we are working to develop next generation engine programs that will allow a
smarter and more efficient future of flight, including efforts to support increased use of sustainable aviation fuel with our engines’
capabilities and developing new engine architectures such as open fan, hybrid electric and hydrogen technologies. The GE Vernova
businesses are positioned to lead the energy transition, helping the energy sector solve for sustainability, reliability and affordability.
These businesses are at the center of a dynamic and growing market, as the world faces & significant increase in electricity demand in
the coming decades along with the need fo electrify and decarbonize. With & range of power generation technologies spanning gas
power, onshore and offshore wind and others, as well as power grid automation and hardware, these businesses offer solutions for
customers to reduce emissions; meet the growth in electricity demand and make energy more accessible globally, secure and resilient.

We believe our businesses’ strategies and focus on these significant global challenges are well aligned with broader goals of
sustainable development, and we approach sustainability with GE's commitment to innovation as a central element. Sustainability
priorities are embedded in our policies, leadership engagemeant, operating mechanisms, commitmeants, and, ultimately, our products. In
addition to-working to develop technologies that will help build a more sustainable world, we advance GE's sustainability priorities
through our own commitments to our people, communities-and planet. More information that may be of interest to a variety of
stakenolders about GE's sustainability approach, priorities and performance, including about safely, greenhouse gas emission
reductions for our own operations and for our products, environmental stewardship, diversily and inclusion (as also discussed further
below), supply chain and human rights-and other matters; can be found in our Sustainability Report.

We serve customers in over 160 countries. Manufacturing and service operations are carried out at 59 manufacturing plants located in
24 states in the United States-and Puerto Rico and at 102 manufacturing plants located in 25 other countries.

in all of our global business activities, we encounter aggressive and able competition. In many instances, the competitive environment
is characterized by changing technology that requires continuing research and developmernit, With respect to manufacturing operations,
we conhtinue ta make improvements through deployment of lean initiatives and we believe that, in general, we are one of the leading
firms in most of the major industries in which we participate:

As adiverse global company, we are affected by economic and market developments around the world, supply chain disruptions,
instability in certain regions, cemmodity prices, foreign currency volatility and policies regarding frade and-imports. See the Segment
Operations section within MDA for further information. Other factors impacting our business include:

+  long preduct development cycles for many of our products, with product quality and efficiency often being critical to success;
= theimportance of research and development expenditures;
«  regulatory standards that apply to many of our products; and

= changing end markets, including shifts in energy sources and demand related to cost, decarbonization efforts and other faclors, as
well as the impact of technology changes.

The strength and talent of our workforce are critical to the success of our businessas, and we continually strive o attract, develop and
retain personnel commensurate with the needs of our businesses intheiroperating environments. The Company’s human capital
management priorities are designed to support the execution of our business strategy and improve organizational effectiveness. Our
focus on organizational performance and talent remains front and center through the ongoing execution of our strategic plan to separate
GE Aerospace and GE Vernova info independent companies. We will continue to monltor various factors across our human capital
priorities, including as a part of our business operating reviews during the year and with oversight by our Board of Directors and the
Board's Management Development and Compensation Committee, The following are our human capital priorities:
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= Protecting the health and safety of our workforce: GE is committed to establishing and maintaining effective health and safety
standards and protocols across our businesses, making contintious process improvements; and providing ongoing education. As
our businesses prepare for standalone readiness, they have benefited from the expertise and guidance of GE's Safety Promotion
Office, leveraging lean as a-critical tool to prevent injuries and incidents and driving safety as a core operational attribute for the
businesses. For the past three vears, ourannual bonus program for executives has included a modifier based onthe Company’s
safety performance,

Sustaining a Company culture based in leadership behaviors of humility, transparency and focus, with a commitment to unylelding
integrity: GE’s organizational culture supports talent aftraction, engagement and retention and promotes ways of working that are
strongly connected o ourgoals. Inearly-2023, we conducted an annual enterprise-wide culture-survey. While survey results-varied
among our businesses, a Company-wide view of trends in responses confirmed our employees’ view of GE's solid foundations in
safety, compliance, and employee development. Our performance management system, "People, Performance, and Growth,”
directly links individual performance outcomes to incentive compensation. Supporting our culture of integrity, The Spirit & The
Letter, GE's employee code of conduct, sets forth-the Company’s integrity and compliance standards.

Developing and managing our talent to best support our organizational goals: GE’s approach to talent management aims to ensure
strong individual and company performance; our employee training and development offerings are designed to support these
goals. As a key pillar of our talent strategy, GE's senior management leads an annual organization and talent review for each
business to support a strong leadership pipeline and succession planning process. To support our lean culture transformation, in
2023 our leadership development programs continued to elevate high potential talent, Developed in partnership with our existing
leaders, our leadership development programs-are premised upon-a rigoraus learning process tied directly to. outcomes, with-a
focus on hands-on, experiential learning and building a lean mindset.

»  Promoting inclusion and diversity across the enterprise: At GE, we-are committed to building a more diverse workforce and a:more
inclusive workplace by focusing on transparency, accountability and community, We believe in the value of each person's unigue
identity, background and experiences, and are committed to fostering an inclusive culture in'which-all employees feel empowered
to do their best work because they feel accepted, respected and that they belong. We have also had a long-standing commitment
to fair and competitive pay practices. On average, in our most recent reporting men and women performing similar work were paid
within 1% of each other in each GE business,

2024101107813

Additionally, in 2021, we began publishing diversity reporting to fransparently share our diversity data and hold ourselves accountable
for continuous improvement. To support our inclusion and diversity efforts, we have Chief Diversity Officers at our businesses.
Additionally, we have several Employee Resource Groups which have added value to-our colleagues and businesses by helping to
engage and develop diverse talent for nearly 30 years. These groups accelerate development through mentoring, learning, networking,
organizing outreach and service activities; they address challenges that are important to their members and the Company; and they
support our goals to build a diverse talent pipeline.

At December 31, 2023, General Electric Company and consolidated affiliates employed approximately 125,000 people, of whom
approximately 44,000 were employed in-the United States.

At December 31, 2023, GE had approximately 4,880 union-represented manufacturing and service employees in the United States; The
majority are covered by collective bargaining agreements that expire in:2025. GE's relationship with employee-representative
organizations outside the U.S. takes many forms, including in Europe where GE engages employees’ representatives’ bodies such as
works councils {at both European level and locally) and trade unions in accordance with local law:

We are subject to numerous U.S. federal, state and foreign laws and regulations covering a wide variely of subject malters related to
our products, services and business operations, including requirements regarding the protection of human health and safety and the
environment. Relevant laws and regulations can apply to our business directly and indirectly, such as through the effect that laws and
regulations applicable to our customers may have in influencing the products and services they purchase from us. Like other industrial
manufacturing companies that operate in the sectors we serve, which are high-tech, increasingly digitally connected-and global, we face
significant scrutiny from both L.8. and foreign govemmental authorifies with respect to our compliance with-laws and regulations. Many
of the sales across our businesses are also made o U.S, or foreign governments, regulated entities such as public utilities,; state-owned
companies or other public sector customers, and these types of sales often entail additional comgpliance obligations. For further
information about government regulation applicable to our businesses, see the Segment Operations section within MD&A, Risk Factors
and Note 24,

We own, or hold licenses to use, numerous patents, New patents are continuously being obtained through our research and
development activities. Patented inventions are used both withinthe:Company-and are licensed to others, GE is a frademark-and
service mark of General Electric Campany.

Because of the diversity of our products and services, as well as the wide geographic disparsionof our production facilities, we use
numerous sources for the wide variety of raw materials needed for our operations.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ABOUT GE. General Electric’s address is 1 River Road, Schenectady, NY 12345-6999; we also
maintain executive offices at One Financial Center, Suite 3700, Boston, MA 02210, GE’s Internet address at www.ge.com, Investor
Relations website at www.ge.com/investor-relations and our corporate blog at www.gereports.com, as well as GE's Linkedin and other
social media agcounts, including @GE,_ Reports, contain a significant amount of information about GE, including financial and other
information for investors. GE encourages investors fo visit these websites from fime fo time, as information is updated and new
information is posted. Additional Information . on non-financial matters; including our Sustainability Report, environmental and: social
matters, our integrity policies and our diversity reporting, is available at www.ge.com/sustainability and www.ge.com/about-us/diversity.
All of such additional information referenced in this report (including the information contained in, or available through, other reports and
websites) is provided as a convenience and-is not incorporated by reference hereir. Therefore, such information should not be
considered part of this report.

Qur Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q;, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments fo those reports are
available, without charge, on our website, www.ge.com/investor-relations/evenis-reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after they
are filed electronically with the U,S, Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Coples dre also available, without charge, from GE

Corporate Investor Communications. Reports filed with the SEC may be viewed at www.sec.gov.

MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS (MD&A). The consclidated financial statements of General Electric Company are prepared in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Unless otherwise noted, tables are presented in U.S, dollars in millions. Certain
columns and rows within tables may not add due to the use of rounded numbers. Percentages presented in this report are calculated
fram the underiying numbers in millions. Discussions throughout this MD&A are based-on continuing operations unless otherwise noted.
Results for the years ended December 31, 2023 versus 2022 are discussed within this report. Refer to the portions of our 2022 Form
10-K filed as Exhibit 99{a} with the Form 8-K on April 25, 2023 for discussions of results for the years ended December 31, 2022 versus
2021, The MD8A should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements-and Notes to the consolidated financial statements,

in the accompanying analysis of financlal information, we sometimes use information derived from consolidated financial data but not
presented in our financial staterments prepared in accordance with GAAP. Certain of these data are considered "non-GAAP financial
measures” under SEC rules, See the Non-GAAP Financial Measures section for the reasons we use these non-GAAP financial
measures and the reconciliations to their most directly comparable GAAP financial measures.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

SUMMARY OF 2023 RESULTS. Total revenues were $68.0 billion, up $9.9 billion for the year, driven by increases at all segments and
Corporate.

Continuing earnings {loss) per share was $7.98. Excluding the results from our run-off Insurance operations, non-operating benefit
costs, gains (lossesyon purchases and sales of business interests, gains {lossesyon equily securities; restructuring costs, separation
costs and Russia and Ukraine charges, Adjusted eamings per share* was $2.81. For the year ended December 31, 2023, profit margin
was 15.0% and profit was up $11.0 billion, primarily due o an increase in gains on retained and sold ownership interests of $5.7 billion,
an increase in segment profit of $2.4 billion, an increase in non-operating benefit income of $1.2 billion, the nonrecurrence of the Steam
asset sals impairment of $0.8 billion, the nonrecurrence of debt extinguishment costs of $0.5 billion, a decrease in interest and other
financial.charges of $0.3 billion, a decrease in Adjusted total corporate operating costs® of $0.1 billion, a decrease in restructuring costs
of $0.1 billion-and an increase in Insurance profit of $0.1 billion. These increases were partially offset by an increase in separation costs
of $0.3 billion. Adjusted organic profit* increased $2.6 billion, driven primarily by increases at all segments and lower Adjusted total
corporate operating costs™.

Cash flows from operating activities (CFOA)} were $5.8 billion and $4.0 billion for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively; CFOA increased primarily due to an increase in net income (after adjusting for depreclation of property, plant;, and
squipment; amortization of intangible assets, non-cash:(gains) losses related to-our retained and sold ownership interests in GE
HealthCare, AerCap and Baker Hughes and the nonrecurrence of non-operating debt extinguishment costs). Free cash flows* (FCF)
were $5.2 billion and $3.1 billion for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. FCF* increased primarily due to the
same reasons as noted for CFOA above, after adjusting for an increase in separation cash expenditures, which are excluded from
FCF*, partially offset by an increase in cash used for additions to property, plant and equipment and internal-use software. See the
Capital Resources and Liquidity - Statement of Cash Flows section for further information.

Remaining performance obligation (RPO} includes unfilled customer orders for equipment, excluding any purchase order that provides
the customer.with the ability to cancel orterminate without incurring a substantive penalty: Services BPQ includes the estimated lifeof
contract sales related to long-term service agreements which remain unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period, the estimated
amount of unsatisfied performance obligations for time and material agreements, material services agreements, spare parts under
purchase order, multi-year maintenance programs and other-services agresments, excluding any order that provides the customer with
the ability to cancel or terminate without incurring a substantive penalty. See Note 25 for further information.

*Mon-GAAP Financial Measure
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RPO December31,2023  December 31,2022 December 31, 2021

Equipment $ 54,675 % 44,198 $ 40,834
Services 212,558 194,198 185,786
Total RPC $ 267,233 % 238,306 $ 226,620

<As of December 31, 2023, RPO increased $28.8 billion (12%) from December 31, 2022, primarily at Aeraspace, from increases in both
sequipment and services; at Renewable Energy, from new orders at Grid and Onshore Wind; and at Power, driven by increases in Gas
gawar services and equipment and Power Conversion equipment,

“REVENUES 2023 2022 2021
SIEquipment revenues 3 26,783 % 22334 % 25,096
Slgervices revenues 37,772 32,808 28,2712
insurance revenues 3,389 2,957 3,101
Total revenues 3 67,954 § 58,100 $ 56,469

For the year ended December 31, 2023, total revenues increased $9.9 billion (17%). Equipment revenues increased, primarily at
Renewable Energy, due to higher equipment revenue at Offshore Wind associated with the Haliade-X ramp up, as well as at Grid; at
Aerospace; dueto anincrease n commercial install and spare engine unit shipments; and at Power, due to increases at Gas Power
and Power Conversion. Services revenues increased, primarily at Aerospace, due to increased commaercial spare part shipments,
internal shop visit volume and higher prices; and at Power, dueto growth in Gas Power, Steamand Power Conversion; partially offset
by a decrease at Renewable Energy, due to a decrease in repower revenue.

Excluding the change In Insurance revenues, the net effects of acquisitions and dispositions and the effects of a weaker U.S. dollar,
organic revenues* increased $9.2 billion (17%), with equipment revenues up$4.3 billion (19%)and services revenues up $4.8 billion
(15%). Organic revenues™ increased at Aerospace, Renewable Energy and Power.

EARNINGS (LOSS) AND EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
{Per-share-in dollars and diluted) 2023 2022 2021
Continuing earnings {Joss) attributable to GE common sharehalders 3 8772 % (1,100} § {5,058)
Continuing earnings (I6ss) per share 7.98 % (1.00) % (4.62)

a5

For the year ended December 31; 2023, continuing earnings increased $9.9 billion, primarily due to an increase in gains on-retained
and sold ownership interests of $5.7 billion, an increase in segment profit of $2.4 billion, an increase in non-operating benefit income of
$1.2 billion, the nonrecurrence of the Steam asset sale impairment of $0.8 billion, the nonrecurrence of debt extinguishment costs of
$0.5 billion, a decrease in interest and other financial charges of $0.3 billion, a decrease in Adjusted Corporate operating costs* of $0.1
billion, a decrease in restructuring costs of $0.1 billion-and an increase in Insurance profit of $0.1 billion. These increases were partially
offset by an increase in provision for income taxes of $1.1 billion and an increase in separation costs of $0.3 billion. Adjusted earnings*
wete $3.1 billion, an increase of $2.2 billion. Profit margin was 15.0%, an increase from {1.4)%. Adjusted profit* was $5.7 billion, an
increase of $2.6 billion organically®, due to increases at Aerospace, Renewable Energy and Power. Adjusted profit margin® was 8.8%,
an Increase of 310 basis points organically®.

We continue to experience inflation pressure in our supply chain, as well as delays in sourcing key materials needed for our products
and skilled labor shortages. This has delayed our ability to convert RPO to revenue and negatively impacted our profit margins. While
we expect the impact of inflation to continue to be challenging, we have taken and continue to take actions to limit this pressure,
including lean initiatives to drive cost productivity, partnering with our suppliers and adjusting the pricing of our products and services.
Also, because we-operate in many countries around the world, we are subject to complex global geopolitical forces. Due toran
expansion of U.S, sanctions related to the ongoing Russia and Ukraine conflict, we recorded a charge of $0.2 billion in the year ended
December 31, 2023, primarily related to our Power segment, and as a result our remaining net asset exposure to Russia is not material.

SEGMENT OPERATIONS., Segment revenues include sales of equipment and services by our segments. Segment profitis
determined based on performance measures used by our Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM), who is our Chisf Executive Officer
{CEO), to assess the performance of each businessin a given period. In connection with that assessment, the CEO may exclude
matters, such as charges for impairments; significant; higher-cost restructuring programs, cosis associated with separation activities,
manufacturing footprint rationalization and other similar expenses, acquisition costs and other related charges, cerfain gains and losses
from acquisitions or dispositions and certain litigation settlements. See the Corporate section for further information about costs
excluded from segment profit. Segment profit excludes results reported as discontinued operations and the portion of earnings or loss
attributable to noncontrolling interests of consolidated subsidiaries, and as such only includes the portion of earnings or loss attributable
to our share of the consolidated earnings or loss of consolidated subsidiaries. Certain corporate costs, including those related to shared
services, employee benefits, and information technology, are allocated to our segments based on usage or their relative net cost of
aperations. '
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SUMMARY OF REPORTABLE SEGMENTS 2023 2022 2021

Aerospace $ 31,770 % 28050 § 21310
Renewable Energy 15,060 12,977 15,697
Power 17,731 16,262 16,903
Total segment revenues 64,551 55,289 53,910
Corporate 3,403 2,812 2,559
Total revenues $ 67954 § 58,100 § 56,469
Aerospace $ 6115 8% 4775 % 2,882
Renewable Energy {1.437) (2,240) (795}
Power 1,449 1,217 726
Total segment profit {loss) 6,126 3,751 2,812
Corporate(a) 3,785 (2,875) 1,158
Interest and other financial charges {1,073) (1,423} {1,727)
Debt extinguishment costs — {465) {6,524)
MNon-operating benefit income {cost) 1,585 408 {1,136)
Benefit (provision) for income taxes (1,357) {210} 595
Preferred stock dividends {295) {289) {237)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations attributable {o GE common shareholders 8,772 (1,100} {5,058}
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations attributable to GE common shareholders 414 1,151 {1,515)
Net earnings (loss) attributable to GE common shareholders $ 9186 &% 51 & (6,573

{a) Includes interest and other financial charges of $45 million, $54 millior-and $63 million; and benefit for Income taxes of $195 million,
$212 million and $162 million related to Energy Financial Services: (EFS) within Corporate forthe years ended December 31, 2023,
2022, and 2021 respectively.

GE AEROSPACE. Aerospace designs and produces commercial and defense aircraft engines, integrated engine components, electric
power and mechanical aircraft systems, We also provide aftermarket services to support our products.

Commercial Engines and Services - manufactures jet.engines for commercial-airframes. Aerospace engines power-alrcraft in-all
categories: narrowbody, widebody and regional, which includes engines sold by CFM International, a 50-50 non-consolidated company
with Safran Alrcraft Engines, a subsidiary of Safran Group of France, and Engine Alliance, a 50-50 non-consolidated company with
Raytheon Technologies Corporation via their Pratt & Whitney segment. This includes engines and components for business aviation
and aeroderivative applications as well. Commercial provides maintenance, component repairand overhaul services (MRO}, including
sales of spare parts.

Defense — manufactures jet engines for defense alrframes. Our defense engines power a wide variely of defense aircraft including
fighters, bombers, tankers, helicopters and surveillance aircraft, as well as marine applications. We provide maintenance, component
repair and overhaul services, including sales of spare parts.

Systems & Other - provides avionics systems, avigtion electric power systems, turboprop engines, engine gear and fransmission
components and services for commercial and defense businesses, Additionally, we provide a 'wide variety of products and services
including additive machines, additive materials {including metal powders), and additive engineering services.

Competition & Regulation, The global businesses for aircralt jet engines, maintenance, component repair and overhaul services
{including spare part sales) are highly competitive. Both domestic and internationalsales are important to the growth and success of the
business. Product development cycles are long and product quality and efficiency are critical to success, Research and development
expenditures are important in this business, as are focused intellectual property strategies and protection of key aircraft engine design,
manufacture, repair and product upgrade technologies. In addition, we are subject to market and regulatory dynamics related to
decarbonization which will require a combination of technological innovation in the fuel efficiency of engines, expanding the use of
sustainable aviation fuels and the development of electric flight and hydrogen-based aviation technologies. Aircraft engine and systems
orders tend to Tollow civil alr travel demand and defense procurement cycles.

Our products, services and activities are subject to a number of global regulators such as the U.8. Federal Aviation Administration
{FAA), Eurcpean Union Aviation Safety Agency (EASA), Civil Aviation Administration of China (CAAC}) and other regulatory bodies.

Significant Trends & Developments. Qur results in 2023 reflect robust demand for commercial air fravel and continued strength in
services, which represents over 70% of Aerospace’s revenue this year. A key underlying driver of our commercial engine and services
busihess is-global commergial departures, which grew high-teens during. 2023 compared to 2022, The air traffic growth trends vary by
region given economic canditions, airline competition and government regulations. Consistent with industry projections, we estimate
departures growth 1o decelerate to mid-single digits in 2024. We are in frequent dialogue with our airline, airframs, and maintenance,
repair and overhaul customers about the outlook for commercial air travel, new aircraft production, fleet retirements, and after-market
services, including shop visit and spare parts demand.
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Ag'it relates fo the defense environment, we continue to forecast strong demand creating futiire growth opportunities for our Defense
business. The U.S. Department of Defense and foreign governments have continued flight operations and have allocated budgets to
upgrade and modernize their existing fleets, including support for next generation large-combat engine architecture such as
Aerospace's XA100 program. In QOctober 2023, Aerospace achieved a significant milestone with the U.8. Army's acceptance of the first
two T901 flight test.engines that will power the Future Attack Reconnaissance Aircraft prototypes.

che increased our Commercial engine sales this year compared to prior year, however, Defense engine sales decreased compared 1o
a@nar year. Global material availability, supplier delivery performance and skilled labor shortages continue to cause disruptions for our
::supp iers and for us, and have smpacted our production and delivery. We continue to pariner with our customers on future production
~tates. Aerospace is proactively managing the impact of inflationary pressure by deploying lean initiatives to drive cost productivity,
%artneréng with our suppliers and adjusting the pricing of our products and services. We expect the impact of inflation will continue; and
o e are taking actions to mitigate the impact.
=2 .
Total engineering, comprising company, customer and partner-funded and nonrecurring engineering costs, increased compared to the
prior year. We remain committed to investing in developing and maturing technologies that enable a more sustainable future of flight.
Notably, CFM's Revolutionary Innovation for Sustainable Engines (RISE) program represents our single largest efficiency step change,
aimingto reduce fuel consumption and COZ2 emissions by atleast 20% compared to today’s most-efficient engines. In December 2023,
NASA selected Aerospace for phase two of the Hybrid Thermally Efficient Core program, which will significantly enhance fuel efficiency
and reduce emissions for the next-generation of commercial aircraft engines.

We continue to take actions to serve our customers as demand in the global airline industry increases. Aerespace has:a deep history of
innovation and technology leadership. Our commercial and defense engine installed base, including units produced by joint ventures, of
approximately 70,000 units, with approximately 12,6800 units under long-term service agreements, supports recurring, profitable
services growth for the future. We believe these strong fundamentals position Aerospace 1o generate long-term profitable growth and
higher cash flow over time,

Sales in units, except where noted 2023 2022 2021
Commercial Engines(a) 2,075 1,663 1,487

LEAP Engines(b) 1,570 1,136 845
Defense Engines ’ 556 632 553
Spare Parts Rate(c) $ 361 % 26.9 § 17.8

{a) Commercial Engines now includes Business Aviation and Aeroderivative units for all periods presented.
(b} LEAP engines are subsets of commercial engines.
{c) Commercial externally shipped spare parts and spare parts used in time and material shop visits in millions of dollars per-day.

RPO December 31, 2023  December 31,2022  December 31, 2021
Equipment % 16,247 $ 13,748 % 11,139
Services 137,611 121,511 114,133
Total RPO ; $ 153,858 $ 135,260 $ 125,272

RPO as of December 31, 2023 increased $18.8 billion (14%) from December 31, 2022, due to increases in both equipment and
services, Equipment increased primarily due to an increase in both Commercial.and Defense equipment orders since Decerriber 31,
2022, Services increased primarily due to contract modifications and as a result of engines contracted under long-term service
agreements that have now been put into service.

SEGMENT REVENUES AND PROFIT 2023 - 2022 2021
Commercial Engines and Services $ 23,684 $ 18,665 $ 14,360
Defense 4,714 4,410 4,136
Systems & Other 3,372 2,975 2,814
Total segment réevenues 3 31,770 $ 26,050 % 21,310
Equipment $ 9,319 $ 7,842 $ 7,531
Services 22451 18,207 13,780
Total segment revenues $ 31,770 $ 26,050 3 21,310
Segment profit 5 6,115 $ 4,775 $ 2,882
Segment profit margin 19.2 % 18.3 % 13.5 %

*Non-GAAP Financial Measure
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For the year ended December 31, 2023, segment revenues were up $5.7 billion {22%) and segment profit was up $1.3 billion
{28%).

Revenues increased $5.7 billion (22%) organically®. Commercial Services revenues increased, primarily due to increased commercial
spare part shipments; higher internal shop visit volume, heavier work scopes and higher prices. Commercial Engines revenue
increased, from 412 more commercial install and spare engine unit shipments, including 434 more LEAP units compared to the prior
year. Defense revenues increased, primarily due to product mix-and growth in development contract revenue, partially offset by 76
fewer engine shipments than the prior year.

Profit increased $1.2 billion {25%) organically®, primarily due to benefits from increased commercial spare part shipments, higher
internal shop visit volume, heavier work scopes and higher prices. These increases in profit were partially offset by-additional growth
invesiment, inflation in our supply chain and product mix.

RENEWABLE ENERGY —will be part of GE Vernova. We henefit from one of the broadest portfalios in the industry that uniquely
positions us to lead the energy transition while building on advanced technologies that grow renewable energy generation, lower the
cost of electricity and modernize the grid. Our portfolio of business units includes onshore and offshore wind, blade manufacturing, grid
solutions, hydro, battery storage, hybrid renewables and digital services offerings.

Onsheore Wind — delivers wind turbines, technology and services for the onshore wind power industry by focusing.on work-horse
products in select locations, while continuing to innovate the technology 1o create wind turbines sultable for various markets and
environmental conditions. Wind Services assist customers in improving cost, capacity and performance of their assets over the lifetime
of their fleets, utilizing digital infrastructure to monitor, predict and optimize wind farm energy performance, Our Onshore Wind busiriess
supports a turbine instalied base of over 55,000 units, of which slightly fewer than half are under service agreements.

Grid Solutions Equipment and Services (Grid) — enables power utilities and industries worldwide to effectively manage electricity
from the point of generation fo consumption, helping the reliability, efficiency and resiliency of the grid. Service offerings include a
comprehensive portfolio of equipment, hardware, protection and control, automation and digital services. Grid is also addressing the
challenges of the energy transition by safely and reliably connecting intermittent renewable energy generation to transmission networks.,

Hydro, Offshore Wind and Hybrid Scolutions — Hydro provides a portfolio of solutions and services for hydropower generation for both
large hydropower plants and small hydropower solutions. Offshore Wind provides wind power technologies and wind farm development.
Hybrid Solutions provides integration of renewable energles that drive stability to the grid and integrates storage and renewable energy
generation sources.

Competition & Regulation: While many factors, including government incentives, specific market rules, and permitting regulations and
challenges affect how renewable energy can deliver outcomes for customers in a given region, renewable energy has become
competitive with fossil fuels in terms of levelized cost of electricity. We continue to invest in improving the durability of our wind turbine
products; fleat availabllity and project execution: We have anincreased focus on project selectivity and reducing the number of product
variants. Additionally, we continue to explore ways 1o further improve the effictency and flexibility of our hydropower technology with riew
innovative turbine designs and digital solutions. The power grid, which was designed historically Tor one-way flow of slectricity from
centralized plants, must be augmented to accommodate two-way flows from a highly distributed network of generation and storage
solutions. As industry models continue to evolve, our digital strategy and investments in technical innovation will position us to add
value for customers looking for clean, renewable energy.

Significant Trends & Developments. During the year ended December 31, 2023, the segment experienced higher orders and
revenue from increased demand at Grid, Onshore Wind projects in the U.S. and higher revenue at Offshore Wind. Grid Solutions
signed a significant agreement to supply its two-gigawatt HYDC systems to connect wind farms in the North Sea to the Netherlands and
Germany. The Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 (IRA) introduced new and extended-existing tax incentives for at least 10 years, it has
resolved recent U.S. policy uncertainty that resulted in project delays and deferral of customar investments in Onshore Wind and
Increased near- and longer4erm demand in the U.8. for onshore and offshore wind projects. Included in our RPCO of $42.8 billion at
December 31, 2023 are service agreements on-approximately 24,000 of our onshore wind turbines, fram an installed base of over
55,000 units; New product introductions, such as our 3 MW, 5 MW and 6 MW Onshore units, and our 12-14 MW Haliade-X Offshore
units, account for more than half of our RPO in Onshore and Offshore Wind. As of December 31, 2023, the first 13 MW Haliade-X units
have achieved first power. Finally, our Grid business is positioned to support grid expansion and modernization needs.

At Onshore Wind, we continue to focus on improving our overall guality and fleet availability. We are reducing product variants and
deploying repairs and other corrective measures across the fleet. Concurrently, we intend to operate in fewer geographies and focus on
those markets that align better with our products and manufacturing footprint. We are realizing the favorable impact of the IRA through a
reduction in product costs as qualifying turbines manufactured in the U.S, in 2023 are delivered. More than two-thirds of Onshore
Wind's equipment RPO s associated with U.S: projects where we expect to receive additional IRA benefits as incremental qualifying
turbines are delivered. Finally, we are continuing our restructuring program to reduce our operating costs and are seeing the benefits
both operationally and financially.

The Dffshore Wind industry; where we expect global growth through the coming decades, currently faces challenges as comparies
attempt to increase output and reduce cost. In our Offshore Wind business, we continue to experience pressure related to our product
and project cost estimates. Although we are deploying countermeasures to combat these pressures and are committed to driving
productivity and costimprovement for our new larger turbines, changes in execution fimelines or tther adverse developments likely
caould have-an adverse-effect on our cash collection timelings and contract profitability, and-could result i further losses beyond the
amounts that we currently estimate.

*Non-GAAP Financial Measurg
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Qur Grid Solutions business is positioned to support grid expansion and modernization needs globally. We secured a position in the
rapidly growing offshore interconnection market with new products and technology supporting a 2 GW High Voltage Direct Current
{HVDC) salution standard and are developing new technology, such as Grid-forming Static Synchronous Compensators and eco-
friendly SFB-free switchgears, that solves for a denser, more resilient, stable and efficlent electric grid; a grid with lower future
greenhouse gas emissions. We also benefited from higher growth in orders from other transmission and grid automation related
products within our Grid Solutions business.

s
?iSSales in units, except where noted 2023 2022 2021
“Wind Turbines 2,225 2,190 3,590
=Wind Turbine Gigawatts 8.5 7.5 11.7
~+Repower units 179 580 561
&~
RPO - December 31,2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Eguipment % 27,703 . % 20,142 § 18,639
Services 15,082 14,799 14,652
Total RPO $ 42,785 § 34,941 $ 33,291

RPO as of December 31, 2023 increased $7.8 billion (22%) from December 31, 2022 primarily from several new HYDC projects at Grid
and increases at Onshore Wind driven by a large order in the U.S., partially offset by a decrease in the Onshore Wind international
market as revenues recognized cutpaced new orders as we decrease the number of geographies we operate in, and a decrease at
Offshore Wind where revenues oufpaced new orders, as well as an order received during the second quarter and cancelled during the
fourth quarter. RPO as of December 31, 2022 increased $1.6 billion (5%) from December 31, 2021 primarily from new orders at Grid
and Hydro exceeding sales, partially offset by the approximately $1.3 billiorrimpact from a stronger U.S. dolfar and revenue exceeding
new orders at Offshore Wind.

SEGMENT REVENUES AND PROFIT 2023 ; 2022 2021
Onshore Wind $ 839 % 8373 % 11,026
Grid Solutions equipment and services 3,851 3,086 3,207
Hydro, Offshore Wind and Hybrid Solutions 2,830 1,518 1,464
Total segment revenues $ 15050 § 12,977  $ 15,697
Equipment $ 12825 % 10,191 5 13,224
Services 2,425 2,785 2,473
Total segment revenues 3 15,050 $ 12,977 $ 15,697
Segment profit {loss) $ (1.437) % (2,240) $ (795)
Segment profit margin {9.5) % {17.3) % {6.1) %

For the year ended December 31, 2023, segment revenues were up $2.1 billion {16%) and segment losses were down $0.8
billion {36%).

Revenues increased $2.1 billion (17%) organically®,-primarily from higher equipment revenue at Offshore Wind associated with the
Haliade-X ramp up, increases at Grid in equipment and services and increases at Onshore Wind equipment in North America. These
increases were partially offset by a decrease in repower reveriue driven by a reductionin volume.

Segment losses decreased $1.0 billion (45%) organically®, primarily altributable to the improved performance at Onshore Wind through
improved pricing-and the impact of cost reduction activities; the nonrecurrence of prior year warranty and related charges of $0.5 billion
and benefits arising from the IRA on product cost of $0.2 billion. Additionally, Grid profit increased due to higher revenue, improved
pricing and the impact of cost reduction activities. These benefits were partially offset by higher losses at Offshore Wind associated with
Hallade-X ramp up where project losses increased by $0.4 billion.

POWER ~will be part of GE Vernova, Power serves power generation, industrial, governmentand other customers worldwide with
products and services related to energy production. Our products and technologies harness resources such as natural gas, fossil, oil,
diesel and nuclear to produce electric power and include gas and steam turbines, full balance of plant, upgrade and service solutions,
as well as data-leveraging software.

Gas Power — offers a wide spectrum of heavy-duty and aeroderivative gas turbines for utilities, independent power producers and
numerous industrial applications, ranging from small, mobile power-to.utility scale power plants. Gas Power also-delivers maintenance
and service solutions across total plant assets and over their operational lifecycle.

Steam Power — offers a broad portfolio of technologies and services predominately for nuclear and fossil power plants to help
customers deliver reliable power as they transition to a lower carbon future.

Power Conversion, -Nuclear and-other - applies the science and systems of power conversion to provide motors, generators,
automation and control equipment and drives for energy intensive industries such as marine, oil and gas, mining, rail, metals and test
systerns, Through joint ventures with Hitaichi, it also provides nuclear technology solutions for boiling water reactors including reactor
design, reactor fuel and support services, and the design and development of small modular reactors.

*Mon-GAAP Financial Measure
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Competition & Regulation. Worldwide comipstition for power generation products and services is intense. Demand for power
generation is giobal, and as a result, is sensitive fo the economic and political environments of each country in which we do business.
Qur products and services sold to end customers are often subject to many regulatory requirements and performance standards under
different federal, state, foreign and energy industry standards. in addition, we are subject to market and other dynamics related to
decarbonization, where it will remain important to lower greenhouse gas emissions for decades to come, which will-likely depend in part
on technologies that are not yet deployed orwidely adopted today but may become more important over time (such as hydrogen-based
power generation, carbon capture and sequestration technologies or small modular reactors or other advanced nuclear power),

Significant Trends & Developments. During the year ended December 31, 2023, GE gas turbine ulilization was. up low single digits;
with strength in the U.S, partially offset by lower utilization in Europe due to nuclear and hydro recoveries as well as renewables growth.
Global electricity demand was down low single digits for the year due to milder temperatures in the U.8, and the continuad effects of
energy saving policies in Europe. As we continue to-work in-emerging markets, there could be uncertainty in the timing of deal closures
due to financing and other complexities. Power has proactively managed the impact of inflationary pressure by deploying lean initiatives
to drive cost praductivity; partnering with our suppliers and adjusting the pricing of our products and services. Given the long-cycle
nature of the business, we expect the impact of inflation will continue to be challenging and we will continue to take actions to manage.

Although market factors related to the energy transition, such as greater renewable energy penetration and the adoption of climate
change-related policies continue to evolve, we expect the gas power market to remain stable over the next decade with gas power
generation continuing to grow low single digits. We believe gas power will play a critical role In the energy transition by providing a
critical foundation of dispatchable, flexible power and system inertia from which the energy transition can build upon. We remain
focused on our underwtiting discipline and risk management to ensure we are securing deals that meet our financial hurdles, where we
have high confidence in delivering for.our customers;

In the first quarter of 2022, we signéd a non<binding memorandum of understanding for GE Steam Power {o sell a part of its nuclear
activities to Electricité de France S.A. (EDF), which resulted in a reclassification of that business to held for sale. In the fourth quarter of
2022, we signed a binding agreement to sell a portion of our Steam business to EDF. We are working with EDF to complete the sale as
soon as possible, subject to regulatory approvals and other closing conditions. Inthe second quarter of 2023, our Gas Power business
acquired Nexus Controls, a business specializing In aftermarket control system upgrades and controls field services thatis expecied to
strengthen our quality, service, and delivery of our customers” assets,

We continueto invest in new product development. In Nuclear, we have signed an agreement with a.customer for the deployment of
small modular nuclear reactor technology, the first commercial contract in North America, with the potential to enable reductions in
nuclear power plant costs and cycle times. In Gas Power, we continue to invest for the long-term, including multiple decarbonization
pathways that will provide customers with cleaner, more reliable power. Our fundamentals remain strong with approximately $71.7
biltion in RPO and a gas turbine installed base of approximately 7,000 units and approximately 1,700 units under long-term service
agreements with an average remaining contract life of 10 years. This includes 22 HA-Turbines in RPO and 92 HA-Turbines in the
installed base with over two million operating hours.

Sales in units 2023 2022 2021
GE Gas Turbines 9 101 62
Heavy-Duty Gas Turbines{a) 68 53 43
HA-Turbinesi{b) 14 11 13
Aeroderivatives(a) 33 48 18

{a) Heavy-Duty Gas Turbines and Aeroderivatives are subsels of GE Gas Turbines.
(b} HA-Turbines are & subset of Heavy-Duty Gas Turbines.

RPO December 31,2023  December 31,2022 December 31, 2021
Equiprent $ 12,256 $ 11,561 § 12,169
Services 59,462 57,420 56,569
Total RPO 3 71,718 % 68,981 § 68,738

RPO as of December 31, 2023 increased $2.7 billion (4%) from December 31, 2022, primarily driven by increases in Gas Power
services, Gas Power equipment and Power Conversion equipment, partially offset by decreases due to the impact of expanded
sanctions on Gas Power contractual services in Russia,

SEGMENT REVENUES AND PROFIT 2023 2022 201
Gas Power $ 13,280 § 12,072 § 12,080
Steam Power 2,505 2,643 3.241
Power Conversion, Nuclear and other 1,936 1,547 1,582
Total segment revenues 3 17,731 3 18,262 $ 16,903
Equipment $ 5,396 $ 4,737 $ 5,085
Services 12,335 11,526 11,868
Total segment revenues $ 17,731 3 16,262 $ 16,903
Segment profit (loss) $ 1448  § 1,217 $ 726
Segment profit margin 82 % 7.5 % 43 %

2023 FORM10-K:12



For the year ended December 31, 2023, segment revenues were up $1.5 billion (9%) and segment profit was up $0.2 billion
{19%).

Reveriues increased $1.2 billion (7%} organically*, primarily due to an increase in Gas Power equipment from higher price and scope
on Heavy-Duty Gas Turbines and scope on Aeroderivatives, increases in Gas Power and Steam services and increases in Power
Conversion services and equipment, partially offset by a reduction in Steam Power equipment due to the ongoing exit of new build coal,

rProfit increased $0.1 billion (10%) organically* primarily due fo an increase in Gas Power services volume, price and productivity
SHffsetting inflation.
S

)

~CORPORATE. The Corporate amounts related to revenues and earnings include the results of disposed businesses, certain amounts

Shot included in operating segment results because they are excluded from measurement of their operating performance for internal and

?‘éxtemal purposes and the elimination of intersegment activities. In:addition, the Corporate amounts related to earnings include certain

#gosts of our principal retirement plans, significant, higher-cost restructuring programs, separation costs, and other gosts reported in
Corporate,

Corporate includes the results of the GE Digital business, the majority of which will be part of GE Vernova, and our remaining financial
services business, including our run-off Insurance operations (see Note 12 for further information).

REVENUES AND OPERATING PROFIT {COST) 2023 2022 2021
GE Digital revenues $ 958 % 882 § 945
Insurance revenues (Note 12) 3,389 2,957 310
Eliminations and other (944) (1,028) (1,487)

Total Corporate revenues 3 3.403 % 2,812 § 2,559
Galns {losses) on retainied and sold ownership interests (Note 19) $ 5,778.% 47 & 1,649
Gains {losses) on other equity securities {5) 29 272
Gains {losses) on purchases and sales of business interests {9) 45 {56)
Restructuring and other charges (Mote 20) (679) (808) (380)
Separation costs (Note 20) {978) {715) —
Steam asset sale impairment (Notes 6 and 7) — (824) e
Russia and Ukraine charges {190) {263) —
Insurance profit (joss) (Note 12) 332 205 798
Adjusted total Corporale operating costs (Non-GAAP) (464) (593) (1,124)

Total Corporate operating profit (cost) (GAAP) $ 3,785 % (2,875) % 1,158
Less; gains-(losses), impairments; Insurance, and restructuring & other 4,249 {2,283} 2,282

Adjusted total Corporate operating costs (Non-GAAP) $ (464) § (593) § {1,124)
Functions & operations % {503} § {539)% {802)
Environmental, health and safety (EHS) and other items (28) (94) (302}
Eliminations 67 41 {20}

Adjusted total Corporate operating costs {Non-GAAP) 3 {464) § {593) % {1,124)

Adjusted total corporate operating costs® excludes gains (losses) on purchases and sales of business interests, significant, higher-cost
restructuring programs, separation costs, gains {losses) on equity securities, impairments, Russia and Ukraine charges and our run-off
Insurance operations profit. We believe that adjusting corporate costs to exclude the effects of items that are not closely associated with
ongoing corporate operations provides management and investors with a meaningful measure that increases the period-to-period
comparability of our ongoing torporate costs.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, revenues increased by $0.6 billion due to higher revenue in-our run-off Insurance operations,
higher revenue in our Digital business and lower intersegment eliminations. Corporate operating profit increased by $6.7 billion due to
$5:7 billior of higher gains on retained and sold ownership interests, primarily related to our AerCap and GE HealthCare investments,
partially offset by the nonrecurrence of prior year gains on our Baker Hughes investment. Corporate operating profit also increased as
the result of the nonrecurrence of a $0.8 billiori non-cash impairment charge related to property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets as a result of the reclassification of a portion of our Steam Power business to held for sale in the first quarter of 2022 (see Notes
6 and 7). Corporate operating profit also increased due to $0.1 billion of lower charges from contracts and recoverability of assets In
connection with the conflict between Russia and Ukraine and resulting sanctions, primarily related to our Aerospace and Power
businesses. In addition, Corporate operating profit increased as the result of $0.1 billion of lower restructuring and other charges and
$0.1-billlon of higher operating profit in.our run-off Insurance operations. These increases were partially offset by $0.3 billion of higher
separation costs.

Adjusted total corporate operating costs* decreased by $0.1 billion primarily driven by favorability from higher bank interest, improved
performarnce in our Digital business and EFS, and a reduction In our core functional costs. These decreases were partially offset by
higher EHS costs,

*Non-GAAP Financial Measure
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OTHER CONSOLIDATED INFORMATION

RESTRUCTURING AND SEPARATION COSTS. Significant, higher-cost restructuring programs are excluded from measurement of
segment operating performance for internal and external purposes; those excluded amounts are reported in Restructuring and other
charges for Corporate. In addition, we incur costs assaciated with separation activities, which are also excluded from measurement of
segment operating performance for internal and external purposes. Ses Note 20 for further information on restructuring and separation
costs.

INTEREST AND OTHER FINANCIAL CHARGES were $1.1 billion, $1.5 billion and $1.8 hillion for the yvears ended December 31,
2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The decrease was primarily due to lower average borrowings balances, partially offset by a lower
allocation of interest expense to discontinued operations, Inclusive of interest expense in discontinued operations, total interest and
other financial charges were $1.1 billion, $1.7 billion and $2.5 billion for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. The primary compeonents of interest and other financial charges are interest on short- and long-term borrowings.

DEBT EXTINGUISHMENT COSTS were zero, $0.5 billion and $6.5 billion for the vears ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and
2021, respectively. No debt tender was executed during 2023,

POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS. Refer fo Note 13 for information about our pension and retires benefit plans.

INCOME TAXES 2023 2022 2021
Effective tax rate (ETR) M4 % 0.4 % 13.3 %
Provision (benefit) for income taxes - $ 1182 % 3 $ (757)
Cash income taxes paid(a) $ 894 $ 1,128 § 1,330

{a) Iricluded taxes paid related to discontinued operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the income tax rate was 11.4% compared to 0.4% for the year ended December 31, 2022.
The tax rate for 2023 reflects a tax provision on pre-tax income while the tax rate for 2022 reflects a tax benefit on a pre-tax loss.

The provision (benefit) for income taxes was $1.2 billion and aninsignificant benefit for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. The increase in tax was primarily due to the tax effect of the increase in pre-tax income ($1.1 billion) excluding gains and
losses on-our retained and sold ownership interests and a decrease in favorable audit resolutions ($0.1 billion). There was an
insignificant tax on the net gains in GE HealthCare, AerCap and Baker Hughes equity in both periods because of tax-free disposition of
GE HealthCare shares and because of available capital losses.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the adjusted income tax rate® was 24.5% campared t6 25.4% for the year ended December
31,.2022. The adjusted provision (benefit) for income taxes™ was §1.1 billion in 2023 and $0.4 billion in 2022, The increase in tax was
primarily due to the tax effect of the increass in adjusted earnings before taxes® and a decrease in favorable audit resojutions.

The rate of tax on non-U.S. operations is increased because we have losses in foreign jurisdictions where it is not likely that such
losses can be utilized and thersfore no tax benefit is provided for those losses. Non-U.5. losses also limit our ability to claim U.S;
foreign tax credits on certain operations, further increasing the rate of tax oh non-L.S. gperations. In addition, as part of the Tax Culs
and Jobs Act of 2017 (U.8. tax reform}; the U.S. enacted a minimum tax on forsign earnings:{global intangible low taxed income). We
have tangible assets outside the U.S. and pay significant foreign taxes which substantially reduce the U.S. liability on these earnings.
Overall, these factors increase the rate of tax on our non-U.S, operations.

Absent the effect of non-U.S. losses without a tax benefit and additional U.S. tax on global income, non-LLS. operations generally
produce a tax benefit as certain non-U.8. income is subject to local country tax rates that are below the U.S. statutory tax rate.

The rate of tax on our profitable non-U.5. earnings is below the U.5. statutory tax rate because we have significant business operations
subject to tax in countries where the tax on that income is lower than the U.S, statutory rate and because GE funds certain non-U.S.
operations through foreign companies that are subject to low foreign taxes. Most of these earnings have been reinvested in active non-
U.8, business operations. Given U.S. tax reform, substantially all of our net prior unrepatriated earnings were subject to U.S. tax and
accordingly we generally expect to have the ability to repatriate available non-\J.8. cash - without additional U 8. federal tax cost and any
foreign withholding taxes on a repatriation to the U.S. would potentially be partially offset bya U.5. foreign tax credit. We reassess
reinvestment of earnings on.an ongoing basis. In 2023 and 2022, in connection with the execution of the Company's plans to prepare
for the spin-offs of GE Verniova and GE HealthCare, we incurred an insignificant amount and $0.1 billion of tax, respectively, dues to
repatriation of previously reinvested earnings.

Acsubstantial portion of the benefit for lower-taxed non-U.S. earnings related to business operations subject to tax in countries where
the tax on that income is lower than the U.S. statutory rate is derived from our Agrospace operations located in Singapore where the

eamings are primarily taxed at a rate of 8.58% and 8.0% in prior periods and our Power operations located in Switzerland where the
samings are taxed at a rate between 16.3% and 18.6%.

*Non-GAAP Financlal Measure
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(BENEFIT)/EXPENSE FROM GLOBAL OPERATIONS 2023 2022 2021

Foreign tax rate difference on non-U.S. earnings 3 {127y % {95) % 130
Audit resolutions {29) {26) (83}
Non-t.5. losses without tax benefit and other 818 421 107
Total (benefitfexpense $ 462 § 300 $ 154

o

wFor the year ended December 31, 2023, the increase in expense from global operations compared to-2022 reflects higher U.S. taxes
Ton global activities slightly offset by higher income in lower taxed jurisdictions.

sy

e
SA more detailed ana ysis of differences between the U.S. federal statutory rate and the consolidated effective rate, as well as other
“‘lpformatmn about our income tax provisions, is provided In the Critical Accounting Estimates section and Note 15.

kESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT. We conduct research and development (R&D) activities to continually enhance our existing
products and services, develop new products and services to meet our customers’ changing needs and requirements, and address new
market opportunities. In addition to funding R&D internaily, we also receive funding externally from our customers and partners, which
contributes to the overall R&D for the company,

GE funded Customer and Parther funded(b) Total R&D
2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 2021
Aerospace $ 1,008 % 806 % 664 $ 1,309 § 1,160 $ 972 § 2314 % 1,965 § 1,837
Renewable Energy 414 519 546 21 22 15 435 540 561
Power 319 299 294 110 83 34 429 383 329
Corporate(a) 168 163 177 158 135 134 324 297 311
Total $ 1807 % 1,786 % 1682 % 1595 % 14008 11456 § 35038 3,186 § 2837

{a) Includes Global Research Center and Digital business.
{b) Customer funded is principally U.8. Government funded in our Aerospace segment.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS primarily comprise our former GE HealthCare business, our mortgage portfolio in. Poland (Bank BPH),
our GE Capital Aviation Services (GECAS) business, and other trailing assets and liabilities associated with prior dispositions. Results
of aperations, financial position and cash flows for these businesses are reported as disconfinued operations for all periods presented
and the notes to the financial statements have been adjusted on a retrospective basis. See Note 2 for further information regarding our
businesses in discantinued operations.

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

FINANCIAL POLICY. We intend to maintain a disciplined financial policy with a sustainable investment-grade long-term credit rating. In
the fourth quarter-of 2021, the Company announced plans to form three industry-leading; global; investment-grade companies, each of
which will determine their own financial policies, including capital allocation, dividend, mergers.and acquisitions-and share buyback
decisions,

LIQUIDITY POLICY. We maintain.a strong focus on fiquidity and define our fiquidity risk tolerance based on sources and uses to
maintain a sufficient liquidity position to meet our business needs and financial obligations under both normal and stressed conditions.
We believe that our consolidated liquidity and availability under our revolving credit facilities will be sufficient to meet our liquidity needs.

CONSOLIDATED LIQUIDITY. Our primary sources of liquidity consist of cash and cash squivalents, free cash flows™ from our
operating businesses, cash generated from asset sales and dispositions, and short-term borrowiny facilities, including revolving credit
faciiities. Cash generation can be subject to variability based on many factors, including seasocnality, receipt of down payments.on large
equipment orders, timing of billings on long-term contracts, fiming of Aerospace-related customer allowances, market conditions and
our ability fo execute dispasitions. Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash was $17.0 billior at December 31, 2023, of which
$2.8 billion was held in the U.8. and $14.2 billion was held outside the U.8.

Cash held Iin non-U.,S, entities has generally been reinvested in active foreign business operations; however, substantially all of our
unirepatriated earnings were subject to U.S. federal tax and, if there is a change in reinvestment, we would expect tc be able to
repatriate available cash {excluding amounts held in countries with curreney controls) without additional federal tax cost. Any foreign
withholding tax on a repatriation to the U.S; may be at least partially offset by a U.S. foreign tax credit, With regards to the separation of
GE HealthCare in January 2023 and the planned separation of GE Aerospace and GE Vernova into independent companies, the
planning for and execution of the separations has impacted and is expected to continue to impact indefinite reinvestment. The impact of
such changes will be recorded when there is & specific change in ability and intent to reinvest earnings.

Cash; cash equivalents and restricted cash at December 31, 2023 included $1.7 billion of cash held in countries with currency control
restrictions {including a total of $0.1 billion in Russia and Ukraine) and $0.4 billion of restricted use cash. Cash held in countries with
currency controls represents: amounts held in countries that may restrict the transfer of funds fo the U.S. or limit.our ability to transfer
funds to the U.S. without incurring substantial costs. Restricted use cash represents amounts that are not available to fund operations,
and primarily comprised funds restricted inconnection with certain ongoing litigation matters. Excluded from cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash was $0.8 billion of cash in our run-off Insurance operations, which was classified as All other assets in the Statement of
Financial Position,

“Nor-GAAP Financial Measure
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In 2023, we received proceeds of $6.6-billion and completed monetization of our AerCap shares. During the first quarter 0f 2023, we
received proceeds of $0.2 billion and completed monetization of our Baker Hughes position. As part of the spin-off of GE HealthCare
completed in the first quarter of 2023, we:retained an approximately 19.8% stake of GE HealthCare common stock. During the second
guartar of 2023, we received tolal proceeds of $2.2 billion from the disposition of 28.8 million shares of GE HealthCare. We intend to
exit our remaining stake in. GE HealthCare over fime, in an orderly manner. See Notes 3-and 19 for further information.

Following approval of a statutory permitied accounting practice in 2018 by our primary insurance regulator, the Kansas Insurance
Department (KID), we provided a fotal of $13.2 billion of capital contributions fo ourinsurance subsidiaries, including $1.8 billion in the
first quarter of 2023, We expect to provide the final capital contribution of up to $1.8 billion in the first quarter of 2024, pending
completion of our December 31, 2023 statutory reporting process, See Note 12 for further information.

On March 8, 2022, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $3 billion of our common stock. In connection with this
authorization, we repurchased 10.6 million shares for $1.1 billion during 2023, Additionally, during 2023, we redeemed our outstanding
shares of GE preferred stock for $5.8 billion.

BORROWINGS. Consolidated total borrowings were $21.0 billion and $24.1 billion at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022,
respectively, a decrease of $3.1 billion. The reduction in borrowings was driven by $3.4 billion of net maturities and repayments of debt,

We have in place committed revolving credit facilities totaling $13.5 billion at December 31, 2023, comprising a $10.0 billion unused
back-up revolving syndicated credit facility and a total of $3.5 billion of bilateral revolving credit facilities.

CREDIT RATINGS AND CONDITIONS. We have relied, and may continue to rely, on the short- and long-term debt capital markets to
fund, among other things, a significant portion of our operations. The cost and availability of debt financing is influsnced by our credit
ratings. Moody's Investors Service (Moody's), Standard and Poor's Global Ratings (8&P), and Fitch Ratings (Fitch) currently issue
ratings on our short- and long-term debt. Qur credit ratings as of the date of this filing are set forth in the following table.

Moody's S&P Fitch
Outlook Stable Stable Stable
Short term P2 A2 F2
Lon_g ferm Baail BBB+ BEB

We aredisclosing our credit ratings and any current quarter updates to these ratings fo-enhance understanding of our sources of
liquidity and the effects of our ratings on our costs of funds and access to liquidity. Our ratings may be subject to a revision or
withdrawal at any time by theassigning rating organization, and each rating should be evaluated independently-of any other rating. In
connection with the planned spin-off of GE Vernova, rating agencies are reviewing ratings for both GE Vernova and GE Aerospace. For
a description of some of the potential consequences of a reduction in our credif ratings, see the Financial Risks section of Risk Factors.

Substantially all of the Company's dabt sgreements in place at December 31, 2023 do not contain material credit rating covenants. Our
unused back-up revolving syndicated credit facility and certain of our bilateral revolving credit facilities contain a customary net debt-to-
EBITDA financial covenant, which-we salisfied at December 31, 2023.

The Company may from tirme o time enter into agresments that contain minimum ratings requirements, The following table provides a
summary of the maximum estimated liquidity impact in the event of further downgrades below each stated ratings level.

Triggers Below December 31, 2023
"BBB+/A-2/P-2 3 —
BBB/A-3/P-3 a5
BBB- 1,094
BB+ and below 581

Our most significant contractual ratings requirements are related to ordinary course commercial activities. The timing within the guarter
of the potential liquidity impact of these areas may differ, as can the remedies to resclving any potential breaches of required ratings
fevels.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND INTEREST RATE RISK. As:a result of our global operations, we generate -and.incur a significant portion
of our revenues and expenses in currencies other than the W.S. dollar. Such principal currencies include the euro, the Chinese
renminbi, the Brilish pound sterling and the Indian rupee, among others. The effects of foreign currency fluctuations on earnings were
$0.2 billion, $0.1 billionr and 0.1-billion for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and 2021, respectively. See Note 22 for further
information about our risk.exposures, our use of derivatives, and the effects of this. activity on our financial statements.

Exchange rate and interest rate risks are managed with a variety of technigues, including selective use of derivatives. We apply policles
to manage each-of these risks, including prohibitions on speculative activities. it is our policy to minimize currency exposures and to
conduct operations either within functional currencies or using the protection of hedge strategies. To assess exposure to interest rate
risk, we apply a +/~ 100 basis points change In intetest rates and keep that in place for the next 12 months. To assess exposure to
currency risk of assets and liabllittes denominated in other than their functional currencies; we evaluated the effect of & 10% shiftin
exchange rates against the U.S. dollar (USD). The analyses indicated that our 2023 consolidated net earnings would decling by $0.1
and $0.2 biliion for interest rate risk-and for foreign exchange risk; respectively.
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LIBOR REFORM. The publication of the most commonly used USD LIBOR representative rates ceased on June 30, 2023, We
evaluated the financial impact in accordance with Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848):
Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting and the overall impact to our financial statements is
immaterial.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YCASH FLOWS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS. The most significant source of cash in CFOA is customer-related activities, the

Hargest of which Is collecting cash resulting from equipment or services sales. The most significant operating use of cash is to pay our

Ssuppliers, employees, tax authorities, and postretirement plans. GE measures itseif on a free cash flows” basis. This metric includes

=CFOA plus investments in property, plant and equipment and additions to internal-use software; this metric excludés any cash received

rom dispositions of property, plant and equipment. We believe that investors may also find it useful to compare free cash flows*

erformance without the effects of cash flows for taxes related to business sales, operating activities related to our run-off insurance

cdperations, separation cash expenditures and Corporate restructuring cash-expenditures (associated with the separation-related
program announced in October 2022). We belleve this measure will better allow management and investors fo evaluate the capacity of
our operations to generate free cash flows*, :

CFOA (GAAP) AND FREE CASH FLOWS (FCF) BY SEGMENT (NON-GAAP)

Renewable
For the year ended December 31, 2023 Aerospace Energy Power Corporate Total
CFOA(GAAP) $ 8,494 $ {1,084y $ 2400 § (2,261} % 5,670
Less: Insurance CFOA k — e o 191 191
CFOA excl, Insurance (Non-GAAP) $ 6,494 § {1,064) % 2400 § (2,452} % 5,378
Add: gross additions o property, plant and equipment
and internal use software {830} {392} (351) (24) {1,595)
Less: separation cash expenditures — — — {1,0680) (1,060}
Less: Corporate restructuring cash expenditures —_ _ — {(177) {177
Less: taxes related to business sales — — — (130) - (130)
Free cash flows (Non-GAAP)(a) $ 5,664 § (1,455) & 2,045 § (1,108) $ 5,150

{a) Renewable Energy segment free ¢ash flows included $215 million of benefits arising from the IRA and $252 million due o the
deferral of tax payments associated with certain customer down payments, both of which were offset at Corporate and had no
consolidated impact. The deferred tax amount expected to be paid to Corporate by Renewable Energy prior to the GE Vernova spin-
off. Additionially; during the fourth quarter of 2023, Renewable Energy, Power and Corporate made prepayments of $473 million,
$185 million and $76 million, respectively, related to supply chain finance programs. See Note 11-for further information.

For the year ended December 31, 2022

CFOA(GAAR) 5 5514 § {1,759) $ 2,078 § (1,790} $ 4,043
Less: Insurance CFOA — . — 136 136

CFOAexcl, Insurance (Non-GAAP) 5 5514 § (1,759) $ 2078 % {1,926} $ 3,907
Add: gross additions to property, plant and equipment
and intemnal use software {624) (281) (228) 41) {1,174}
Less: separation cash expenditures —_ - — {158} {158}
Less: Corporate restructuring cash expenditures — — — (38) (38)
Less: taxes related to business sales — —_ — {129} {129)

Free cash flows (Non-GAAP) $ 4890 & (2,040) $ 1,850 $ (1,642) $ 3,059

Cash from operating activities was $5.6 billion in 2023, an increase of $1.5 billion compared to 2022, primarily due {o: an increase in
netincome (after adjusting for depreciation of property plant and equipment, amortization of intangible assets, non-cash (gairis) losses
related to our retained and sold ownership interests in GE HealthCare, AerCap and Baker Hughes and the nonrecurrence of non-
aperating debt extinguishment costs) primarily in our Aerospace business. The components of All other operating acfivities were as
follows:

Years ended December 31 2023 2022
Increase {decrease) in employee benefit liabilities $ 823 & 424
Increase (decrease) in Aerospace-related customer allowance accruals (203} 47
Increase (decrease) in product warranty liabilities ) V 93 230
Net rastructuring and other charges/(cash expenditures) 52 169
Other (48) 128
All other operating activities $ 717 % 988

*Non-GAAP Financial Measurg
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The cash impacts from changes in working capital compared to prior year were as follows: current receivables of $1.8 biliion, driven by
higher collections partially offset by higher volume; inventories, including deferred inventory, of $0.4 billion, driven by higher liquidations
partially offset by higher material purchases; current contract assets of ${0.4) billion, driven by higher revenue recognition on our long-
term equipment contracts and other service agresments, partially offset by higher billings.on our long-term service agreements and
jower net favorable changes in estimated profitability; accounts payable and eguipment project payables of $(2.5) billion, driven by
higher disbursements, including prepayments of supply chain finance programs at Renewable Energy, Power and Corporate, partially
offset by higher volume; and progress collections and current deferred income of $0.6 billion, driven by higher collections, including
down payments on equipment orders at Renewable Energy in the fourth quarter of 2023, partially offset by higher liquidations.

Cash from investing activities was $8.9 billion in 2023, a decrease of $4.0 billion compared to 2022, primarily due to: lower cash
received related to net setflements between our continuing operations and businesseas in discontinued operations of $7.1 billion, which
primarily related to GE HealthCare in connection with the spin-off in 2023 partially offset by the nonrecurrence of a capital contribution
to Bank BPHin 2022 (both components of All other investing activities); the acquisition of Nexus Controls in our Power business of $0.3
billion in 2023; partially offset by an increase in proceeds of $4.3 billion from the disposition of our retained ownership interests in GE
HealthCare, AerCap and Baker Hughes. Cash used for additions to property, plant and equipment and. internal-use software, which are
cormponents of free cash flows®, was $1.6 billion and $1.2 billion in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Cash used for financing activities was $10.8 billion:in-2023, a decrease of $3.1 billion compared to 2022, primarily due to: the
nonrecurrence of cash paid to repurchase long-term debt of $6.9 billion including cash received of 0.3 billion related to debt
extinguishment costs, excluding a non-cash debt basis adjustment of ${0.8) billion; net cash received on derivatives hedging foreign
currency debt-of $0.1 billion in 2023 compared to net cash paid-of $0.6 billion in 2022 (a cormponent of All other financing activities);
lower net debt maturities of $0.5 billion; nonrecurrence of the settlement of Concept Laser GmbH's interest in an Aerospace
technology joint venture of $0.2 billion {a component of All other financing activities); partially offset by higher cash paid for redemption
of GE preferred stock of $5.7 billion.

CASH FLOWS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Cash used for operating activities of discontinued operations was $(0.4) billion in 2023, a decrease of $2.3 billion compared with
2022, primarity driven by decrease i net income, higher disbursements related to purchases of materials in prior periods and higher
separation costs related to our former GE HealthCare business partially offset by tax receipts from our trailing operations.

Cash used for investing activities of discontinued operations was $3.0 bilfion in 2023, a decrease of $5.7 billion compared with
2022, primarily driven by lower net settlements between-our discontinued operations and businesses in continuing operations of $7.1
billion partially offset by the deconsolidation of GE HealthCare cash and equivalents of $1.8 billion.

Cash from financing activities of discontinued operations was $2.0 billion in 2023, a decrease of $6.1 billion compared with 2022,
primarily driven by lower leng-term debt issuances at GE HealthCare in. connection with the spin-off of $6.3 billion.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES. Accounting estimates and assumptions discussed in this section are those that we
consider to be the maost critical o an understanding of our financial statements because they involve significant judgments and
uncertainties. Actual results in these areas could differ from management's estimates, See Note 1 for further information on our most
significant accounting policies,

REVENUE RECOGNITION ON LONG-TERM SERVICES AGREEMENTS. We have long-term service agreaments with our customers
predorninately within.our Power and Aerospace segments that require us to maintain the customers’ assets over the contract terms,
which generally range from 5 1o 25 years. However, contract modifications that extend or revise contracts are not uncommon. We
recognize revenue as we petform under the arrangements using the percentage of completion method which is based on-our costs
incurred to date relative to our estimate of total expected costs. This requires us to make estimates of customer payments expected to
be received over the contract term as well as the costs to perform required maintenance services.

Customers generally pay us based on the utilization of the asset (per hour of usage for example} or upon the occurrence of a major
event within the contract such as an overhaul or major outage. As a resuli, a significant estimate in determining expected revenues of a
contract is estimating how custormers will utilize their assets over the term of the agreement. The estimate of utilization, which can
change over the contract life, impacts both the amount of customer payments we expect to receive and our estimate of future contract
costs, Customers’ asset ulilization will influence the timing and extent of overhauls and other service events over the life of the contract,
We generally use a combination of both historical utilization trends as well as forward-looking information such as miarket conditions
and potential asset retirements in developing our revenue estimates,

To develop our cost estimates, we consider the timing and extent of fulure maintenance and dverhaul events, including the amount and
cost of labor, spare parts and other resources required to perform the services, In developing our cost estimates, we utilize a
combination of our historical cost experience and expected cost improvements. Cost improvements are only included in future cost
estimates after savings have been ohserved in actual results or proven effective through an extensive regulatory or engineering
approval process.

"Mon-GAAP Financial Measure
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We routinely review estimates under long-term service agreements and regularly revise them fo adjust for changes in outlook, These
revisions are based on objectively verifiable information that is available at the time of the review. Contract modifications that change
the rights and obligations; as well as the nature, timing and extent of future cash flows, are evaluated for potential price concessions,
contract asset impairments and significant financing to determine if adjustments of earnings are required before effectively accounting
for a modified contract as a new contract.

MWe regularly assess expected billings adjustments and customer credit risk inherent in the carrying amounts of receivables and contract
f@bsets, including the risk that contractual penaities may not be sufficient to offset our accumulated investment in the event of customer
Frmination. We gain insight into future utilization and cost trends, as well as credit risk, through our kniowledge of the installed base of
Bhuipment and flest management strategies through close interaction with our customers that comes with supplying critical services
@hd parts over extended periods. Revisions may affect a long-term services agreement’s total estimated profitability resulting in an
gpjustment of earnings.

On December 31, 2023, our net long-term service agreements balance of $(2.1) billion represents approximately {(1.0)% of our total
estimated life of contract billings of $215.3 billion. Our contracts {on average) are approximately 18.5% complete based oncosts
incurred to date and our estimate of fulure costs. Revisions fo ourestimates of future billings.or costs that increase or decrease total
estimated contract profitability by one percentage point would increase or decrease the long-term service agreements balance by $0.4
billion. Billings collected on these contracts were $13.2 billion and $11.7 billion during the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. See Notes 1.and 8 for furtherinformation.

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL AND OTHER IDENTIFIED INTANGIBLE ASSETS. Goodwill is subject fo annual, or more frequent, if
necessary, impairment testing. In the impairment test, the fair value is estimated utilizing a discounted cash flow approach utilizing cash
flow forecasts, including strategic and annual operating plans, adjusted for terminal value assumptions, or a market approach, when
available and appropriate, utilizing market observable pricing multiples of similar businesses and compéarable transactions, or both.
These impairment tests involve the use of accounting estimates and assumptions, and changes to those assumptions could materially
impact our financial condition or operating performance if actual results differ from such estimates and assumptions, To address this
uncertainty, we perform sensitivily analyses on key estimates and assumptions: Once the falr value is determined, if the carrying
amount exceeds the fair value, it is impaired.

We review identified intangible assets with defined useful lives and subject to amortization for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the related carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Determining whether an impairment loss has
occurred requires the use of our internal forecast to estimate future cash flows and the useful life-over which these cash flows will oceur,
To determine fair value, we use our internal cash flow estimates discounted at an appropriate discount rate.-See Notes: 1 and 7 for
further information,

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS. Refer to the Other ltems - Insurance section for further discussion of the accounting
estimates and assumptions in our insurarice reserves and their sensitivity to change. See Notes 1 and 12 for further information,

PENSION ASSUMPTIONS. Refer to Note 13 for our accounting estimates and assumptions related to our postretirement benefit plans.

INCOME TAXES. Our annual tax rate is based on our income, statutory tax rates and tax planning opportunities available to us inthe
various jurisdictions in-which we operate. Tax laws are complex and subject fo different interpretations by the taxpayer and respective
governmental taxing authorities. Significant judgment is required in.determining our fax-expense and in evaluating our tax positions,
including evaluating uncertainties. We review our tax positions gquarterly and adjust the balances as new information becomes available,
QOur income tax rate is significantly affected by the tax rate on our global operations. In addition to local country tax laws and
regulations, this rate can depend on the extent earnings are indefinitely reinvested outside the U.8. Historically U.8. taxes were due
upon repatriation of foreign earnings. Due to the enactment of LU.8, tax reform in 2017, repatriations of available cash from foreign
earnings are expected to be free of U.S: federal income tax but may incur withholding, with a potential U.8. tax credit offset, or state
taxes. Indefinite reinvestment is determined by management's judgment about and intentions concerning the future opsrations of the
Company. Most of these eamings have been reinvested in active non-U.S, business operations. We reassess reinvestment of earnings
on an ongoing basis. In 2023 and 2022, in connection with the execution of the Company's plans to prepare for the spin-off of GE
Yernova and GE HealthCare, we incurred an insignificant amount and $0.1 billion of tax, respectively, due to repatriation of previously
reinvested earnings,

We evaluate the recoverability of deferred income tax assets by assessing the adequacy of future expected taxable income from all
sources, including reversal of taxable temporary differences, forecasted operating earnings and available tax planning strategies, which
heavily rely on estimates. We use our historical experience and our short- and long-range business forecasts fo provide insight. Further,
ourglobal and diversified business portfolio gives us the opportunity to employ various prudent and feasible tax planning strategies to
facilitate the recoverability of future deductions. Amounts recorded for deferred tax assets related to non-U.S. net operating losses, net
of valuation allowances, were $1.,0 billion and $1.3 billion at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Of this, an insignificant amount
at December 31, 2023 and $0.4 billion at December 31, 2022, were associated with losses reported in discontinued operations,
primarily related to our BE HealthCare and legacy financial services businesses. See Other Consolidated Information = Income Taxes
section and Notes 1 and 15 for further information,
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LOSS CONTINGENCIES. Loss contingencies are existing conditions, situations or circumstances involving uncertainty as to possible
loss that will ultimately be resolved when future events occur or fail to oceur, Such contingencies include, but are not limited to,
environmental obligations, litigation, regulatory investigations and proceedings, product quality and losses resulting from other events
and developments. When a loss is considered probable and reagonabiy estimable, we record a Hability in the amount of our best
estimate forthe ultimate loss, When there appears o be a range of possible costs with equal likelthood, liabilities are based on the low-
end of such range. However, the likelihood of a loss with respect to a particular contingency is often difficult to predict and determining a
meaningful estimate of the loss or a range of loss may not be practicable based on the information available and the potential effect of
future events and negotiations with or decisions by third parties that will determine the ultimate resclution of the contingency. Moreover,
it is not uncommon for such matters to be resolved over many years, during which time relevant developments and new information
must be continuously evaluated to determine both the likelihcod of potential loss and whether it s possible to reasonably-estimate a
range of possible loss. Disclosure is provided for material loss contingencies when 2 loss is probable but a reasonable estimate cannot
be made, and whan it is reasonably possible that a loss will be incurred or the amount of a loss will exceed the recorded provision. We
regutarly review contingencies to determine whether the likelihood of loss has changed and to assess whether a reasonable estimate of
the loss or range of loss can be made. See Note 24 for further information.

OTHER ITEMS

INSURANCE. The run-off insurance operations of North American Life apd Health (NALH) include Employers Reassurance Corporation
{ERAC) and Union Fidelity Life Insurance Company (UFLIC). ERAC primarily assumed long-term care insurance and life insurance
from numerous cedents under various types of reinsurance treaties and stopped accepting new policies after 2008, UFLIC primarily
assumed long-term care insurance, structured settlement annuities with and without life contingencies and variable annuities from
Genworth Financial Inc. (Genworth) and has been closed to new business since 2004.

OwJanuary 1, 2023, we adopted ASU Nu. 2018-12, Financial Services —Insurance (Topic 944); Targeted Improvemerits fo the
Accounting for Long-Duration Contracts (ASU 2018-12). See Capital Resources and Liguidity and Notes 1, 3 and 12 for further
information related to our run-off insurance operations:

Key Portfolic Characteristics

Long-term care insurance  contracts. The long-term care insurance contracts we reinsure provide coverage at varying levels:of benefits
to policyholders and may include attributes (e.g., lifetime benefit periods, inflation protection options, and joint life policies) that could
result in claimants being on claim for longer periods or at higher daily claim costs, or alternatively limiting the premium paying period,
compared to confracts with a lower level of benefits. Presented in the table below are reserve balances and key attributes of our long-
{erm care insurance portfolio,

December 31, 2023 ERAC UFLIC Total
GAAP: Ending balance of reserves at locked-in rate $ 18284 § 5114 $ 23,398
Gross statutory reserves(a) 23,988 5,982 29,960
Number of policies in force 173,800 48,600 222,400
Number of covered lives in force 230,600 48,600 279,200
Average policyholder attained age 77 85 78
GAAP: Ending balance of reserves at locked-in rate per policy (in actual dollars} % 105201 $ 105226 § 105207
GAAP; Ending balance of reserves at locked-in rate per covered life {in actual dollars} 79,289 105,226 83,804
Statutory: Gross reserves per policy {in actual dollars)(a) 138,080 122,666 134,712
Btatutory: Gross reserves percovered life (in actual dollars)(a) 104,068 122,666 107,308
Percentage of policies with:

Lifetime benefit period 69 % 3% 81 %

Inflation protection option 5% 81 % 76 %

Joint lives 33 % = % 25 %
Percentage of policies that are premium paying 67 % 74 % 68 %
Policies on claim 10,600 7,800 18,400

{a) Pending completion.of our Decembaer 31, 2023 statutory reporting process.

Structured selflernent annuities, We reinsure approximately 24,600 structured settlement annuities with-an average attained age. of 56.
These structured settlement annuities were primarily underwritten on impaired lives {i.e., shorter-than-average life expectancies) at
origination and have projected payments extending decades Into the future. Gur primary risks associated with these contracts include
mortality (i.e.; life expectancy or longevity), mortality improvement {i.e., assumed rate that mortality is-expected to reduce over time},
which may extend the duration of payments on life contingent contracts beyond our estimates, and reinvestment risk (i.e., a low interest
rate environment)}, Unlike long-term care insuranice, structured settlement annuities offer no ability to require additional premiums or
reduce benefits,
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Life Insurance contracts. Qur life reinsurance business typically covers the mortality risk associated with various types of life insurance
policies that we reinsure from approximately 150 ceding company relationships where we pay a benefit based on the death of a
covered life. At December 31, 2023, across our U.S. and Canadian life insurance portfolio, we reinsure approximately $50 billion of net
amount at risk {i.e., difference between the death benefit and any accrued cash value) from approximately 1.2 million policies with an
average attained age of 82, In 2023, our incurred: claims were approximately $0.5 billion with an average individual claim of
approximately $51,000. The covered products primarily include permanent life insurance and 20- and 30-year level term insurance. We
anticipate a significant portion of the 20- and 30-year level term policies, which represent approximately 9% and 40% of the net amount
g risk; to lapse through 2024 and 2034 as the policies reach the end of their 20- and 30-year level premium period, respectively.

<2

Critical Accounting Estimates, Our insurarice reserves include the following key accounting estimates and assumptions described
bblow.

=

) ;

Euture policy benefit reserves. Future policy benefit reserves represent the present value of future benefits to be paid to or on behalf of
policyholders and related expenses less the present value of future net premiums and are estimated based on actuarial assumptions
suich as mortality, morbidity, terminations, and expenses. The liability is measured for each group of contracts (i.e., cohorts} using
eurrent cash flow assumptions.

We regularly monitor emerging experience in our run-off insurance operations and industry developments to identify-trends that may
help-us refine our reserve assumptions, We review at least annually in the third quarter, future policy benefit reserves cash flow
assumptions, except related claim expenses which remain locked-in, and if the review concludes that the assumptions need to be
updated, future policy benefit reserves are adjusted retroactively based on the revised net premium ratio using actual historical
experience, updated cash flow assumptions, and the locked-in discount rate with the effect of those changes recognized in current
period earnings. Our annual review procedures include updating certain experience studies since our last completed review,
independent actuarial analysis (principally on long-term care insurance exposures) and review of industry benchmarks. The review of
experience and assumptions is a comprehensive and complex process that depends on a number of factors, many of which are
interdependent and require evaluation individually and in the aggregate across all insurance products. The vast majority of our run-off
insurance operations consists of reinsurance from multiple ceding Insurance entifies pursuant to freaties having complex terms:and
conditions, The review relies on.claim and policy information provided by these ceding entities and considers the reinsurance treaties
and underlying policies. in order to utilize that information for purposes of completing experience studies covering all key assumptions,
we perform detalled procedures to conform and validate the data received from the ceding entities. Qur long-term care insurance
partfolio includes coverage where credible claim experience for higher attained ages is still emerging, and to the exfent future
experience deviates from current expectations, new projections of claim costs extending over the expected life of the policies may be
required. Significant uncertainties exist in making projections for these long-term care insurance contracts, which requires that we
consider a wide range of possibie outcomes.

The primary cash flow assumptions used.in the annual review include:

Morbidity. Morbidity assumptions used in estimating future policy benefif reserves are based on estimates of expected incidences of
disability among policyholders and the costs associated with these policyholders asserting claims under their contracts; and these
estimates account for-any expected future morbidity improvement. Forlong-term care insurance exposures, estimating expected future
costs includes assessments of incidence {probability of a claim), utilization {amount of available benefits expected to be incurred) and
continuance {how long the:claim will last, including claim terminations due:to death or recovery).

Rate of Change.in Morbidity. Ourreview incorporates our best estimates of projected future changes in the-morbidity rates reflected in
our base claim incidence rates, These estimates draw upon a number of inputs, some of which are subjective, and all of which are
interpreted and applied in the exercise of professional actuarial judgment in the context of the characteristics specific to.our portfolios.
This exercise of actuarial judgment considers factors such as the work performed by internal and external independent actuarial experts
engaged toadvise usin our annual review, the observed actual experience in our portfolios measured against our base assumptions,
industry developments, and other trends, including advances in the state of medical care and healthcare technology development,

Terminations. Terminations include active life mortality and lapse. Mortality assumptions used in estimating future policy benefit
reserves are based on published mortality tables as adjusted for the results of our experience studies and estimates of expected future
mortality improvement. Lapse refers to the rate at which the underlying policies are cancelled due to non-payment of premiums by a
policyholder, Lapse rate assumptions used in estimating the presentvalue of future policy benefit reserves are based on the resuits of
our experlence studies and reflect actuarial judgment.

Future long-term: care premium rale increases. Substantially all long-term care insurance policies that are currently premium paying
allow the issuing Insurance entity to increase premiums, or alternatively allow the policyholder the option to decrease benefits, with
approval by state reguiators, should actual experience emerge worse than what was projécted when such policies were initially
underwritten, As a reinsurer, we rely upon the primary insurers that issued the underlying policies to file proposed premium rate
increases on those policies with the relevant state insurance regulators. While we have no direct ability to seek or to institute such
premium rate increases, we often collaborate with the primary insurers in accordance with reinsurance contractual terms to file
proposed premium rate increases. The amount of times that rate Increases have occurred varies by ceding company. We consider
recent experience of rate increase filings made by our ceding companies along with state insurance regulatory processes and
precedents in establishing our current expectations.
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Included in Insurance losses, annuity benefifs and other costs in our Statement of Earnings (Loss) for the years ended December 31,
2023 and 2022, are unfavorable and favorable pre-tax adjustments of $(155) milliion and $404 million, respectively, from updating the
net premium ratio (Le., the percentage of projected gross premiums required to cover expected policy benefits and related expenses)
after updating for actual historical experience each quarter and updating of future cash flow assumptions.

Sensitivities. The following table provides sensitivities with respect fo the impact of changes of kKey cash flow assumptions underlying
our-future policy benefit reserves using the locked-in-discount rate assumption and have been estimated across the entire product line
rather than at an individual cohart level. As our insurance operations are in run-off, the locked-in discount rate is used for the
computation of interest accretion.on fulure policy benefit reserves. Many of our assumptions, which are based on our credible
experience, are interdependent and require evaluation individually and in the aggregate across all insurance products. Small changes in
the amounts used in the sensitivities could result in materially different outcomes from those reflected below. In addition, the effects of
changes to cash flow assumptions underlying our future policy benefit reserves may be partially.or wholly reflected in the period in
which the assumptions are changed and/or over future periods and may vary across cohorts.

Estimated adverse impactto
projected present value of future

cash flows
Assumption Hypothetical change in 2023 assumption {In millions, pre-tax)
Marbidity:

Long-term care Insurance incidence rates 5% increase in incidence rates $600

Long-term care instirance claim continuance 5% reduction in disabled life deaths $1,200

Long-term care insurance utilization 5% increase in utilization $1,100
Long-term care insurance morbidity improvement 25 basis point reduction by age with 0% floor $300

No morbidity improvement $1,300
Active life terminations:

Long-term care insurance mortality 5% reduction in mortality $300
Long-term care insurance future premium rate 25% adverse change in success rate on premium $200
increases rate increase actions not yet approved
Life insurance mortality 5% Increase in mortality $300
Structured settlement annuity mortality Impaired life mortality grades to standard ten $300

vears earlier

While higher assumed Inflation, holding all other assumptions constant, would result in unfavorable impacts to the projected present
value of future cash flows in the table above, it would be expectad to be mitigated by more long-term care insurance policies reaching
contractual dally or monthiy benefit caps and by increased investment Income from higher portfolio yields.

Our run-offinsurance subsidiaries are required to prepare statutory financial statements in accordance with statutory accounting
practices. Statutory accounting practices are set forth by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners as well as state laws,
regulation and general administrative rules and can differ in certain respects from GAAP and would resuilt in several of the sensitivities
described in the table above being less impactful on our stalutory reserves.

See Capital Resources and Liguidity and Notes 1, 3 and 12 for further information related to our.run-off insurance operations,

PARENT COMPANY-CREDIT SUPPORT. To support GE Vernova in selling products and services globally, GE often entersinto
contracts on behalf of GE Vernova or issuss parent company guarantees or frade finance instruments supporting the performance of
what currently are subsidiary legal entities transacting directly with customers, in-addition to providing similar credit support for nons
customer related activities of GE Vernova (collectively, “GE credit support’). In preparation for the spin-off, we are working to seek
novation or assignment of GE credit support; the majority. of which relates to parent company guarantess, associated with GE Vernova
legal entities from GE to GE Vernova. For GE credit support that remains outstanding at the spin-off, GE Vernova will be obligated to
use reasonable best efforts to terminate or replace, and obtain a full release of GE’s obligations and liabilities under, all such credit
suppert. Beginning in 2025, GE Vernova will pay-a quarterly fee to GE based on amounts related to the GE credit support. GE Vernova
will fage other confractual restrictions and requirements while GE: continues o be obligated under such:cradit support on behalf of GE
Vernova. While GE will remain obligated under the contract or insfrument, GE Vernova will be obligated o indemnify GE for credit
suppott related payments that GE is required to make.

Upon separation, we expect GE Vermova RPO and other obligations that relate to GE credit support to be approximately $65 billion, of
which approximately $33 billion and $32 billion relate to our Power and Renewable Energy segments, respectively, and approximately
$20 billlon of the total relates fo long-term and other service agreements. Of the Power and Renawable Energy amounts, $15 billion for
both segments, respectively, are expecied to contractually mature within five.years. GE's maximum aggregate exposure under the GE
credit support cannot be reasonably estimated given the breadth of the portfolio across each of the GE Vernova businesses. The
underlying obligations are predominantly customer contracts that GE Vernova performs in the course of its business. We have no
known instances histotically where payments or performance from GE were required under parent company guarantees relating to GE
Vernova customer contracts. The fair value of GE Vernova's obligation to indemnify GE post spin-off is not expected to be significant
primarily due to the low probability of loss.
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NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS. In November of 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU No.
2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280); Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures. The amendments are intended to
increase reportable segment disclosure requirements primarily through enhanced disclosures about significant segment expenses. The
ASU is effective on a retrospective basis for fiscal vears beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2024. We are currently evaluating the impact of this guidance on the disclosures within our consolidated
financial statements.
™)
ﬁ December 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-09, Income Taxes{Topic 740); Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. The
@mendments require disclosure of specific categories in the rate reconciliation and provide additional information for reconciling items
at meet a quantitative threshold.and further disaggregation of income taxes paid for individually significant jurisdictions. The ASU is
ective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact that
glfs guidance will have on the disclosures within our consolidated financial statements.
S|
NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES. We belleve that presenting non-GAAP financial measures provides management and
investors useful measures {o evaluate performance and trends of the total company and its businesses. This includes adjustments in
recent periods to GAAP financial measures to increase period-to-period comparability following actions to strengthen our overall
financial position and how we manage our business. In addition, management recognizes that certain non-GAAP terms may be
interpreted differently by other companies under different circumstances. Invarious sections of this report we have made reference fo
the following non-GAAP financial measures in describing our (1) revenues, specifically organic revenues by segment; organic revenues;
and equipment and services organic revenues and (2) profit; specifically organic profit and profit margin by segment; Adjusted profit and
profit margin; Adjusted organic profit and profit margin; Adjusted earnings {loss); Adjusted income tax rate; and Adjusted earmings {loss)
per share (EPS). The reasons we use these non-GAAP financial measures and the reconciliations to their most directly comparable
GAAP financial measures follow.

ORGANIC REVENUES, PROFIT (LOSS) AND PROFIT MARGIN BY SEGMENT (NON-GAAP)

Revenues Segment profit (loss) Profit margin

2023 2022 V% 2023 2022 V% 2023 2022 Vpts

Aerospace (GAAP) $31,770 $26,050 22% $8,115 $4775 28% 192% 183%  0.9pis
Less: acquisitions and business dispositions — e e e
Less: foreign currency effect 15 18) 78 {38)

Aerospace En*ganic (Non-GAAP) $31,765 $26.,067 22 % $6,037 $4,813 25% 19.0% 185% Obpis

Renewable Energy (GAAP) $15,050 $12,977 16 % $(1.437) $(2,240) 36% (9.5% (17.3)% 7.8pts
Less: acquisitions and business dispositions — — —_ —
Less: foreign currency effect (6) 57 (200) 5

Renewable Energy organic {Non-GAAP)  $15,056 $12,920 17% ${1,237)- $(2,245) 45% (B8.2)% (17.4)% 9.2pts

Power (GAAP) $17,731 $16,262 9% $1448 § 1,217 9% 82% 75% O07pls
Less: acquisitions and business dispositions 162 - 21 —
Less: foreign currency effect 65 {48) {74} {152)

Power organic (Non-GAAP) $17,514 $18,310 7% $1,503 § 1,369 10% 86% B84% 0.2ps

We believe these measures provide management and investors with a more complete understanding of underlying operating resulis
and trends of established, ongoing operations by excluding the effect of acquisitions, dispositions and foreign currency, which includes
translational and transactional impacts, as these activities can-obscure underlying trends.

ORGANIC REVENUES (NON-GAAP) 2023 2022 V%
Total revenues {GAAP) $ B7.954 % 58100 17%
Less; Insurance revenues (Note 12) 3,389 2,957
Adjusted revenues {(Non-GAAP) $ 64,565 § 55143 17%
Less: acquisitions and business dispositions 155 1
Less: foreign currency effect(a) 74 (8)
Organic revenues (Non-GAAP) $ 64,338 § 55150 17 %

(a) Foreign currency impact was primarily driven by U.S. dollar depreciation against the euro, Brazilian real and Mexican peso for the
vear ended December 31, 2023,

We believe these measures provide management.and investors with-a more complete understanding of underlying operaling results

and trends of established, ongoing operations by excluding the effect of revenues from our run-off Insurance operations, acquisitions,

dispositions and foreign currency, which includes translational and transactional impacts, as these activities can obscure underlying

trends.
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EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES ORGANIC REVENUES (NON-GAAP) 2023 2022 Vi

Total equipment revenues (GAAP) $ 26793 § 22334 20%

L.ess: acquisitions and business dispositions 64 —

Less: foreign currency effect 82 7
Equipment organic revenues (Non-GAAP) $ 26667 $ 22,327 19%
Total services revenues (GAAP) $ 37,772 % 32808 15%

Less: acquisitions and business dispositions 91 1

Less: farelgn currency effect 12 {15)
Services organic revenues (Non-GAAP) $ 37669 § 32822 15%

We believe these measures provide management and investors with a more complete understanding of underlying operating resuits
and trends of established, ongoing operations by excluding the effect of acquisitions, dispositions and foreign currency, which includes
translational and transactional impacts, as these activities can obscure underlying trends.

ADJUSTED PROFIT AND PROFIT MARGIN (NON-GAAP) 2023 2022
Total revenues {GAAP) $ 67,954 § 58,100
Less: Insurance revenues (Note 12) 3,389 2,957
Adjusted revenues (Non-GAAP) $ 64,565 $ 55,143
Total costs and expenses (GAAP) $ 64,801 § 60,071
Less: Insurance cost and exXpenses {(Note 12) 3,087 2,753
Less: interest and other financial charges(a) 1,073 1,423
Less: non-operating benefit cost (income) {1,585) (409}
Less: restructuring & other(a) 879 8386
L.ess: debt extinguishment costs(a) s 465
Less: separation costs{a) 978 715
Less: Steam asset sale Impairment(a) — 824
Less: Russia and Ukraine charges(a) 190 263
Add: noncontrolling interests {38) 16
Add: EFS benefit from taxes {195) {213}
Adjusted costs (Non-GAAP) $ 60,268 $ 53,004
Otherincome (loss) (GAAP) $ 7128 § 1472
Less; gains {losses) on refained and sold ownership interesis and other equity securilies(a) 5,773 76
Less: restructuring & other(a) — 31
Less: gains (losses) on purchases and sales of business interests(a) {9} 45
Adjusted other income {loss} {Non-GAAP) $ 1,365 § 1,020
Profit (loss) (GAAP) $ 10,191 §&  (799)
Profit (loss} margin (GAAP) 15.0% {1.4)%
Adjusted profit (loss) (Non-GAAP) $ 5682 § 3,159
Adjusted profit (loss) margin (Non-GAAP) 8.8% 57%

{a) See the Corporate and Other Consolidated Information sactions for further information.

We believe that adjusting profit fo exclude the effects of items that are not closely assaciated with ongoing operations provides
management and investors with a meaningful measure that increases the period-to-period comparability. Gains (losses) and
restructuring and other items are impacted by the timing and magnitude of gains associated with dispositions, and the timing and
magnitude of costs associated with restructuring and other activities.

ADJUSTED ORGANIC PROFIT (NON-GAAP) 2023 2022 V%
Adjusted profit (loss} (Non-GAAP) $ 5662 § 3,159 79 %

Less: acquisitions and business dispositions 12 (5}

Less: foreign currency effect(a) {294) {189}
Adjusted organic profit (loss) (Non-GAAP] $ 5944 § 3,353 77 %
Adjusted profit (loss) margin (Non-GAAP) 8.8 % 57 % 3.1 pis
Adjusted organic profit (loss) margin (Non-GAAP) 9.2 % 6.1 % 3.1 pis

{a) Included foreign currency positive effect on revenues of $74 million and negative effect on operating costs and other income (loss)
of $368 million for the year ended December 31, 2023,

‘\{Va believe these measures provide management and investors with a more complete understanding of underlying operating results
and trends of established, ongoing aperations by excluding the effect of acquisitions, dispositions and foreign currency, which includes
translational and transactional impacts, as these activities can obscure underlying trends.

2023 FORM 10-K 24



A

ADJUSTED EARNINGS (LOSS) AND ADJUSTED INCOME TAX RATE (NON-GAAP) 2023 2022

(Per-share amounts in dollars) Earnings EPS Earnings EPS
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations (GAAP) (Note 18) $ 8,769 § 7.98 %$(1,097) $ (1.00)
Insurance earnings (loss) {pre-tax) 334 0:30 210 018
Tax effect on Insurance earnings (loss) {74) {0:07) {52) {0.05)
erless: Insurance eaming_;s (loss) (net of tax) (Note 12} 260 0.24 159 015
¢Earnings (loss) excluding Insurance (Non-GAAP) $ 8509 § 7.74 $(1,255) $ (1.15)
<2 Non-operating benefit (cost) income (pre-tax) (GAAP) 1,585 1.44 409 0.37
& Taxeffect on non-operating benefit (cost) income (333) {0.30) {86} {0.08)
Less: Non-operating benefit (cost) income (net of tax) 1,262 1.14 323 0:30
& Gains (losses) on purchases and sales of business interests (pre-tax)(a) {9) {0.01) 45 0.04
Tax effect on gains {losses) on purchases and sales of business interests (24) {0.02) 57 0.05
Less: Gains (losses)on purchases and sales of business interests (net of tax} (32) {0.03) 102 0.09
Gains (losses) on retained and sold ownership interests and other equity securities (pre-
tax)(a) 5,773 525 76 0.07
Tax effect on gains (losses) on retained and sold ownership interests and other equity
securities(b)(c) 1 — {17) (0.02)
Less: Galns (losses)on retained and sold ownership interests and other equity securities
{net of tax) 5774 5,26 58 0.05
Restructuring & other {(pre-tax)(a) . (879) (0.62) (806} {0.74)
Tax effect on restructuring & other 143 0.13 176 016
Less: Restructuring & other (net of tax) (538) {0.49) {630} (0.58)
Debt extinguishment costs (pre-tax)(a) i — (465) (0.42)
Tax effect.on debt extinguishment costs — o 68 0.06
Less: Debt extinguishment costs (net of tax) : — o {397). (0.36)
Separation costs (pre-tax)(a) (978} (0.89) {715) {0.65)
Tax effect on separation cosis 197 0.18 23 0.02
Less: Separation costs {net of tax) (781) {0.71) (692} {0.63)
Steam asset sale impairment (pre-tax)(a) — — {824) {0.75)
Tax effect on Steam-.asset sale impairment - — 84 0.08
Less: Steam assed sale impairment (net of {ax) . — e (740) (0.88)
Russia and Ukraine charges (pre-tax)(a) {180) {0A7) {263) {0.24)
Tax effect on Russia and Ukraine charges (5) — 15 0.01
Less; Russia and Ukraine charges (net of tax) {195) (0.18) (248) (0,55')_
Less: Excise tax and accretion of preferred share redemption (58) . (D.05) 4 —
Less: U.8, and foreign tax law change enactment — e 126 0.11
Adjusted earnings (loss) (Non-GAAP) $ 308 § 281 § 839 § 077
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before taxes (GAAP) 810,191 $ (799)
Less: Total adiustments above (pre-tax) 5,836 {2.332)
Adjusted earnings before taxes (Non-GAAP) $ 4,355 $ 1,534
Provision {benefit) for income taxes (GAAP) $ 1,162 $ (3
Less: Tax effect on adjustments above 95 {393)
Adjusted provision (benefit) for income taxes {(Non-GAAP) $ 1,087 $ 389
Inconte tax rate (GAAP) 11.4% 0.4%
Adjusted income tax rate (Non-GAAP) 24.5% 25.4%

{a) See the Corporate and Other Consolidated Information sections for further information.
{b) Includes tax benefits avallable to offset the tax on gains {losses) on equity securities,
{c)Includes related tax valuation allowances.

Eamings per share amounts are computed independently. As a result, the sum of per-share amounts may not equal the total,

The service cost for our pension and other benefit plans are included in Adjusted earnings®, which represents the ongoing cost of
providing pension benefits to our employees. The components of non-operating benefit costs are mainly driven by capital allocation
decisions and market performance, We believe the retained cost in Adjusted earnings™ and the Adjusted tax rate” provides
management and investors a useful measure to evaluate the performance of the total company and increases period-to-period
comparability, We also use Adjusted EPS? as. a performance metric at the company level for our annual executive incentive plan for
2023,

*Non-GAAP Financial Measure
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OTHER FINANCIAL DATA
FIVE-YEAR PERFORMANCE GRAPH
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The annual changes for the five-year period shown in the above graph are based on the assumption that $100 had been investedin
General Electric common stock, the Standard & Poor's 500 Stock Index (S&P 500) and the Standard & Poor’s 500 Industrials Stock
Index (S&P Industrial) on December 31, 2018, and that all quarterly dividends were reinvested. The cumulative dollar returns shown on
the graph represent the value that such invesiments would have had on December 31 for each year indicated. The historical data in the
chart has been adjusted to reflect the impact of the spin-off of GE HealthCare completed in the first quarter of 2023,

With respect to "Market Information,” in the-United States, General Electric common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange
under the ticker symbol "GE" (its principal market). General Electric common stock is also listed onthe London Stock Exchange,
Euronext Paris and the SIX Swiss Exchange.

As of January 15, 2024, there were approximately 260,000 shareholder accounts of record.

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND AFFILIATED PURCHASERS, On March 8, 2022, the Board of
Directors.authorized up 1o $3 billion of common share repurchases. We repurchased 2,168 thousand shares for $253 million during the
three months ended Decermber 31, 2023 under this authorization,

Approximate dollar

value of shares that

Total number of may yet be

shaves purchased  purchased under

as part of our share ourshare

Total number of  Average price pald repurchase repurchase

2023 (Shares in thousands) shares purchased per share authorization authorization
October 766§ 110.30 766
November 1,160 116.69 838
Decembsr 563 124.66 563

Total 2,489 § 116.53 2168 % 938

CYBERSECURITY. The description in this section reflects GE’s approach as of December 31, 2023; we anticipate that, following
the planned spin-off of our GE Vernova businesses, each of GE Aerospace and GE Vernova will continue to evolve their cybersecurity
risk management, strategies and governance to meet their respective needs as standalone companies.

CYBERSECURITY RISK MANAGEMENT AND STRATEGY. GE has developed and implemented a cybersecurily framework intended
to assess, identify and manage risks from threats to the security of our information, systems, products and network using a risk-based
approach. The framework is informed in part by the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST}) Cybersecurity Framework
and International Organization for Standardization 27001 (ISO 27001) Framework, although this does not imply that we meet all
technical standards, specifications or requirements under the NIST or 180 27001.
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Our key cybersecurity processes include the Tollowing:

«  Risk-based controls for information systems and information on GE's networks: We seek to maintain an information
technology infrastruscture that implements physical, administrative and technical controls that are calibrated based on risk and
designed to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of our information systems and information stored on GE's
networks, including customer information, personal information, intellectual property and proprietary information.

»  Cybersecurity incident response plan and testing: We have a cybersecurily incident response plan and dedicated teams to
respond to cybersecurity incidents. When a cybersecurity incident occurs or we identify a vulnerability, we have cross-
functional teams that are responsible for leading the initial assessment of priority and severity, and external experts may also
be engaged as appropriate; GE’s cybersecurity teams assist in responding to incidents depending on severity levels and seek
o improve our cybersecurity incident management plan through periodic tabletops or simulations at the enterprise and
business levels.

« Training: We provide security awareness training to help our employees understand their information protection and
cybersecurity responsibilities at GE. We also provide additional role-based training to some employees based on customer
requirements, regulatory obligations and industry risks.

«  Supplier risk assessments: Wé have implemented a third-party risk management process that includes expectations
regarding information and cybersecurity. That process, among other things, provides for GE to perform cybersecurity
assessments on certain suppliers based on an assessment.of their risk profile and a related rating process. GE also seeks
contractual commitments from key suppliers to appropriately secure and maintain their information technology systems and
protect GE information that'Is processed on theirsystems.

»  Third-party assessments of GE: We have third-party cybersecurity companies engaged to periodically assess GE's
cybersecurity posture, to-assistin identifying and remediating risks from:cybersecurity threats,

We also consider cybersecurity, along with other top risks for GE, within our enterprise risk- management framework. The enterprise risk
management framework.includes internal reporting at the business and enterprise levels, with consideration of key risk indicators;
trends and countermeasures for cybersecurity and other types of significant risks. In the last fiscal year, we have not identified risks
from kriown cybersecurity threats, including as a result of any prior cybersecurity incidents, that have materially affected us, including
our operations, business strategy, results of operations, cash flow or financial condition. We face certain ongoing risks fram
cybersecurity threats—including heightened threats in-connection with the separation-of GE HealthCarein January-2023 and the
planned separation of GE Aerospace and GE Vernova into independent companies—{hat, if realized, are reasonably likely to materially
affect us, including our operatiotis, business strategy, results of operations, or financial condition. Refer to the Risk Factors section
{Cybersecurity - Increased cybersecurity requirements, vulnerabilities, threats and more sophisticated and targeted computer crime,; as
well as cybersectrity failures, pose risk to our systéms, networks, products, solutions, services and data..) for additional information
about these risks.

CYBERSECURITY GOVERNANCE. The Audit Committee of the GE Board of Directors is responsible for board-level oversight-of
cybersecurity risk, and the Audit Committee reports back to the full Board about this and other areas within its responsibility. As part of
its oversight role, the Audit Committee receives reporting about GE's practices, programs, notable threats or incidents and other
developments related to cybersecurity throughout the year, including through periodic updates from GE's Global Chief Information
Security Officer (CISO} and other internal digital techniology and cybersecurity leaders on cyber threats and our eybersecurity risk
management strategy. The Audit Committee also receives information about cybersecurity risks as part of GE's enferprise risk
management framework and reporting.

GE’s Global CISO reports to GE's Global Chief Infoermation Officer and leads the Company’s overall cybersecurity function. The Global
CISO has over 20 years of experience in managing and leading IT or cybersecurity teams and participates in various cyber security
organizations, The Global CISO collaborates with business unit CISOs toidentify and analyze cybersecurity risks to' GE; consider
industry trends; implement-controls, as appropriate and feasible; to mitigate these risks; and enable business leaders to make risk=
based business decisions that implicate cybersecurity considerations. The Global CISO meets with senior leadership to review and
discuss GE's cybersecurity program, including emerging cyber risks, threats and industry frends. The Global CIS0 also supervises
efforts to prévent, detect, mitigate, and remediate cybersecurity risks and incidents through various means, including by collaborating
with internal security personnel and business stakeholders, and incorporating threat intelligence and other information obtained from
governmental, public or private sources to inform our cybersecurity technologies and processes.

RISK FACTORS. The following discussion of the material factors, svents and uncertainties that may make an investment in the
Company speculative or risky contains “forward-looking statements," as discussed in the Forward-Looking Statements section, These
risk factors may be important to understanding any statement in this report or eisewhere. The risks described below should not be
considered a complete list of potential risks that we face, and additional risks not currently known to us or that we currently consider
immaterial may also negatively impact us. The following information should be read in conjunction with the MD&A section and the
consolidated financial statements and related notes. The risks we describe in this report or In 'our other SEC filings could, in ways we
may not be able to accurately predict, recognize or control, have a material adverse effect on our business, reputation, financial
position, results of operations, cash. flows and stock price; and they could cause our future results to be materially different than we
presently anticipate.

STRATEGIC RISKS, Strategic risk relates to the Company's future business plans and strategies, including the risks associated with:

our planned separation of GE Aerospace and GE Vernova into independent companies; the global macro-environment and conditions in
our sectors; the global energy transition; competitive threats; the demand for our-produets and services and the success.of our
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investments in technology and innavation; our porifalio of businesses and capital allocation decisions; dispositions, acquisitions, joint
ventiures and restructuring activity; intellectual property; and.other risks.

Strategic plan - We may encounter challenges to executing our plan to separate GE Aerospace and GE Vernova into
independent companies, or to completing the plan within the timeframes we anticipate, and we may not realize some or all of
the expected benefits of the separations. In November 2021, we announced our plan to form three independent public companies
from our {i) Aerospace business, (i) HealthCare business and (iii) partfolio of energy businesses, including our Renewable Energy and
Power businesses, which we plan to combine and refer to as GE Vernova, 1o better position those businesses to deliver long-term
growth and create value for customers, investors, and employees. The GE HealthCare business separation in January 2023 was, and
the planned GE Vernova business separation is expected to be, effected through spin-offs by GE that-are intended to be tax-free for the
Company and its shareholders for U.S, federal income tax purposes and with all three resulting companies having investment-grade
credit ratings. The GE Vernova separation transaction will be subject to the satisfaction of a number of custermary conditions, including,
among others, final approvals by GE's Board of Directors; receiptiof tax rulings in certain jurisdictions and/or tax opinions from external
counsel, the filing with the SEC and effectiveness of a Form 10 registration statement, and establishment of the capital structures and
credit ratings for both GE Vernova and the remainder of GE following the spin-off. A failure to satisfy required conditions, or disruptions
in market conditions, could delay the completion of the GE Verriova separation fransaction for a significant period of time or prevent it
fromoccurring at all. Additionally, the GE Vernova separation trangaction is complex in nature, and business, market or other
developments or changes may affect our ability to complete the separation transaction as currenily expected, within the anticipated
timeframe or atall. These or other developments could cause us notto realize some or all of the expected benefits, or fo realize them
on a different timeline than expected. If we are unable to complete the GE Vernova separation, we will have incurred costs without
realizing the benefits of such transaction. In addition, the terms and conditions of the required reguiatory authorizations and consents
that are granted, if any, may impose requirements, limitations or costs, or place restrictions on the conduct of GE Vernova or GE
Aerospace as independent companies. In addition, although we interid for the GE Vernova separation transaction to be tax-free to the
Company and its shareholders for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we expect fo incur non-U.S. cash taxes on the preparatory
restructuring and may alsoineur non-cash tax expense including potential impairments of deferred tax assets. Moreover, there can be
no assurance that the GE Vernova spin-off will qualify as tax-free for U.S. purposes for the Company or its shareholders. if either of the
separation transactions were ultimately determined to be taxable, we would incur a significant tax liability, while the distributions to the
Companv's shareholders would become taxable and the new independent companies might incurincome tax liabilities as well.
Furthermore, there can be no assurance that each separate company will be successful as a standalone public. company.

Whether or not the GE Vernova separation fransaction is completed, our businesses may face material challenges in connection with
executing this plan, including the diversion of management's attention from ongoing business concerns and impact on the businesses
of the Company; appropriately allocating assets and liabilities among GE Agrospace and GE Vernova; maintaining employee morale
and retaining and attracting key management and other employees; retaining existing or attracting new business and operational
relationships, including with customers, suppliers, employees and other counterparties; assigning customer contracts, guaranties and
other contracts and instruments to-each of the businesses, and obtaining releases from the counterparties to those contracts or
beneficiaries of those instruments as required,; providing financial or credit-support for new business; assigning intellectual property to
each of the businesses; establishing transition service agreements and standalone readiness for key functions; and potential negative
reactions from investors or the financial comimunity. In particular, to support the GE Vernova businesses in selling products and services
globally, GE often enters into contracts on behalf of GE Vernova or issues parent company guarantees or trade finance instruments
supporting the performance of what currently are subsidiary legal entities transacting directly with customers; in addition to providing
simitar credit support for some non-customer-related activities of GE Vemnova (collectively, GE credit support). For GE credit support
thatis not novated to GE Vernova with a release of GE, the failure of GE Vernova {orof a subsequent acquirorof all or a portion of GE
Vermnova's business) to perform-under any televant contract following the spin-off could result-in claims for damages or other relief
against GE, The total amount of GE Vernova business that the GE credit suppaort relates {o is-significant, and GE will likely continue fo
have exposure that is based on the continued performance of the relevant contracts for some years following completion of the spin-off.
See the-Other ltems - Parent Company Credit Support section within MD&A for additional information. In-addition, GE for the past
several vears has been undertaking various restructuring and business transformation actions (including workforee reductions, global
fagility consoclidations and other cost reduction initiatives and the GE HealthCare separation) that have entailed changes across our
organizational structurs, senlor leadership, culture, functional alignment, .outsourcing and otherareas, These pose risks in the form of
personnel capacity constraints and institutional knowledge loss that could lsad fo missed performance or financial targets, loss of key
personnel and harm fo our reputation,; and these risks are heightened with the additional interdependent actions that have been and will
continue to be needed to complete the planned separation of GE Vernova.

Moreover, completion of the GE HealthCare separation resulted, and completion of the GE Vernova separation will result, in
independent public companies that are smaller, less divarsified companies with more limited businesses concentrated in their
respective industries than GE was prior to the separation transactions. As a result, sach company will be more vulnerable to global
econornic trends; geapolitical risks, demand or supply shocks, and changing industry or market conditions, which could -have a'material
adverse effect on its business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations. In addition, the diversification of revenues,
vosts, and cash flows will diminish, such that each company’s results of operations, cash flows, working capital, effective tax rate, and
financing requirements may be subject to increased volatility and its ability to execute capital allocation plans, fund capital expenditures
and investments, pay dividends and meet debt obligations and other liabilities may be diminished. Each of the separate companies will
also incur ohgoing costs, including costs of operating as independent public companies, that the separated businesses will no longer be
able to share, Additionally, we cannot predict whether at the time of separation or overtime the market value of our common stock and
the common stock of each of the new independent companies after the separation-transactions will be, in the aggregate, less than,
equal to or greater than the market value of our-common stock prior to the separation transactions. Investors holding our common stock
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may also sell the common stock of any of the new independent companies that do not match their investment strategies, which may
cause a decline in the market price of such common stock.

Global macro-environment - Qur financlal performance and growth are subject to risks related to global economic, political
and geopolitical developments or other disruptions to the econemy or our business sectors. We operate in virtually every part of
the world; serve customers in-over 160 countries and recelved 57% of our revenues for 2023 from outside the United States. Our
woperations and the execution of our business plans and strategies are subject to the effects of global economic trends, geopolitical risks
sand demand or supply shocks from events such as war or international conflict, a major terrorist attack, natural disasters or actual or
“Ihreatened public health pandemics or othér emergencies. Our operations and performance are also affected by local and regional
~economic environments, supply chain constraints and policies in the U.S. and other markets that we serve, including factors such as
flationary pressures in many markets, increased interest rates from recent historic lows, econemic growth rates, the availability of
~skilled labor, monetary policy, exchange rates and currency volatility, commodity prices and sovereign debt levels. For example,
c?mﬂationary pressures have caused and may continue to cause many of our material and labor costs to increase, which adversely
affects our profitability and cash flows, particularly when we are unable to increase customer contract values or pricing to offset those
pressures. Deterioration of economic conditions or outlooks, such as lower rates of investment, lower economic growth, recession or
fears of recession in'the U.S., China, Europe or other key markets, may adversely affect the demand for or profitability of our products
and services, and the impact from developments outside the U.S, on our business performance can be significant given the extent of
our global activities: Increased geopolitical terisions and outbreaks of armed conflict can alse adversely impact our businesses, both
directly or by adversely affecting economic activity globally or in particular regions or countries. For example, Russia’s invasion of
Ukraine In early 2022 and related political and economic consequences, such as sanctions and other measures imposed by the
Eurgpean Union, the U.S. and other countries and organizations in response, have caused and may continue to cause disruption and
instability in global markets; supply chains and industries that negatively impact our businesses, financial condition and results of
operations and pose reputational risks. More recently, there is risk of wider conflict in the Middle East that could have significant
adverse impacts on the region and business activity in addition to the humanitarian and other consequences of the current coriflict. In
addition, political changes and frends such as populism, protectionism, economic nationalism and sentiment toward multinational
companies, as well as tariffs, export controls, restrictions on cutbound investment or other trade barriers, sanctions, technical or local
content regulations, currency controls, or changes to tax or other laws and policies, have been and may continue to be disruptive and
costly to our businesses. These can Interfere with our global operating model, supply chain, production costs, customer relationships
and competitive position. Further escalation of any specific trade tensions, including intensified decoupling between the U.8. and China,
orin global trade conflict more broadly could be harmful to globat economic growth orto-our business in or with China-or other
colntries. We also.do business in many emerging market jurisdictions where economie, political and legal risks.are heightened and the
operating environments are complex.

Energy transition « The strategic priorities and financial performance of many of our businesses are subject to market and
other dynamics related to efforts to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, which can pose risks in addition to opportunities.
Given the nature:of our businesses and the-industries we serve, we must anticipate and respond to market, technological, regulatory
and other changes driven by broader trends related to greenhouse gas emission reduction efforis in response to climate change and
energy security. These changes present both risks and opportunities for our businesses, many of which provide products and services
to customers in sectors like power generation and commercial aviation that have historically been carbon intensive and we expect will
remain important to efforts globally to lower greenhouse gas emissions for'decades to come. For example, the significant decreases in
recent years in the levelized cost of energy for renewable sources of power generation {such as wind and solar), along with ongoing
changes in government, investor, customer and consumer policies, commitments, preferences and considerations related to climate
change, in some cases have adversely affected, and may continue to affect, the demand for-and the competitiveness of praducts and
services related to fossil fuel-based power generation, including sales of new gas turbines and the utilization and servicing needs for
existing gas power plants that are unmitigated with capabilities such as hydrogen or carbon capture. Continued shifts toward greater
penetration by renewables in both new capacity additions and the proportionate share of power generation, particularly depending on
the pace and timeframe for such shifts across different markets globally, could have a material adverse effect on the performance of our
Power business and our consolidated results. While the currently anticipated market growth-and power generation share for renewable
energy is expected to be favorable for our wind businesses over time, we face uncertainties related to future levels and imeframes of
government subsidies and credits (including the impact of the Inflation Reduction Act and other policies), significant price competition
among wind equipment manufacturers, dynamics betwéen onshore and offshore wind power, potential further consclidation in the wind
industry, competition with solar power-based and cther sources of renewable energy and the pace at which power grids are modernized
to maintain reliability with higher levels of renewables penetration. The achievement of deep decarbonization goals for the power sector
over the coming decades is likely to depend in part on technologles that are not yet deployed or widely adopted today but that may
become more important over fime (such as hydrogen-based power genération, carbon caplure and sequestration technologies, small
modular or other advanced nuclear power and grid-scale batteries or other storage solutions). Successfully navigating these changes
will require significant investrnents in power grids and otherinfrastructure, research and development and new technology and
products, both by GE and-third parties. Similar dynamics exist in the aviation sector, where greenhouse gas emission reduction over
time will require a combination of continued technological innovation in the fuel efficiency of engines, expanded use of sustainable
aviation fuels and the further development of hybrid-electric and electric flight and hydrogen-based aviation technologies. For exampls,
the risk of insufficient availability of low carbon fuels (such as sustainable aviation fuels or hydrogen) may compromise the pace and
degree of emission reduction within the-aviation sector. Our success in advancing greenhouse gas emission reduclion objectives across
our businesses will depend in part en the actions of governments, regulators and other market participants to Investin infrastructure,
create appropriate market incentives and fo otherwise support the development of new fechnologies, The process of developing new
high-technology products and erthancing existing products to mitigate climate change is often complex; coslly and unceriain, and we
may pursue sirategies or make investments that do not prove to be commaercially successful in the time frames expected or at all,
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Afailure by GE or other industry participants to invest successfully in these technological developments, or to adequately position our
businesses to benefit from the growth in-adoption of new technologies, could adversely affect our.competitive position, business, ability
to attract and retain talent, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. In addition, we face increasing scrutiny and
expectations from many customers, governments, regulators, investors, banks, project financiers and other stakeholders regarding the
roles that the private sector and individual companies play in decarbonization, which can result in additional costs and pose reputational
orother risks for companies like GE that serve carbon intensive industries or relative to progress that-we make over time in reducing
emissions from our operations or products and achieving our publicly announced ambitions. We anticipate that we will continue to need
to makeé investments in new technologies and capabilities and devote additional management and other resources in response to the
foregoing, and we may notrealize the anticipated benefits of those investments and actions. Trends related to the global energy
transition and decarbonization:will affect the relative competitiveness of different types of product and service offerings within and
across our energy businesses and our Aerospace business. Important factors that could impact our businesses include the pace of
technological developments and related cost considerations, the levels of economic growth in different markets around the world and
the adoption and pace of implementation of climate change-related policies (such as carbon taxes, cap and trade regimes, increased
efficiency standards, greenhouse gas emission reduction targets or commitments, incentives or mandates for particular types of energy
or policies that impact the availability of financing for certain types of projects) at the national and sub-national levels or by customers,
investors or other private actors.

Comniercial aviation sector - Our financial performance is dependent on the condition of the commercial aviation sector and
our partners and customers in that sector. Our Aerospace business constitutes a substantial portion of our financial results, and the
majority of that business is directly tied fo economic conditions in the commercial aviation sector, which is cyclical In nature. Capital
spending and demand for aircraft engines, aviation products and component aftermarket parts and services by commercial airlines,
lessors, other alrcraft aperators and airframers are influenced by a wide variety of factors, including current and predicted traffic levels,
load factors, aircraft fuel prices, labor issues, airline consolidation, bankruptcies and restructuring activities, competition, the retirement
of older aircraft, changes in production schedules, regulatery changes, terrorism and related safety concerns, general economic
conditions, tightening of credit in financial markets, corporate profitability, cost reduction efforts and remaining performance obligations
levels, Any of these factors could reduce the sales and profit marging of our Aerospace business. Other factors, including future terrorist
actions, aviation safety concerns, public health crises or major natural disasters, could also dramatically reduce the demand for
cotmmercial air travel, which could negatively impact the sales and profit margins of our Aerospace business, As we experienced with
the COVID-18 pandemic, our Aerospace business in particular suffered adverse effects from a global health pandemic that led to a
significant decline in commercial air traffic, had material adverse effects on our airline and airframear customers and their demand for our
products and services and caused other significant dislocations throughout the aviation sector. Supply chain disruptions and other
lingering impacts from the pandemic and measures in response continue to pose challenges and risks for our business and other
industry participants, and future public health crises could cause other disruptions and challenges in the future. We also face risks
refated o longer-term strategies the aviation sector has implemented and may implement, such as reducing capacity, shifting route
patterns or other strategies to mitigate impacts from COVID-19 and the risk of future public health crises, and from potential shifts in the
flying public’s demand for travel, any of which could adversely affect future growth in commercial air traffic capacity and the demand for
ar profitability of our products and services. Additionally, because a substantial portion of product deliveries to commercial aviation
customers are scheduled for delivery in the future, changes in economic conditions can cause customers to request that orders be
rescheduled or canceled, Spare parts sales and aftermarket service trends are affected by similar factors, including usage, pricing,
technological improvements, regulatory changes and the retirement of older aircraft. Furthermore, because of the lengthy research and
development cycle involved in bringing new engine platforms and other products in our Aerospace business to market, we cannot
predict the economic conditions that will exist when any new product is ready to enter into service. We also have dependencies on our
partners for commercial engine programs to develop, manufacture and service their share of an engine; and on the major airframers
that we supply to successfully develop, certify and commercialize aircraft that utilize our engines. A reduction in spending in the
commercial aviation sector, or challeniges for key industry participants, could have a significant effect on the demand for our products
and services, which could have a material advarse effect on our competitive position, results of oparations, financial condition or cash
flows:

Competitive environment - We are dependent on the maintenance of existing product lines and service relationships, market
acceptance of new product and service infroductions, and technology and innovation leadership for revenue and earnings
growth. The markets in which we operate are highly competitive In terms of pricing, product and service quality, product development
and infroduction time, customer service, financing terms, the ability to respond to shifts in market demand and the ability to attract and
retain skilled talent. Our long-term operating results and competitive position also depend substantially upon our ability to continually
develop, infroduce, and market new and innovative technology, products, services and platforms, to develop digital solutions for-our
own operations and our customers, to:madify-existing products and services, to-customize products and services, to maintain long-term
customner relationships and to increase our productivity over time as we perform on long-term service agreements. We often enter into
long-term service agreements in both our Aerospace and Power businesses in connection with significant contracts for the sale of
equipment. In connection with these agreements, we must accurately estimate our costs associated with delivering the products;
product durability and reliability, and the provision of services over time in order to be profitable and generate acceptable returns on our
investments. A failure to appropriately estimate or plan for or execute our business plans may adversely affect our delivery of products,
services and outcomes in line with-our projected financial performance or cost-estimates, and ultimately may result in excess costs,
build-up of inventory that becomes obsolete, lower profit margins and an erosion-of our competitive position. In addition;-at our
Renewable Energy business, the rapid pace of Innovation among onshore and offshare wind turbine manufacturers in recent years has
led to short product cycles, early market introductions and faster time fo market, a2l of which have led and may continue to lead to
quality and execution issues, higher costs and other challenges to achieving profitability for new products. Such risks are especially
acute in the nascent offshore wind industry, with higher ramp-up costs and the potential for new product introductions to result in losses
hoth in the short- and long-run. If we arenot able to identify and implement initiatives that control and reduce costs and increase
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operating efficiency, or if the cost savings initiatives we have implemented to date do not generate expected cost savings, our financial
results could be adverssly affected.

Our businesses are also subject to technologlcal change and advances, such as growth.in industrial automation and increased
digitization of the operations, infrastructure and solutions that customers demand across all the Industries we serve, In addition, our use
of emerging and evolving technologies stich as artificial intelligence and machine leaming, which 'we ‘expect to increase over time,
resernts business, reputational, legal and compliance risks related to data sourcing, design flaws, integration issues, security threats,
@rivacy protections and the ability to develop sufficient protection measures. The introduction of innovative and disruptive technologies
<n the markets in which we operate also poses risks in the form of new competitors (including new entrants from outside our traditional
gndustries, such as competitors from digital technology companies), market consolidation, substitutions of existing products, services or
:rsoiutions, niche players, new business models and competitors that are faster to market with new or more cost-effective products or
eservices: Existing and new competitors frequently offer services for ourinstalled base; and if the custemers that purchase our
Fequipment and products select our competitors’ services or if we otherwise fail {o maintain or renew service relationships, this can erode
the revenues and profitability of our businesses. In addition, the research and development cycle involved in bringing products inour
businesses to market is often lengthy, it is inherently difficult to predict the economic conditions or competitive dynamics that will exist
when any new product is complete, and our investments, to the extent they resultin bringing a product to market, may generate weaker
returns than we anticipated at the outset. Our capacity to invest in research and development efforts to pursue advancement in a wide
range of technologies, products and services also depends on the financial résourcés that we have available for such investment
relative fo other capital allocation priorities. Under-investment in research and development, or investment in technologies that prove to
be'less competitive in the future (at the expense of alternative investiment opportunities rot pursued), could lead to loss of sales of our
products and services in the future, particularly since many of our husinesses have long product development cycles. The amounts that
we doinvest in research and development efforts may not lead to the development of new technologies or-products on a timely basis or
meet the needs of our customers as fully as competitive offerings.

Business portfolic - Qur success depends on achieving our strategic and financial objectives, including through acquisitions,
integrations, dispositions and joint ventures. With respact fo acquisitions and business integrations, dispositions, separations and
joint ventures, we may not achieve expected returns or other benefits on a timely basis or at all as a result of changes in strategy,
integration challenges or other factors. Over the past several years we have also been pursuing a variety of dispositions, and as
discussed above we are in the midst of executing our plan to separate GE Aerospace and GE Vernova into independent companies; In
January 2023, we spun off our HealthCare business as GE HealthCare, and GE currently holds a 13.5% equity interest in GE
HealthCare. Declines in the valle of equity interests (such as our interest i GE HealthCare) or other assets that we sell can diminish
the cash proceads that we realize; and our ability and fiming to sell can-depend on'market conditions and the liquidity of the relevant
assel. We may dispose of businesses or assets at a price or on terms that are less favorable than we had anticipated, or with purchase
price adjustments or the exclusion of assets or liabllities that must be divested, managed or run off separately. Dispositions or other
business separations also often involve continued financial involvement.in the divested business; such as through continling equity
ownership, retained assets or liabilities, transition services agreements, commercial agreements, guarantees, indemnities or other
current or contingent financial obligations or liabilities. Under these arrangements, performance by the divested businesses orother
conditions outside our control could materially affect our future financial results. Evaluating or executing on all types of potential or
planned portfolio transactions can divert senior management time and resources from other pursuits. We also participate in a number of
joint ventures with other companies or government enterprises in various markets around the world, including joint ventures where we
have a lesser degree of confrol over the business operations; which-expose us to additional operational, financial, reputational, legal or
compliance risks,

Intellectual property ~ Ourinteliectual property portfolic may not prevent competitors from independently developing
products and services similar to or duplicative to ours, and the value of our intellectual property may be negatively impacted
by external dependencies. Our patents and other intellectual property may not prevent competitors from independently developing or
selling products and services similar o or duplicative of ours, and there can be no assurance that the resources invested by us to
protect our intellectual property will be sufficient orthat our intellectual property portfolio will adequately deter misappropriation or
improper use of our technalogy, particularly in certain markets outside the LL.S. where intellectual property laws and related enforcement
mechanisms may not be as well-developed. Trademark licenses of the GE brand in connection with dispositions, including in
coninection with the separation of GE HealthCare in January 2023 and the planhed separation of GE Aerdgspace-and GE Vernova into
independent companies, may negatively impact the overall value of the brand in the future, We also face competition in some countries
where we have not invested inan intellectual property portfolio. If we are not able to protect our intellectual property, the value of our
brand and other intangible assets may be-diminished, and our business may be adversely affected. We also face attemptls; both
internally from insider threats and externally from cyber-attacks, to gain unauthorized access to our [T systems or products for the
purpose of improperly acquiring our trade secrets or confidential business information. In addition, we have observed an increase In the
use of social engineering tactics by bad actors attempting to obtain confidential business information or credentials to access systems
with our intellectual property. The theft or unauthorized use or publication of our trade secrets and other confidential business
information as :a result of such incidents could adversely affect our competitive position-and the value of our investment in research and
development. In addition, we are subject to the enforcement of patents or other intellectual property by third parties, including
aggressive and opportunistic enforcement claims by non-practicing entities. Regardless of the merit of such claims, responding to
infringement claims can be expensive and time-consuming. GE has in the past, and may in the future be, found to infringe third-party
rights, which could require us to pay substantial damages or enjoin us from offering some of our products and services. The value of, or
our ability to use, our intellectual property may also be negatively impacted by dependencies on third parties, such as our-ability to
obtain or renew on reasonable terms licenses that we need in the future, .or our ability to secure or retain ownership or rights to use data
in certain software analytics or services offerings. ’
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OPERATIONAL RISKS. Operational risk relates to risks arising from systems, processes, people and external events that affect the
operation of our businesses. It includes risks related to product and service life cycle and execution; product safety and performance;
information management and data protection and security, including cybersecurity; and supply chain and business disruption.

Operational execution -« Operational challenges could have a material adverse effect on our business, reputation, financial
position, results of operations and cash flows. GE's financial resulls depend on the successful execution of our businesses’
operating plans across all steps of the product-and service life cycle. We seek to Improve the operations and execution of our
businesses on an-ongoing basis, and our ability to make the desired improvements is animportant factor in-our profitability and overall
financial performance. We also face operational risks in connection with Jaunching or ramping newer product platforms, such as the
Haliade-X offshore wind turbine platform or new onishore wind turbine models at Renewable Energy, of the LEAP or GE9X engines at
Aerospace, Particularly with newer product platforms and technologies, our businesses seek to reduce the costs of these products over
time with experience, and risks related to our supply chain, the availability of skilled labor, product quality, timely delivery or other
aspects of operational execution can adversely affect our ability to meet customers' expectations, profits and éash flows, Many of our
customer contracts are complex and contain provisions that could cause us to incur penalties, be liable for liquidated damages and
incur unanticipated experises with respect to the timely delivery, functionality, deployment, operation, durability, and availability of our
products, solutions and services. Operational fallures at any of our businesses that result in quality problems or potential product,
environmental, health or safety risks, could have a material adverse effect on our business, reputation, fingncial position; cash flows
and results of operations.

In addition, our Power and Renewable Energy businesses are often invoived in large projects that pose unique risks related to their
location, scale, complexity, duration and pricing or payment structure, At times, these businesses sell products through or with
engineering, procurement and production firms, where we can be either a sub-supplier or a consortium partner. The scope of supply
canrange from products alone to exiended plant scope, including plant-level guarantees, Delivering on large projects with multiple
parties and subcontractors involved, particularly outside of mature markets inthe U.S. and Europe, Is highly complex with risks related
to the safety and security of workers, impacts on local communities, corruption, breach or theft of intellectual property and other factors,
Performance issues or schedule delays can arise due to inadequate fechnical expertise, unanticipated project modifications,
developments at project sites, environmental, health and safety issues, éxecution by or coordination with suppliers, subcontractors or
consortium partners, financial difficulties of our customers or significant partners or compliance with government regulations, and these
canJead to cost overruns, contractual penalties, liquidated damages and other adverse consequences. Where GE is-a member.of a
consortitm, we are typically subject fo ¢claims based on joint and several {iability, and claims can extend o aspects of the project or
costs that are not directly related or limited to GE's scope of work or over which GE does not have control. Operational, quaiity or other
issues:at large projects; of across our projects portfolio more broadly, can adversely affect GE’s business, reputation, cash flows or
results of operations.

Product safety and quality - Our products and services are highly sophisticated and specialized, and a major failure or quality
issue affecting our products or third-party products with which our products are integrated can adversely affect our business,
reputation, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. We produce highly sophisticated products and provide
specialized services for both our own and third-party products that incorporate or use complex or leading-edge technology, including
both hardware and software. Many of our products and services involve complex industrial machinery or infrastructure projects, such as
commercial jet engines, gas turbines, onshore and offshore wind turbines or nuclear power generation, and accordingly the adverse
impact-of product quality issues.can be significant. Actual or perceived design, production, performance or other quality issues related
to new product introductions or existing product lines can result in direct warranty, maintenance and other costs, including costs
associated with project delays. For example, in the third quarter of 2022, we booked a provision due to changes in estimates for existing
warranties for the deploymentof repairs and other corrective measures to improve overall quality and fleet availability refating to our
Onshore Wind business, Quality issues can-also result in reputational harm to-our businesses, with-a potential loss of attractiveness of
our products, solutions and services to new and existing customers. A widespread fleet issue could result in revenue loss while the
associated product is suspended from opération. This risk is pronounced, for example, in connection with the introduction of new
technology-in the main components of offshore wind turbines due to the challenges of servicing and performing maintenance on
offshare wind turbines and the difficulties associated with scaling up production of new components. In addition, a catastrophic product
fallure or similar event resulting in injuries or death, widespread.outages, a fleet grounding or similar systemic consequences could
have a material adverse effect on ourbusiness; reputation, financial position, cash flows and results of operations. Even when there
have not been a particularly significant or widespread product failures in the field, many of our products and services must function
under demanding operating conditions and meet exacting and evolving certification, performance, reliability and durability standards
that we, our customers or regulators adopt. Developing and maintaining products that meet or exceed these can be costly and
technologically challenging, and may also Involve extensive coordination of suppliers and highly skilled labor from thousands of
workers; a failure to deliver products and services that meet these standards could have significant adverse financial, competitive-or
reputational effects. Technical, mechanical and otherfailures occur from time fo time, whether as a result of manufacturing. or design
defect, operational process or production issue attributable to us, our customers, suppliers, third party integrators or others.

In some circumstances we have also incurred and in the future we may continue to incur increased costs, delayed payments or lost
equipment or services revenue in connection with a significant issue with a third party's product with which our products are integrated,
or if parts or other components that we incorporate In our products have defects or other quality issues. For example, a prolonged
aircraft grounding, certification or production delays or other adverse developments with aircraft powered by our engines can-pose risk
1o our Aeraspace business, There-can be no assurance that the operational processes around sourcing, product design, manufacture,
performance and servicing that we or our customers or other third parties have designed to meet rigorous quality standards will be
sufficient to prevent us or our customers or-other third parties from experiencing operational process or product faillures and other
problems, including through manufacturing or design defects, process or other failures.of contractars or third-party suppliers, cyber-
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attacks or other intentional acts, software vulnerabilities: or maliclous software, that could resultin potential product, safety, quality,
regulatory or environmental risks.

Cybersecurity - Increased cybersecurity requirements, vulnerabilities, threats and more sophisticated and targeted computer
crime, as well as cybersecurity failures, pose risk to our systems, networks, products, solutions, services and data. Increased
global cybersecurity requirements, vuinerabilities, threats, computer viruses and more sophisticated and targeted cyber-related attacks
uch as ransomware, as well as cybersecurity failures resuiting from human or technological errors, pose risk to the security of GE's
Eand its customers’, partners’, suppliers’ and third-party service providers' infrastructure, products, systems and networks and the
aﬂanﬁdentlahty availability and integrity of GE's and its customers’ data, as well as associated financial and reputational risks. The
j)erpetrators of such attacks include sophisticated malicious actors including states and state-affiliated actors targeting critical
frastructure, The risks in this-area continue to grow, and cyberattacks are expected to- accelerate on a global basis in frequency and
mmpact as threat actors Increasingly use artificial intelligence and other techniques to circumvent security controls, evade detection and
Fremove forensic evidence. As a result, we may be unable to promptly or effectively detect, investigate, remediate or recover from
cybersecurity attacks, which may result in material harm to our systems, information or business.

We have experienced, and expect to continue to experience, cyberattacks of varying degrees of sophistication and other cybersecurity
incidents. Bad actors have attempted and we expect will continue to attempt to use our separation of GE HealthCare in January 2023
and the planned separation of GE Aerospace and GE Vernova into independent companies as an opportunity to launch attacks or
increase their number of attacks against GE's nefworks and systems, as well as attempt to use social engineering tactics or phishing
emails to induce our employees to reveal sensitive information or install malware. A significant cyber-related attack against us, a key
third-party system or a nétwork that we use, orin one of our industries such as an attack on power grids, power plants or commercial
aircraft (even if such an attack does not involve GE products, services or systems), could adversely affect our business, The large
number of suppliers that we work with requires significant effort for the initial and ongoing verification.of the effective implementation of
cybersecurity requirements by suppliers, The increasing degree of interconnectedness between GE and its partners, suppliers and
custoriers also poses a risk to the security of GE's network as well as the larger ecosystem in which GE operates. Our risk mitigation
efforts may fail to prevent, detect and limit the impact of cyber-related attacks, and we remain vulnerable to known and unknown
cybersecurity threats,

The continued adaption.of new technologies by our businesses and our suppliers alsc increases our exposure to cybersecurity threats.
An-unknown vulnerability or. compromise in-our-or a third-party product (for example, open source software) may expose our systems,
networks, software or connected products to malicious actors and lead to the misuse or unintended use of our products, loss of GE
intellectual property, misappropriation of sensitive, confidential or personal data, safety risks or unavailability of equipment. We also
have access to sensitive, classified, confidential or personal data or information in certain of our businesses that is subject to privacy
and securily laws, regulations or customer-imposed controls. We are vulnerable to security breaches, theft, misplaced, lost or corrupted
data, programming errors and misconfigurations, employee errors {including as a result of social engineering/phishing) and/or
malfeasance {including misappropriation by insiders or.departing employees) that may compromise sensitive, classified; confidential-or
personal data or Information, improper use of our systems, software solutions or networks, Unauthorized access, use, disclosure,
modification or destruction of or denial of access to information, defective products, production downtimes and operational disruptions.
In addition, our suppliers may be the victim of a cyber-related incident that could compromise our intellectual property, personal data or
other confidential information, or result in production downtimes and operational disruptions that could cause us to breach our
commitiments to customers. An unknown security vulnerability or malicious software ina product used by a supplier to deliver a service
or embedded in-a supplier's product thatis later integrated into a GE product could lead to-a vulnerability in the security of GE's product
or, if used Internally in the GE network environment, to a compromise of the GE network, which may lead to the loss of information or
operational disruptions, Cybersscurity-related and data privacy and protection laws and regulatory regimes are evolving, can vary
significantly by country and present increasing compliance challenges, and we from time to time receive, and in the future will Tikely
receive, regulatory inguiriés about specific incidents or aspects of our cybersecurity framework; these dynamics increase our costs,
affect our competitiveness and can expose us to fines or other penalties and reputational risks. In addition, cybersecurity incidents can
result in other negative consequences, regardless of whether the direct effects of an incident are significant, including damage to our
reputation-or competitiveness, restoration and remediation costs, increased digital infrastructure or related costs that are notcovered by
Insurance, and costs or fines arising from litigation or regulatory investigations or actions. While we carry cyber Insurance, we cannot be
certalr: that our coverage will be adequate for liabilities actually incurred, that insurance will continue to be ‘available to us on
economically reasonable terms, or at all, or that any insurer will not deny coverage as to any future claim.

Supply chain - Significant raw material or other component shortages, supplier capacity constraints, supplier-or customer
production disruptions, suppiier quality and sourcing issues or price increases have increased, and may continue to
increase, our operating costs and can adversely impact the competitive positions-of our products. Our reliance on third-party
suppliers, confract manufacturers and service providers, and commodity markets to secure raw materials, parts, components and sub-
systems used in our products exposes us to volatility in the prices and availability of these materials, parts, components, systems and
services. As our supply chains are complex and extend into many different countries and regions around the world, we are also subject
1o global economic and geopolitical dynamics and risks associated with exporting components manufactured in particular countries for
incorporation into finished products completed in other countries. We operate in a supply-constrained environment and are facing, and
may continue to face, supply-chain shortages, inflationary pressures, shortages of skilled labor, transportation and logistics challenges
and manufacturing disruptions that impact our revenues, profitability and timeliness in fulfilling customer orders. We anticipate supply
chain pressures across our businesses will continue to challenge and adversely affect our operations and financial performance for
some period of time. For example, successfully executing the significant production and delivery ramp-up efforts at our Aerospace
business from both strong demand for newer engine platforms such as the LEAP and the aviation sector’s recovery from the COVID-18
pandemic, depends in part on our suppliers having access to the materials and skilled labor they require and making timely deliveries to
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us; as well as meeting the required quality and performance standards for commercial aviation. In addition, some of our suppliers or
their sub-suppliers are limited- or sole-source suppliers, and our ability to meet our obligations o customers depends on the
performance, product quality and stabllity of such suppliers. We also have internal dependencies on ¢ertain key GE manufacturing or
other facilities. Disruptionsin deliveries, capacity constraints, production disruptions up- or down-stream, price increases, or decreased
availability of raw materials or commodities, including as a result of war, natural disasters (including the effects of climate change such
as sea level rise, drought, flooding, wildfires and more intense weather events), actual or threatened public health pandemics or
emergencies or other business continuity events, adversely affect our operations and, depending on the length and severity of the
disruption, can limit our ability to meet our commitments to customers or significantly impact our operating profit or cash flows. Quality,
capability, compliance and sourcing issues experienced by third-party providers can also adversely affect our costs, margin rates and
the quality and effectiveness of our products and services and result in liability and reputational harm. The harm fo us could be
significant if, for example, a quality issue at a supplier or with components that we integrate into our products results in a widespread
quality issue across one of our product lines or our installed base of equipment. In addition, our suppliers may experience cyber-related
attacks, as described above, which could negatively impact their ability to meet their delivery obligations to us and in turn have an
adverse effect on our ability to meet our commitments to customers.

FINANCIAL RISKS. Financial risk relates to our ability to meet financial goals and obligations and mitigate exposure to broad market
risks; including credit risk; funding and liquidity risks, such as risk related to our credit ratings and our availability and cost of funding;
and volatility in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from
a.customer or counterparty fallure to meet its- contractual obligations, and we face credit risk arising from both our industrial businesses
and from our remaining financial services operations. Liquidity risk refers to the potential inability to meet contractual or contingent
financial obligations {(whether on- or off-balance sheet) as they arise, and could potentially impact our financial condition, cash flow or
overall safety and soundness,

Customers and counterparties - Global economic; industry-specific or other developments that weaken the financial condition
or soundness of significant customers, governments or other parties we deal with can adversely affect our business, results
of operations and cash flows. The businass and operating results of our businesses have been, and will continue to be, affected by
worldwide economic conditions, including conditions in the air transportation, power generation, renewable energy and other industries
we serve, Existing or potential customers may delay or cancel plans to purchase our products and services, including large
infrastructure projects, and may not be able to fulfill their obligations to us in a timely fashion or atall as a result of business
deterioration, cash flow shortages or difficulty obtaining financing for particular projects or due to macroeconomic conditions,
geopolitical disruptions, changes In law or other challenges affecting the strength of the global economy. The airline industry, for
example, is highly cyclical, and sustained sconomic growth and political stability in both developed and emerging markets are principal
factors underlying long-term air traffic growth; the current macroeconomic and geopolitical environment and the potential for recession
pose risks to the rate of that growth. Aviation sector activity is also particularly influenced by the actions of a small group of large ariginal
equipment manufacturers, as well as large airlines in various geographies. We have significant business with, and credit exposure fo,
some of our largest aviation customers and accordingly our Aerospace business performanice can be adversely affected by challenges
that individual customets or the industry faces related to factors such as comipetition, the need for cost reduction, financial stability and
soundness; and the availability of aircraft leasing and financing alternatives, the satisfaction of certification.or other regulatory
requirements for aircraft in various jurisdictions, the retirement of older aircraft and other dynamics affecting the original equipment and
aftermarket service markets, or by a significant disruption of air travel such as what occurred diring the COVID-19 pandemic. A
potential future disruption in connection with a terrorist incident, cyberattack, actual or threatened public health pandemic or emergency
or recessionary economic environment that results in the loss of business and leisure traffic could also adversely affect these
customers, their ability to fulfili their obligations to us in a timely fashion or at all, demand for our products and services and the viability
of a customer’s business, (See also Risk Factors - Commercial aviation sector.} In-.our Power and Renewable Energy businesses, our
cusiomers also face & variety of challenges, incliuding in connection with decarbonization, industry consolidation, competition and shifts
in the availability of financing for certain types of power projects or technologies (such as prohibitions on financing for fossll fuel-based
projects or technologies); these dynamics can also have a significant impact on the operating results and outlooks for our businesses.
ih addition, our customers include numerous govermnmental entities within and outside the U.S., including the U.8. federal government
and state and local entitiss. We also at times face greater challenges collecting on receivables with customers that are sovereign
governments of located in emerging markets. If there is significant deterioratian in the global economy, in our industries, in financial
markets or with particular significant counterparties, our results of operations, financial position and cash flows could be materially
adversely affected.

Run-off insurance and banking operations - We continue to have exposure to our run-off insurance operations: and Bank BPH
maortgage portfolio in Poland, While in recent years we have greatly reduced the scope of GE's former financial services operations,
we continue to retain significant exposure to legacy insurance and other financial services operations that will run off over a long period
of time and, in the event of future adverse developments, could cause funding or liquidity stress, For example, it is possible that resulls
of our statutory testing of insurance reserves in future years will require capital contributions to'our insurance subsidiaries, even-after
we make the expected capital contribution in the first quarter of 2024 that will complete the contributions in connection with the statutory
permitted practice approved in 2018 by the KID. Qur statutory testing of insurance reserves is subject to'a variely of assumptions,
including assumptions about the discount rate (which:is sensitive to changes in market interest rates), morbidity, mortality-and future
long-term care premium increases. Fulure adverse changes to these assumptions (to the extent not offset by any favorable changes to
these assumptions) could result in an increase to future policy benefit reserves and, potentially, to the amount of capital we are required
to contribute 16 our insurance subsidiaries {as discussed in the Other ltems - Insurance section within MD&AJ. In addition, we have
exposure to varicus financial counterparties that pose cradit and other risks in the avent of insolvency or other default, For example, a
portion of our run-off insurance operations’ assets are held in trust accounts associated with reinsurance contracts. For-our UFLIC
subsidiary, such-trust assets are currently held in trusts for the benefit of Insurance company subsidiaries of Genworth, which has stated
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in-the past that it will not bolster the capital position of its insurance subsidiaries. Solvency or other concerns about Genworth orits

insurance company subsidiaries may cause those subsidiaries or their regulators to take or attempt to take actions that could adversely

affect UFLIC, including control over assets in the relevant frusts, It is also possible that additional contingent liabilities and loss

estimates for Bank BPH, in connection with the ongoing litigation in Poland related to its portfolio of residential mortgage loans

denominated in or indexed to foreign currencies (see Note 24), will need fo be recognized {or loss estimates may increase in the future)

and will become payable. Though we may consider strategic options to accelerate the further reduction in the size of these remaining
oAinancial services operations, such options may not be viable or attractive because of the associated cash payments, financial charges
gxr other adverse effects. There can be no assurance that future liabilitles, losses or impairments to the carrying value of assets within
<our financial serviges operations would not materially and adversely affect GE's business, financial position, cash flows; results of
é&perations or-capacity to provide financing to support orders at the businesses,

Pre

}fbormwings & liquidity — We may face risks related to our debt levels, particularly in severely adverse market conditions, and

ﬁuture credit downgrades could adversely affect our liquidity, funding costs and related margins. We have significantly reduced
our debt levels over the past several years through liability management actions, and we infend to maintain a sustainable investment-
grade long-term credit rating. Existing debt may adversely impact our ability to obtain new debt financing on favorable terms in the
future, particularly if coupled with downgrades of our credit ratings or a deterioration of capital markets conditions more generally. There
can be no assurance that we will not face future credit rating downgrades-as ‘a result of factors such as the performance of our
businesses, reduced diversification of GE's businesses following the planned separation into three independent companias or changes
in rating application or methodology, and future downgrades could adversely affect our cost of funds, liquidity and competitive position.
Eurther; our swap, forward and option contracts are executed under standard master agreements that typically contain mutual
downgrade provisions that provide the ability of the counterparty to require termination if the credit ratings of the applicable GE entity
were to fall below specified ratings levels. In addition, if we are unable to generate cash flows in accordance with our plans or face
unforeseen needs for capital, we may adopt changes te our capital allocation plans (such as plans related to the timing or amounts of
investments or capital expenditures, share repurchases or dividends) or take other actions. For additional discussion about our ¢redit
ratings and related considerations, refer to the Capital Resources and Liquidity section within MD&A.

Postretirement benefit plans - Increases in pension, healthcare and life insurance benefits obligations and costs can
adversely affect our earnings, cash flows and further progress toward our leverage goals. Our results of operations, cash flow
and financial condition may be positively or negatively affected by the amount of income or expense we record for our defined benefit
pension plans, GAAP requires that we calculate incomé or expense for the plans using actuarial valuations, which reflect assumptions
about financial markets, interest rates and other economic conditions such as the discount rate and the expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets, We are alsc required fo make an annual measurement of plan assets and liabilities, which may result in a
significant reduction or increase to equity. The factors that impact our pension calculations are subject to changes in key economic
indicators, and future decreases in the discount rate or low returns on plan assets ¢can increase our funding obligations and adversely
impact our financial resulis. In addition, although GAAP expense and pension funding contributions are not directly related, key
economic factors that affect GAAP expense, such as sustained market volatility, would also likely affect the amount of cash we would
be required to contribute to pension plans under ERISA, Such factors could also result in a failure to achieve expected returns on plan
assets. In addition, there may be upward pressure on the cost of providing healthcare benefits to current and future retirees. There can
bé no assurance that the measures we have taken to control'increases in these costs, or that the assighment of assels and liabilities
with respect to certain U,8. and non-U:S. benefit plans in connection with GE's separation into three independent companies, will
succeed in limiting cost increases, and continued upward pressure could reduce our profitability. For a discussion regarding how our
financial statements have been and can be affected by our pension and healthcare benefit obligations, ses Note 13,

LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE RISKS, Legal and compliance risk relatesto risks-arising from the government and regulatory
snvironment, legal proceedings and compliance with integrity policies and procedures, including matters relating o financial reporting
and the environment, health and safety. Government and regulatory risk includes the risk that the government or regulatory actions will
impose additional cost on us or require us to make adverse changes to our business models or practices.

Regulatory - We are subject to a wide variety of laws, regulations and government policies that require ongoing compliance
efforts and may change in significant ways. Our businesses are subject 1o regulation under a wide variety of U.S. federal-and state
and non-U.S. laws, regulations and policies that require ongoing compliance efforts. There canbe no assurance that laws, regulations
and policies-will not be changed or interpreted or enforced in ways that will require us to modify our business models and objectives or
affect our retumns on investments by restricting existing activities and products, subjecting them to escalating costs or prohibiting them
outright. In particular, recent trends globally toward increased protectionism, import and export controls, required licenses or
authorizations to engage in business dealings with certain countries or entities, the use of tariffs, restrictions on outbound investment
and other {rade barriers can result in actions by governments arotind the world that have been and may continue to be disruptive and
costly to our businesses, and can interfere with-our global aperating model and weaken our competitive position. In addition, changes in
environmental and climate change laws, regulations or policies (including carbon pricing, emission standards or sustainable finance,
among others) affecting the power-or aviation sectors-could lead to additional costs or compliance requirements, a need for additional
investment in product designs, require carbon offset investments.or otherwise negatively impact our businesses or comnpetitive position.
Other legislative and regulatory areas of significance for our businesses that U.S. and non-U.8. governments have focused and
continue to focus on include cybersecurity, data privacy and sovereignty, arlificial intelligence, anfi-corruption, competition law, public
procurement law, compliance with complex trade controls and economic-sanctions laws, technical regulations or loeal content
requirements that could resultin market-access criteria that our products eannot or do.not meet; foreign exchange intervention in
response to currency volatility and currency controls that could restrict the movement of liquidity from parficular jurisdictions. Potential
changes to tax laws, including changes to taxation of global income, may have an effect'on our subsidiaries’ structure, operations,
sales, liquidity, cash flows, capital requirements, effective tax rate and performance. For example, legislative or regulatory measures by
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LS. federal, states of non-U.8..governments, or rules, interpretations or audits under new-or existing tax laws such as global minimum
taxes or other changes to the treatiment of global income could increase our cash tax costs and effective tax rate, Regulation or
government scrutiny may impact the requirements for marketing our products and slow our ability to introduce new products, resulting in
an-adverse impact onour business. Furthermore, we make sales to U3, and non-1.5. governments and other public sector customers,
and we participate in various governmental financing programs, that require us to comply with strict governmental regulations. As a U.S.
government contractor, we are also subject to risks relating to U.S. government audits and investigations that in the past have led, and
in the future may lead fo, fines, damages or other penalties. Inabllity to comply with applicable regulations could adversely affect our
status with government customers or our ability to patrticipate in projects, and could have collateral consequences such as suspension
or debarment. Suspension or debarment, depending on the entity involved and length of time, can fimit our ability to bid for new U.S,
government contracts or business with other government-related customers, ar to participate in projects involving multilateral
development banks, and this could adversely affect our resulls of operations, financial position-and cash flows.

Legal proceedings - We are subject to a variety of legal proceedings, disputes, investigations and legal compliance risks;
including contingent liabilities from businesses that we have exited or are inactive. We are'subject to a variety of legal
proceedings, commercial disputes, legal compliance risks and environmental, health and safety compliance risks in virtually every part
of the world. We, ourrepresentatives and the industries in which we operate are subject 1o continuing scrutiny by regulators, other
governmental authorities and private sector entities or individuals in the U.S., the European Union, China and other jurisdictions, which
have led or may, in certain circumstances, lead:to enforcement actions, adverse changes-o our business practices, fines and penalties,
required remedial actions such as contaminatad site clean-up or other environmental claims, or the assertion of private litigation claims
and damages that could be material. For example, since our acquisition of Alstom's Thermal, Renewables and. Grid businesses in 2015,
we are subject fo legacy legal proceedings and legal compliance risks that relate to-claimed anti-competitive conduct or corruption by
Alstom in the pre-acquisition period, and payments for settlements, judgments, penalties or other liabilities in connection with those
matters have resulted and will in the future result in cash outflows. In addition, while in December 2020 we entered into a seftlementto
conclude a previously disclosed SEC investigation of GE, we remain subject to shareholder lawsuits related to the Company's financial
performance; accounting and disclosure practices and related legacy matters. We have observed that these proceedings related to
claims about past financial performance and reporting pose particular reputational risks for the Company that can cause new
allegations about past or current misconduct, even if unfounded, fo have a more significant impact on our reputation and how we are
viewed by investors, customers and others than they otherwise would. The estimation of legal reserves or possible losses involves
significant judgment and may not reflect the full range of unceriainties and unpredictable outcomes inherent in litigation and
investigations, and the actual losses arising from particular matters may exceed our current estimates and adversely affect our resulis
of operations. The risk-management and compliance programs we have adopted and related actions that we take may not fully mitigate
legal and compliance risks that we face, particularly-in fight of the global and diverse nature of our operations and the current
enforcement environments in many jurisdictions. For example, when we investigate potential noncompliance under U.S. and non-U.S.
law involving GE employees or third parties we work with, in some circumstances we make self-disclosures about our findings to the
relevant authorities who may pursue or decline 1o pursue enforcement proceedings against us in connéction with those matters. We are
also subject {o materlal trailing legal llabifities from businesses that we have exited or are inactive. We also expect that additional legal
proceedings and other contingencies will arise from time to time. Moreover, we sell products and services in growth markets where
claims arising from alleged violations of law, product fallures or other incidents involving -our products and services are adjudicated
within legal systems that are less developed and less reliable than those of the U.S. or other more developed markets; and this can
create additional uncertainty about the outcome of proceedings before courts or other governmental bodies in those markelts. See Note
24 for further information about legal proceedings and other loss contingencles.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS. Refer to Legal Matters and Environmental, Health and Safety Matters in Note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements for information relating to legal proceedings.
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MANAGEMENT AND AUDITOR’S REPORTS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION OF FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY. Managementis responsible forthe preparation of the
consolidated financial statements and related information that are presented in this report. The consolidated financial statements, which
include amounts based on management's estimates and judgments, have been prepared in conformity with U.S generally accepted
accounting principles.

Zhe Company designs and maintains accounting and intemnal control systems to provide reasonable assurance that assets are
#8afeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that the financial records are reliable for preparing consolidated
Hinancial statements and maintaining accountability for assets, These systems are enhanced by policies and procedures, an
Grganizational structure providing division of responsibilities, careful selection and training of qualified personnel, and a program of
:g?tamal audits.

o=

“The Company engaged Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, to-audit and render an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements and internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB).

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee, which consists enfirely of independent directors, meets periodically with
management, internal auditors, and our Independent registered public accounting firm to ensure that each'is meeting its responsibilities
and fo discuss matters concerning internal controls and financial reporting, Deloitte & Touche LLP and the internal auditors each have
full and free access to the Audit Commitiee.

MANAGEMENT'S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING. Management is responsible for
astablishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Company. With our participation; an evaluation of
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting was conducted as of December 31; 2023, based on the framework and
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework {2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission,

Based on this evaluation, our management has concluded that our internal.control over finangcial reporting was effective as of December
31, 2023,

Our independent registered public accounting firm has issued an audit report on our-internal control over financial reporting. Their report
follows,

Ist H. Lawrence Culp, Jr. fsl'Rahul Ghai
H. Lawrence Culp, Jr. Rahul Ghal
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Chief Finaricial Officer

February 2, 2024

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS. Under the direction of our Chief Exgcutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated our disclosure
controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting and concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective as of December 31, 2023, There have been no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting during the
quarter ended December 31, 2023, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, its internal conirol over
financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of General Electric Company

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of General Electric Company and subsidiaries (the
"Company") as of December 31, 2023, and 2022, the related consolidated statements of eamnings (loss), comprehensive income {loss),
changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three vears in the period ended December 31, 2023, and the related
notes (collectively referred to as the "financial statements”). In our-opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023, and 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America,

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB),
the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023, based on criteria established in internal Control —
Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
February 2, 2024, expressed an unqualified opinion-or the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's financial statements based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required fo be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S; federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations
of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about'whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.
Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error
or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a fest basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, ‘as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that our gudit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The eritical audit maiters communicated below are matters arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that were
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that {1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to
the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical
audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the
critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they
relate,

Sales of services ~ Revenue recognition on certain Power long-term service agreements - Refer fo Notes 1 and 8 to the
financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company enters into lonig-term service agreements with customers within its Power segment, These agreements require the
Company to provide preventative and routine maintenance services, outage services, and stand-by *warranty-type” services, which
generally range from 5 to 25 years. Revenue for these agreements is recognized using the percentage of conipletion method, based on
costs incurred relative to total estimated costs over the contract term. As part of the revenue recognition process, the Company
estimates both custonier paymenits that are expected o be received and costs to perform maintenance services over the contract terim.
Key assumptions withirr those estimates that require significant judgment from management include: {ay how the customer will utilize
the assets covered over the contract-term, (b) the expected timing-and extent-of future maintenance and outage services, {c) the future
cost of materials, labor, and other resources, and (d) forward looking information concerning market conditions.

Given the comiplexity involved with evaluating the key estimates; which includeés significant judgment riecessary to estimate future
costs, auditing management’s assumptions within the key estimates required-a high degree of auditor judgment-and extensive audit
effort, including the involvement of professionals with specialized skills and industry knowledge.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Cur audiling procedures. over the key estimates and assumptions described above related to the amount and timing of revenue
recoghnition of the long-term service agreements, within the Power segment, included the following, among others:

+  ‘We tested the effectiveness of controls over the revenue recognition process for the long-term service agreements, including
controls over management’s key estimates.

«  We evaluated management’s risk assessment process through observation of key meetings and processas, including
inspection of docurnentation, addressing contract status and current market conditions,

+  We svalualed the appropriateness and consistency of management’s methods-and key assumptions to devslop cost
gstimates, including expected timing and extent of future maintenance and outage services as well as the future cost of
materials, labor-and other resources; all-of which impact contract margin.
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« We tested management's ufilization assumptions for timing and extent of future maintenance and overhaul services projected
for the contract term by comparing current estimates to histarical information and forward-looking market conditions.

+  We tested management's process for estimating the timing and amount of costs associated with maintenance, outage, and
other major events throughout the contract term, including comparing estimates to historical cost experience, performing a
retrospective review, performing analytical procedures, and utilizing specialists to evaluate enginéering studies used by the
Company to estimate the useful life of capital parts of certain installed equipment,

o
$Sales of services - Reventue recognition on certain Aerospace long-term service agreements - Refer to Notes 1 and 8 to the
E?inancial statements

o
Sritical Audit Matter Description

e ; ; ; . ;

«~The Company enters into long-term service agreements with certain customers. These agreements require the Company to provide

Smaintenance services for customer assets over the contract term, which generally range from 10 to 25 years, Revenue for these
agreements is recognized using the percentage of completion method, based on costs incurred relative to total estimated costs over the
contract term. As part of the revenue recognition process, the Company estimates both customer payments that are expected to be
received and costs to perform maintenance services over the contract term. Key assumptions within those estimates that require
significant judgment from management include: (a) how the customer will utilize the assets covered over the contract term; (b) the
expected timing and extent of future overhaul services; (c) the future cost of materials, labor, and other resources; and (d) forward
looking information conceming market conditions.

Given the complexity involved with evaluating the key estimiates, which includes significant judgment necessary to estimate future
costs, auditing these assumptions required a high degree of auditor judgment and extensive audit effort, including the involvement of
professionals with specialized skills and industry knowledge.

How the Crifical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

QOur auditing procedures over the key estimates described above related to the amount and timing of revenue recognition of the long-
term service agreements included the following, among others:

«  We tested the effectiveness of controls over the revenue recognition process for the long-term service agreements, including
controls over management's key estimates.

+  We evaluated management’s risk assessment process through observation of key meetings and processes, including
inspection of documentation, addressing contract status and current market conditions including the timely incorporation of
changes that affect total estimated costs fo.complete the contract.

»  We evaluated the appropriateness and consistency of management's methods and key assumptions applied in recognizing
revenue and developing cost estimates.

«  We tested management’s utilization assumptions for the assets covered over the contract term, which impact the estimated
timing and extent of future maintenance and overhaul services by comparing current estimatss to historical information and
forward-looking market conditions, _

+  We tested management's process for estimating the timing and amount of costs associated with overhaul and other
maintenance events throughout the contract term, including comparing estimates fo historical cost experience, performing a
retrospective review, performing analytical procedures, and ulilizing specialists to evaluate statistical models used by the
Company to estimate the useful life of certain components of the installed engines.

Future Policy Benefils - refer to Note 12 to the financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The liability for future policy benefits as of December 31, 2023 is measured under ASU 2018-12 “Targeted improvements to the
Accounting for Long Duration Contracts” (LDTI) based on current assumptions:applied to the underlying policy cash flows. The liability
for future policy benefits includes $26,832 million for long term care policies.

Significant uncertainties exist in evaluating future cash flow projections, including consideration of a wide range of possible outcomes of
future events over the life of the insurance contracts that can extend for long periods of time.

Key assumptions impacting the cash flow projections used in the measurement of such liabilities that are sensitive. and are more '
subjective reqliring significant judgment by management are rate of changes in morbidity and future long-term care premium rate
increases,

Given the significant judgments required by management, auditing the liability for future policy benefits required a high degree of auditor
judgment and an increased extent of effort, including the involvement of actuarial specialists.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit
Our audit procedures, including those performed by our actuarial specialists, included the following,.among others:

We tested the effectiveness of controls related to the determination of the liability for future policy benefits.
«  We evaluated judgments applied by management in setling key assumptions by considering actual experience, sensitivity
analysis-and relevant industry data, when available: We performed retrospective reviews of future.long-term:-care premium rate
increases to evaluate for management bias,
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+  We tested the underlying data for completeness and-accuracy, including historical cash flows that served as-a basis for the
actuarial estimates.

+  We performed policy level testing to assess that management's intended assumptions were used and the model acourately
calculated fhe cash flow projections,

s We validated the levels of aggregation of the liability calculations determined by the Company were in accordance with their
policy and performed recalculations on a sample basis to validate the appropriateness of the discount rate assumptions used
and tested the application of the net premium ratio used to measure the liability for future policy benefits,

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boston, Massachuselts
February 2, 2024
We have served as the Company's auditor since 2020.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of General Electric Comipany

Opinion on Internal Confrof over Financial Reporting

We have audited the:internal.control over financial reporting of General Electric Company and subsidiaries (the "Company”) as of
December 31, 2023, based on criteria established in internal Control < integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Spansoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).-In.our opinion,.the Company maintained, in-all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal Conirol — Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by COS0.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States) (PCAOB),
the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, of the Company and our report dated February
2, 2024, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, Included in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on Intermal
Control over Financial Reporting. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the
Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal-control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.
Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the rigk that a material weakness
exists; testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal conirol based on the assessed risk; and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances: We believe that our-audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policles and pracedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the fransactions and dispositions of the assels of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation-of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted-accounting. principles; and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made onlyin
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or imely detection of Unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the conipany’s asssts that couid have a material effect
on the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstaterments. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degres of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boston, Massachusetls
February 2, 2024
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STATEMENT OF EARNINGS (LOSS)

For the years ended December 31 (In millions; per-share amounts in dollars) 2023 2022 2021
Sales of equipment 3 26,793 § 22334 § 25,096
Sales of services 37,772 32,808 28,272
Insurance revenues (Note 12) 3,389 2,957 3,101
{ITotal revenues 67,954 58,100 56,469
%Cc:st of equipment sold 27,683 23,743 25,161
= Cost of services sold 22,709 20,529 18,217
ESel!ing, gerneral and administrative expéenses 9,195 9,173 8177
& Separation costs (Note 20) 978 715 —
Research and development 1,807 1,786 1,682
Interest and other financlal charges 1,118 1477 1,790
Debt extinguishment costs e 465 6,524
Insurance losses, annuity benefits and other costs (Note 12) 2,886 2,682 2174
Nan-operating benefit cost (income) (1,585} (409} 1,136
Total costs and expenses 64,891 60,071 64,861
Other income (loss) (Note 19) 7.129 1,172 2,696
~Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes 10,191 {799) (5,695)
Benefit {provision) for income taxes (Note 15) {1,162) 3 757
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 9,029 {795) (4,939)
Earnings {loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes (Note 2) 414 1,202 {1,469)
Net earnings (loss) 9,443 407 (6,408)
Less net earnings (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests (37) 87 {71}
Net earnings {loss) attributable to the Company 9,481 339 (6,337)
Preferred stock dividends and other {295) {289) (237
Net earnings (loss) attributable to GE common shareholders 3 9,186 § 51 % (6,573)
Amounts attributable to GE common shareholders
Earninigs {loss) from continuing operations $ 9,029 % (795) & (4,939)
Less net earnings (loss} attributable {o noncontrolling interests,
continuing operations (38) 16 {(117)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations attributable to the Company 9,067 (811) {4,821)
Preferred stock dividends and other {295) {289) (237}
Earnings (loss) from contining operations attributable
to GE common shareholders 8,772 {1,100} {5,058)
Earnings {loss) from discontinued operations attributable
to GE common sharsholders 414 1,151 {1,515}
Net earnings {loss) attributable to GE common sharehoiders $ 9,186 § 51 § {6,573)
Earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations {Note 18)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 7.98 § {1.005% (4.62)
Basic earnings (loss) per share 3 806 & {1.00)% (4.62)
Net earnings {loss) per share (Note 18)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 838 § 005 & {(6.00)
Basic samings {loss) pershare $ 844 $ 0.05 & (6.00)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31 (in millions) 2023 2022
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash % 16,967 3% 15,810
Investment securities (Note 3) 6,706 7,609
Current receivables (Note 4) 15,466 14,831
Inventories, including deferred Inventory costs (Note 5) 16,528 14,891
Current contract assets (Note B) 1,500 2,467
All other current assets (Note 9) 1,847 1,400
Assets of businesses held for sale (Note 2) 1,985 1,374
Current assefs 59,799 58,384
Investment securities (Note 3) 38,000 36,027
Property, plant and-equipment — net {Note 6) 12,494 12,192
Gooduwill (Note 7) 13,385 12,999
Other intangible assets — net (Note 7) 5,695 8,105
Contract and other deferred assets (Note B} 5,406 5776
All other assets (Note 9) 15,997 18477
Deferred income taxes {Notfe 15) 10,575 10,001
Assets of discontinued operations (Note 2) 1,695 31,8490
Total assets $ 163,045 '$ 188,851
Short-term borrowings {(Note 10) % 1,253 § 3,738
Accounts payable and equipment project payables (Note 11) 15,408 15,399
Progress collections and deferred income (Mote 8) 19,677 16,216
All other current fiabilities (Note 14) 12,712 12,130
Liabilities of businesses hald for sale (Note 2} 1,826 1,944
Current liabilities 50,876 48,428
Deferred income (Note 8) 1,339 1,409
Long-term borrowings {Note 10} 19,711 20,320
Insurance liabilitles and annuity benefits (Note 12) 39,624 36,845
Non-current compensation-and benefits (Note 13) 11,214 10,400
All other liabilities (Note 14) 10,508 11,063
Liabilities of discontinued operations (Note 2) 1,193 24,474
Total liabilities 134,466 153,938
Preferred stock (Note 16) . 5
Common stock (Note 16) 15 15
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) - net altributable to GE (Note 16} {6,150) (2,272}
Other capital 26,962 34173
Retained earnings 86,627 82,983
Less common stock held in treasury (79,976) {81,209}
Total GE shareholders’ equity 27,378 33,6986
Noncontrolling interests 1,202 1,216
Total equity 28,579 34,912
Total liabilities and equity $ 163,045 § 188,851
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2024101107832

For the years ended December 31 (In millions) 2023 2022 2021
Met eamnings (loss) . 3 9,443 % 407§ (6,408)
(Earnings) loss from discontinued operations activities {414) {1,202) 1,469
Adjustments to reconclie net eamings (loss) to cash from (Uised for) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment 1,473 1,564 1,622
Amoartization of intangible assets (Note 7) 606 1,338 738
{Gains) Josses on purchases and sales of business interests (Note 19) (104) {60) 52
{Gains) losses on retained and sold ownership interests and other equity securities (5.842) 113 (1,632)
Debt extinguishment costs e 465 6,524
Principal pension plans cost (Note 13) (1,108) 378 1,766
Principal pension plans empioyer contributions (212) (204) {205)
Other postretirement benefit plans (net) (644) {755) {900)
Provision:{benefit) for income taxes 1,162 (3) {7573
Cash recovered (paid) during the year for Income faxes {1,148) {430) {373)
Changes in operating working capital:
Decrease (increase) in current receivables {833) (2,719) 524
Decrease {increase) in inventories, including deferred inventory costs {1,524) (1,925) (308)
Decrease (increase) in current contract assets 1,283 1,652 1,007
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable and equipment project pavables (221) 2,238 (380)
Increase {decrease) in progress collections and current deferred income 2,933 2,348 {1,113)
Financial services derivatives net collateral/settlernent 3 {154) (1,143)
All other operating activities 717 998 {1,326)
Cash from (used for} operating activities — continuing operations 5570 4,043 {850}
Cash from (used for) operating activities - discontinued operations {391} 1,873 4,332
Cash from (used for) operating activities 5,179 5,916 3,481
Additions to property, plantand eguipment:and internal-use software (1,595) {1,174) (1,113)
Dispositions of property, plant and equipment 89 208 151
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations Sk e 22,356
Proceeds from principal business dispositions e 15 —
Net cash from {payments for) principal businesses purchased (365) {30) {69}
Dispaositions of retained ownership interests 9,004 4,717 4,145
Net {purchases) dispositions of insurance investment securities {986) {8786) (1,290}
All other investing activities 791 8.033 1,641
Cash from (used for) investing activities - continuing operations 6,938 10,891 25,822
Cash from (used for) investing activities — discontinued operations {2,960) {8,621} {(4,443)
Cash from (used for) investing activities 3,977 2,270 21,379
Net increase {decrease) In borrowlinigs {maturities of 90 days or less) (55) 56 {704)
Newly issued debt (maturities longer than 90:days) 11 16 359
Repayments and other debt reductions {maturities longer than 90 days) {3,360) {11,202} {36,510)
Dividends paid to shareholders {589) {639) {575)
Cash received (paid) for debt extinguishment:costs — 338 {7,196)
Redemption of GE preferred stock {5,795) (144) —_—
Purchases of GE common stock for freasury {1,233) (1,048) {107)
All other financing activities 410 (1,065) {523)
Cash from {used for) financing activities — continuing operations (10,612) (13,688) (45,256)
Cash from (used for) financing activities - discontinued operations 2,000 8,102 (140)
Cash from {used for) financing activities (B,613) {5,585) (45,397_)
Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash; cash eguivalents and restricted cash 120 (369) {213)
Increase {decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 664 § 2,232 § (20,750)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of year $ 19092 $§ 16858 § 37,608
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at December 31 19,758 19,002 16,859
Less cash; cash equivalents and restricted cash of discontinued operations at December 31 1,396 2,627 1,332
Cash; cash equivalents and restricted cash of continuing operations at December 31 $ 18380 % 16464 § 15527
Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information
Cash paid during the year for interest 5 (1,067)% (1,561} % (2,536)
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

For the years ended Decomber 31 {In millions) 2023 2022 2021
Net earnings (loss) $ 9,443 & 407 & {6,408)
Less: net earnings (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests {37) 67 {7
Net earnings (loss) attributable to the Company $ 9481 % 339 § {6,337)
Currency translation adjustments 2,274 {1,3286) {172)
Benefit plans (4.747) 2,889 9,044
Investment securities and cash flow hedges 968 {7,099) (1,299)
Long-duration insurance contracts{a) (2.371) 8,126 2,599
Less: other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests 2 1 5
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to the Company $ {3,878) 2,589 § 10,166
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 5567 $ 2,096 § 3,764
Less: comprehensive income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests (35) 68 (66)
Comprehensive income {loss}) attributable o the Company 3 5,602 $ 2,928 § 3,830
{a) Represents the nat after-tax change in future policy benefit reserves and related reinsurance recoverables from updating the
discount rate. See Note 12 for further information,
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the years ended December 31 {In millions) 2023 2022 202
Preferred stock issued{a) $ — 6 3 B
Common stock issued 3 15 $ 15 % 15
Beginning balance (2,272) (4,860 {9,749)
Currency translation adjustments 2270 {1,324) {174)
Benefit plans {4,745} 2,886 9,041
Investment securities and cash flow hedges 968 {7,099) {1,299)
Long-duration insurance contracts {2,371) 8,126 2,509
Adoption of new accounting standards s —_ (8,278)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) $ (6,150) § (2.272) % (4,860)
Beginning balance 34173 34,691 34,307
Gains (losses) on treasury stock dispositions {1,845) (741) (740)
Stock-based compensation 355 362 429
Other changes(a) {5,721) {139) 696
Dther capital $ 26,062 § 34,173 § 34,691
Beginning balance 82,983 83,286 92,247
Net earnings (loss) attributable to the Company 9,481 339 (6,337)
Dividends and other transactions with shareholders(h) (5,937) {642) {617)
Adoption of new accounting standards S e (2,007}
Retained earnings B % 86,527 % 82,983 $ 83,286
Beginning balance (81,209) (81,093) {81,961)
Purchases {1,244) {1,048) (107
Dispositions 2,477 931 g74
Common stock held in treasury 5 {79,978) § {81,209) & (81,093)
GE sharehoiders' equity balance 27,378 33,696 32,044
Nongoniralling interests balance 1,202 1,216 1,302
Total equity balance at December 31 $ 28579 % 34912 $ 33,346

{a} Included decreases of $5,795 million and $144 million, substantially all in Other capital related to our redemption of GE preferred
stock in the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Included a $687 million increase in all Other capital related to
the change in par value of issued common stock from $0.06 to $0.01 in the year ended Decamber 31, 2021.

(b} Included-a $5,300 million decrease in-Retained earnings reflecting a pro-rata distribution of approximately 80.1% of the shares of

GE HealthCare on January 3,.2023.
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NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION. Our financial statements are prepared in conformity with LS. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP), which requires us to make estimates based on assumptions about current, and for some estimates,
future, economic and market conditions which affect reported amounts and related disclosures in our financial statements. Although our
current estimates contemplate current and expected future conditions, as applicable, it is reasonably possible that actual conditions
. gauid differ from our expectations, which could materially affect our results of operations, financial position and cash flows. Such
echanges could result in future impairments of goodwill, intangibles; long-lived assets and investment securities, revisions to estimated
cprofitability on lang-term product service agreements, incremental credit losses on receivables and debt securities, a change in the
ﬁarrying amount of our tax assets and liabilities, or a change in our insurance liabilities and pension obligations as of the time of a
gelavant measurement event.

=
h preparing our Statement of Cash Flows, we make certain adjustments {o reflect cash flows that cannot otherwise be calculated by
hanges in our Statement of Financial Position. These adjustments may include, but are not limited to, the effects of currency
exchange, acquisitions and dispositions of businesses, businesses classified as held for sale, the fiming of setflements to suppliers for
property, plant and equipmeant, hon-cash gains/losses and other balance sheet reclassifications,

We have reclassified certain prior-year amounts to conform to the current-year's presentation. Unless otherwise noted, tables are
presented in U.S, dollars in miillions. Certain columns and rows may not add due to the use of rounded numbers. Percentages
presented are calculated from the underlying numbers in millions, Earnings per share amounts are computed independently for
earnings from continuing operations, earings from discontinued operations and net earnings. As a result, the sum of per-share
amounts may not equal the total, Unless otherwise indicated, information in these notes to consolidated financial statements relates to
continuing operations. Certain of our operations have been presented as discontinued. We present businesses whose disposal
represents a sfrategic shift that has, or will have, a major effect on our operations and financial resuits as discontinued operations when
the components meet the criteria for held for sale, are sold, or spun-off. See Note 2 for further information.

On-January 3, 2023, General Electric Company (the Company or GE) completed the previously announced separation (the Separation)
of its HealthCare business, into a separate; Independent publicly traded company. The historical results of GE-HealthCare and certain
assets and liabilities included in the spin-off are now reported in GE's consolidated financial statements as discontinued operations. See
Note 2 for further information.

. CONSOLIDATION. Qur financial statements consclidate all of our affiliates, entities where we have a controlling financial interest, most
often because we hold a majority voting interest, or where we are required to apply the variabie interest entity (VIE) model because we
have a variable interest in an entity and are the primary beneficiary of the entity. We reevaltate whether we have a controlling financial
interest in all entities when our rights and interests change.

REVENUES FROM THE SALE OF EQUIPMENT. Performance Obligations Satisfied Over Time. We recognize revenue on
agreements for the sale of customized goods including power generation and aerospace equipment and long-term construction projects
ofan over-time basis as we customize the customer's equipment during the manufacturing or integratior process and obtain right to
payment for work performed,

We recogriize revenue as we perform under the arrangements using the percentage of completion method, which is based on our costs
incurred to date relative o our estimate of total expected costs, Ourestimate of costs fo be incurred to fulfill our promise to-a customer
is based on our history of manufacturing or constructing similar assets for customers and is updated routinely to reflect changes in
guantity or pricing of the inputs. We provide for potential losses on these agreements when it is probable that we will incur the loss.

Some of our contracts require us to make payments to customers related to failure to deliver our equipment on-time or meeting certain
performance specifications, which s factored into our estimate of variable consideration using the expected value method and taking
into consideration performance relative to our contractual obligations, specified liquidated damages rates, if applicable, and history of
paying liquidated damages to the customer or similar customers.

During 2023, primarily as a result of changes in product and project cost estimates, we recorded additional project losses for certain
Haliade-X contracts of $379 miillion. Further changes in our execution timelines or other adverse developments could resultin further
losses beyond the amounts that we currently estimate.

Gur billing terms for these over-time contracts:are generally based on achieving specified milestones. The differences between the
timing of our revenue recognized (based on costs incurred) and customer billings (based on contractual terms) resulis in.changes to our
contract asset or contract liability positions. See Note 8 for further information.

Performance Obligations Satisfied at a Point in Time. We recognize revenue on agreements for non-customized equipment
including commercial aitcraft engines and other goods we manufacture on a standardized basis for sale to the market at the pointin
time-that the customer obtains control of the product, which is generally no earlier than when the customer has. physical possession. We
use proof of delivery for certain large equipment with more complex logistics, whereas the delivery of other equipment is estimated
based on historical averages of in-transit periods (i.e., time between shipment and delivery).
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Where arrangements include customer acceptance provisions based on seller or customer-specified objective criteria, we recognize
revenue when we have concluded that the customer has control of the equipment and that acceptance Is likely to occur. We do not
provide for anticipated losses on point-in-time transactions prior to transferring controi of the equipment to the customer,

Qur billing terms for these poinf-in-time equipment contracts generally coincide with delivery to the customer; however, within certain
businesses, we receive progress collections from customers for large equipment purchases, to generally reserve production slots,
Progress collections are not considered a significant financing component as they are intended to protect from the other party failing to
adequately complete some or ail of its obligations under the contract.

For certain commercial engine programs; we make payments to airlines related to future-aircraft deliveries by airframers ("aircraft
allowances”), We record aircrafi allowances as a reduction in revenue when control of the engine is transferred to-our airframer
customer.

Some of our contracts require us to make payments to customers related to failure to deliver ocur equipment on-time or meeting certain
performance specifications, which is factored into our estimate of variable consideration using the expected value method and taking
into consideration performance relative to our contractual obligations, specified liquidated damages rates, if applicable, and history of
paying liquidated damages to the customer or similar customers,

REVENUES FROM THE SALE OF SERVICES. Consistent with our Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations (MD&A) discussion and the way we manage our businesses, we refer to sales under service agreements, which
includes both goods (such as:spare parts and equipment upgrades)-and related services (slich as monitoring, maintenance and repairs)
as sales of “services,” which is an important part of our operations. We sometimes offer our customers financing discounts for the
purchase of certain equipment when sold in contemplation of long-term service agreements. These sales are accounted for as financing
arrangements when payments for the equipment are collected through higher usage-based fees from servicing the equipment..See
MNote 8 for further information.

Performance Obligations Satisfied Over Time. We enter into long-term service agreéements with our customers prisnarily within our
Aerospace and Power segments. These agreements require us to provide preventative maintenance, overhauls, and standby
"warranty-type” services that include certain levels of assurance regarding asset performance and uptime throughout the contract
periods, which generally range from 5 to. 25 vears. We account for tems that-are integral to the maintenance of the equipment as part of
our performance obligation, unless the customer has g substantive right to make a separate purchasing decision (e g., equipment
upgrade),

We recognize revenue as we perform under the arrangements using the percentage of completion method which is based on our costs
incurred to date relative {o cur estimate of total expected costs, Throughout the life of a contract, this measure of progress caplures the
nature, iming and extent of our underlying performance activities as our stand-ready services offen fluctuate between routine
inspections and maintenance, unscheduled service events and major overhauls at predetermined usage intervals. We provide for
potential losses on these agreements when it Is probable that we will incur'the loss.

Cur billing terms for these arrangements are generally based on the utilization of the asset {e.g., per hour of usage) or upon the
oceurrence of a major maintenance event-within the contract, such as an overhaul. The differences between the timing of our revenue
recognized (based on costs incurred) and customer billings (based on contractual terms) results in changes to our contract asset or
contract liability positions. See Note 8 for further information,

We also enter into long-lerm services agreements in our Renewable Energy segment. Revenues are recognized for these
arrangements.on a straight-line basis consistent with the nature, timing and extent of our services, which primarily relate to routine
maintenance and as needed squipment repairs, We generally invoice periodically as services are provided.

Pearformance Obligations Satisfied at a Point in Time. We sell certain tangible products, largely spare parts, through our services
businesses. We recognize revenues and bill our customers at the point in time that-the customer obiains control of the good, which is
generally at the point in time we deliver the spare part to the customer.

COLLABORATIVE ARRANGEMENTS. Our Aerospace business enters into collaboralive arrangements and joint ventures with
manufacturers and suppliers of components used to build and maintain certain engines. Under these arrangements, GE and its
collaborative partners share in the risks and rewards of these programs through various revenus, cost and profit sharing payment
structures, GE recognizes revenue and costs for these arrangements based on'the scope of work GE is resporisible for transferring to
its customers, GE's payments to participants ‘are primarily recorded as either cost of services sold {$3,781 million, $2,890 million:and
$2.116 million for the years ended December-31, 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively) or as cost of equipment sold ($3663.million;

$658 million and $751 million for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively). Our most significant collaborative
arrangementis with. Safran Aircraft Engines, a subsidiary of Safran Group of France, which sells LEAP and CFM56 engines through
CFM International, a jointly owned non-consolidated company. GE makes substantial sales of parts and services to CFM International
based on arms-length terms.
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GOVERNMENT INCENTIVES. We receive grants, incentives and refundable tax credits from various federal, state; local, and foreign
governments in exchange for compliance with certain conditions relating to our activities in a specific jurisdiction which encourage
investment, job creation and retention, and environmental objectives including clean energy production and emissions reductions. We
recognize government incentives as a reduction to the related expense or asset when there is reasonable assurance that the Company
will comply with the conditions of the incentive, the incentive is received or is probable of receipt, and the amount is determinable.
Government grants resulted in reductions of $170 million and $158 million to research and development expense in 2023 and 2022,

espectively. As a result of the Advanced Manufacturing Credits provided by the Inflation Reduction Act which went into effect in 2023,
éur Renewable Energy businesses also recognized a $234 million reduction to cost of equipment sold in 2023,

%ASH. CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH. Debt securities and money market instruments with original maturities of
Shree months or less are included in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash unless classified as available-for-sale investment
Fsecurities. Restricted cash primarily comprised funds restricted in connection with certain ongoing litigation matters and amounted to
5447 million and $734 million at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES. We report investments in available-for-sale debt securities and certain equity securities at fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale debt securities are recorded to other comprehensive income, net of applicable taxes.
Unrealized gains and losses on equity securities with readily determinable fair values are recorded to earmings.

Although we generally do not have the intent to sell any specific debt securities in the ordinary course of managing our portfolio, we
may sell debt securities prior to their maturities for a variety of reasons; including diversification, credit quality, vield and liquidity
requirements and the funding of claims and obligations to policyholders,

We regularly review investment securities for impairment. For debt securities, if we do not intend to sell the security or it is not more
likely than not that we will be required to sell the security before recovery.of our amortized-cost, we evaluate qualitative criteria, such'as
the financial health of and specific prospects for the issuer, to determine whether we do not expect to recover the amortized cost basis
of the security. We also evaluate quantitative criteria including determining whether there has been an adverse change in expected
future cash flows, If we do not expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security, we consider the security to contain an
expected credit loss, and we record the difference between the security's amortized cost basis and its recoverable amount in earnings
as an allowance for-credit loss and the difference between the security’s recoverable amount and fair value in-other comprehensive
income. If we intend to sell the security or it is more likely than not we will be required to sell the security before recovery of its
amortized cost basis, the security is considered impaired, and we recognize the entire difference between the securily’s amortized cost
basis and its fair value in earnings. See Note 3 for further information.

CURRENT RECEIVABLES, Amounts due from customers arising from the sales of equipment and services are recorded at the
outstanding amount, less allowance for losses. We regularly monitor the recoverability of our receivables. See Note 4 for further
information.

ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES. When we record customer receivables, contract assets and financing receivables arising from
revenue transactions, as well as commercial mortgage loans and reinsurance recoverables in our run-off insurance operations, financial
guarantees and certain commitments, we record an allowance for credit losses for the current expected credit losses (CECL) inherent in
the asset over its-expected life. The allowance for credit losses is a valuation account deducted from the amortized cost basis of the
assets to present their net carrying value at the amount expected to be collected. Each period, the allowance for credit losses is
adjusted through earnings to reflect expected credit losses over the remaining lives of the assets. We evaluate debt securities with
unrealized losses to determine whether any of the losses arise from concemns about the issuer’s credit or the underlying collateral and
record-an-allowance for cradit losses, If required.

We estimate expected credit losses based on relevant information about past events, including historical experience, current conditions,
and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the collectability of the reported amount. When measuring expected credit losses,
we pool assets with similar colntry risk and credit risk characteristics. Changes in the relevant information may significantly affect the
estimates of expected creditlosses.

INVENTORIES, All inventories are stated at lower of cost or realizable values, Cost of inventories is primarily determined on a first-in,
first-out (FIFO) basis. See Note-5 for further information.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT. The cost of property, plant and equipment is generally depreciated on a straight-line basis
over its estimated economic life. See Note 6 for further information,

LEASE ACCOUNTING FOR LESSEE ARRANGEMENTS. At lease commencement, we record 4 lease liability and corresponding
right-of-use (ROU) asset. Options to extend the lease are included as part of the ROU lease asset and liability when it is reasonably
certain the Company will exercise the option. We have elected to include lease and non-lease components in determining our lease
liability for all leased assets except our vehicle leases. Non-lease components are generally services that the lessor performs for the
Company associated with the leased asset, The present value of our lease liability is determined using our incremental collateralized
borrowing rate at lease inception. For leases with an initial term-of 12 months or less, an ROU asset and lease liability is not recognized
and lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. We test ROU assets whenever events or changes in
circumstance indicats that the asset may be impaired.
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GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS. We test goodwill at least annually for impairment at the reporting unit level. We
recognize an impairment charge if the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, When a portion of a reporting unit is
disposed; goodwill is allocated to the gain or loss on disposition based on the relative fair values of the business or businesses
disposed and the portion of the reporting unit that will be retained.

Definite-lived intangible asset costs are generally amortized on a straight-line basis over the asset's estimated economic life; except for
individually significant customer-refated intangible assets that are amortized in relation to total related sales. Amortizable intangible
assels are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the related carrying amounis may not
be recoverable. In these circumstances, they are tested for impairment based on undiscounted cash flows and, if impaired, written
down to estimated fair value based on either discounted cash flows or appraised values. See Note 7 for further information.

DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING, We use derivatives to manage a variety of risks, including risks related to interest rates, foreign
exchange; cerlaincequity Investments-and commodity prices. Accounting for derivatives as hedges requites that, at inception-and over
the term of the arrangement, the hedged item and related derivative meet the requirements for hedge accounting. In evaluating whether
a pariicular relationship qualifies for hedge accounting, we test effectiveness at inception and each reporting period thereafter by
determining whether changes in the fair value of the derivative offset, within a specified range, changes in the fair value of the hedged
item. If fair value changes fail this test, we discontinue applying hedge accounting to that relationship prospectively. Fair values of both
the derivative instrument and the hedged item are calculated using internal valuation models incorporating market-based assumptions,
subject to third-party confirmation, as applicable. See Note 22 for further information.

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES, Deferred income tax balances reflect the effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities and their tax basis, as well as from net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards, and are stated at enacted tax
rates expected to be in effect when those taxés are pald or recovered. Deferred income tax assels represent amounts available to
reduce income taxes payable on taxable income in future years., We evaluate the recoverability of these future tax deductions and
cradits by assessing the adequacy of future expected taxable income from all sources, including reversal of taxable temporary
differences, forecasted operating earnings and available tax planning strategies. To the extent we consider it more likely than not that a
deferred tax asset will not be recovered, a valuation allowance is established. Deferred taxes, as needed, are provided for our
investment in affiliates and associated companies when we plan to remit those earnings. See Note 15 for-further information,

INSURANCE, Our run-off insurance operations include providing insurance and reinsurance for life and health risks and providing
certain annuity products, Primary product types include long-term care, structured settlernent annuities, life and disability insurance
contracts and investment contracts, Insurance contracts are contracts with significant mortality and/or morbidity risks, while investment
contracts are contracts without such risks. Insurance revenues are comprised primarily of premiums and investment income. For
traditional lonig-duration insurance contracts, we report premiums as revenue when due. Premiums received on non-traditional long-
duration insurance contracts and investment contracts, including annuities without significant mortality risk, are not reported as
revenues but rather as deposit liabilities. We recognize revenues for charges and assessments on-these contracts, mostly for mortality,
administration and surrender. Interest credited to policyholder accounts is charged to-expense.

Future policy benefit reserves represent the present valus of future benefits to be paid to or on behalf of policyholders and related
expenses less the present value of future net premiums. The liability is measured for each group of contracts {i.e., cohorts) using
current cash flow assumptions. As a run-off insurarice operation consisting substantially all of reinsurance, contracts are grouped into
cohorts by legal entity and product type, based on the date the reinsurance contract was consummated. Future policy benefit reserves
are adjusted each period as a result of updating lifetime net premium ratios for differences between actual and expected experience
with the retroactive effect of those variances recoghized in current period earmings. We review at least annually in the third quarter,
future policy benefit reserves cash flow assumptions; except related claim expenses which remain locked-in; and.if the. review
concludes that the assumptions need to be updated, future policy benefit reserves are adjusted retroactively based on the revised net
premium ratic using actual historical experience, updated cash flow assumptions, and the locked-in discount rate with the effect of
those changes recognized in current period earnings.

As our insurance operations are in run-off, the locked-in discount rate is used for the computation of interest accretion on future policy
benefit reserves recognized in earnings, However, cash flows used to estimate future policy benefit reserves are also discounted using
an-upper-medium grade (L.e., fow credit risk) fixed-income instriment vield reflecting the duration characteristics of the liabilities and is
updated each reporting period with- changes recarded in ACCI. As a result, changes in the current discount rate at each reporting period
are recognized as an adjustment to AQC! and not earnings each period, whereas changes relating to cash flow assumptions are
recognized in the Statemant of Earnings{Loss):

Liabilities for investment contracts equal the account value, that s, the amount that accrues to the bensfit of the contract or policyholder
including credited interest and assessments through thefinancial statement date: See Note 12 for further information.

POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS. We sponsor a number of pension and retiree health and life insurance benefit plans that we
present in three categories, principal pension plans, other pension plans and principal retiree benefit plans. We use a December 31
measurement date for these plans. On our Statement of Financial Position, we measure our plan assets at fair value and the obligations
at the present value of the estimated payments to plan participants, Participants earn benefits based on their service and pay. Those
estimated future payment amounts are determined based on assumptions, Differences between our actual results and what we
assumed are recorded in a separate component of equity 8ach period. These differences are amortized into earnings over the
remaining averags future service of active employees or the expected life of inactive participants, as applicable, who participate in the
plan, Ses Note 13 for further information.
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LOSS CONTINGENCIES. Loss contingencies are existing conditions, situations of circumstances involving uncertainty as o possible
loss that will ultimately be resolved when future events occur or fail to occur. Such contingencies include, but are not limited to
enviranmental obligations, litigation, regulatory investigations and proceedings, product quality and losses resulting from other events
and developments, When aloss is considered probable and reasonably estimable, we record a liability in-the amount of our best
estimate for the ultimate loss, When there appears to be a range of possible costs with equal likelihood, liabilities are based on the low-
end of such range. Disclosure is provided for material loss contingencies when a-loss is probable but a reasonable estimate cannot be
'nade, and when it is reasonably possible that a loss will be incurred or the amount of a loss will exceed the recorded provision. We
“regularly review contingencies to determine whether the likelihood of loss has changed and to assess whether a reasonable estimate of
cthe loss or range of loss can be made. See Note 24 for further information.
-

UPPLY CHAIN FINANCE PROGRAMS. We evaluate supply chain finance programs to ensure where we-use-a third-party
ntermediary to seitle our trade payables, their involvement does not change the nature, existence, amount, or timing of our trade
cpayables and does not provide the Company with any direct economic benefit. If any characteristics of the trade payables change or we
receive a direct economic benefit, we reclassify the trade payables as borrowings.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS. The following sections describe the valuation methodologies we use to measure financial and non-
financial instruments accounted for at fair value including ceriain assets within our pension plans and retiree benefit plans. Observable
inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect our market assumptions. These inputs
establish a fair value hierarchy: Level 1 — Quoted prices foridentical instruments in active markets; Level 2 — Quoted prices for similar
instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and model-derived
valuations whose inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are cbservable; and Level 3 — Significant inputs 1o the
valuation model are unobservable,

RECURRING FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS. For financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value ona recurring basis, primarily
investment securities and derivatives, fair value is the price we would receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer a liability in-an orderly
transaction with a market participant at the measurement date. Inthe absence of active markets for the identical assets or liabilities,
such measurements involve developing assumptions based on market observable data and, in the absence of such data, internal
information that is consistent with what market participants would use in a hypothetical transaction that occurs at the measurement
date: See Note 21 for further information.

Debt Securities. When available, we use guoted market prices o determine the fair value of debt securities which are included in Level
1. For our remaining debt securities, we obtain pricing information from an independent pricing vendor. The inputs and assumptions to
the pricing vendor's models are derived from market observable sources including benchmark yields, reported frades, broker/dealer
quotes, issuer spreads, benchmark securities, bids, offers and other market-related data. These investments are included in Level 2,
Our pricing vendors may also provide us with valuations that are based on significant unobservable inputs, and in those circumstances,
we classify the investment securities in Level 3.

Annually, we conduct reviews of our primary pricing vendor to validate that the inputs used in that vendor’s pricing process are deemed
to be market observable as defined in the standard. We believe that the prices received from our pricing vendor are representative of
prices that would be received to sell the assets at the measurement date (exit prices) and are classified appropriately in the hierarchy.
We usze non-binding broker quotes and other third-party pricing services as our primary basis for valuation when there is limited, or no,
relevant market activity for'a specific instrument or for other instruments that share similar characteristics, Debt securities priced in this
manner are included in Level 3.

Equity securities with readily determinable fair values. These publicly traded equity securities are valued using quoted prices and
are.included in Level 1.

Derivatives. The majority of our derivatives are valued using internal models. The models maximize the use of market observable
inputs including interest rate curves and both forward and spot prices for currencies and commodities. Derivative assels and liabilities
included in Level 2 primarily represent interest rate swaps, cross-currency swaps and foreign currency and commodity forward and
option contracts.

Investments in private equity, real estate and collective funds held within our pension plans. Most investments are generally
valued using the net asset value (NAV) per share as a practical expedient for fair value provided certain criteria are met. The NAVs are
determined based on the fair values of the underlying investments in the funids. Investments that are measured at falr value using the
NAV practical expedient are not required fo be classified in the fair value hierarchy. Investments classified - within Level 3 primarily relate
{o real estate and private equities which are valued using unobservable inputs, primarily by discounting expected future cash flows,
using comparative market multiples, third-parly pricing sources, or a combination of these approaches as appropriate. See Note 13 for
further information.

NONRECURRING FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS. Certain assets are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, These assels
may-include loans and long-lived assets reduced to fair value upon classification as held for sale, impaired loans based on the fair value
of the underlying collateral; impaired equity securities without readily determinable fair value, equity method investments and long-lived
assets, and remeasured retained investments in formerly consolidated subsidiaries upon a change in control that results in the
deconsolidation of that subsidiary and retention of a nonconirolling stake in the entity. Assets written down to fair value when impaired
and retained investments are not subsequently adjusted to fair value unless further impairment ccours.
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Equity investments without readily determinable fair vaiue and Associated companies. Equity investments without readily
determinable fair value and associated companies are valued using market observable data such as transaction prices when available.
When market observable data is unavailable, investments are valued using either a discounted cash flow model, comparative market
muttiples, third-party pricing sources or a combination of these approaches as appropriate. These investments are generally included in
Level 3.

Long-lived Assets. Fair values of long-lived assets are primarily derived internally and are based on observed sales transactions for
similar agsets or discounted cash flow estimates. In other instances for which we do not have comparable observed sales transaction
data, collateral values are developed internally and corroborated by external appraisal information. Adjustments fothird-party valuations
may be performed in circumstances where market comparables are not speciiic to the atiributes of the specific collateral or appraisal
infarmation may not be reflective of current market conditions due to the passage of time and the occurrence of market events sirice
receipt of the information.

NOTE 2. BUSINESSES HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS, In the fourth quarter of 2022, we signed a
binding agreement to seli a portion of our Steam business within our Power segment to Electricité de France S.A. (EDF). We are
working with EDF to complete the sale as soon as possible, subject to regulatory approvals and other closing conditions. Closing the
transaction is expected to result in a significant gain.

in the fourth quarter of 2022, we classified our captive industrial insurance subsidiary, Electric Insurance Company, domicited in
Massachusetts, with assets of $541 million and liabilities of $378 million as of December 31, 2023, into held for sale. In the third quarter
of 2023, we signed a binding agreement to sell this business and expect to-complete the sale, subject to regulatory approvals and-other
customary closing conditions, in the first half of 2024, In connection with the expected sale, for the year ended December 31, 2023, we
recorded a loss of $108 million in Other income (loss) in our Statement of Earnings {Loss).

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF BUSINESSES HELD FOR SALE December 31,2023  December 31, 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 3 609 § 35
Current receivables, inventories and contract assets 551 485
Nan-current caplive insurance investment securities 570 554
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - net 254 232
Valuation allowance on disposal group classified as held for sale {124) €17}
All other assets 125 76
Assets of businesses held for sale 3 1,985 § 1,374
Progress collections and deferred income 3 1,001 & 1,127
Insurance liabilities and annuity benefits 376 358
Agcounts payable, equipment project payables and other current liabilities 392 371
All other liabilities 57 87
Liabilities of businesses held for sale $ 1,826 § 1,944

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS primarily comprise our former GE HealthCare husiness, our mortgage portfolio in Paland (Bank BPH),
our GE Capital Aviation Services (GECAS) business, and other trailing assets and liabilities associated with prior dispositions. Results
of operations, financial position and cash flows forthese businesses are reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented
and the noles to the financial statemants have been adjusted on a retrospective basis.

GE HealthCare. On January 3, 2023, we completed the previously announced separation of our HealthCare business (the Separation),
into-a separate, independent; publicly traded company, GE HealthCare Technologies Inc. {GE HealthCare). The Separation was
structured as a tax-free spin-off, and was achieved through GE's pro-rata distribution of approximately 80.1% of the outstanding shares
of GE HeaithCare to holders of GE comman stock. In connaction with the Separation, the historical results of GE HealthCare and
certain assets and liabilities included inthe Separation are reported in GE's consolidated financial statements as discontinued
opsrations.

We have continuing involvement with GE HealthCare primarily through a transition services agreement, through which GE and GE
HealthCare continue to provide certain services {o each other for a period of time following the Separation, and a trademark licensing
agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2023, we collected net cash of $842 million related to these activities.

Bank BPH. As previously reported, Bank BPH, along with other Polish banks, has been subject to ongoing litigation in Poland related to
its portfolio of floating rate residential morlgage loans, with cases brought by individual borrowers seeking relief related to their foreign
currency indexed or denominated mortgage loans in various courts throughout Poland. As previcusly reported, GE and Bank BPH
approved the adoption of a setilement program and recorded a charge of $1,014 million: in the quarter ended June 30, 2023. The
estimate of total losses for borrower fifigation-at Bank BPH was: $2,669 million and $1,359 million as of December. 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. In order to maintain appropriate regulatory capital levels, during the year ended December 31, 2023, we made previously
reported non-cash capital contributions in the form of intercompany loan forgiveness of $1,797 million: no incremental cash
contributions from GE were required in 2023. During the year ended December 31, 2022, we made cash capital contributions of

$530 million. For further information about factors that are relevant to the estimate of total losses for barrower litigation at Bank BPH,
see Note 24, Future changesor adverse developments could increase our estimate of total losses and potentially require future cash
contributions to Bank BPH.
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The Bank BPH financing receivable portfolio is recorded at the lower of cost or fair value, less cost to sell, which reflects market yislds
and estimates with respect to ongoing borrower litigation. Earnings {loss) from discontinued operations included $1,189 million, $720
million and $509 milliony in pre-tax charges for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively, primarily related to
the-ongoing borrower litigation. At December 31, 2023, the total portfolio had a carrying value of zero, net of a-valuation allowancs.

GECAS/AerCap. We have continuing involvement with AerCap, primarily through a note receivable, ongoing sales or leases of
\cproducts and services, and fransition services that we provide to AerCap, We paid net cash of $203 million to AerCap related to this

gacﬁvity.

o)

Lo

& RESULTS OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

= For the year ended December 31, 2023 GE HealthCare GECAS Bank BPH & Other Total

&I Total revenues $ — § —$ — § -_

cost of equipment and services sold — — — —
Other income; costs and expenses {50) e {1,252) {1,301)
Earnings (loss} of discontined operations before income taxes {50) —_ {1,252} {1,301)
Benefit {provision) for income taxes 1,706 - 4 1,710
Earnings (loss) of discontinued operations, net of taxes 1,656 — {1,248) 409
Gain {loss) on disposal before income taxes —_ e 6 &
Benefit (provision) for income taxes ‘ st o o o
Gain {loss)on-disposal, net of faxes — —_ . 6 8
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes § 1,656 § — % (1,242) § 414
For the year ended December 31, 2022
Total revenues 3 18,457 § — 8 — G 18,457
Cost of equipment and services sold {11,265} — — {11,265}
Other income, costs and expenses {4,842) — (808) {5,651}
Earnings-(loss) of discontinued operations before income taxes 2,350 — {808) 1,541
Beneflt {provision) for income taxes (521 — {32) {553)
Earnings (loss) of discontinued operations, net of taxes 1,829 — {841) 988
Gain (loss) on.disposal before income taxes 6 (18) 75 64
Benefit {provision)for income taxes i 139 — 150
Gain (loss) on disposal, net of {axes ; 17 121 75 213
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes § 1,846 $ 121§ (765) % 1,202
For the year ended December 31, 2021
Total revenuss $ 17,717 % — 5 — § 17,717
Costof equipment and services sold (10,520) (398) e {10,918}
Other income, costs and expenses (4,965) 1,992 (599) (3,572)
Earnings (loss) of discontinued operations before income taxes 2,233 1,894 {599) 3,227
Benefit {provision) for income taxes (521) {258) (77) {856)
Earnings {loss) of discontinued operations, het of taxes 1,711 1,336 {675) 2,371
Gain (loss) on disposal before income taxes 12 (3,312) 65 {3,234)
Benefit (provision) for income taxes 2 {570} (38) (608)
Gain (loss) on disposal, net of taxes 14 {3,882) 27 (3,841)
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes $ 1,726 $ (2,546) $ (649) $ {1,469)

The tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2023 for GE HealthCare relates to retroactive 2023 IRS guidance concerning foreign
tax credits and accounting method changes and completion of the 2022 U.S. federal tax return as well as net tax benefit resulting from

preparatory-steps for the spin-off.

2023 FORM 10-K 51



ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Cash, cash equivalents and restricled cash $ 1,386 $ 2,627
Current receivables 14 3,361
Inventories, including deferred inventory costs —_ 2,512
Goodwill e 12,799
Other intangible assets < net e 1,520
Contract and other deferred assets — 854
Financing receivables held for sale (Polish mortgage portfolio)(a) — 1,200
Property, plant and equipment - net 58 2,379
All other assets 200 2,108
Deferred income taxes 27 2,528
Assets of discontinued operations $ 1,695 § 31,880
Accounts payable and equipment project payables 5 36 % 3,487
Progress collections-and deferred income — 2,499
Long-term borrowings — 8,273
Non-current compensation and benefits 31 5,658
All- other liabilities{a) 1,125 4,556
Liabilities of discontinued operations £ 1,193 § 24 474

(a) Included $1,963 million and $848 million of valuation allowances against Financing receivables held for sale, of which $1,712 million
and $611 million related to estimated borrower litigation losses, and $957 million and $748 million In Al other liabilities, related to
estimated borrower litigation losses for Bank BPH's foreign currency-denominated mortgage portfolio, as of December 31, 2023 and
December 31, 2022, respectively, Accordingly, total estimated losses related to borrower litigation were $2,662 million and
$1,358 million as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively. As a result of the settlement program, the valuation
allowance completely offsets the financing recelvables balance as of December 31, 2023,

NOTE 3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES. All of our debt securities are classified as avallable-for-sale and substantially all are
investment-grade supporting obligations to annuitants and policyhoiders in our run-off instrance operations. We manage the
investments in our run-off insurance aperations under strict investment guidelines, including limitations on asset class concentration;
single issusr exposures, asset-liability duration variances, and other factors to mest credit quality, yleld, liquidity and diversification
requirements associated with servicing our insurance liabilities under reasonable circumstances. This process.includes gonsideration of
various asset allocation strategies and incorporates information from several external investment advisors to improve our investment
yield subject to maintaining our ability to salisfy Insurance liabilities when due, as well as consideting our risk-based capital
requirements, regulatory constraints, and tolerance for surplus volatility. Asset allocation planning Is a dynamic process that considers
changes in market conditions, risk appestite, liquidity needs and other factors, which are reviewed on a periodic basis by our investment
team. Curinvestment in GE HealthCare comprised 61.6 million shares (approximately-13.56% ownership interest) at December 31,
2023. We sold our remaining equity shares.in AerCap and Baker Hughes during the fourth and first quarters of 2023, respectively. Our
senior note from AerCap, for which we have adopted the fair value option and matures in the Tourth quarter of 2025, is still outstanding
as of December 31, 2023, Our GE HealthCare and AerCap investments are recorded as Equity securities with readily determinable fair
values (RDFV}. Investment securities held within insurance entities are classified as non-current as they support the long-duration
insurance liabilities.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Gross Gross Gross Gross

Amortized unrealized unreafized Estimated Amortized unrealized unrealized Estimated

o cast gains losses  fair value cost gains losses  fairvalue

Equity (GE HealthCare) $ — 3 — 8 — $ 4761 § — —$ — $ —

Equity and note (AerCap) —_— — — 944 s e s 7,403

Equity (Baker Hughes) e e — — — — — 207

Current investment securities $ — § - § ~— & 5706 5 e § — § — $ 7,609
Debt

U.8. corporate $ 27495 8 1,034 $ (1.806)% 26923 5 26921 § 875°% (2,164) % 25432

Non-U.8. corporate 2,529 34 {209) 2,353 2,548 18 (300) 2,266

State and municipal 2,828 78 (185) 2,723 2,898 66 {241) 2,722

Mortgage and asset-backed 4,827 34 (291} 4,571 4442 21 (290) 4,173

CGovernment and agencies 1,213 3 {1186) 1,100 1,172 2 {147) 1,026

Other equity 331 e — 331 408 — s 408

Non-current investment securities $ 39222 § 1,183 § (2,406)% 38,000 § 38,388 § 781 % (3,143} § 36,027

The amortized cost of debt securities excludes accrued interest of $466 million and $457 million at December 31, 2023 and December
31, 2022, respectively, which is reported in All other current assets.
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The estimated fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2023 increased since December 31,2022, primarily due to the
classification of our remaining equity Interest in GE HealthCare within investment securities, the mark-to-market effect on our equity
Interest In GE HealthCare, new investments at Insurance and lower market vields, offset by AerCap, GE HealthCare and Baker Hughes
share sales.

Total estimated fair valiie of debt securities in an unrealized loss position were $18,730 million and $21,482 million, of which $17,146
illion and $3,275 million had gross unrealized losses of $(2,370) million and ${835) million and had been in a loss position for 12
Fonths or more at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively. At December 31, 2023, the majority of our U.S. and Non-
.. corporate securities’ gross unrealized losses were in the consumer, electric, technology and insurance industries. In addition, gross
lnrealized losses on.our Morigage and asset-backed securities included $(203) million related to commercial mortgage-backed
Shcurities (CMBS) collateralized by pools of commercial mortgage loans on real estate, and $(82) million related to asset-backed
ﬁ‘pcurﬁies. The majority of our CMBS and asset-backed securities in an unrealized loss position have received investment-grade credit
Fatings from the major rating agencies. For our securities in an unrealized loss position, the losses are not indicative of credit losses, we
currently do not Intend to sell the investments; and it is not more likely than not that we will be required to sell the investments before
recovery of their amorlized cost basis.

For the years ended December 31 2023 2022 2021
Net unrealized gains (losses) for equity securities with RDEV 3 5413 % (40).% 1,660
Proceeds from deblequity securities sales and early redemptions 12,712 . 7,267 6,665
Gross realized gains-on debt securities 52 34 69
Gross realized losses and impairments on debt securilies (66) {42y {11)

Cash flows associated with purchases, dispositions and maturities of insurance investment securities are as follows:

For the years ended December 31 2023 2022
Purchases of investment securities $ (5,163} $ {4,048)
Dispositions and maturities of investment securities 4,176 3470

Net {purchases) dispositions of insurance investment securities $ {986} & (876)

Contractual maturities of our debt securities (excluding mortgage and asset-backed securities) at December 31, 2023 are as follows:

Amortized cost Estimated fair value
Within one year $ 618 $ 609
After.one year through five years 5,004 5,049
After five vears throughten years 5,131 5,234
Afterten years 23,311 22,205

We expect actual maturities to differ from confractual maturities because borrowers have the right to call or prepay certain obligations:

In-addition to the squity securities described above, we hald $1,012 million and $614 million of equity securities without RDFV, including
$939 million and $548 million at Insurance, as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively, that are classified within
non-current All other assets in-our Statement of Financial Position; Fair value adjustments, including impairments, recorded in earnings
were $69 million for-the year.ended December 31, 2023 and insignificant for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021. These are
primarily limited partnership investments in private equity, infrastructure and real estate funds that are measured af net asset value per
share (or-equivalent) as a practical expedient to estimated fair value and are excluded from the fair value hierarchy,

Qur run~off insurance operations have approximately $800 million of assets held by states or other regulatory bodies in statutorily
required deposit accounts, and approximately $31,800 million of assets held in trust accounts associated with reinsurance contracts
and reinsurance security ttust agresments in place between either Employers Reassurance Corporation (ERAC) or Union Fidelity Life
Insurance Company (UFLIC) asthe reinsuring eniity-and a number of ceding insurers. Assets inthese trusts are held by an
independent trustee for the benefit of the ceding insurer, and are subject fo various investment guidelines as set forth in the respective
reinsurance contracts and trust agreements. Some of these trust agreements may allow a ceding company to withdraw trust assets
from the trust and hold these assets on its balance sheet, in a@n account under its contral for the benefit of ERAC or UFLIC which might
allow-the ceding company to exercise investment control over such assets.
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NOTE 4. CURRENT AND LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES

CURRENT RECEIVABLES

December 31 2023 2022
Customer receivables % 12,349 § 11,803
Revenue sharing program recelvables(a) 1,252 1,326
Non-income based tax receivables 1,140 1,146
Supplier advances 891 691
Receivables from disposed businesses 121 115
Other sundry receivables 360 518
Allowance for credit losses (647) {768)
Total current receivables 3 15466 $ 14,831

{a) Revenue sharing program receivables in Aerospace are amounts due from third parties who parficipate in engine programs by
developing and supplying certain engine componenis through the life of the program. The participants share in program revenues,
receive a share of customer progress payments and share costs related to discounts and warranties.

ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES 2023 2022 2021
Balance as of January 1 8 768 § 967 § 1,055
New provisions, nat of (releases) 32 {14} 136
Write-offs, net (161} {87} {198}
Foreign exchange and other 8 (98) {26}
Balance as of December 31 $ 847 § 768 § 967
December 31 2023 2022
Aerospace $ 8010 § 7,784
Renewable Energy 2,907 2415
Power 4,232 4,229
Corporate 318 404
Total current receivables $ 15466 $ 14,831

Sales of customer receivables. From timeto time, the Company sells current or fong-term recelvables 1o third parties in response to
customer-sponsored requests or programs, to facilitate sales; or for risk-mifigation purposes. The Company sold.current customer
receivables to third parties and subsequently collected $2,110 million and $2,062 million in the year ended December 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively, related primarily to our participation in customer-sponsored supply chain finance programs. Within these programs,
primarily in Renewable Energy and Aerospace, the Company has no continuing involvement, fees associated with the transferred
receivables are:-covered by the customer-and cash is recelved at the orlginal invoice due date: Included in the sales of customer
receivables inthe year ended December 31, 2023, was $82 million in our Gas Power business, primarily for risk mitigation purposes.

LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES

December 31 2023 2022

Long-term customer receivables(a) $ 479 % 457

Supplier advances 274 266

Non-income based tax receivables 174 213

Sundry receivables 373 483

Allowance for credit losses {(171) (183)
Total long-term receivables 3 1,129 § 1,236

{a) The Company sold $83 million of long-term customerreceivables fo third parties for the vear ended December:31, 2022, primarily in
our Gas Power business for risk mitigation purposes;

NOTE 5. INVENTORIES, INCLUDING DEFERRED INVENTORY COSTS

December 31 2023 2022
Raw materials and work In process % 11,209 $ 9,191
Finished goods 3,720 3,937
Deferred inventory costs{a) 1,699 1,764
inventories, including deferred inventory costs % 16,528 $ 14,891

{a) Represents cost deferral for shipped goods (such as components for wind turbine assemblies within our Renewable Energy
segment) and labor and overhead costs on time and material service contracts (primarily originating in Power and Aerospace) and
other costs for which the criteria for revenue recognition has not'yet been met,
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND OPERATING LEASES

Depreciable lives Criginal Cost Net Carmrying Value
December 31 {in years) 2023 2022 2023 2022
Land and improvements 8 $ 482 & 472 % 469 $ 481
Buildings, structures and related equipment 8-40 6,340 6,024 2,852 2,703
“achinery and equipment 420 19,003 18,577 6,280 6,163
Heasehold costs and manufacturing plant under construction 1-10 1,507 1,568 1,053 1,012
“ROU operating lease assets ) 1,840 1,854
ﬁmperty. plant and equipment - net $ 27.332.% 26641 § 12494 % 12,192

o

{ﬁ% the first quarter of 2022, we signed a non-binding memorandum of understanding for GE Steam Power to sell a portion of its
business to EDF, which resulted in a reclassification of that business to held for sale. As a result, we recognized a non-cash pre-tax
impairment charge of $59 million related to property, plant and equipment at ourremaining Steam business within our Power segment.
This charge was recorded by Corporate in Selling, general, and administrative expenses in our consclidated Statement of Eamings
{Loss).

Operating Lease Liabilities. Our consolidated operating lease liabilities, included in All other liabilities in our Statement of Financial
Position, was $1,973 million-and $2,089 million, as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Substantially all of our operating
leases have remajning lease terms of 14 years or less, some of which may include options to extend.

OPERATING LEASE EXPENSE 2023 2022 ' 2021
Long-term (fixed) $ 567 % 646 $ 644
Long-term (variable) 75 66 56
Short-term 178 150 188
Total operating lease expense 5 820 % 863 % 888
MATURITY OF LEASE LIABILITIES 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Thereafter Total
Undiscounted lease payments ) $ 664 3 428 § 325 8 233 § 165 § 586 § 2,302
Less: imputed interest (329)
Total lease liability as of December 31, 2023 $ 1,973
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION RELATED TO OPERATING LEASES 2023 2022 2021
Operating cash flows used foroperating leases $ 659 § 682 % 719
Right-of-use assets obtained In exchange for new lease liabilities 553 447 513
Weighted-average remalning lease term 7.1 years 5.7 years ¢ TByears
Weighted-average discount rate 4.4 % 3.4 % 42 %

NOTE 7. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
CHANGES IN GOODWILL BALANCES

Balance at Currency Balance at Currency Balance at

December 31, exchange and December 31, exchangeand  December3l,

2021 Dispositions other 2022 Acquisitions other 2023

Aerospace $ 9013 § 6)% 71y % 8835 % — $ 113 § 8,948

Renewable Energy 3,231 — {30$) 3,201 e 86 3,287

Power 145 — h 144 164 — 307

_Corporate(a) 914 — (986) 818 22 1 842
Total 3 13,303 $ (6} % (299} $ 12,999 § 186 200 § 13,385

(a) Corporate balance at December 31, 2023 and 2022 comprises our Digital business.

In the fourth quarter of 2023, we performed our annual impairment test. Based on the results of this test, the fair values of each of our
reporting units exceeded their carrying values, however, we Identified one reporting unit, our Additive reportifig unit in our Aerospace
segment, for which the fair value was not substantially in excess of its carrying value. At December 31, 2023, our Additive reporting unit
had goodwill of $247 million.

Determining the Tair value of reporting units requires the use of estimates and significant judgmenits that are based on a number of

factors including actual operating results. It is reasonably possible that the judgments and estimates described above could change in
future periods:
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2023 2022

G

INTANGIBLE ASSETS SUBJECT TO Useful lives carrl;?:g Accumulated cag';?:z Accumulated

AMORTIZATION December 31 {in years) amount amortization Het amount amortization Het
Customer-related(a) 3-23 $ 6201 % (3851)% 2351 % 5991 § (3483)8 2,538
Patents and technology 5-15 5,924 {3,372) 2,553 5,688 {3,202) 2,686
Capitalized software 3-10 2,356 {1,639) 717 2,979 {2.186) 793
Trademarks & other 3-25 276 (200) 75 384 (295) 88
“Total $ 14757 & (8,061} 5695 § 15242 % (91373% 6,105

{a) Balance includes payments made to our customers, primarily within our Aerospace business.

December 31 2023 2022
Aerospace 5 4518 § 4,748
Renewable Energy 149 183
Power 858 958
Corporate 169 216
Total other intangible assets, net 3 5695 $ 6,108

intangible assets decreased $410 million in 2023, primarily as a result of amortization, partially offsel by the acquisition of capitalized
software and customer-related intangibles mainly at Aerospace and Power of $191 million. Consolidated amortization expense was
$606 million, $1,338 million and $738 million for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Inthe first quarter of 2022, wesigned-a.non-binding memorandum of understanding for GE Steam Power to sell a portion of its
business to EDF, which resulted in a reclassification of that business to held for sale. As a result, we recognized a non-cash pre-tax
impairment charge of $765 million related o intangible assets at ourremaining Steam business within our Power segment. We
determined the fair value of these intangible assets using an income approach. This charge was recorded by Corporate in Selling,
general, and administrative expenses in our Statement of Earnings (Loss),

Estimated consolidated annual pre-tax amortization for intangible assels over the next five calendar years are as follows:

ESTIMATED & YEAR CONSOLIDATED AMORTIZATION 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
Estimated annual pre-tax amortization $ 597 § 559 § 534 § 495 3§ 483

During 2023, we recorded additions to intangible assets subject to amorlization of $236 million with a weighted-average amortizable
period of 9.6 years, including capitalized software of $122 million, with a weighted-average amoriizable period of 6.6 years.

NOTE 8. CONTRACT AND OTHER DEFERRED ASSETS & PROGRESS COLLECTIONS AND DEFERRED INCOME

Contract and other deferred assets decreased $1,337 millionin the year ended December 31,2023 primarily due fo a decréase in
long-term service agreements, partially offset by the timing of revenue recognition ahead of billing milestones on long-term equipmerit
contracts, Our long-term service agreements decreased primarily due to billings of $13,165 million, partially offset by revenues
recognized of $11,312 million and a net favorable change In estimated profitability of $90 million at Power and $74 million at Aerospace.

Renewable

December 31, 2023 Aerospace Energy Power Corporate Total

Revenues.in excess of billings 3 2377 % — & 5205 § — & 7,582

Billings in excess of revenues (7,802) — {1,810} — {9,712)
Long-term service agreements 3 (5,525) % -_ % 33085 § —_—8 {2,130}
Equipriient and other service agreements 494 1,374 1,499 263 3,630
Current contract assets 3 {5,030)-% 1,374 $ 4,894 % 263 § 1,500
Nonreciiring engineering costs(a) 2444 18 1 — 2,463
Customer advances and other{b} 2,342 oot 801 o 2,943
Non-current contract-and other deferrad assets $ 4,785 § 18 $ 603 § — 5 5,406
Total contract and other deferred assets 3 (245) 3 1,392 § 5,497 % 263 % 6,907
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Renewable

December 31, 2022 Aerospace Energy Power Corporate Total
Revenues in excess of billings $ 2,363 % — 5 5403 § — 7,766
Billings in excess of revenues (6,681) —_— {1,763} — . (8443)

Long-term service agreements 3 (4.318) % — % 3,640 % G (677}

Equipment and other service'agreements 433 1,063 1,404 245 3,144

@un‘ent contract assets $ (3,884) % 1,063 § 5044 % 245 % 2,487
Monrecurring engineering costs(a) 2,513 17 4 — 2,534
“Bustomer advances and other(b) 2,519 — 724 - 3,243
Eon-current contract and other deferred assets $ 5032 §. 17 % 728 $ —§ 5,776 .
“Yotal contract and other deferred assets $ 1,148 $ 1,079 § 5772 § 245 § 8,244

((\é) Included costs incurred prior to. production {such as requisition engineering) for équipment production contracts, primarily within our
Aerospace segment, which are amortized ratably over each unit produced.

{b} Included amounts due from customers at Aerospace for the sales of engines, spare parts and services, and at Power, for the sale of
services upgrades, which we collect through incremental fixed or usage-based fees from servicing the equipment under long-term
service agreements.

Progress collections and deferred income increased $3,392 million primarily due to new collections received in excess of revenue
recognition primarily at Renewable Energy and Power. Revenues recognized for contracts included in a liability position at the
beginning of the year were $13,867 million and $12,345 million for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Renewable
December 31, 2023 ‘ Aerospace Energy Power Corporate Total
Progress collections $ 6,198 % 6,886 % 5,808 § 124 % 19,106
Current deferred income 201 239 20 112 571
Progress collections and deferred income $ 6,399 § 7125 % 5918 $ 236 % 19,677
Non-current deferred income 1,150 122 48 20 1,339
Total Progress collections and deferred income $ 7,548 % 7,247 % 5965 % 256 % 21,017
December 31; 2022
Progress collections $ 5814 § 5,195 :$ 4,514 § 131 § 15,655
Current deferred income 233 208 13 107 562
Progress collections and deferred income $ 6,047 § 5404 § 4,527 $ 238 § 16,216
Non-current deferred income 1,110 183 - 104 12 1,409
Total Progress collections and deferred income $ 7,157 § 5586 § 4,632 % 250 $ 17,625
NOTE 8. ALL OTHER ASSETS
December 31 : 2023 2022
Derivative instruments (Note 22) $ 437 § 454
Prepaid taxes and deferred charges 248 313
Accrued interest and Investment income : 466 457
Other 495 176
All other current assets b 1,647 % 1,400
Equity method investments (Note 26) 7,931 7,633
Long-term receivables {Note 4) ' ) 1,128 1,236
Prepaid taxes and deferred charges 608 583
Insurance receivables(a) 2,364 2438
Insurance investments without readily determinable fair value {Note 3) 939 548
Insurance cash and cash equivalents(b) . 784 619
Pension surplus 1,468 1,793
Other 774 627
“All other non-current assets b 15,997 $ 15,477
Total All other assets 3 17,643 $ 16,876

{a) Included commercial mortgage loans related to our run-off insurance operations. See Note 12.
{b) Cash.and cash. equivalents In our insurance entitles are subject to regulatory restrictions and used for operations of those entities.
Therefore, the balance is included in All other assets.
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NOTE 10. BORROWINGS

December 3 2023 2022
Amount Average Rate Amount Average Rate

Current portion of long-term borrowings B

Senior hotes 1,044 242%% 3,525 1.30%

Subordinated notes and other 107 6.73 100 6.71 %
Other short- term borrowings 103 115
Total short-term borrowings $ 1,253 $ 3,739

Maturities Amount Average Rate Amptnt Average Rate
Senior notes 2025-2055 $ 17,509 3.99%$ 18,079 3.96 %
Subordinated notes 2035-2037 1,383 4.43 1,340 4.72 %
Other 819 901
Total long-term borrowings $ 18,711 3 20,320
Total borrowings $ 20,965 3 24,059
Long-term debt maturities over the next five years as follows.
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Thereafter Total

Long term debt maturities 31,151 @  $1.827 $1.334 $1,580 $478 $14.493 $20,862

(a) Fixed and floating rate notes of $343 million contain put options with exercise dates in 2024, which have final maturity beyond 2035,

The fotal interest payments on consclidated borrowings are estimated to be $823 million, $774 million, $706 million, $653 million and
$628 milfion for 2024, 2025, 2026, 2027 and-2028, respectively.

NOTE 11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND EQUIPMENT PROJECT PAYABLES

December 31 2023 2022
Trade payables $ 10,678 § 10,033
Supply chain finance programs(a) 3,133 3,689
Equipment project pavables(b) 1,193 1,236
Non-income based tax payables 403 441
Accounts payable and equipment project payables $ 15408 $ 15,399

{a) During the fourth quarter of 2023, Renswable Energy, Power and Corporate made prepayments of $473 million,. $185 million and
$£76 million, respectively, related to supply chain finance programs.
(b} Primarily related to projects at Power and Renewable Energy.

We facilitate voluntary supply chain finance programs with third parties, which. provide participating suppliers the opportunity to sell their
GE receivables to third parties at the sole discretion of both the suppliers and the third parties. Total supplier invoices pald through
these third-party programs were $8,552 million and $6,990 million for the year ended December31, 2023 and 2022, respectively:

NOTE 12. INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND ANNUITY BENEFITS. On January 1, 2023, we adopted Accounting Standards
Update No. 2018-12, Financial Services - Insurance (Topic 944); Targeted improvements fo the Accounting for Long-Duration
Contracts. The new guidance for measuring the liabllity for future policy benefits and related reinsurance recoverable asset was
adopted on-a modified retrospective basis such that those balances were adjusted to conform to the new guidance at the January 1,
2021 transition date. Refer to-the revised portions of our- 2022 Form 10-K filed as Exhibit 99(a) with the Form 8-K on April 25, 2023 for

more information;

Insurance liabllities and annuity benefits comprise substantially all cbligations to annuitants and insureds in our run-off insurance
operations, Our insurance operations (net of eliminations) generated revenues of $3,389 million, $2,957 million and $3,101 million,
profit was $332 million, $205 miilion and $798 million and net earnings was $260 million, $159 million and $627 million for the years
ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively. These operations were primarily supported by investment securities of
$37,592 million and $35,503 million, limited partnerships of $3,300 million and $2,506 million, and a diversified commercial mortgage
loan porifolio substantially all collateralized by first liens on U.8. commercial real estate properties of $1,947 million and $1,975 million
{nat.of allowance for credit losses of $48 million and-$27 million), at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. As-of December 31,
2023, the commercial mortgage loan portfolio had one delinquent loan, no non-accrual loans and about one-third of the portfolio was
held in the office sector which had & weighted average loan-to-value ratio of 68%, debt service coverage of 1.8, and rio scheduled
maturities through 2025, A summaty of ourinsurance liabilities and annulty benefits is presented below:
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Structured

settlement
December 31,-2023 Long-term care annuities Life Other contracts Total
Future policy benefit reserves $ 26,832 § 9,357 § 1917 § 382 § 37,689
Investment coniracts e 793 — 742 1,535
Other — — 116 285 400
FTotal 3 26,832 § 10,150 3 1,233 % 1,409 § 39,624
,b‘?: December 31,2022
=SFuture policy benefit reserves $ 24,256 % 8,860 % 1,040 § 437 % 34,593
glnvestment contracts — 860 — 848 1,708
‘gOther — — 178 385 544
Total $ 24,256 % 9,720 $ 1,218 % 1,651 § 36,845
The following tables summarize balances of and changes in future policy benefits reserves,
2023 2022
Structured Structured
Long-derm  settlement Longderm  settlement
Present value of expected net premiums care annuities Life care annuities Life
Balance, beginning of vear $ 4,059 § — $ 4828 $§ 5652 % — § 8,622
Beginning balance at locked-in discount rate 3,958 - 5,210 4,451 — 5,443
Effect of changes in cash flow assumptions (4) — (77} {9 — 91
Effect of actual variances from expected experience (22) — {300) {289) e 6
Adjusted beginning of year balance 3,032 — 4,833 4,152 — 5,540
Interest accrual 207 — 162 223 —_— 203
Net premiums collected {394) — {315) 417) — (357)
Effect of foreign currency — — 64 — — (176)
Ending balance at locked-in discount rate 3,745 — 4,773 3,958 e 5,210
Effect of changes in discount rate assumptions 318 —_— 30 101 - (381)
Balance, end of period % 4,063 % — % 4803 % 40598 % — % 4,828
Present value of expected future policy benefits
Balance, beginning of year $ 28316 § 8860 & 5868 $ 40,296 $ 12328 § 7,923
Begirining balance at locked-in discount rate 27,026 8,790 6,247 27 465 9,024 5,560
Effect of changes in cash flow assumptions {45) {186) 49 (413) {23) 120
Effect of actual variances from expected experience {13) 19 {241} {320} {10} 40
Adjusted beginning of year balance 26,968 8,793 6,055 26,732 8,990 8,720
Interest accrual 1,454 454 232 1,446 471 243
Benefit payments (1,278) (687) (508) {1,152) 671) {531)
Effect of foreign currency — — 67 — e (185)
Ending balance:atlocked-in-discount rate 27,144 8,561 5,847 27,026 8,790 6,247
Effect of changes In discount rate assumptions 3,752 797 74 1,290 70 (380)
Balance, end of period - $ 30895 % 9357 % 5921 § 28316 § 8860 § 50868
Net future policy benefit reserves $ 26832 % 9,357 § 1117 § 24256 % 8,860 § 1,040
Less: Reinsurance recoverables, net of allowance for credit
losses {168} e {33) {(171) - {67}
Net future policy benefit reserves, after reinsurance
recoverables 26,666 $ 9,357 $ 1,084 $ 24,085 § 8,860 $ 973

The Statement of Earnings.(Loss) for the years ended December 31,2023 and 2022 included gross premiums or assessments of $869
million and $935 million and interest accretion of $1,741 million and $1,735 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31,
2023 'and 2022, gross premiums or assessments were substantially all related to long-term care of $496 million and $490 million and
life of $363 million and $415 million, while interest accretion was substantially all related to long-term care of $1,247 million and $1,224
millior and structured ssttlement annuities of $454 million and $471 million, respectively.

The following table provides the amount of undiscounted and discounted expected future gross premiums and expected future benefits

and expenses for nonparticipating traditional contracts.
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2023 2022
Undiscounted Discounted(a) Undiscounted Discounted(a)

Long-term care: Gross premiiims 3 7,379 % 4,895 % 7,985 % 4,918
Benefit payments 63,126 30,895 65,217 28,316
Structured settlement annuities: Benefit payments 19,291 9,357 19,936 8,860
Life: Gross premiums 12,388 5,800 13,754 5,916
Benefit payments 11,202 5,921 12,020 5,868

{a) Determined using the current discount rate as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

The following table provides the weighted-average durations of and weighted-average interest rates for the liability for future policy
benefits.

2023 2022
Structured Structured
Long-term  settlement Longderm  settlement
care annuities Life care ahnuities Life
Duration {(years){a) 12:8 1.3 53 13.0 10.7 5.0
Interest accretion rate 5.8% 85.4% 5.0% 5.5% 5.4% 4.9%
Current discount rate 4.9% 4.8% 4.7 % 5.6% 5.5% 54%

{a) Determined using the current discount rate as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,

Our 2023 annual review of future policy benefit reserves cash flow assumptions resulted in an immaterial charge to net earnings,
indicating claims experience continues 1o develop consistently with our models. Qur 2022 annual review resulted in changes to our
assumptions principally related to higher near-term mortality related to COVID-19,

Included in Insurance losses, annuity benefits and other costs Tnoour Statement of Earnings (Loss) for the vears ended December 31,
2023 and 2022 are unfavorable and favorable pre<tax adjustments of $(155) million and . $404 million, respectively, from updating the net
premium rafio {i.e., the percentage of projected gross premiums required to cover expected policy benefits and related expenses) after
updating for actual historical experience each quarter and updating of future cash flow assumptions, Included in these amounts for the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, are unfavorable adjustments of $335 million and $190 million, respectively, due fo
insufficient gross premiums (i.e., net premium ratio excesded 100%), related to certain cohorts in our long-term care and life insurance
portfolios. These adjustments are primarily atiributable to increases in the net premium ratio as a result of updating future cash flow
agsumptions on cohorts where the beginning of the period net premium ratio exceeded 100%.

At December 31, 2023 and 2022, policyholders account balances totaled $1,725 million and $1,864 million, respectively. As our
insturance operations are In run-off, changes in policyholder account balances for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are
primarily attributed to surrenders, withdrawals, and benefit payments of $489 million and $441 million, partially offset by net additions
from separate accounts and interest credited of $245 million and $271 million, respectively. Inferest on policyholder account balances is
generally credited at minimum guaranteed rates, primarily between 3.0% and 6.0% at both December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Reinsurance recoveries are recorded as a reduction of Insurance losses, annuity benefits and other costs in our Statement of Eamings
{Loss) and amounted to $108 million, $321 million and $351 million for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. Reinsurance recoverables, net of allowances of insignificant amounts, are included in non-current All other assets in our
Statement of Financial Position, and amounted to $213 million and $255 million at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Statutory accounting practices, nat GAAP, determine the required statutory capital levels of our insurance legal entities. Statutory
accounting practices are set forth by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) as well as state laws, regulation.and
general administrative fules and differ in certain respects from GAAP, We annually perform statutory asset adequacy testing, the results
of which may affect the amount or timing of capital contributions from GE to the insurance legal entities,

Following approval of astatutory- permitted accounting practice in 2018 by our primary regulator, the Kansas Insurance Department
(KID), we provided a total of $13,215 million of capital contributions to our run-off insurance subsidiaries, including $1,815 million in the
first quarter of 2023. In accordance with the terms of the 2018 statutory permitted accounting practice, we expect to provide the final
capital contribution of up'to $1,820 million in the first quarter of 2024, pending completion of our December 31, 2023 statutory reporting
process, which includes assset adequacy testing, subject to ongoing monitoring by KID. GE is a party to capital maintenance
agreements with its run-off insurance subsidiaries under which GE is required to maintain thelr statutory capital levels at 300% of their
year-end Authorized Control Level risk-based capital requirements as defined from time to time by the NAIC.

See Notes 1, 3 and 9 for further information related to our run-off insurance operations.
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NOTE 13. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

PENSION BENEFITS AND RETIREE HEALTH AND LIFE BENEFITS. We sponsor a number of pension and retiree health and life
insurance benefit plans that we present in three categories, principal pension plans, other pension plans and principal retiree benefit
plans. Smaller pension plans with pension-assets or obligations that have not reached $50 million and other retiree benefit plans are not
presented. Effective January 1, 2023, cerlain postretirement benefit plans and liabilites were legally split or allocated between GE
HeslthCare, GE Energy and GE Aerospace. GE Aerospace and GE Energy plans and liabilities remain with GE until the planned GE
LVemova spin-off, In connection with the Separation, net postretirement benefit plan liabilities of approximately $4:2 billion, including a
#portion of the principal pension plans, other pension plans and the principal retiree benefit plans, and other compensation and benefits
“bbligations of approximately $0.7 billion, were transferred fo GE HealthCare and are now reported in discontinued opsrations. See Note
¢ for further information. Assumptions used in calculations, estimates of future benefits payments and funding, and other forward
giooking statements are for continuing operations unless otherwise noted,
£

<
“'DESCRIPTION OF OUR PLANS
Plan Category Participants Funding Comments

§§§§?§$‘§'~1 15.400 Qur funding policy Is to contribute

GE Energy rétireas 4and amounis sufficient fo meet
Penslon Plan beneficiaries. ~47 500 minimum funding requirements
and GE vested former under smployee benefit and tax

Closed to new participants since 2012.
Benefits for employees with salaried benefits
were frozen effective January 1, 2021, and
thereafter these employees receive increased
company conlributions in the company

Aerospace laws. We may decide to : i
; employees and sponsored defined contribution plar in lieu of
Pension Plan ~15,700 active ggngisdugﬁig?gité?nal amounts participation in a defined benefit plan
Principal employees ¥ : {announced October 2019),
Pension
Plans i
GE Enerey vy Provides participants since 2011 and nas been -
Pension'Plan = supplementary benefits Unfunded. We pay benefits on a replaced by an instaliment benefit (which was
t ; closed to new executives after 2020).
and GE to higher-level, longer- pay-as-you-go basis from Banefits Tor smplovees who becartie
Aerospace service U.S. company cash. : ploy ;
Supplementary employees executives before 2011 were frozen effective
Peggion Planw pioy January 1, 2021, and thereafter these
employees accrue the installment benefit.
Our funding policy is to contribute
ﬁinl'_]us‘sand Covers ~42 600 amounts sufficient to meet
pension plans  retirees and minimum funding requirements ) .
Other with pension beneficiaries. ~28.300 under employee benefitand tax  In gertain countries, benefit accruals have
Pension asse?saor vested former. laws in'each country. We may ceased and/or have been closed to new hires
Plans(a) pjications that emplovees and ~7.70¢ decide to contribute additional as of various dates.
h avg feachad acti%ayffem lovees amounts beyond this level. We
350 million pioy pay benefits for some plans from
company. cash.
o Provides health Covers U.8.
Principal and life participants ~89,300  Woe fund retiree benefit planson a
Retiree  Insurance retirees and pay-as-you-go basis and the Participants share in the cost of the
Benefit benefils to dependents and retiree benefit insurance trust al  heailthcare benefits.
Plans certain eligible  ~15,000 active our discretion,

participants employees

(a) Plans for GE Energy, including Power and Renewable Energy (will be part of GE Vernova) and GE Aerospace that reach $50 million
are not removed from the presentation unless part of a disposition or ptan termination.
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FUNDING STATUS BY PLAN TYPE Benefit Obligation Fair Value of Assets Deficit{Surplus)
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Principal Pension Plans:
GE Pension Plan (subject to regulatory funding) $ - $48,134 § - $ 44,993 § - % 3,141
GE Supplementary Pension Plan {not subject to regulatory funding) —_ 5,457 e e — 5.457

GE Energy Pension Plan and GE Aerospace Pension Plan {subject
to regulatory funding) 32,678 - 29744 e 2,832 -

GE Energy Supplementary Penslon Plan and GE Aerospace
Supplementary Pension Plan-{not subject to reqgulatory funding) 3,541 — — — 3,541 m

36,217 53,591 29,744 44,993 6,473 8,508

Gther Pension Plans:

Subject to regulatory funding 9,174 12,078 10,601 14,512 {(1,427) (2.434)
Mot subject to-reguiatory funding 1,203 1,838 163 151 1,040 1,687
Principal retiree benefit (not subject to regulatory funding) 2,085 3,304 8 10 2,047 3,204
Total plans subject to regulatory funding 41,850 60,212 40,345 59,505 1,505 707
Total plans not subject to regulatory funding 6,799 10,599 171 161 6,628 10438
Total plans 48,649 70,811 40,516 59,666 8,133 11,145
Less: discontinued operations — 23513 — 19,291 — 4,222
Total plans - continuing operations $48649 $47,298 $40,516 $40,375 § 8,133 § 6923

Effective January 1, 2023, certain postretirament benefit plans and liabilities were legally split or allocated. The HealthCare plans were
transferred to GE HealthCare in connection with the Separation. The GE Aerospace and GE Energy plans remain with GE until the
planned GE Vernuova spin-off. Below is the funding status of the plans at December 31, 2023

FUNDING STATUS BY ELAN TYPE at December 31, 2023 Benefit Obligation Fair Value of Assets Deficit/{Surplus)
Power and Renewable Energy:
GE Energy Pension Plan $ 10,239 $ 9491 § 748
GE Energy Supplementary Pension Plan 541 o 541
Other pension plans 6,712 6,851 {139)
Principal retiree benefit plans 766 — 766
18,258 16,342 1,916
Aerospace:
GE Aerospace Pension Plan 22,437 20,253 2,184
GE Aerospace Supplementary Pension Plan 3,000 — 3,000
Other pension plans 3,665 3,913 (248}
Principal retiree benefit plans 1,288 8 1,281
30,391 24174 6,217
“Total plans $ 48,649 $ 40,516 $ 8,133

FUNDING. The Employee Retirement:Income Security Act (ERISA) determines minimum funding requirements in the U.5. No
contributions were required or made for the GE Energy Pension Plan or GE Aerospace Pension Plan during 2023 and based on our
current assumptions, we do not anticipate having to make additional required contributions in the near future. On an ERISA basis, our
estimate is that the GE Energy Pension Plan and GE Aerospace Pension Plan was 87% and 93% funded, respectively. The GAAPR
funded status for GE Energy Pension Plan and GE Aerospace Penslon Plan is 93% and 90%, respectively.

We expect to pay approximately $235 million for benefit payments in total under-our GE Energy Supplementary Pension Plan-and GE
Aerospace Supplementary Pension Plan and administrative expenses of our remaining principal pension plans and expect to contribute
approximately $100 million to other remaining pension plans in 2024, We fund retiree benefit plans ona pay-as-you-go basis and the
retiree benefit insurance trust at our discretion. We expect to contribute approximately $210 million in 2024 t6 fund such benefits.

ACTIONS, Pension benefits for United Kingdom (UK) participants have been frozen effective January-1,. 2022, -In addition; pension

benefits for Canadian participants have been frozen effective December 31, 2023, These transactions were reflected as a curtailment
loss in 2021 upon announcement.
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COST OF OUR BENEFITS PLANS 2023 2022 202
AND ASSUMPTIONS Principal Principal Principal
Principal Other  retiree  Principal Other  retiree  Principal Other  retiree
pension. pension  benefit: pension  pension  benefit pension. pension benefit
Components of expense (income)
Service cost - operating $ 94 $ 37 $ 17 $ 221 $ 86 $§ 30 $ 237 $233 % 44
g\terest cost 1,892 422 111 2.069 398 108 1,951 383 103
xpected relurn on plan assets {2,376) (587) — {3,142} {967) — {3,048} (1,194) —
~Amortization of net loss {gain) {723) 20 (124) 1,422 101 (118) 3,483 403 (79)
sAmortization of prior service cost (credit) 5 {4) {148) 5 (8) (235) 28 {3) {236)
“Lurtallment / setilement loss (gain) — {8) — i (6) — — 76 —
&) Non-operating $(1,202) $(155) ${161) $ 354 §$(482) $(242) $2413 $(335) $(212)
Net periodic expense {income) $(1,108) $(118) $(144) $ 575 $(396) 5(203) %2650 §(102) $(168)
Less: discontinued operations — — e 198 {109} {80) 885 (8) {61}
Continuing operations - net periodic
expense {income) $(1,108) $(118) $(144) -$ 376 §$(287) 5(123) -$1,765 § (94) $(107)
Weighted-average benefit obligations
assumptions
Discount rate 518% 3.93% 509% 553% 459% 543% 294% 193% 264%
Compensation increases 3.86 2.24 3.25 3.07 2.44 3.12 3.05 2.35 283
initial healthcare trend rate(a) N/A N/A 6.50 N/A NIA 6:40 NIA N/A 5.70
Weighted-average benefit cost
assumptions
Discount rate 5.53 4.59 543 2.94 1.93 2.64 261 1.44 2.5
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.00 5.68 — 6.00 4.80 - 6.25 569 1.25

{a) For 2023, ultimately declining to 5% for 2030 and thereafter,

Netperiodic benefit income in 2024 is estimated to be $1,235 million, which is-a decrease of approximately $135 millionin income from
2023-from continuing operations. The decrease is primarily due to the impact of the discount rates and investment performance offset

by Interest cost,

The compenents of net periodic benefit costs, other than the service cost component, are included in Non-operating benefit cost

(income) i our Statement of Earnings {Loss).
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PLAN FUNDED STATUS AND AMOUNTS RECORDED IN ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE L.OSS (INCOME)

2023 2022
Principal Principal
Principal Other refiree Principal Other retiree
pensien pension benefit pension pension benefit
Change in benefit obligations
Balance at January 1 $ 53591 $13.916 $ 3304 $ 72,299 $22,256 $ 4,308
Service cost 94 37 17 221 86 39
Interest cost 1,882 422 111 2,069 398 108
Participant coniributions 10 19 31 14 19 54
Plan amendments 49 — — —_ —_ —
Actuarial loss (gain) - net 1,081 {(a} 526 (a) 5) (17,281} (a) (6,282} (g) {778) (a)
Benefits paid {2,503} (618) {254) (3,731) {920} {438)
Dispositions/acquisitions/other - net (17,997} (4,387) {(1,149) — — +
Exchange rate-adjustments e 462 R s {1,641) —
“Balance at December 31 $ 36,217 (b) $10,377 S 2,055 (c) 53591 (b) $13,916 $ 3,304 (c)
Change in plan assets
Balance at January 1 $ 44,993 $14,663 3 10 $ 80,990 $22490 $ 42
Actual galn (loss) on plan assetls 1,869 442 — {12,605} {5,334) e
Employer coniributions 212 161 221 325 208 352
Participant contributions 10 19 31 14 19 54
Benefits paid {2,503) {618) (254) {3,731) {920) (438}
Dispositions/acquisitions/other - net {14,837) (4,439) —_ o — —
Exchange rate adjustments — 536 - s {1,801) e
Balance at December 31 $ 29,744 $10,764 3 8 5 44,993 514,663 $ 10
Funded status - surplus (deficit) 5 (6473 $ 387 $ (2,047) $ (8.,598) $§ 747 $(3,294)
Amounis recorded in
Statement of Financial Position
Continuing operations:
Non-current assets - other $ — $ 1,489 5 e $ e $ 1,747 $ —_—
Current liabilities - other (224) {54} {205} {214) {55) {222)
Non-current liabilities - compensation and
benefits{d) {6,249) (1,048) (1,842) (5,243) (1,013) (1.923)
Discontinued operations:
Non-current assets — e i . 844 —
Current and non-current liabilities e T —— (3,141} {776) (1,149}
Net amount recorded $ (6,473) $ 387 $  (2,047) $ (8,598) $ 747 $(3,294)
Amounts recorded in Accumulated
other comprehensive loss {income)
Prior service cost {credit) 5 {25) $ (18) $ (909) s (113) $  (42) ${(1,677)
Net loss (gain) {1,454) 1,680 (980) (5,710) 1,787 (1,705)
Total recorded in Accumulated other
comprehensive loss {income) $ (1,479) $ 1,664 3 (1,899) $ (5,823) $ 1,745 $(3,382)

{a) Primarily due {o impact of discount rates.

{b) The benefit obligation for the GE Energy Supplementary Pension Plan and GE Aerospace Supplementary Pension Plan, which are
unfunded plans, was $3,541 million at December 31, 2023 and the GE Supplementary Pension Plan was $5,457 million at
December 31, 2022,

{c) The benefit obligation for retiree health plans from continuing operations was $1,208 million at December 31, 2023. The benefit
obligation for retiree health plans was $1,991 million at December 31, 2022,

{d) Includes $37 million and $35 million of liabilities held for sale related to cur Steam business as disclosed in Note 2 as of December
31,2023 and 2022, respectively.

ASSUMPTIONS USED IN CALCULATIONS. Our defined benefit pension plans are accounted foron an actuarial basis, which requires
the selection of various assumptions, including a discount rafe, a compensation assumption, an expected return on assets, mortality
rates of participants and expectation of mortality improvement.

Projected benefit obligations are measured as the present value of expected benefit pavments. We discount those cash payments
using a discount rate. We determine the discount rate using the weighted-average vields on high-quality fixed-income securities with
maturities that correspond {o the payment of benefits, Lower discount rates-increase present values and generally.increase
subsequent-yéar pension expense; higher discount rates decrease present values and gerierally reduce subsequent-year pension
expense,
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The compensation assumption is used to estimate the annual rate at which pay of plan participants will grow. If the rate of growth

assumed increases, the size of the pension obligations will increass, as will the amount récorded in AOCI in our Statement of Financial
Position-and amortized into earnings in subseguent periods,

The expected return on plan-assets is-the estimated long-term rate of return-that will be earned on the investments used fo fund the
benefit obligations, To detérmine the expected long<term rate of return on pension plan assets, we consider our asset allocation, as well
as historical and expected returns on various categories of plan assets. In developing future long-term return expectations for our
Hrincipal benefit plans’ assets, we formulate views on the future economic environment, both in the U.S. and abroad. We evaluate
General market-trends and historical relationships among a number of key variables that impact asset class returns such as expected
Bhrnings growth, inflation, valuations, yields and spreads, using both internal-and external sources. We also take into account expected
Shlatility by asset class and diversification across classes to determine expected overall portfolio results given our asset allocation,
Based on our analysis, we have assumed a 7.00% long-term expected return on the GE Energy Pension Plan and GE Aerospace

nsion Plan assets for cost recognition in 2023 and 6.00% for the GE Pension Plan in 2022, For 2024 cost recognition, based on GE
Energy Pension Plan and GE Aerospace Pension Plan assets at December 31, 2023, we have-assumed a 7.00% long-term expected
return.

The healthcare trend assumptions primarily apply to our pre-85 retiree medical plans. Most participants in our post-65 retiree plan have
a fixed subsidy-and therefore are not subject to healthcare inflation.

We evaluate these critical assumptions at least annually on a plan and country-specific basis. We pericdically evaluate other
assumptions involving demographics factors such as retirement age and turnover, and update them to reflect our actual experience and
expectations for the future, Actual results inany given year will often differ from actuarial assumptions because of economic and other
factors, Differences between our actual results and what we assumed are recorded in AOCI each period. These differences are
amortized info-eamings over the remaining average future service of active participating employees or the expected life of inactive
participants, as applicable. For the principal pension plans, gains and losses are amortized using a straight-line method with a separate
tayer for each year's gains and losses. For most other pension plans and principal retiree benefit plans, gains and losses aré amortized
using a straight-line or a corridor amartization method.

SENSITIVITIES TO KEY ASSUMPTIONS. Fluctuations in discount rates can significantly impact pension cost and obligations. We
would expect that a 25 basis point decrease in discount rate would increase our principal pension plan cost for the following vear by
approximately $85 million and would also expect an increase in the principal pension plan projected benefit obligation at year-end by
approximately $905 million. The deficit sensitivity to the discount rate would be lower than the projected benefit obligation sensitivity as
a result of the liability hedging program inicorporated in the asset allocation. A 50 basis point decrease in the expected refurn on assets
would increase principal pension-plan cost in the following year by-approximately $165 million.

THE COMPOSITION OF OUR PLAN ASSETS. The fair value of our pension plans’ investments is presented below, Theinputs and
valuation technigues used fo measure the fair value of these assets are described in Note 1 and have bean applied consistently.

December 31 2023 2022
Principal pension Other pension Principal pension Other pension

Global equities $ 1,985 §$ 1,152 $ 3918 § 1,097
Debt securities

Fixed income and cash investment funds 1,764 4,188 4,918 6,506

1.8, corporate(a) 6,599 145 8,715 382

Other debt securities(b) 6,064 218 : 7,853 443
Real estate 775 18 1,486 53
Private equities and other Investments 600 259 1,245 364
Total 17,787 5,980 28,135 8,845
Plan assets measured at'net agset value
Global equities $ 3169 § 612 § 3285 5 1,029
Debt securities 1,907 2,224 3,469 1,024
Real estate 1,067 1,074 1,624 1,876
Private squities and other investments 5,814 . 874 8,480 1,788
Total plan assets at fair value 29,744 10,764 44,993 14,663
Less: discontinued operations — B 14,860 4,431
Total plan assets -~ continuing operations 3 20744 % 10,764 % 30,133 § 10,232

{a) Prmarily represented investment-grade bonds of LS, issuers from diverse industries.

{b) Primarily represented investments in residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities, non-U.S. corporate and government
bands and U,S. government, federal agency, state and municipal debt.
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Plan assets that were measured at fair value using NAV as a practical expedient were excluded from the fair value hierarchy. Principal
Pension Plans' investments with a fair value of $1,203 million and $2,255 million at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, were
classified within Level 3 and primarily relate to private equities and real estate. The remaining investments were substantially all
considered Level 1 and 2. Investments with a fair value of $4,034 million and $6,759 million at December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, were classified within Level T and primarily relate to global equities and cash. Investments with a fair value of $12,703
millien and $18,606 million at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, were clagsified within Level 2 and primarily relate: to debt
securities. Other pension plans investments with a fair value of $26 million and $81 million at December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respactively, were classified within Level 3 and primarily relate to private equities and real estate. The remaining investments were
substantially all considered Level 1 and 2. Investments with a fair value of $786 million and $841 million at December 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively, were classified within Level 1 and primarily relate to global equities and cash. Investments with a fair value of $4,913
million and $7,580 million at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, were classified within Level 2 and primarily relate to debt
securities. Principal retiree benefit plan investments have a fair value of $8 million and $10 million at December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. There were no Level 3 principal retiree benefit plan investments held in 2023 and 2022,

ASSET ALLOCATION OF PENSION PLANS 2023 Target allocation 2023 Actual allocation
Other Pension Cther Pension
Principal {weighted Principal {weighted
Pension avarage} Pension average)
Global equities 10.0 -30.0 % 16 % 17 % 17 %
Debt securities (including cash equivalents) 31.0-815 60 55 62
Real estate 1.0-100 8 B 10
Private equities & other investments 8.0-34.0 16 22 11

Plan fiduciaries set investment policies and strategies forthe principal pension plans and oversee their investrient allocation, which
includes sslecting Investment managers and setting long-term strategic targets. The plan fiduclaries’ primary strategic investment
objectives are balancing investment risk and return-and monitoring the plan’s liquidity position in arder to mest near-term benefit
payment and other cash needs. The plan has Incorporated de-risking objectives and liability hedging progrems as part of its long-term
investment strategy and utilizes a combination-of jong-dated corporate bonds, treasuries, strips and derivatives to implement its
investment strategies as well as for hedging asset and liability risks, Target allocation percentages are established at an asset class
tevel by plan fiduciaries. Target allocation ranges are guidelines, not limitations, and occasionally plan fiduciaries will approve
allocations above or below a target range.

GE securities represented 0.5% and 0.7% of the Principal Pension Plans’ assets at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

ANNUALIZED RETURNS(a) 1 year 5 years 10 years 25 years
GE Aerospace Pension Plan 8.5 % 5.2 % 4.6 % 53%
GE Energy Pension Plan 6.6 % 52% 4.6 % 53 %
(&) Priorto 2023, the annualized refurns represent the GE Pension Plan's refums.

Principal Principal refiree
EXPECTED FUTURE BENEFIT PAYMENTS OF OUR BENEFIT PLANS(a) pension Other pension benefit
2024 $ 2570 $ 570 § 220
2025 2,590 560 210
2026 2,606 560 205
2027 2615 580 200
2028 2,615 580 185
2029-2033 12,885 3,065 845

(a) As of the - measurement date of December31, 2023.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS. We have a defined contribution plan for eligible U.S.
amployees that provides employer contributions which were $342 million, $444 million and $418 million for the years ended December
314, 2023, 2022, and 2021, réspectively. Employer contributions for continuing operations were $342 milllon, $322 million, and $289
rillion for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively. We also have deferred incentive compensation plans-and
deferred salary plans for eligible employees. Liabilities associated with these plans were $918 million and $913 million as of December
31,2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively. Expenses associated with these plans from continuing operations was $63 million, $46
million,-and $43 million for the years ended December 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively.
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COST OF POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND CHANGES IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended December 31 2023 2022 2021
Principal Principal Principal
Principal Other  retiree  Principal.  Other  refiree  Principal Other retiree
{Pre-tax) pension pension  benefit pension pension  benefit  pension pension  benefit
%nst {income) of postretirement benefit
-plans $(1,108)$ (118)$% (144) $ 575 § (396)$ (203) $ 2650 § (102)$ (168)
%hanges in other comprehensive loss
ncome}
'§ Prior service cost {credit) - current year 49 — — — — — — (1) i
= Net loss (gain) - current year(a) 1,588 721 {5y {1,533) (128) (778) (4,859) (2,104} {488)
“Reclassifications out of AOCI
Curtailment/settlement gain (loss) — 6 — — 8 e — {68) —
Dispositionsfacquisitions/other - net 1,989 {792y 1,218 o e s — (68) .
Amortization of net-gain (loss) 723 (20) 124 (1,422) (101) 115 (3,483) {403) 79
Amortization of prior service credit (cost) {5) 4 148 (5} 8 235 {28) - 3 236
Total changes in other comprehensive
loss (income) 4,344 (81) 1,483 (2,960) (215) (428) (8,470) (2,641) (173)

Cost (income) of postretirement benefit

plans and changes in other .
comprehensive loss (income) § 3236 % (199)% 1,338 $(2,385} 8% (B11)$ (631) $(5820)% (2,743} § (341)

{a) Primarily due to impact of discotint rates arnd investment performance.

NOTE 14. ALL OTHER LIABILITIES

December 31 2023 2022
Sales discounts and allowances(a) $ 3,746 § 3,950
Equipment projects and other commercial liabilities 2,018 1,422
Product warranties. (Note:24) 910 1,075
Employee compensation and benefit liabilities 4,001 3,339
Interest payable 323 352
Taxes payable 654 578
Environmental, health and safety liabilities {Note 24) 188 248
Derivative instruments {Note 22) 161 420
Other 711 746
All other current liabilities 3 12,712 § 12,130
Equipment projects and other commercial liabilities $ 1,802 $ 2,192
Product warranties (Note 24) 1,143 885
Operating lease liabllities (Note 8) 1,973 2,089
Uncertain and other income {axes and related liabilities 2,182 2,459
Alstom legacy legal matters (Note 24} 393 455
Environmental, health and safety liabilities (Note 24) 2,278 2,166
Other 737 818
All other non-current liabilities $ 10,508 $ 11,063
Total All other liabilities 5 23,221 § 23,193

(a) Primarily comprise amounts payable to airlines based on future aircraft deliveries by airframers and discounts on spare parts and
repair sales at our Aerospace segment.

NOTE 15. INCOME TAXES. GE files a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return that enagbles GE's businesses fo use tax
dedugctions and credits of cne member of the group to reduce the tax that otherwise would have been payable by another member of
the group. The effective tax rate reflects the benefit of these tax reductions in the consolidated return. Cash payments are made o GE's
businesses for tax reductions and from GE's businesses for tax increases.

Our businesses are subject to a wide variety of U.S. federal, state and foreign tax laws, regulations and policies, Changes to these laws
orregulations may affect our tax liability, return on investments and business operations. On August 18,2022, the U.8. enacted the
Inflation Reduction Act that includes a new alternative minimum tax based upon financlal statement income-{book minimum tax), an
excise tax on stock buybacks and tax incentives for energy and climate initiatives, among other provisions. The new book minimum tax
is expected toslow but not-eliminate the favorable tax impact of our deferred tax assets, resulting in higher cash tax in some years-that
would generate future tax credits. The impact of the book minimum tax will depend on our facts in each year and guidance from the
U.,8. Department of the Treasury. Separately, there are tax incentives in the legislation that benefit our pre-tax income without increasing
{ax expense.
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The OECD {Organisation for Economic Co-operation-and Development) has proposed a global minimum tax of 15% of reported profits
(Piliar 2) that has been agreed upon in principle by over 140 countries, During 2023, many countries took steps to incorporate Pillar 2
model rule concepts into thelr domestic laws. Although the model rules provide a framework for applying the minimum tax; countries
may enact Pillar 2 slightly differently than the model rules and on different imelines and may adjust domestic tax incentives in response
to Pillar 2, Accordingly, we still are evaluafing the potential consequences of Pillar 2 on our longer-term financial position.

EARNINGS (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TAXES 2023 2022 2021
U8, earnings (loss) 5 7037 % (908) $ (3,596)
Non-U.S. earnings (loss) 3,154 109 2,099)
Total $ 10,191 % (799} 5,695)
PROVISION (BENEFIT) FOR INCOME TAXES 2023 2022 2021
Current

U.S. Federal $ (423) % 311 % {1,475)

Non-U.5. 823 733 655

U.S. State 140 (52) (145)
Deferred

U.S. Federal 49 {617) (366)

Non-UL3. 591 352 810

U.8. State (17) {108) (36)
Total 3 1,162 § (3) % {757}

income taxes paid were $994 million, $1,128 million and $1,330 million for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, including payments reported in discontinued operations.

RECONCILIATION OF U.S. FEDERAL 2023 2022 2021

STATUTORY INCOME TAX RATE TO ACTUAL

INCOME TAX RATE Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

.8, federal statutory income tax rate $ 2,140 21.0%% {168) 21.0% % {1.,196) 21.0%
Tax on global activities including exporis(a) 462 45 300 (37.8) 154 (2.7)
1.8, general business credits(b) (273) {2.7) (233) 291 (175) 34
Debt tender and related valuation allowances o e 30 {3.8) 840 {16:5)
Deductible stock and restructuring losses — — — - {583) 10.2
Retained and sold ownership interests {1,.215) (11.9) 3 {04) 45 {0:8)
Adl other ~ net{c)(d) 48 0.5 65 {7.9) 58 {1.0)

(978) {9.8) 165 (20.6) 439 (7.7}
Actual income tax rate $ 1,162 114 % $ (3) 04%$ (757} 13.3.%

(a) For the year ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively, the expense/{benefit) related to the negotiated tax rate in
Singapore was $(136) million, $(112) million and $(83) million.

{b) Primarily the credit for energy produced from renewable sources and the credit for research performed in the U.S.

(c) For the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, included $9 million and $134 million for separation income tax costs. of which
$38 million and $66 million was due to the repatriation of previously reinvested earnings.

{dy Included for each period, the expense or benefitfor U.S. state taxes reported above inthe consolidated (beneflt) provision for
income taxes, net of 21.0% federal effect.

UNRECOGNIZED TAX POSITIONS. Annually, we file over 2,300 income tax refurns inover 270 global taxing jurisdictions. We are
under examination or-engaged in tax litigation in'many of these jurisdictions. The IRS is currently auditing our consolidated U.S. income
tax returng for 2016-2018.

In September 2021, GE resolved its dispute with the United Kingdom tax authorlty, HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC} in connection with
interest deductions claimed by GE Capital for the years 2004-2015, As previously disclosed, HMRC had proposed to disallow interest
deductions with a potential impact of approximately $1,100 million, which included a possible assessment of tax and reduction of
deferred tax assefs, not including interest and penalties. As part of the seftlement, GE and HMRC agreed that a portion of the interest
deductions claimed were disallowead, with no fault or blame attributed to sither party. The resolution concluded the dispute in its entirety
without interest or penalties. The adjustments result in no current tax payment to HMRC, but a deferred tax charge of $112 million' as
part of discontinued operations as a result of a reduction of available tax attributes, which had previously been recorded as deferred tax
assels:
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The balance of unrecognized tax benefits, the amount of related interest and penalties we have provided and what we believe to be the
range of reasonably possible changes in the next 12 months {excluding the expected decrease to the GE balance due to the
announced plan to spin-off GE Vernova and for 2022 and 2021 the impact of the spin-off of GE HealthCare) were:

UNRECOGNIZED TAX BENEFITS 2023 2022 2021
 Unrecognized tax benefits $ 3,399 § 3,951 % 4,224
ortior that, if recognized, would reduce tax expense and effective tax rate{a) 2,708 3,072 3,351
PAccrued interest on unrecognized tax benefits 635 614 597
rheorued penalties on unrecognized tax benefits 111 111 146
“Reasonably possible reduction to the balance of unrecognized tax benefits
&% in succeeding 12 months 0-100 0-650 0-250
SPortion that, if recognized, would reduce tax expense and effective tax rate(a) 0-100 0-600 0-200

(a) Some portion of such reduction may be reported as discontinued operations.

UNRECOGNIZED TAX BENEFITS RECONCILIATION 2023 2022 2021

Balance at January 1 $ 3,951 § 4,224 § 4,191
Additions for tax positions of the current year 109 62 386
Additions for tax positions of prior years 156 120 327
Reductions for {ax positions of prior years(a) (710} (393) (585)
Settlements with tax authorities : (56) {8) {33)
Expiration of the statute of limitations {51) {54) {71)
Balance at December 31 3 3,399 % 3,951 § 4,224

(a) For 2023, reductions included $577 million related to the spin-off of GE HealthCare.

We classify interest on tax deficiencies as interest expense; we classify income tax penalties as provision for income taxes. For the
years ended Daecember 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, $28 million, $36 million and $17 million of interest expense {income), respectively,

and $7 million, $(26) million and ${29) million of tax expense (income) related to penalties, respectively, were recognized in our
Statement of Eamings (Loss).

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES. As part of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 {U.S. tax reform), the U.S. has enacted a minimum tax on
foreign-eamings {global intangible low taxed income). We have not made an accrual for the deferred tax aspects of this provision, We
also have not provided deferred taxes on cumulative net earnings of non-U.8. affiliates and associated companies of approximately

$7 billion that have been reinvested indefinitely. Given U.S. tax reform, substantially all of our prior unrepatriated net earmings were
subject to U.8. tax and accordingly we expect to have the ability to repatriate available non-U.S. cash without additional federal tax cost,
and any foreign withholding tax on a repatriation to the U.S. may be at least partially offset by a U.S. foreign tax credit. Most of these
earnings have been reinvested in active nan-U.8. business operations and it is not practicable to determine the income tax liability that
would be payable if such samings wete not reinvested indefinitely. We reassess reinvestment of earmings on an ongoing basis. In.2023
and 2022, in connection with the execution of the Company’s plans o prepare for the spin-off of GE Vernova and GE HealthCare, we
incurred $38 million and $66 million of tax, respectively, due to repatriation of previously reinvested earnings.

The total deferred tax asset as of December 31, 2023 and December 31; 2022 includss $858 million:and $435 million, respectively,
related to the required capitalization of research costs for U.S. tax purposes effective January 1, 2022, Included In discontinued
operations as of December 31, 2022 is a deferred tax asset of $279 million related to GE HealthCare, which became a deferred asset
of the separate company upon spin-off inthe first quarterof 2023. Inthe event capitalization of research costs is adjusted through
retroactive legislation effective for 2022, GE will record a tax provision benefit related to GE HealthCare research costs as a result of
the benefit in-a consolidated GE 1ax return without payment under the Tax Matters Agreement.

The following table presents our net deferred tax assets and net deferred tax llabifities attributable to differenttax jurisdictions or
different tax paying components.

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES December 31 2023 2022
Total assets $ 11,128 3 10,626
Total liabilities {653) {625)
Net deferred income tax asset (liability) $ 10,675 $ 10,001
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COMPONENTS OF THE NET DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSET (LIABILITY) December 31 2023 2022
Deferred tax assets
Insurance company loss reserves $ 3,185 § 2,492
Progress collections, contract assets and deferred items 2,753 2,365
Accrued expensas and reserves 2,197 2,215
Deferred expenses 1.317 1,438
Other compensation and benefits 1,143 1,173
Principal pension plans 1,359 1,146
Non-L). 8. loss carryforwards(a) 972 939
Other(b) 843 1,000
Total deferred tax assels $ 13,769 § 12,768
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation $ (702) $ (613)
Global investments, partrierships, join ventures and non-consolidated entities (1,389) (1,440)
___ Other _ 1,103) (714}
Total deferred tax liabilities 3,184) (2,767)
Net deferred income tax asset (liability) $ 10,575 & 10,001

(a) Net of valuation allowances of $6,932 million and $6,3689 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Of the net
deferred tax asset as of December 31, 2023 of $972 million, $73 million relates to net operating loss carryforwards that expire in
various years ending from December 31,2024 through December 31, 2026; $327 million relates to net operating losses that expire
in various years ending from December 31, 2027 through December 31, 2043; and $572 million relates o net operating loss

carryfarwards that may be carred forward indefinitely:

{b) Included valuation allowances related to assets other than non-U.S. loss carryforwards of $1.937 million and $3,264 million as of
Decamber 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. These primarily relate o excess capital loss carryforwards and excess U.S. foreign tax
credits. The decrease in valuation allowance from December31, 2022 to December 31, 2023 reflects utilization of losses against

2023 net capital gains of $1,413 million including gains reported in discontinued operations. The valuation allowance as of

December 31, 2022 increased during the vear primarily because it includes $1,327 million of valuation allowance against a deferred
tax asset for deductible stock and restructuring losses for the year ended December 31, 2022 which was not likely to be utilized.

NOTE 16. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS)

{Dividends per share in dollars) 2023 2022 2021
Beginning balance 3 (5,893) $ {(4,569) % (4,395)
AQCI before reclasses —net of taxes of $74, $144 and ${80) 12 {1,326) (101)
Reclasses from AOCI — net of taxes of $(628), $0 and $87(a} 2,262 — {71}
AQCI 2,274 (1,326} {172)
Less AOCI attributable to noncontrolling interests 4 {2} 2
"Currency translation adjustments AOCI 3 {5,623) § {5,803) % 4,569)
Beginning balance $ 6531 $ 3,646 § {5,395)
AOCI before reclasses — net of taxes of $(497), $597 and $1,643 (1,874) 2117 6,225
Reclasses from AOCI ~ net of taxes of ${778), $216 and $793(a) {2,873) 772 2,819
ADGH (4,747) 2,889 9,044
Less AOCI atiributable to noncontrolling interests {2} 3 3
Benefit plans AOCI $ 1,786 % 6,531 % 3,646
_Beginning balance $ {1,927} 5172 § 6,471
AQCH before reclasses —net of taxes of $248, $(1,861) and $({386) 1,046 (7.,135) {1,343)
Reclasses from AQCI =~ net of taxes of $(7), $(20) and $23(a) (78) 36 44
AOCI 968 (7,099} (1,299}
Investment securities and cash flow hedges AQCI 3 (959) % (1,927) $ 5172
Beginning balance 3 (983) § (9,109}'$ {11,708}
AOCH before reclasses ~ nef of taxes of $(630), $2,160 and $631 {2,371) 8,126 2,589
AOCI (2,3:/_1 } 8,126 2,589
Long-duration insurance contracts AQCI $ {3,354) $ (983) % {9:109)
AOCI at December 31 $ (6,150} $ (2,272} % {4,860)
Dividends declared per comimon share $ 032 § 032 % 0.32

{a) The total reclassification from AOQCT included $185 million; including currency translation-of $2,234 million and benefit plansof
$(2,030) million, net of taxes, in first quarter of 2023 related to the spin-off of GE HealthCare.
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Preferred stock. On September 15, 2023 we redeemed the remaining outstanding shares of GE preferred stock, We redeemed $5,795
millien and $144 million of GE preferred stock in the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, Dividends on GE
preferred stock fotaled $237 million, including cash dividends of $236 million, $289 million, including cash dividends of $284 million, and
$237 million, Including cash dividends of $220 million, for the years ended December 31,.2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Common stock. GE's authorized common stock-consists of 1,650 million shares having a par value of $0.01 each, with 1,462 million
shares issued. Common stock shares outstanding were 1,088,415,995 and 1,089,107,878 at December 31, 2023 and 2022,
gaspectively. We repurchased 11.0'million, 13.6 miillion and 0.5 million shares, for a total of $1,135 million, $1,000 million and $36 million
?Er the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

pief
NOTE 17. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION. We grant-stock options, restricted stock units and performance share units to
mployees under-the 2007 and 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plans. Grants made.under all plans must be approved by the: Management
velopment and Compensation Commitiee of GE’s Board of Directors, which is composed entirely of independent directors. We
record-compensation expense for awards expected to vest over the vesting period. We estimate forfeitures based on experience and
adjust expense to reflect actual forfeitures. When options are exercised, restricted stock units vest, and performance share awards are
earried, wea issue shares from treasury stock.

Stock options provide employees the opportunity to-purchase GE shares in the future at the market price of our stock on-the date the
award is granted {the strike price). The options become exercisable over the vesting period, typically three vears, and expire 10 years
from the grant date if not exercised. Restricted stock units (RSU) provide an employee with the right to receive one share of GE stock
when the restrictions lapse over the vesting period. Upon vesting, each RSU is converted into one share of GE common stock for each
unit, Performance share units (PSU)Y and performance shares provide an employee with the right to receive shares of GE stock based
upon achisvement of certain performance or market metries. Upon vesting, each PSU earned is converted into shares of GE common
stock. We value stock options using a Black-Scholes option pricing model, RSUs using market price on grant date, and PSUs and
performance shares using market price on grant date and a Monte Carlo simulation as needed based on performance metrics:

In connection with the separation of GE HealthCare, outstanding awards held by participants under the 2007 and 2022 Long-Term
Incentive Plans were equitably converted into shares of GE andlor GE HealthCare Technologies Inc. awards as required, to preserve
the intrinsic value of the awards prior to the separation, Adjustments to the stock-based compensation awards did not result in
incremental compensation expense.

WEIGHTED AVERAGE GRANT DATE FAIR VALUE 2023 2022 2021
Stock options $ 3610 34,03 % 40.84
RSUs 89.60 87.68 104.98
P8Us/Performance shares 89.44 95.40 108.51

Key assumptions used in the Black-Scholes.valuation for stock options include: risk free rates of 4.2%, 1.6%, and-1.1%, dividend vields
of 0.4%, 0.4%, and 0.3%, expected volatility of 36%, 37%, and 40%, expected lives of 6.8 years, 6.8 vears, and 6.2 years, and strike
prices of $88.15, $92.33, and $105.12 for 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively.

Stock options RSUs
Weighted Weighted
Weighted average Weighted average
average contractual intrinsic average contractual Intrinsic
STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION Shares {in exercise term {in value (in  Shares (in  grantdate term {in value (in
ACTIVITY thousands) price years]  millions} thousands) fairvalue years)  millions)
Outstanding at January 1, 2023 31,023 $ 142868 9687 § 79.82
Spin-off adjustment{a) 3,704 N/A {784} NIA
Granted 358 88.15 3,203 89.60
Exercised {7,275) 77.64 {3,480) 67.98
Forfeited 21 64.46 {523} 69.73
Expired {5,216y  1b2.04 NIA N/A
Outstanding at December 31, 2023 22573 § 12235 3.0.% 544 8103 & 7852 .18 1,034
Exercisable at December 31, 2023 21,388 § 124.83 28 % 484 NIA N/A N/A N/A
Expected to vest 1,088 & 77.50 7.7°% 55 7313 § 78.09 1.0 § 933

(a) The spin-off gdjustment represents the net of shares converted Into:new GE awards and shares converted and transferred 1o GE
HealthCare Technologies Inc, as a result of the January 3, 2023 separation of GE HealthCare.

Total outstanding target PSUs and performance shares at December 31, 2023 were 2,315 thousand shares with a weighted-average

fair value of $68.58. The intrinsic value and weighted average contractual term of target PSUS and performance shares outstanding
ware $295 million and 1.3 years, respectively.
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2023 022 20

Compensation expense (after-taxj(a) $ 299 % 251 % 308
Cash received from stock options exercised 565 62 83
Intrinsic value of stock options exercised and RSU/PSUs vested 561 170 217

{a) Unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested equity awards as of December 31,2023 was $318 million, which will be
amortized over a weighted average period of 1.0 year. Income tax benefit recognized in earnings was $61 million, $12 million and an
insignificantamount in 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively,

NOTE 18. EARNINGS PER SHARE INFORMATION

2023 2022 2021
gﬁﬁiggfugﬁgz’g{fg’w’am"’ shares in millions, per- Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ 9063 % 8,066 § (811} 8 @11y $ (48228 (4,822
Preferred stock dividends and other-and accretion
of preferred-share repurchase(a) (295) {295} {288) {286) (246) (246}
Eamings (loss) from continuing operations

attributable to common shareholders 8,768 8,772 {1,097) (1.097) {5,067) (5,067}
Eamings (loss) from discontinued operations 414 414 1,151 1,151 {1,516) (1,516)
Net earnings {loss) attributable to. GE common

shareholders 9,182 9,186 54 54 {6,583) {6,583)
Shares of GE common stock outstanding 1,089 1,089 1,096 1,096 1,088 1,098
Employee compensation-related shares (including
stock options) 10 e — _— —_ R
Total average equivalent shares 1,089 1,089 1,096 1,088 1,098 1,098
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ 7.98 % 806 § {(1.00) § (100} § 4.62) % {4.62)
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations 0.38 0.38 1.056 1.08 {1.38) {1.38)
Net earnings (loss) per share 8.38 8.44 0.05 0.05 {6.00) {6.00)
Potentially dilutive securities(b) 26 45 41

(a) For the year ended December 31, 2023, includad $(58) million related o excise tax on preferred share redemptions.
{b} Outstanding stock awards not included in the computation of diluted eamings {loss} per share because their effect was antidilutive.

QOur unvested restricted stock unit awards that contain nion-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents are considered
participating securities and, therefore, are included in the computation of earnings per share pursuant fo the two-class method. For the
year ended December 31, 2023, application of this treatment had an insignificant effect. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021, as a result of the loss from continuing operations, losses were not alfocated to the participating securities.

NOTE 19. OTHER INCOME (LOSS)

2023 2022 2021
Investment in GE HealthCare realized and unrealized gain {loss) 5 5,639 3 e G —
Investment in and note with AerCap realized and unrealized gain (loss) 129 (865) 711
Investment in Baker Hughes realized and unrealized gain (loss) 10 912 938
Gains {lossesyon retained and sold-ownership interests $ 5778 § 47 '§ 1,648
Other net interest and investment income (loss)(a) 739 474 585
Licensing and royalty income 244 185 175
Equity method income 237 220 (123)
Purchases and sales of business interests(b) 104 60 (52)
Other items 28 185 462
Total other income {loss) $ 7,129 § 1,972 % 2,686

{(a) Included interest income associated with customer advances of $156 million, $162 million and $167 million in 2023, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. See Note & forfurther information.

(b} Included a pre-tax loss of $170 million related to the sale of our boller manufacturing business in China inour Power segment in
2021.
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Ourinvestment in GE HealthCare comprises 61.6 million shares (approximately 13.5% ownership interest) at December 31, 2023,
During the year ended December 31, 2023, we received total proceeds of $2,192 million from the disposition of GE HealthCare shares.
During the year ended December 31, 2023, we received total proceeds of $6,587 million from the sale-of our remaining AerCap shares,
leaving an AerCap senlor note as our only remaining position. During the first quarter of 2023, we received proceeds of $216 million
from the sale of Baker Hughes shares and have now fully monetized our position.

NOTE 20. RESTRUCTURING CHARGES AND SEPARATION COSTS

RESTRUCTURING AND'OTHER CHARGES. This table Is inclusive of all restructuring charges in our segments and at Corporate, and
fhie charges are shown below for the business where they originated. Separately, in our reported segment results, significant, higher-

st restructuring programs are excluded from measurement of segment operating performance for internal and external purposes;
ﬁ;ase excluded amounts are reported in Restructuring and other charges for Corporate.

‘ﬁESTRUCTU RING AND OTHER CHARGES 2023 2022 2021
Workforce reductions $ 392 § 281 % 568
Plant closures & associated costs and other asset write-downs 258 533 "7
Acquisition/disposition net charges and other 56 30 {21y
Total restructuring and other charges 8 706 % 845 § 664
Cost of equipment/services $ 157 $ 206 § 348
Selling, general and administrative expenses 549 669 390
Other (income) loss - {31} {75)
Total restructuring and other charges 3 706 $ 845 § 664
Aerospace $ 13 % 20 % 70
Renewable Energy 298 177 204
Power 107 155 369
Corporate 290 494 20
Total restructuring and other charges(a) $ 706 $ 845 $ 664
Restructuring and other charges cash expenditures(b) $ 508 § 415 § 6683

{a) Includes $303 million, $366 milllon and $114 million primarily in non-cash impairment, accelerated depreciation and other charges
for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively, not reflected in the liability table below.
(b} Primarily for employee severance payments, contract'and lease terminations.

An analysis of changes in‘the liability forrestructuring follows:

2023 2022 202

Balance at beginning of period $ 877 $ 825 § 1,065
Additions 403 479 8550
Payments (351) (310) (570)
Remeasuremeant : ) (42) 15 {169)
Effect of foreign currency and other (69) {32) {51)
“Balance at December 31{a) 3 918 § 977 $ 825

{a) Includes actuarial determined post-employment severance benefits reserve of $324 million, $348 million and $321 million as of
December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

In 2023 and 2022, restructuring primarily included-exit activities related to the restructuring programs announced in 2022, reflecting
lower Corporate shared-service and footprint nieeds as a result of the GE HealthCare spin-off, and exit activities across our businesses
planned to be part of GE Vernova, primarily reflecting the selectivity strategy to operate in fewer markets and to simplify and
standardize product variants at Renewable Energy. This plan was expanded during the third quarter of 2023 to include the consolidation
of the global foolprint and related resources at our Power business to better serve our customers.

In 2021, restructuring primarily included exit activities at our Power business related to our new coal build wind-down actions, which
included the exit of certain product lines, closing certain manufacturing and office facilities and other workforce reduction programs.

SEPARATION COSTS, In November 2021, the company announced its plan to form three industry-leading, global public companies
focused on the growth sectors of aviation, heaithcare,-and anergy. As a result of this plan, we have Incurred and expect to continue to
incur separation, transition, and operational costs, which will depend on specifics of the transactions.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, we incurred pre-tax separation expense of $978 million and paid $1,059 million in cash,
primarily related to employee costs, professional fees,; costs to-establish certain stand-alone functions and information technology
systems, and other transformation and fransaction costs fo transition fo stand-alone public companies. These costs are presented as
separation costs in cur consolidated Statement of Earnings {Loss). In addition, we recognized -$197 million of net tax benefit; primarily
associated with planned legal entity separation and tax on changes to indefinite reinvestment of foreign earnings.
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For'the year ended Degember 31, 2022, we incurred pre-tax separation costs of $715 million, and paid $158 million in cash, and
recognized $16 miflion of net tax benefit, related to separation activities.

As discussed in Note 2, GE completed the separation of its HealthCare business into a separate, independent publicly traded company,
GE HealthCare Technologies Inc. As a result; pre-tax separation costs specifically identifiable to GE HealthCare are now reflected in
discontinued operations. We incurred $22 million and $258 million in pre-tax costs, recognized $5 million and $54 million of tax benefit
and spent $182 million and $103 million in cash related to GE HealthCare for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

NOTE 21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS Our assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basls include debt
securities mainly supporting obligations to annuitants and policyholders in our run-off insurance operations, our equity interests in GE
HealthCare and AerCap and derivatives.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ON A RECURRING BASIS

Nettin
Level1 Level 2 Level 3(a) adjustmegt{d) Net balance(b)
December 31 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Investment securities  § 4,767 $ 6,732 $ 32,008 § 30,483 § 6841 § 6,421 § — — $ 43,706 $ 43,636
Derivatives —_— s 943 1,274 8 1 {512} (821) 437 454
Total assets $ 4,767 $ 6,732 $ 33,042 $ 31,757 $ 6,847 § 6421 $ (512)$ (821) $ 44,143 $ 44,090
Derivatives $ — $ — § 669 § 1,240 % 2% — % (G1Y% @B200% 181§ 420
Other(c) - — 428 379 e — - " 428 379
Total liahilities $ — $ — § 1,007 § 1,619 § 23 — % (10)% (B20)$ 588 § 799

{a) Included $3,873 million of U.S. corporate debt securities, $1,491 million of Mortgage and asset-backed debt securities, and the 5944
million AerCap note at December 31, 2023. Included $3,548 million of U.8. corporate debt securities, $1,386 million of Morlgage and
asset-backed debt securities, and the 3900 million AerCap note at December 31, 2022.

{b) Included investment securities in our run-off Insurance operations of $37,592 million and $35,503 million as of December 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively, which are Level 2 and 3. See Notes 3 and 22 for further information on the composition of our investment
securities and derivative portfolios.

{c) Primarily represents the liabilities assoclated with certain of our deferred incentive compensation plans.

(d) The netting of derivative recelvables and payables is permitted when a legally enforceable master nelling agresment exists.
Armounts include fair value adjustments related to our own-and counterparty non-performance risk.

LEVEL 3 INSTRUMENTS. The majority of our Level 3 balances comprised debt securities classifled as available-for-sale with changes
in fair value recorded in Other comprehensive income.

Net realized/ Transfers Transfers
Balance at unrealized Sales & info out of Balance at
January 1 gains{losses}{a)  Purchases(h) Settlenents Level 3 Level 3 December 31
2023
Investment securities § 6421 § 195 § 817 § {398) § 37 § {30} $ 6,841
2022
Investment securities § 7,222 % (1,002) § 973 § {628) $ 57 § {201} § 6,421

{a) Primarily included net unrealized gains (losses) of $134 million and $(994) million in Other comprehensive income for the years
ended Decerber 31, 2023 and 2022, respectivaly.

{b} Included $379 million of U.S. corporate debt securities and $177 million-of Morigage and-asset-backed debt securities for the year
ended December 31, 2023, Included $508 million of U.S. corporate debt securities and $302 million of Mortgage and asset-backed
debt securities for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The majority of these Level 3 securitles are fair valued using noni-binding broker quotes or other third-party sources that utilize a
number of different unobservable inputs not subject to meaningful aggregation.

NOTE 22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS. The following table provides information about assets and liabilities not carried at fair
value and excludes finance leases, equity securities without readily determinable fair value and non-financial assets and liabilities.
Substantially all of these assets are considered to be Level 3 and the vast majority of our liabilities’ fair value are considered Level 2.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Garrying Carrying
amount Estimated amount Estimated
{net} fair value {net) fair value
Assels Loans and other receivables $ 2438 % 2,379 % 2,557 % 2,418
Liabilities Borrowings (Note 10) 3 20,085 § 20,689 % 24,059 § 22.849
Invesiment contracts (Note 12) 1,535 1,616 1,708 1,758
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Assets and liabilities that are reflected in the accompanying financial statements at fair value are not included in the above disclosures:;
such items include cash and equivalents, investment securities and derivative financial instruments.

DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING. Ourpolicy requires that derivatives are used solely for managing risks and not for speculative
purposes. We use derivatives to manage currency risks related to foreign exchange, and interest rate and currency risk between
financial assefs and liabilities, and certain equity investments and commaodity prices.

o

We use cash flow hedges primarily to reduce or eliminate the effects of foreign exchange rate changes, net investment hedges to
fiedge investments in foreign operations as well as fair value hedges to hedge the effects of interest rate and currency changes on debt
has issued, We also use derivatives not designated as hedges from an accounting standpoint (and therefore we do.not apply hedge
Steounting to the relationship) but otherwise serve the same economic purpose as other hedging arrangements. We use economic
Hedges when we have exposures to currency exchange risk for which we are unable to meet the requirements for hedge accounting or
When changes in the carrying amount of the hedged item are already recorded in earnings in the same period as the derivative making
hedge accounting unnecessary. Even though the derivative is an effective economic hedge, there may be a net effect on earnings in
each period due to differences in the timing of earmings recognition between the derivative and the hedged item.

FAIR VALUE OF DERIVATIVES December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Aliother  All.other Allother  All other
Gross current current Gross current current
Notional assets liabilities Motional assets fiabilities
Qualifying currency exchange confracts $ 6648 § 156..% 91 § 5112 § 132 § 146
Non-qualifying currency exchange contracts and other 50,563 794 580 52,788 1,143 1,085
Gross derivatives $ 57211 % 950 % 871 $ 57898 % 1275 § 1,241
Metting and credit adjustments $ (128 (B10) $ (82138 (820)
Net derivatives in statement of financial position 3 437 % 161 3 454§ 420

FAIR VALUE HEDGES. As of December 31, 2023, all fair value hedges were terminated. Gains (losses) associated with the terminated
hedging relationships will continue to amortize into interest expense unti] the hedged borrowings mature. The cumulative amount of
hedging adjustments of $1,162 million (all on discontinued hedging relationships) was included in the carrying amount of the previously
hedged liability of $9,253 million. At December 31, 2022, the cumulative amount of hedging adjustments of $1,240 million {(all on
discontinued hedging relationships) was included in the carrying amount of the previously hedged liability of $9,833 million. The
cumulative-amount of hedging adjustments was primarily recorded in long-term borrowings:

CASH FLOW HEDGES AND NET INVESTMENT HEDGES
Gain {loss) recognized in AOCI for the year ended December 31

2023 2022 2021
Cash flow hedges(a} $ 83§ (242) % {140)
Net investment hedges(b) {153) 341 487

{(a} Primarily related to currency exchange contracts. .

(b) The carrying value of foreign currency debt designated as net investment hedges was $4,726 million and $3,329 million as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The total reclassified from AOCI into earnings was zero, zero and ${87) million for the
years ended December 31,2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges are recorded in AOCI and recorded in earnings in the period in which the hedged
transaction occurs. The total amount in AOCH related to cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions'was a $2 million loss as of
December 31, 2023. We expect to reclassify $6 million of loss to earnings in the next 12 menths contemporansously with the earnings
effects of the related forecasted transactions. As of December 31, 2023, the maximum term of derivative instruments that hedge

forecasted transactions was approximately 12 years.

The table below presents the effects of hedges and resulting gains (losses) of our derivative financial instruments in.the Statement of
Earnings (Loss):

2023 2022
Debt
Interest Other extinguishment  Interest Other

Revenues Expense SG&A(b) Incomefa) Revenuss costs Expense  SG&A(b) Income(a)

$67854 3% 1,118 % 9,185 § 57,521 § 58,100 § 465 § 1477 $§ 9173 § 45444
Cash flow hedges 5 R (10) % 18 38 % (23) $ (20) § (2)% (100)
Fair value hedges $ — $ . (16)
Non-hedging derivatives  $ — $ — $ 130 % (167) & 78 159 § 4% {2698 (485)

{ay Amounts are inclusive of cost of sales and other income {loss).
{b) SG&A was primarily driven by hedges of deferred incentive compensation, and-hedges of remeasurement of monetary assets and

liabilities.
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COUNTERPARTY CREDIT RISK. Our expostres to counterparties were $374 million and $306 million at December 31, 2023 and
December 31, 2022, respectively. Counterparties’ exposures to our derivative liability were $120 million and $365 million at December
31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively.

NOTE 23. VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES. In our Statement of Financial Position, we have assets of $117 million and $401
million and liabilities of $203 million and $208 million at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively, in consolidated
Variable Interest Entities (VIEs). These entities were created to help our customers facilitate or finance the purchase of GE equipment
and services and have no features that could expose us to losses that would significantly exceed the difference between the
consolidated assets and liabilities.

Qur investments in unconsolidated VIEs were $6,657 million and $5,917 million at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022,
respectively. Of these investments, $1,272 million and $1,481 million were owned by Energy Financial Services (EFS), comprising
equity method investments, primarily renewable energy tax equity investments; at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022,
respectively. In addition, $5,151 million and $4,219 milliory were owned by our run-off insurance operations, primarily comprising equity
method investments at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively. Our maximum exposure to loss in respect of
unconsolidated VIEs is increased by our commitments to make additional investments in these entities described in Note 24,

NOTE 24. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES, PRODUCT WARRANTIES AND OTHER LOSS CONTINGENCIES

COMMITMENTS. We had total investment commitments-of $3,809 million-and unfunded lending commitments, primarily at EFS; of
$651 million at December 31, 2023. The investment commitments primarily comprise investrments by our run-off insurance operations in
investment securities and other assets of $3,662 million and included within these commitments are obligations to make investments in
unconsolidated VIEs of $3,545 million. See Note 23 for further information.

As of December 31, 2023, in our Aerospace segment, we have committed o provide financing assistance of $2,676 million of future
customer acquisitions of aircraft equipped with our engines.

GUARANTEES. Credit support. We have provided $916 million of credit support on behalf of certain customers or associated
companies, predominantly joint ventures and partnerships, using arrangements such as standby letters of credit and performance
guarantees. The liability for such credit support was $21 million.

Indemnification agreements — Continuing Operations. GE has obligations under the Tax Matters Agreement to indemnify GE
HealthCare for certain tax costs and other indemnifications of 341 million, which are fully reserved. Irr addition, we have $289 million of
other indermnification commitments, inclading representations and warranties in sales of business assets, for which we recorded a
liability of $70 million.

Indemnification agreements - Discontinued Operations. Following the Separation of GE HealthCare on January 3, 2023, GE has
remaining performance and bank guarantees on behalf of its former HealthCare business, with a maximum aggregate exposure of
%44 million. GE also has obligations under the Transition Services Agreement and Tax Matters Agreement to indemnify GE HealthCare
for certain technology and tax costs of $81 million, which are fully reserved. In addition, we have provided specific indemnities to other
buyers of assets of our business that, in the aggregate, represent a maximum: potential claim of $721 million with related reserves of
$71 miflion;

PRODUCT WARRANTIES. We provide for estimated product warranty expenses when we sell the related products. Because warranty
astimates are forecasts that are based on the best available information; mostly historical claims experience, claims costs may differ
from amounts provided. An analysis of changes. in the liability for product warranties follows,

2023 2022 2021
Balance at January 1 $ 1,960 § 1,730 § 1,897
Current-year provisions(a) 8961 1,081 635
Expenditures (886) {768) (724}
Other changes 18 (83) {78
Balance at December 31 3 2,053 § 1,960 § 1,730

&} The increase in current and prior-year provisions is primarily related to Renswable Energy which, in 2022, was substantially all due to
changes in estimales on pre-existing warranties and related to the deployment of repairs and other corrective measures.

LEGAL MATTERS. In the normial course of our business, we are involved from time 1o time in various arbitrations, class-actions;
commercial litigation, investigations and other legal, regulatory or governmental actions, including the significant matters described
below that could have a material Impact on our results of operations. In many proceedings, including the specific matters described
below, it Is inherently difficult to determine whether any loss is probable orieven reasonably possible or to estimate the size or range of
the possible loss, and accruals for legal malters are not recorded until a loss for:a particular matter-is considered probable and
reasonably estimable. Given the nature of legal matters and the complexities involved, it is often difficult to predict and determine a
meaningful estimate of loss or range of loss until we know, among other factors, the particular claims involved, the likelihood of success
of our defenses to those claims, the damages or other relief sought, how discovery or other procedural considerations will affect the
outcome, the settlement posture of other parties and other factors that may have a material effect on the outcome, For these matters,
unless otherwise specified, we do not believe it is possible to provide a meaningful estimate of loss at this time. Moreover, itis not
uncommon for legal matters to be resolved over many years, during which time relevant developments and new information must be
continuously evaluated.
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Alstom legacy legal matters. In 2015, we acquired the Steam Power, Reriewables and Grid businesses from Alstom, which priorto
our-acguisition were the subject of significant cases involving anti-competitive activities and improper payments. We had reserves of
$393 million and $455 million at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, for legal and compliance matters related fo the legacy
business practices that were the subject of cases In various jurisdictions. Allegations in these cases relate to claimed anti-competitive
conduct or improper payments in the pre-acquisition period as the source of legal viclations or damages. Given the significant litigation
and compliance activity related to these matters and our ongoing efforts to resolve them, it is difficult to assess whether the
disbursements will ultimately be consistent with the reserve established. The estimation of this reserve may not reflect the full range of
dincertainties and unpradictable outcomes inherent in litigation and investigations of this nature, and at this time we are unable to
Eeveic»p a meaningful estimate of the range of reasonably possible additional losses beyond the amount of this reserve, Factors that
vean affect the ultimate amount of losses associated with these and related matters include the way cooperation is assessed and valued,

secutorial discretion in the determination of damages, formulas for determining disgorgement, fines or penalties, the duration and
amount of legal and investigative resources applied, political and social influences within each jurisdiction, and tax consequences of any
{Settlements or previous deductions, among other considerations. Actual losses arising from claims in these and related matters could
exceed the amount-provided.

Shareholder and related lawsuits. Since November 2017, several putative shareholder class actions under the federal securities laws
were filed against GE and certain affiliated individuals and consolidated into a single action currently pending in the U.S. District Court
for the Southern District of New York (the Hachem case, also referred to as the Sjunde AP-Fonden case). The complaint against
defendants GE and current and former GE executive officers alleged violations of Sections 10(b) and 20(a} and Rule 10b-5 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 related to insurance reserves and accounting for long-term service agreements and seeks damages
on behalf of shareholders who acquired GE stock between February 27, 2013 and January 23, 2018, GE filed a motion to dismiss in
December 2019. In January 2021, the court granted the motion to dismiss as to the majority of the claims, Specifically, the court
dismissed all claims related to insurance reserves, as well as all claims related to accounting for long-term service agreements, with the
exception of certain claims about historic disclosures related to factoring in the Power business that survive as to GE and its former
CFQ Jeffrey S. Bornstein. All other individual defendants have been dismissed from the case. in April 2022, the court granted the
plaintiffs’ motion for class certification for shareholders who acquired stock between February 26, 2016 and January 23, 2018. In
September 2022, GE filed a motion for summary judgment on the plaintiffs' remaining claims. In September 2023, the court denied GE's
motion for summary judgment, except as to claims arising from disclosures made between November 2017 and January 2018.

Since February 2018, multiple shareholder derivative lawsuits were filed against current and former GE executive officers and members
of GE's Board of Directors and'GE (as nominal defendant). These tawsuits have alleged violations of securities laws, breaches of
fiduciary duties, unjust enrichment, waste of corporate assets, abuse of control and gross mismanagement, although the specific
matters underlying the allegations in the lawsuits have varied, Two shareholder derivative lawsuits are currently pending: the Lindsey
and Priest/Tola cases, which were filed in New York state court. The allegations in these two cases relate to substantially the same facts
as those underlying the Sjunde AP-Fonden case. The plaintiffs seek unspecified damages and improvements in GE's corporate
governance and internal procedures:. The Lindsey case has been stayed by agreement of the parties, and GE filed a motion to dismiss
the Priest/Tola compiaint in March 2021, '

In July 2018, a putative class action (the Mahar case) was filed in New York state court naming as defendants GE, former GE executive
officers, a former member of GE's Board:-of Directors and KPMG. It alleged viclations of Sections 11,12 and 15 of the Becurities Act.of
1933 based on alleged misstatements related to insurance reserves and performance of GE's business segments in GE Stock Direct
Plan registration statements and documents incorporated therein by reference and seeks damages on behalf of shareholders who
acquired GE stock between July 20, 2015 and July 19, 2018 through the GE Stock Direct Plan. In February 2019, this case was
dismissed. In April 2019, GE filed a motion to dismiss. In October 2019, the court denied GE's motion to dismiss and stayed the case
pending the outcome of the Sjunde AP-Fonden case. In November 2019, the plaintiffs moved to re-argue to challenge the stay, and- GE
cross-moved to.re-argue the denial-of the motion o dismiss and filed a notice of appeal; The court denied both-motions for re-argument;
and in November 2020, the Appellate Division First Department affirmed the court's denial of GE’s motion to dismiss. In January 2021,
GE filed a motion for leave to appeal to the New York Court of Appeals, and that motion was denied in March 2021,

GE Retirement Savings Plan class actions. In'2017, four putative class action lawsuits were filed regarding the oversight of the GE
RSP, and those class actions were consolidated into a single action in the U.8. District Gourt for the District of Massachusetis, The
consolidated complaint named as defendants GE, GE Asset Management; current and former GE and GE Asset Management
executive officers and employees.who served-on fiduciary bodies responsible for aspects of the GE RSP during the class period. Like
similar jawsiits that were brought against other companies in recent years, this action alleged that the defendants breached their
fiduciary duties under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) in their oversight of the GE RSP, principally by retaining
five proprietary funds that plainliffs alleged were underperforming as investment options for plan participants and by charging higher
management fees than some alternative funds: The plaintiffs sought unspecified damages on behalf of a class of GE RSP participants
and beneficiaries from September 286, 2011 through the date of any judgment. In August and December 2018, the court issued orders
dismissing one count of the complaint and denying GE's motion to dismiss the remaining counts. In September 2022, both GE and the
plaintiffs filed motions for summary judgment on the remaining claims. In.September 2023, GE executed a class action seitlement with
plaintiffs in the amount of $61 million, which the court preliminarily approved in October 2023 with a hearing on final approval scheduled
for March 2024, Net of insurance contributions, this had an immaterial financial impact that GE recognized in.its results for the quarter
ended September 30, 2023,
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Bank BPH. As previously reported, Bank BPH, along with other Polish banks, has been subject to ongoing litigation in Poland related to
its portfolio of floating rate residential meortgage loans, with cases brought by individual borrowers seeking relief related to their foreign
currency indexed or denominated mortgage loans in various courts throughout Poland. For a number of years, GE has observed an
increase in the total number of lawsuits being brought against Bank BPH and other banks in Poland by current and former borrowers,
and we expect this to continue in future reporting periods. As previcusly reported, GE and Bank BPH approved the adoption of a
settlement program and recorded an additional charge of $1,014 million in the quarter ended June 30, 2023, The estimate of total
losses for borrower litigation at Bank BPH as of December 31, 2023 was $2,669 million.

The estimate of total losses for borrower litigation at Bank BPH as of December 31, 2023 accounts for the costs of payments to
horrowers who we estimate will participate in the settlement program, as well as estimates for the results of jitigation with other
horrowers, which in either case can exceed the value of the current loan balance. This estimate represents our best estimate of the total
losses we expect to-incurovertime. However, there are a number of factors that couid affect the estimate-in the future, including:
potentially significant judicial decisions or binding resolutions by the European Court of Justice {ECJ) orthe Polish Supreme Coiirt,
including a ruling by the ECJ in June 2023 that could significantly increase the cost to banks of loans invalidated by Polish courts and
encourage more borrower lawsuits; the impact of any such decisions or resolutions on how Polish courts will interpret and apply the law
in particular cases; the receplivity of borrowers over time to Bank BPH's settlement program; the number of active and inactive
borrowers who sue Bank BPH; the ability of Bank BPH to recover from borrowers the original principal amount of loans invalidated by
Polish courts; and the impact-of potential future legisiation in Poland relating to foreign currency indexed or denominated mortgage
loans. While we are unable at this time to develop a meaningful estimate of reasonably possible losses beyond the amount currently
recarded, future changes related to'any of the foregoing or in Bank BPH's seftlement approach, or other adverse developments such as
actions by regulators, leglsiators orother govermmental authorities (including consumer protection regulators), could increase our
estimate of total losses and potentially require future cash contributions to Bank BPH. See Note 2 for further information.

ENVIRONMENTAL, HEALTH AND SAFETY MATTERS. Our operations, like operations of other companies engaged in similar
businesses, involve the use, disposal and cleanup of substances regulated under environmental protection laws and nuclear
decommissioning regulations. We record reserves for obligations for ongoing and future environmental remediation activities, such as
the Housatonic River cleanup described below, and for additional liabilities we expect to incur in' connection with previously remediated
sites, such as natural resource damages for the Hudson River where GE completed dredging in 2019, Additionally, like many other
industrial companies, we and our subsidiaries are defendants in various lawsuits related to alleged exposure by workers and others to
asbestos or other hazardous materials. Liabilities for environmental remediation, nuclear decommissioning and worker exposure claims
exclude possible insurance recoveries, Itis reasonably possible that our exposure will exceed amounis accrued. However, due to
uncertainties about the status of laws, regulations, technology and information related to individual sites and lawsuits, such amounts are
fiot reasonably estimable. Total reserves related o environmental remediation, nuclear decommissioning and worker exposure claims
were $2,465 million and $2,415 million at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

in 2000, GE and the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) entered into a consent decrea relating to PCB cleanup of the Housatonic
River in Massachusetts. in October 20186, the EPA Issued its final decision pursuant to the consent decree, which GE and several other
interested parties appealed to the EPA's Environmental Appeals Board (EAB). The EAB issued its decision in January 2018, affirmirig
parts of the EPA's decision and granting relief o GE on certain significant elements of its challenge. The EAB remanded the decision
back to the EPA to address those elements and reissue a revised final remedy, and the EPA convened a mediation process with GE
and interested stakeholders, In February 2020, the EPA announced an agreement between the EPA and many of the mediation
stakehoiders, incliding GE, concerning a revised Housatonic River remedy. In March 2021, two local environmental advocacy groups
filed a joint petition to the EAB challenging portions of the revised permit; in February 2022, the EAB denied the petition, and the permit
became effective in March 2022, In May 2022, the two environmental advocacy groups petitioned the U.S. Court of Appeals for the First
Circuit to review the EPA's final permit. The Court's denial of this petition in July 2023 was not appealed, concluding these proceedings
onvthe EPA's remedy. As of December 31, 2023, and based on its assessment of current facts and circumstances, GE believes that it
has recorded adequate reserves fo cover future obligations associated with the EPA's final remedy.

Expenditures for site remediation, nuclear decommissioning and worker exposure claims amounted to approximately $260 million, $220
million-and $181 million for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively. We presently expect that:such
expenditures will be approximately $200 milliori in both 2024 and 2025.

NOTE 25. OPERATING SEGMENTS

BASIS FOR PRESENTATION. Our operating businesses are organized based on the nature of markets and customers, Segment
accounting policies are the same as described and referenced in Note 1. A'description of our operaling segments as of December 31,
2023 can be found in the Segment Operations section within MD&A,

REVENUES Total revenues Intersegment revenuss External reveniues

Years ended December 31 2023 2022 20 2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 2021
Aerospace $ 31,770 § 26,050 § 21,310 % 708 § 660 $ 1,036 § 31,0682 § 25380 § 20274
Renswable Energy 15,080 12,977 15,897 76 80 138 14,974 12,896 15,5569
Power 17,731 16,262 16,903 180 267 345 17,551 15,995 16,558
Corporate 3,403 2,812 2,559 (965)  (1,008) (1.,519) 4,367 3,819 4,078
Total $ 67,954 § 58,100 $ 56,469 § B - $ — § 67,954 § 58,100 § 56,469
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Years ended Decermber 31

2023 2022 2021
Equipment Services Total Equipment Services: Total Equipment Services  Tofal
Aerospace $ 9319 522451 $31,770 § 7.842 318,207 $26,050 $ 7.531 $13,780 $21,310
Renewable Energy 12,625 2425 15,0580 10,181 2,785 12,977 13,224 2473 15697
s:gcmirel' 5,396 1@,335 17,731 4737 11,626 16,262 5,035 11,868 16,903
gotal segment revenues $ 27,340 537,211 $64,551 § 22,770 $32,518 $55.280 § 25789 $28,121 $53,910

Fo

Revenues are classified according to the region to which equipment and services are sold. For purposes of this analysis, the U.8. is
g\resented separately from the remainder of the Americas.

I

o
“Years ended December 31 2023 2022 2024
Renewsble
Aerospace Energy Power Corporate Total Total Total
Us. $ 13486 & 6,327 §$ 6,008 $ 3,270 $ 29,090 §$ 24964 § 258607
Non-U.S.
Elrope 7,225 4,099 4,178 148 15,650 12,587 11,244
China region 2,607 214 1,081 (2) 3,800 3,537 4,044
Asia (excluding China region) 3,195 1,874 2,002 {102) 6,969 6,008 5,762
Americas 1,865 1,579 1,578 14 5,034 4,750 3,853
Middle East and Africa 3,393 958 2,885 75 7,310 6,164 6,259
Total Non-U.S. $ 18288 3% 8723 § 11,722 § 133 '§ 38,863 § 33,136 & 30,862
Total geographic revenues § 31,770 § 15,050 §$ 17,731 $ 3403 §$ 67,954 $ 58,100 $ 56,469
Non-U.5, revenues as a % of total 58 % 58 % 66 % 57 % 57 % 55 %

REMAINING PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION, As of December 31, 2023, the aggregate amount of the contracted revenues allocated
fo'ourunsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) performance obligations was $267,233 million. We expect ta recogrnize revenue as'we satisfy
our remaining performance 6bligations as follows: 1) equipment-related remaining performance abligation of $54,675 million of which
44%, 68% and 92% is expected to be recognized within 1, 2 and 5 years, respectively, and the remaining thereafter; and 2) services-
related remaining performance obligations of $212,558 million of which 12%, 42%, 86% and 82% is expected to be recognized within 1,
5, 10 and 15 vears, respectively, and the remaining thereafter. Contract modifications could affect both the fiming to complete as wel as
the amount to be received as we fulfill the related remaining performance obligations.

Total sales of equipment and services to agencies of the U.S. Government were 8% of total revenues for the vears ended December
31, 2023, 2022 and 2021. Within our Aerospace segment, defense-related sales were 6%, 7% and 7% of iotal revenues for the years
ended Dacember 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively,

PROFIT AND EARNINGS For the years ended December 31 2023 2022 2021
Agrospace 3 6,115 $ 4775 % 2,882
Renewable Energy (1,437) {2,240) (795)
Power 1,449 1,217 726
Total segment profit (loss) 6,126 3,751 2,812
Corporate(a) 3,785 {2,875) 1,158
interest and other financial charges {1,073} {1,423) 1.,727)
Debt extingtishment costs e (465) (6,524)
Non-operating benefit income (cost) 1,585 409 {1,138)
Benefit (provision) forincome taxes {1,357} (210} 585
Preferred stock dividends {295) (289) (237)
Earnings {loss) from continuing operations atiributable to GE common shareholders 8,772 {1,100} {5,058)
Earnings (loss)-fram discontinued operations atiributable to GE comimon shareholders 414 1,151 {1,515)
Net earnings {(loss) attributable to GE common shareholders 3 9,186 § 51 % {8,573)

{a)} Includes interest and other financial charges-of $45 million, $54 million and $63-million-and benefit for income taxes-of $196 million,
$213 million and $162 million related to EFS within Corporate for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021,
respectively.
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Property, plant and

Assets equipment additions Depreciation and amortization
At December 31 For the years ended December 31 For the years ended December 31
2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 2021
Aerospace $ 39,985 $ 39,243 $ 38298 §% 734 § 543 § 445 § 1089 % 1,037 $ 1,074
Renewable Energy 15,936 15,719 14,804 389 275 349 388 412 432
Power 23,255 22,173 23,569 348 210 189 478 506 692
Corporate 82,176 78,826 97,301 22 34 25 125 948 160
Total continuing $161,351 $156,961 $173.872 $ 1494 § 1061 8 1007 § 2080 & 2903 § 2358

We classify certain assets that cannot meaningfully be assoclated with specific geographic areas as "Other Global” for this purpose.

December 31 2023 2022
u.s. $ 105876 % 112,371
Non-U.S,
Europe 38,899 26,875
Asia 7,988 8,054
Americas 5,875 5,796
Other Global 2912 3,866
Total Non-1.S. $ 55674 § 44,590
Total assets (continuing operations) $ 161,351 $ 156,961

The increase in continuing assets in 2023 was primarily driven by higher cash from net income, the retention of an ownership interest in
GEHC, partially offset by cash paid for share redemptions and repurchases and depreciation and amortization on property, plant and
equipment and inténgible assets. Property, plant and equipment — net associated with operations based in the United States and
outside the United States was approximately 4% and 3% and 3% and 4% of total continuing assets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respeactively.

NOTE 26. SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION.

As of September 14, 2023, our investiment in AerCap ownership reduced below 20%, and as a result, we no longer have significant
influence in AerCap. On November 18, 2023, we sold our remaining equity interest in AerCap and only the note remains outstanding.
The fair value of our interest in AerCap, including the note, was $944 million and $7,403 million, which is included within Investment
securities on our Statement of Financial Position at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. We recognized a realized pre-tax and
after-tax gain of $129 million based on several transactions during the year with share prices in the range of $55.75 to $65.89, an
urrealized pre-tax loss of $8686 million ($1,052 million after-tax) based on a share price of $58.32 and an unrealized pre-tax and after-
tax gain of $711 million based on & share price of $65.42 related to our interest in AerCap for the years ended December 31, 2023,
2022, and 2021, respectively. See Notes 2, 3 and 18 for further information. Given AerCap summarized financial information is not
available as of the date of this filing; the surnmarized financial information presented below is reported on g one quarter lag.

For the years ended December 31 2023(a) 2022{b)
Revenues $ 7.511°% 8,627
Net income (loss) 2,539 {1,128)
Net income- (loss) atributable fo the entity 2,525 {1,132)
{a)We reported surmmarized financial information ending September 30, 2023 instead of September 14, 2023 {date investment reduced
below 20%).

(b} We reported summarized financial information starting October 1, 2021 instead of November 1, 2021 (the acquisition date).

As of December 31 2023(a} 2022(b)
Flight equipment held for operating leases, net % —_— 54,811
Other o 15,200
Total assets 5 — 8 69,811
Deabt 3 — § 47,350
Other - 6,817
Total liabilities $ . & 54,167
Noncontrolling interests $ — & 77

(a) As of September 14, 2023 (date investment reduced below 20%). As a result, we no longer have significant influence.
{b) Financial information is from September 30, 2022,

AerCap Is a SEC registrant with separate filing requirements, and thelir respective financial information can be obtained from
WWW.56C.gOV.
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.
Equity method investments. Unconsolidated entities over which we have significant influence are accounted for as equity method
investments and presented on a one-line basis In All other assets on our Statement of Financial Position. Equity method income
includes our share of the results of unconsolidated entities, gains (loss) from sales and impairments of investments, which is included in
Other income and in Insurance revenues in our Statement of Earnings (Loss). See Notes 1, 9 and 19 for further information.

Equity method investment

pot balance {Note 9} Equity method income {loss)

oDecember 31 ‘ 2023 2022 2023 2022 2021
Aerospace $ 1958 8 1931 § 295 § 149 $ 58
=Renewable Energy 808 752 74 32 39
“Power 1,028 960 78 89 23
SBorporate(a) 4,136 3,991 (34) 103 68
“Fotal consolidated $ 79316 7633 § 413 § 373 $ 188

{a) Equity method investments within Corporate include investments held by EFS of $1,718 million and $1,975 million and held by our
run-off insurance operations of $2,383 million and $1,980 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Summarized financial information of these equity method investments, exclusive of AerCap, is as follows.

For the years ended December 31 2023 2022 2021
Revenues $ 43463 § 23,891 § 27,210
Gross Profit 2,73 2,579 2:060
Netincome (loss) 2,847 2,088 2,020
Net income (loss) atfributable to the entity 2,802 2,035 2,000
As of December 31 2023 2022
Current assets $ 29,167 $ 26,659
Total assets % 68,313 § 61,108
Current liabilities 3 73,484 § 21,918
Total liabilities $ 33573 $ 31,947
Noncontrolling interests § 552 § 399
NOTE 27. QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
First quarter Second quarter Third quarter Fourth quarter
{Per-share amounts In dollars) 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Total revenues $14,486 $12675 $ 16,699 $ 14,127 $17.346° § 14470 :§ 19423 '§ 16,828
Sales of equipment and services 13,695 11,910 15852 13,361 16,504 13,826 18514 16,045
Cost of equipment and services sold 10,729 9,774 12,362: 10525 12,905 11,534 14,396 12,440
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 6,221 {1,209) 1,058 (1,127} 161 (245) 1,589 1.788
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations 1,257 101 {1,019 264 173 409 3 427
Net earnings (loss) 7478  (1,108) 39 (863) 335 165 1,691 2,213
Less net earnings (loss) attributable to
noncontrolling interests {27} 28 4 19 {14) 4 o 16

Net earnings {loss) aftributable fo the Comipany § 7,506 $ (1,136) § 35 § (882) § 348 & 161 & 1,591 § 2197

Per-share amounts - earnings (loss) from
continuing operations

Diluted eamnings (loss) pet share $ 556 8 (1.16) $ 091 & (1.09) $ 008 § (029§ 144 5 153
Basic earnings (loss) per share 560 {1.18) 0.91 {1.09} 0.08 (0.29) 1.46 1.55

Per-share amounts — earnings (loss)
from discontinued operations

Diluted earnings (loss) per share 1.15 0.08 (0.93) 0.23 0:.16 0.37 e 0.37

Basic sarnings.(loss) per share 1.15 0.08 (0.94) 0.23 0.186 0.37 —_ 0.37
Per-share amounts — net earnings (loss)

Diluted eamings (loss) per share 6.71 (1.08} {0.02) (0.88) 0.23 0.08 1.45 1.80

Basic earnings (loss) per share 6.76 {1.08) {0.02) {0.86) 0.24 0.08 1:46 1.93
Dividends declared 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.08

Earnings-per-share amounts are computed independently each quarter for earnings (loss) from continuing operations, earnings (loss)
from discontinued operations-and net earnings {loss). As a result, the sum of each quarter’s per-share amount may not-equal the total
per-share amount for the respective year; and the sum of per-share-amounts from continuing operations and discontinued operations
may not egual the total per-share amounts for net earnings (loss) for the respective quarters.
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DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information about our Executive Officers {As of February 2, 2024)

Date assumed
Execuitive
Hame Position Age  Officer Position
H. Lawrence Culp, Jr. Chairman of the Board & Chief Executive Officer, GE; 60 October 2018
CEQ, GE Aerospace
Rahul Ghai Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer, GE 682  September 2023
L, Kevin Cox Senior Vice President, Chief Human Resources Officer, GE 60 February 2019
Michael J. Holston Senior Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary, GE 61  April 2018
Russell Stokes Senior Vice President, GE: 52  September 2018
Prasident & CEQ, Commerdial Engines and Services, GE Aerospace
Scott L, Strazik Senior Vice President, GE; 45 January 2019
President & CEO, GE Vernova;
Thomas S. Timko Vice President, Controller & Chief Accounting Officer, GE 55  September 2018

All Executive Officers are slected by the Board of Directors for an initial term that continues until the Board meeting immediately
preceding the next annual statutory meeting of shareholders, and thereafter are elected for one-year terms oruntil their successors
have been slected. Other than Mr. Ghal, the Executive Officers have been executives of General Electric Company for at least five
years.

Prior to joining GE in August 2022, Mr. Ghai was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Otis Worldwide Corporation, an
elevator and escalator manufacturing, installation and service company, since 2019, Prior to that, he served as Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer of Harris Corporation, a technology company and defense contractor, from 2016 until 2019,

The remaining information called for by this item s incorporated by reference to “Election of Directors”, "Other Governance Policies &
Practices”, "Board Committees”, and "Board Operations” in our definitive proxy statement for our 2024 Annual Meeting of Shareholders
to be held May 7, 2024, which will be filed within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 (the 2024 Proxy
Statement),

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
{a)1. Financial Statements
included in the *Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” section of this report:

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Statement of Eamings (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021

Statement of Financial Position at December 31, 2023 and 2022

Statement of Cash. Flows for the vears ended December 31,2023, 2022 and 2021

Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021

Statement of Changes.-in Shargholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021

Motes to consolidated financial statements

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Summary of Operating Segments

{a)2. Financial Statement Schedules

The schedules listed in Reg. 210.5-04 have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the
consolidated financial statements or notes thereto,

(a)3. Exhibit Index

Exhibit

2 Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated November 7, 2022 by and between General Eléctric Company and GE HealthCare
Technologles Inc. (fik/a GE Healtheare Holding LLC), as amended. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to:GE's:Current Report on
Form 8-K, January 4, 2023 {Commission file no, 001-00035}).
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3{i) The Restated Certificate of Incorporation of General Electric Company {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(i) to GE's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013), as amended by the Certificate of Amendment, dated December 2,
2015 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to GE’s Current Report.on Form 8-K, dated December 3, 2015), as further amended by
the Certificate of Amendment, dated January 19, 2018 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to GE’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
dated January 20, 2016}, as further amended by the Cerlificate of Change of General Electric Company (Incorporated by reference fo
Exhibit 3(1).to GE's Current Report on-Form 8-K, dated September 1, 2016), -as further-amended by the Certificate of Amendment,
dated May 13, 2019 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to GE’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated May 13, 2019), as further
famendeci by the Certificate of Change of General Electric Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to GE's Current Report
&8n Form 8-K, dated December 9, 2019), as further amended by the Certificate of Amendment, dated July 30, 2021 (Incorporated by
ference to Exhibit 3.1 to GE's Current Report on Form 8-K, dated July 30, 2021), as further amended by the Certificate of Change of
enetal Electric Company, dated May 15, 2023 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to- GE's Current Report on Form 8K, dated
tMay 17, 2023) (in each case; under Commission file number 001-00035).

Eﬁ(ii) The By-Laws of General Electric Company, as amended on May 13, 2019 {Incorpcrated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to GE's
§un‘ent Report on Form 8-K dated May 13, 2019) (Commission file number 001-00035)).

4(a) Amended and Restated General Electric Capital Corporation Standard Global Multiple Series Indenture Provisions dated as of
February 27, 1997 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a) to General Electric Capital Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form
5.3, File No. 333-59707 {Commission file number 001-06461)).

4(b) Third Amended and Restated Indenture dated as of February 27, 1997, between General Electric Capital Corporation and The
Bank of New York Mellon, as successor trustee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(c) to General Electric Capital Corporation's
Registration Statement on Form S$-3, File No. 333-59707 (Commilssion file number 001-06461)).

4(c) First Supplemental Indenture dated as of Mag 3, 1999, suEplemental to Third Amended and Restated Indenture dated as of
February 27, 1997 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4{dd) to General Electric Capital Corporation's Post-Effective Amendment No.
1 to Registration Statement on Form 8-3, File No. 333-76479 (Commission file number 001-084861)). ‘

4{d} Second Supplemental indenture dated as of July 2, 2001, supplemental to Third Amended and Restated Indenture dated as of
February 27, 1997 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(f) to General Electric Capital Corporation's Post-Effective Amendment No.1
to Registration Statement on Form §-3, File No, 333-40880 (Commission file number 001-06461)),

4{e) Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 22, 2002, supplemental to Third Amended and Restated Indenture dated as
of February 27, 1997 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(cc) to General Electric Capital Corporation’s Post-Effective Amendment
No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form 8-3, File No. 333-100527 (Commission file number 001-06461)).

A{f) Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 24, 2007, supplemental to Third Amended and Restated Indenture dated as of
February 27, 1997 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(g) to General Electric Capital Corporation's Registration Statement on Form
8-3, File number 333-156928 (Commiission file number 001-0684861)).

4{g) Senior Note Indenture, dated October 9, 2012, by and between the Company and The Bank of New York Melion, as trustee
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4,1 of GE's Cuirent Report ori Form:8-K dated October 8;.2012 {Commiission file number
001-00035)),

4{hy Indenture dated as of October 26, 2015, among GE Capital International Funding Company, as issuer, General Electric Company
and General Electric Capital Corporation, as guarantors and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 89 to General Electric’s Current Report.on Form 8-K filed on-October 26,.2015:(Commission file number 801-00035)).

4{iy Global Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 10, 2015, among General Electric Capital Corporation, General Electric Company
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustes, {Incorporated by reference to-Exhibit 4(i) to GE’s- Annual Repert on Form: 10-K for the
fiscal year ended Decembeér 31, 2015 {Commission file number 001-00035)).

4(}) Second Global Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 2, 2015, among General Electric Capital Corporation, General
Electric Company and The Bank of New York Mellon, as successor trustee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to General
Electric's Current Report-on Form 8-K filed an December 3, 2015:(Commission file number 001-00035)}.

4(k} Agreement to furnish to the Securities and Exchange Commission upen request a copy of instruments defining the rights of
holders of certain long-term debt of the registrant and consolidated subsidiaries.”

4(1} Description of the Registrant’s Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.%

{10):Except for 10(it), {uu), (vwyand (ww) below, all of the following exhibits consist of Executive:Compensation Plans or
Arrangements:

{a) GE Executive Life Insurance Plan, as amended and restated January 1, 2020, and all amendments to date, including its most
recent amendment effective January 1, 2023 {incorporated by reference o Exhibit 10{a) to GE's Annual Report on Form 10K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 (Commission file number 001-00035)).

{b} GE Leadership Life Insurance Plan, effective January 1, 2020 and all amendments to date, including its most recent
amendment January 3, 2023 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b) to GE's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2022 (Commission file number 001-00035)).

{c) General Electric Directors’ Charitable Gift Plan, as amended through December 2002 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10{i) to GE’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 (Commission file number 001-00035)).

{d) GE Aerospace Supplementary Pension Plan, as further amended and restated and effective January 1, 2023 {Incorporated by
reference o Exhibit 10(a) to GE's Quarterly Report ornt Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2023 {Commission file number
001-00035)).

{e} GE Energy Supplementary Pension Plan, as further amended and restated and effective January 1, 2023 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(b} to GE's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2023 {Commission file number
001-00035)).

{fy General Electric Restoration Plan, as amended, effective Januan;y 1, 2023 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(f) to GE’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 (Commission file number 001-00035)}.
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{g) General Electric 2003 Non-Emplovee Director Compensation Plan, Amended and Restated as of December 7, 2018
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(g) to GE's Annual Report on Form-10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2018(Commission file number 001-00035)),

{h} Form of Director Indemnification Agreement {Incorporated by referencefo Exhibit 10{cc) to GE's:/Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 (Commission file number 001-00035)),

{i} Amendment {o Nongualified Deferred Compensation Plans, dated as of December 14, 2004 {Incorporated by reference o
Exhibit 10(w) to the GE's Annual Repott on Form 10-K for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2004 (Commission file number
001-00035)).

{i} GE Aerospace Retirement for the Good of the Company Program, as amended effective January 1, 2023 {Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(j) to GE's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 {Commission file
number 001-00035)).

(ki GE Energy Retirement for the Good of the Comipany Program, effective January 1, 2023 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(k) to GE's Annual Report on Formy 10-K for the fiscal year ended Dacember 31, 2022 (Commission file number 001-00035)).

(i} GE US Executive Severance Plan, effective January 1, 2022 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{j) o GE's Annual Repert
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 {Commission file number 001-00035)).

{m) GE Aerospace Excess Benefits Plan, as amended, effective January 1, 2023 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(m} to
GE's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 (Commission file number 001-00035)).

{n} GE Energy Excess Benefits Plan, effective January 1, 2023 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{n} to GE's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 {Commission file number 001-00035)).

{0} GE Aerospace 2008 Executive Deferred Salary Plan, as amended, effective-January 1, 2023 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(o) to GE's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Becember 31, 2022 (Commission file number
001-00035)).

{p) GE Energy 2006 Executive Deferred Salary Plan, sffective January 1, 2023 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{p) to
GE's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 (Commission file number 001-000385)).

{g) GE 2007 Long~Term Incentive Plan as amended and restated April 26, 2017, as further amended and restated February 15,
2019, and as further amended and restated July 30, 2021 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{a) to GE's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2021 {Commission file number 001-00035)).

{r} Améndiment, dated August 18, 2020, to the GE 2007 Long-Term Incentive Plan {as amended and restated April 26, 2017, and
as further amended and restated February 15, 2019) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{(c) to.GE's Quarterly- Report on
Forim 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 (Commission file number 001-00035)).

{s) GE 2022 Long-Term: Incentive Plan, effective May 4, 2022 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 98.1 to GE's Registration
Statement of Form 8-8, File No. 333-264715).

{t} Form of Agreement of Stock Option Grants to Executive Officers under the General Electric Company 2022 Long-Term
Incentive Plan, as of March 2023 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{a) to GE’s Quarterly Report on Farm 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2023 (Commission file number 001-00035)).

{u) Form of Agreement for Stock Option Grants to Executive Officers under the General Electric Company 2007 Lang-Term
Incentive Plary, as of March 2022 {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{a) to GE's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31,2022 {Commission file number 001-00035)).

{v} Form of Agreement for Stock Option Grants to Executive Officers ufider the General Electric Company 2007 Long-Term
Incentive Plan, as of March 2021 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to GE’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 30, 2021 (Commission file number 001-00035)).

{w) Form of Agreement for Stock Option Grants to Executive Officers under the General Electric Company 2007 Long-Term
Incentive Plan, as of March 2020 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(r) to GE's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2020 {Commission file number 001-00035)).

{x} Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Unit Grants to Executive Officers under the ‘General Electric Company 2022 Long-
Term incentive Plan; as of March 2023 (Incorporated by referenceto Exhibit 10(b) to: GE's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2023 {Commission file number 001-00035)).

{v) Form of Agréement for Restricted Stock Unit Grants to Executive Officers under the General Electric Company 2007 Long-
Term Incentive Plan, as of March: 2022 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b) to 'GE’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2022 {Commission file number 001-00035)).

{z) Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Unit Grants to Executive Officers under the General Electric Company 2007 Long-
Term Incentive Plan, as of March 2021 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b) to GE's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 30,2021 {Commission file number 001-00035)).

{aa) Form of Agreement for Leadership Restricted Stock Unit Grants to Executive Officers under the General Electric Company
2007 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as.of September 2020 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{t) to GE’s.Annual-Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 (Commission file numbet 001-00035}).

{bb) Form of Agresment for Performance Stock Unit Grants to Executive Officers under the General Electric Company 2022
Long-Term Incentive Plan, as of March 2023 {Incarporated by reference to Exhibit-10{c) to GE's Quarterly Report on Form-10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31,2023 (Commission file number 001-00035)).

{cc) Form of Agreement for Performance Stock Unit Grants to Executive Officers in 2021 under the General Electric Company
2007 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended July 30,2021 (incorporates by reference 1o Exhibit 10(b)to GE's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2021 (Commission file number 001-00035)).

{dd) Form of Transaction Incentive Award.”
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{ee) General Electric International Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended and restated on April 25, 2018 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.1 to GE’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, dated May 1, 2018, File No. 33&22458? (Commission file
number 001-00035)).

(Ff) General Electric Company Annual Executive Incentive Plan, as amended, effective January 1, 2023 {Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(ee) to GE's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 (Commission file
number 001-00035}).

{gu) GE Energy Annual Execufive Incentive Compensation Plan, effective January 1, 2023 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(ff) to GE's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 (Commission file number 001-00035)).

{hh) Employment Agreement hetween H. Lawrence Culp, Jr. and General Electric Company, effective October 1, 2018
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(z) to GE's Annual Report on Form. 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018
{Commission file number 001-00035)).

{ii) Amendment No.1, effective August 18, 2020, to the Employment Agreement between H. Lawrence Culp; Jr. and General
Eleciric Company, effective October 1, 2018 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to General Electric Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated August 20, 2020 {Commission file number 001-00035)).

{ii} Amendment No.2, dated-as of March:15, 2022, 1o the Employment Agreement between H, Lawrence Culp; Jr. and General
Electric Company, dated as of October 1, 2018 {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to GE's Current on Form 8-K dated
March 17, 2022 (Commission file number 001-00035)).

{kk) Performance Share Grant Agreement for H. Lawrence Culp, Jr., dated August 18, 2020 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to General Eleciric Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated August 20, 2020 (Commission file number 001-00035)).

{Il} Notice of Adjustment to the Performance Share Grant Agreement for H. Lawrence Culp, Jr., effective July 30, 2021
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(c) to GE's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2021
{Commission file number 001-00035)).

{mm) Employment Agreement between Carolina Dybeck Happe and General Electric Company, effective November 24, 2019
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(z) to GE's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018
{Commission file number 001-00035}).

{nn} Memorandum of Understanding between General Electric Company-and Carolina Dybeck Happe, effective March 1,.2020
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(c) to GE's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,.2020
{Commission file number 001-00035)).

{oo) Amendment No. 1, effective September 2, 2020, to the Employment Agreement between Carolina Dybeck Happe and
General Electric Company, effective November 24, 2019 (Incorporated by referenice to Exhibit 10{d) to GE's Quarterly Reporton
Ferm 10-Q) for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 (Commission file number 001-00035)).

{pp) Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement between Carolina Dybeck Happe and General Electric Company and
Amendment No. 1 to GE Performanice Stock Unit Grant Agreement for Carolina Dybeck Happe, dated May 17, 2023
{Incorporated by referance fo Exhibit 10 to GE's Current Report on Form 8K, dated May 18, 2023 {Commission file number
001-00035)).

{qq) Performance Stock Unit Grant Agreement for Carolina Dybeck Happe, dated September 3, 2020 (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10{e) to GE’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 (Commission file number
001-00035)).

{rr) Notice of Adjustment o the Performance Stock Unit Grant Agreement for Carolina Dybeck Happe, effective July 30, 2021
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(d) to GE's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2021
{Commission file number 001-00035)).

{ss} Offer Letter Agreement for Rahul Ghai, dated Oclober 5, 2023 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{a) to. GE's:Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2023 (Commission file number 001-00035)).

{tt) Amended and Restated Agreement, dated April 10, 2015, between General Electric Company and General Electric Capital
Corporation{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to GE’s Current Report on Form8-K, dated-April 10, 2015 (Commission file
number 001-00035)).

{uu} Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of May 27, 2021, among General Electric Company, as the borrower,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent, and the lenders party thereto (Incorporated by refererice fo Exhibit 10 to
GE's Current Report.on Form 8-K, dated May 27, 2021 {Commission file. number.001-00035)).

{wv} First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of May 27, 2021, among General Electric Company,
as the borrower, JPMorgan Chase Bank, MN.A., as Administrative Agent, and the lenders party thereto, dated June 9, 2023.*

{ww) Tax Matters Agreement, dated as of January 2, 2023, by and between GE and GE HealthCare Technologies Inc,
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to GE's ‘Current Report on-Form 8-K, dated January 4, 2023 (Commission file no,
001-00035)).

{11) Statement re Computation of Per Share Earnings.**

{21) Subsidiaries of Registrant.*

{22) List of Subsidiary Guarantors-and-lssuers of Guaranfeed Securities.®

{23) Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.*

{24) Power of Attorney.*

31{a) Certification Pursuant {o Rules 13a-14(a) or 15d-14{a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.”
31{b) Certification Pursuant to Rules 13a-14{a) or 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.*
{32) Certification Pursuant to 18 U.8.C. Section 1350.*

{97) General Electric Company Clawback Policy Pursuant to Rule 10D<1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.*
99(a) Supplement to Present Required Information in Searchable Format.*
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{101) The following materials from General Blectric Company's Annual Report onForm 10-K forthe year ended December 31, 2023,
formatted as Inline XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language); (i) Statement of Earnings (Loss) for the years ended December
31, 2028, 2022 and 2021, (i) Statement of Financial Position at December 31, 2023 and 2022, (i} Statement of Cash Flows for the
years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, (v) Statemenit of Comprehensive Income {Loss) for the years ended December 31,
2023, 2022 and 2021, {v) Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity for the years ended December 31,2023, 2022 and 2021, and
{vi} the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.*

{104} Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101).
* Filed electronically herewith

** Information required to be presented in Exhibit 11 is provided in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K
gepgr;t? in accordarice with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification 260, Earmings
er Share.

FORM 10-K CROSS REFERENCE INDEX Page(s)
Part|

tem 1. Business 4-8, 7-13, 78-80
Iterm 1A. Risk Factors 27-36
“ftem 1B, Unresolved Staff Comments Mot applicable
ltem 1C. Cybersecurity 26-27
ltem 2: Properties 4

ltem 3. Legal Proceedings 36

Hem 4. Mine Safety Disclosures Not applicable
Part 1l

Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases

item 5. of Equity Securities 26

ltem 6. [Reserved) Not applicable
ltem 7. Managemeni‘s_ﬁiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 6-25
Hem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 16, 74-76
item 8. Financial Statements and Supplemeantary Data 41-81
lterm 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure Not applicable
item 9A. Controls and Procedures 37

ftem 9B, Other information Not applicable
ltem 8C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections Not applicable
Part lli

Htem 10, Directars, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 82, (a)
ltem 11. Executive Compensation (b}

Becurity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

ltem 12, Matters {c)

Hem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence {d}

ltem 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services (e)

Part v

ltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 82-86
ftem 16. Form 10-K Summary Not applicable
Signatures 87

(8) Incorporated by reference to-"Governance™in-the 2023 Proxy Statement.

(b) Incorporated by reference to "Compensation Discussion & Analysis”, "Other Executive Compensation Policles & Practices” and
"Management Development & Compensation Committes Report™ in the 2023 Proxy Statement.

{c) Incarporated by reference to “Stock Ownership Information” and "Equity Compensation Plan Information” in the 2023 Proxy
Statement,

(d) Incorporated by reference fo “Related Person Transactions” and “How We Assess Director Independence” in the 2023 Proxy
Statement:

(e} Incorporated by reference to “Independent Auditor” in the 2023 Proxy Statement for Deloitte & Touche LLP (PCAOB iD No. 34}
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the reguirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834, the registrant has dukly caused this annual
report on Form 10-K for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2023, 1o be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, and in the capacities
indicated, thereunto duly authorized in the City of Boston and Commonwealth of Massachusetts on the 2 day of February 2024.

o
1y

078

e,

¥
By
poensh
e}

2024

/5! Rahul Ghai

Rahul Ghal

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
{Principal Financial Officer)

General Electric Company
{Registrant)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on

behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

*By

Signer

Title

Date

fs! Rahul Ghai

Rahul Ghai
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

18f Thomas S. Timko

Thomas 8. Timko
Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer and
Controller

Isf H: Lawrence-Culp, Jr.

H. Lawrence Culp, Jr.*
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Stephen Angel®
Sébastien M. Bazin*
Margaret Billson”
Thomas Enders*
Edward P. Garden®
Isabella Goren*®
Thomas W, Horton™
Catherine A, Lesjak®
Darren W; McDew"
Paula Rosput Reynolds®
Jessica Uhl*

A majority of the Board of Directors

s/ Brandon Smith

Brandon Smith
Attorney-in-fact

February 2, 2024

Principal Financial Officer

Principal Accounting Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Diractor
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

February 2, 2024

February 2, 2024

February 2, 2024
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EXECUTIVE OFFICES

Gengral Elegtric Company

One Financial Center, Suite 3700, Boston, MA 02111
+1 {817 443-3000

REGISTERED OFFICE

General Electiic Company
1‘River Road, Schenectady, NY 12345

ANNUAL MEETING
GE's 2024 Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be tefd onMay 7. 2024,

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

For shareholder Inquiries, wiite to GE Share Owner Services, P.O: Box 84854, 81, Paul, MN
55164-0854; or call (800} 786-2543 (800-STOCK-GE) or +1 (651)450-4064.

For Internset access to'general shareholder information and certain forms, ncluding transfer
instructions, visit the websile &t wiww.shareowneronling.com You inay alsa submit sharehiolder
inquiries using the emall link 1o the *Contact Us" section of the webslte,

STOCK EXCHANGE INFORMATION

I the United States, GE common stock is listed.an the New York Btock Exchange (NY3E), its
principal markat. Italsa s listed on certain non-U.S, exchianges, cluding the Lohdon Stack
Exchange, Euronext Parls, and SIX Bwiss Exchange.

CORPORATE OMBUDSPERSON

To raport concems relalied to compliance with the faw, GE policies, or govsmment contracting
requirements, wiite o GE Corporate Ombudsperson, One Financlal Center, Suite 3700, Boston,
MA D211 or gall +1 (B177443-3077; or send an emall to ambudspersonicorporate. gecon.

FORM 10-K AND OTHER REPORTS; CERTIFICATIONS

This 2023 GE Annual ReportIncludes the GE Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Form 10-K
Repart filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC) in February 2024 also
sontaing additional information including exhibits, GE's Chisf Exacutive Offfcer will also submit
to the NYSE 4 carlification certifying that he is not aware of any violatlons by GE of the NYSE
corporate governance fisting standards, The GE Form 10-K-¢an be viewed at
https:ifwww.ge.comiinvestorrelationsfannual-report and is also available, without charge, from
GE Corporate Investor Communications, One Financial Center, Suite 3700; Bostor, MAT2111.

CONTACT THE GE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Audit Commilttee and-the non-management directors have established procedures
to.enablé anyone who has a conéern abollt GE'S conduct, or ahy employse whohias a
concearn about the Company’s accounting; Internal accounting controls, or auditing matters,
o communicate that concern directly to the lead director of to the Audit Committee, Such
sommunications may be confidential ar arionymous and may be submitted in writing to:

GE Board of Directors, General Electric Company, One Finangial Center, Suite 3700, Boston,
WA D211, or call +1 (B17) 443-3078; or send anemall to difectors@corporate.ge.com.

WHERE TO FIND MORE INFORMATION:

GE Annual Reports: htips:fwww.ge.convinvestor-relationsfannual-raport
GE Proxy Statement; hitpsifwww.gecomiprosy

BE Sustainability Reports: hitps:fwwwgaconmdgusialnability

Spinsoff resources: hitps:Hewrwge.comiinvestorrelationsispinoffresources

& 2024 General Electric Company. Printed in US.A” GE 1s:a trademark of the General
Electric Company, Othar marks used throughout are trademarks and service marks of their
raspective owners.
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GE 1S A WORLD-LEADING
CORPORATION:

The Wall Strest
Journal

World's Bast
Managed Companies

Forbes

World's Best
Employers

§ Yaar Champlon

Newsweek
- America's Groatest

Waorkplaces for Diversity

N&Wseek Amprica’s Graenest

Companies
America’s Groatest

“Workplaces for Veterans

Linkedin
TTop Companies

Interbrand :

j Dest * Interbrand
ticael " Best Glohal Brand
Brands e al Brands
2023

‘Seal Award

SEAL Envirorirental
Initiative Award

Employers

- Boston Cansulting Group
. Most inovative Companioes

Boston Busingss Journal
Cuarporate Citizenship Award

s
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Once. Now. Forever.

General Electric Company
One Financial Center, Suite 3700
Boston, MA 02111
www.ge.com



